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PART |

tem 1. BUSINESS

General

KB Home is one of the largest and most recognizaddbuilding companies in the U.S. and has beerlibgilhomes for more than
years. We construct and sell homes through ourabipgrdivisions under the name KB Home. Unlesscthrgext indicates otherwise, the te
“we,” “our” and “us” used in this report refer toBKHome, a Delaware corporation, and its predecessuwt subsidiaries.

Beginning in 1957 and continuing until 1986, ousimess was conducted by various subsidiaries ofrKau and Broad, Inc. (“KBI”anc
its predecessors. In 1986, KBI transferred all tef homebuilding and mortgage banking operationsiso Shortly after the transfer,
completed an initial public offering of 8% of ousramon stock and began operating under the namené&auénd Broad Home Corporation
1989, we were spuaff from KBI, which then changed its name to Brdad., and we became an independent public compapsrating
primarily in California and France. In 2001, we obad our name to KB Home. Today, having sold oenéhn operations in 2007, we opere
homebuilding and financial services business sgriimmebuyers in various markets across the U.S.

Our homebuilding operations offer a variety of nbames designed primarily for first-time, moup-and active adult homebuyt
including attached and detached sinfglenily residential homes, townhomes and condomisiue offer homes in development communi
at urban in-fill locations and as part of mixed-psejects. In this report, we use the term “hontefdfer to a singléamily residence, whethel
is a single-family home or other type of residdnti@perty, and we use the term “community’refer to a single development in which ho
are constructed as part of an integrated plan.

Through our four homebuilding reporting segments,delivered 7,145 homes at an average selling pfi&291,700uring the year end
November 30, 201, compared to 6,282 homes delivered at an averlgegsprice of $246,500 during the year ended Nwoler 30, 2012
Our homebuilding operations represent most of agiress, accounting for 99.4% of our total revernn@913and 99.3% of our total revent
in 2012 .

Our financial services reporting segment offerspprty and casualty insurance and, in certain icgtgnearthquake, flood and pers:
property insurance to our homebuyers in the sami&eateawhere we build homemd provides title services in the majority of onarket:
located within our Central and Southeast homelngldeporting segmenti addition, since the third quarter of 2011, thegment has earr
revenues pursuant to the terms of a marketing a=svagreement with a preferred mortgage lenderdfiets mortgage banking servic
including mortgage loan originations, to our homghs . Our financial services operations accoufded6% of our total revenues 201:
and .7% of our total revenues in 2012 .

In the year ended November 30, 2013 , we genetatatirevenues of $2.10 billion and net income 409 million, compared to tot
revenues of $1.56 billion and a net loss of $59l0an in the year ended November 30, 2012 .

Our principal executive offices are located at 1M®ilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 9002%e telephone number of «
corporate headquarters is (310) 2BIB0 and our primary website address is www.kbhooms. In addition, community location &
information is available at (888) KB-HOMES.

Markets

Reflecting the geographic reach of our homebuildinginess, as of the date of this report, our anggprincipal operations are in the
states and 40 major markets presented below. V@eoglsrate in various submarkets within these nramnrkets. From time to time, we refe
these markets and submarkets collectively as amésl markets.For reporting purposes, we organize our homebgldiperations into fou
segments — West Coast, Southwest, Central and &astth
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Segment State(s) Major Market(s)
West Coast California Contra Costa County, Fresno, Los Angeles, Madea#ila®d, Orange County, Riverside, Sacramento,
San Bernardino, San Diego, San Francisco, San Sasta Rosa-Petaluma, Stockton, Vallejo, Ventuda an
Yuba City
Southwest  Arizona Phoenix and Tucson
Nevada Las Vegas and Reno
New Mexico Albuquerque
Central Colorado Denver
Texas Austin, Dallas, Fort Worth, Houston and San Antonio
Southeast Florida Daytona Beach, Jacksonville, Lakeland, OrlandoynR@bast, Punta Gorda, Sarasota, Sebastian-Vero
Beach and Tampa
Maryland Rockville
North Carolina  Raleigh
Virginia Washington, D.C.

Segment Operating Informatiofhe following table presents certain operating finfation for our homebuilding reporting segmentstfe
years endeNovember 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 :

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
West Coast:
Homes delivered 2,17¢ 1,94¢ 1,757
Percentage of total homes delivered 31% 31% 30%
Average selling price $ 467,80( $ 388,30 $ 335,50(
Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 1,020 $ 755.: % 589.4
Southwest:
Homes delivered 73¢ 682 843
Percentage of total homes delivered 10% 11% 15%
Average selling price $ 237,50 % 193,90 $ 165,80(
Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 1757 % 1322  § 139.¢
Central:
Homes delivered 2,841 2,56¢ 2,15¢
Percentage of total homes delivered 40% 41% 37%
Average selling price $ 198,90 $ 170,10 $ 171,501
Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 565.1 $ 436.¢ % 369.%
Southeast:
Homes delivered 1,38i 1,08¢ 1,057
Percentage of total homes delivered 19% 17% 18%
Average selling price $ 233,90 $ 206,20 $ 195,50(
Total revenues (in millions) $ 324+ % 224 % 206.¢
Total:
Homes delivered 7,14 6,28 5,812
Average selling price $ 291,70 % 246,50 $ 224,60(
Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 2,085. $ 1,548.. $ 1,305.¢

(a) Total revenues include revenues from housing amdl $ale:
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Unconsolidated Joint VentureShe above table does not include homes deliveredvanues from unconsolidated joint ventures inch
we participate. These unconsolidated joint ventaegiire and develop land in various markets whearehomebuilding operations are loc:
and, in some cases, build and deliver homes otatttedeveloped.

Strategy

Since 1997, we have followed the principles of aerational business model that we call KBnxt. KBprbvides the core framewc
under which we have established the primary opmratiand strategic goals for our homebuilding bessn We believe the principles of KB
set us apart from other large-production homebtsldad provide the foundation for our long-termvgita

KBnxt. With KBnxt, we seek to generate improved opecptfficiencies and return on investment throughsgiplined, factbased an
procesddriven approach to homebuilding that is founded aonstant and systematic assessment of consurefargces and marl
opportunities. The key principles of KBnxt includhe following:

* gaining a detailed understanding of consumer lonadind home design and interior/exterior desigioogtreferences through regt
surveys and research. In this report and elsewhereefer to our home designs and design optiomsiagproducts;”

* managing our working capital and reducing our ofiegarisks by acquiring primarily developed andited land at reasonable pric
in preferred markets and submarkets that meetnwastment return standards and market positiomntngarketing”) strategy;

e using our knowledge of consumer preferences togdesiffer, construct and deliver products that ntbet desires of the larg
demographic of homebuyers in our served marketstoHcally, this demographic has been comprisediref-time and movesp
buyers;

* in general, commencing construction of a home afftigr a purchase contract has been signed andanpratiy credit approval or ott
evidence of financial ability to purchase the hdms been obtained,;

» building a backlog of orders and minimizing the leyiime from initial construction to delivery of s to customel
» establishing an even flow production of higtality homes at the lowest possible cost;

« offering customers affordable base prices and fiodunity to customize their homes through theiahmf lot location within
community, as well as choices of various elevatiemd floor plans and numerous design options availat our KB Home Studios.

While we consider KBnxt to be integral to our sigxé the homebuilding industry, there can be ntatkigen circumstances where
believe it is necessary or appropriate to templyrdaviate from certain of its principles. For exalm at times we may be unable to maintai
even flow production of homes in a particular abegause of slow net order activity. Also, in sgecthrgeted communities with strc
demand, we may start construction on a small nurobéomes before a corresponding purchase corisagigned to more quickly meet-
delivery expectations of homebuyers and generatenteges. In some land constrained submarkets, suldimarkets experiencing signific
homebuilding activity, we may acquire undevelopedunentitled land parcels that otherwise fit withr anarketing strategy and meet
investment return standards. Other circumstancasarise in the future that lead us to make spestfiortterm shifts from the principles
KBnxt.

Strategic and Operational Focussuided by KBnxt, over the last few years we hlbraadly transformed the scope, scale and oriemtat
our business both geographically and operationatiyppared to where it stood prior to the severemntbnged housing market downturn
began in mid-2006. We did this largely by focusimgthree integrated strategic goals:

» achieving and maintaining profitability at the scaf prevailing market conditior
» generating cash and strengthening our balance; sive
e positioning our business to capitalize on futurewgh opportunitie:

In executing on these strategic goals, we shiésdurces from underperforming areas to marketsahharkets offering perceived hig
growth prospects, particularly land constrainedatmns in coastal areas of California, in ordernaintain a solid growth platfor
implemented measures to generate and conserveaddiolster our balance sheet, including reduceddipg, asset sales, opportunistic ca
market transactions, and continuous efforts to awerour operating efficiencies and lower our ovatheosts; and redesigned and re
engineered our products. Although we generally gpeed declines in net

3
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orders and revenues, and generated losses duigngettiod, we believe our actions since the ons#te@housing downturn have strengthe
our ability to adapt to changing housing marketaipits and positioned us well for future growth.

In 2013, we saw continued progress in the houstegwery that had begun to take shape in 2012, anshifted our priorities to focus
improving profitability per home delivered and geateng revenue growth within our current operatidoatprint through a number of strate
growth initiatives that are discussed below und#art Il — Item 7. ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esult
of Operations.” As in 2012, we aggressively invdsteland and land development and continued tdvevour community mix toward higher-
performing, desirable locations in land constraigeaivth markets and our product offerings to méeinging consumer preferences. Incree
profitability per home delivered and executing @eiational measures to grow revenues will contiouge our top priorities in 2014 as we s
to improve on our performance for 2013.

Based on our expectation that the healthier housmgronment of the past two years will generaliytinue in 2014, we intend to pur:
the following operational objectives, subject tanditions in the housing markets, the overall ecop@nd the capital, credit and finan
markets:

» Active and Targeted Land Investmer®wning or controlling a forecasted threefiwe year base supply of developed or develog
land subject to our investment return and markedbagdards, and accelerating our land developnativitees, predominantly in high-
performing, choice locations. We invested approxetya$1.14 billion in land and land developmen®®il3 and approximate§56¢
million in 2012. This investment orientation yietlanproved year-oveyear results in 2013, contributing to higher revesaverac
selling prices and housing gross profit marginsisas particularly the case in our West Coast Hmritding reporting segmel
where our ongoing investment concentration towaastal submarkets in California has positionecbusgpien new home communit
for sales in 2014 in areas and with products thebelieve will appeal to more affluent buyers wiasice larger homes and purck
more design options and features at our KB Homdi&su

In addition, we are pursuing opportunities to eatiév certain inventory previously held for futurevel®pment in markets whe
improved conditions support such action. In 2012, identified 21 communities for activation, printarin Florida and Arizon:
representing more than 1,000 lots, and deliver&dh2@nes from these communities in 2013. In 2013ideetified 20 communities f
activation, primarily in California and Texas, repenting approximately 1,700 lots. We expect tivdelhomes and to realize -
associated revenues from these activated ass2®d i

Our community count at November 30, 2013 incredsel®1 from 172t November 30, 2012, largely as a result of thestments i
land and land development we have made over théeasyears. We use the term “community counat'tefer to the number of ne
home communities with at least five homes/lotsteftell at the end of a reporting period.

* Net Order Growtt: Optimizing our assets by increasing revenuespar home community open for sales through an ietéosus o
balancing sales pace and selling prices. In addigapanding our overall average selling price wétlmong other things, incremet
gains from lot location, floor plan, home exteraevation, structural and other premiums and aaluhti sales of design options. (
approach is simple —provide the best combination of value, quality ahdice in homes and design options in attractieation:
along with attentive service to our customersand is at the core of our distinct Built to Ordeh®mebuying experience. With Built
Order, we offer homebuyers affordable base priced, ainlike many other largaroduction homebuilders, the opportunity
significantly customize the floor plans and desigiions for their new home.

» Organizational and Production EfficiencyContinuously enhancing our performance and takiggps to improve our housing gr
profit margins by aligning our management resoyrpessonnel levels and overhead costs with our tirgdatform, home delive
expectations and business needs, and by streagmid constantly improving, to the extent possible, home construction proc
and operational activities. In addition to evermflproduction scheduling, our home construction psscincludes developing
refining a set of valuengineered home designs in ways that allow us tet the needs of our primary customer base in atyadt
different markets, shorten cycle times and loweedi construction costs. It also includes takingastage of economies of scale
contracting for building materials and skilled teadbor, and leveraging our organizational inftasture in our served markets.

Promotional Marketing StrategyOur promotional marketing efforts are centerediifferentiating the KB Home brand in the mindsooi
primary customer base from resale homes and framhmenes sold by other homebuilders. These effadeeasingly involve using interact
Internetbased applications, social media outlets and alelving communications technologies. We believa thur Built to Order messa
and experience generate a high perceived valuedpiproducts and our company among consumers addestate professionals, and
unique among largproduction homebuilders. In marketing our BuiltQoder approach, we emphasize how we partner witthomebuyers 1
create a home built to their individual preferentesdesign, floor plan, elevation, square footagd kot location, and give them the ability
significantly customize their home
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with structural and design options that suit theieds and interests. In essence, Built to Ordeeses the consumer face of core elemet
KBnxt and is designed to ensure that our promotionarketing strategy and advertising campaigns cdosely aligned with our over:
operational focus. For greater consistency within gromotional marketing messages and in the ekatof our Built to Order approach, 1
selling of our homes is carried out byhouse teams of sales representatives, design tamsuand other personnel who work personally
each homebuyer to create a home that meets theblugerés preferences and budget. In 2013, to further erehanr sales process, we be
implementing a new design for our sales offices@munities we opened for sales during the yefleaténg a more contemporary look ¢
technology to better engage with our homebuyersplaie to continue to implement the new design farsales offices in 2014.

Our KB Home Studios are a key component of thetBaiDrder experience we offer to our homebuyetslaip increase the revenues
generate from home sales. These showrooms, whelgenerally centrally located within our market graphies, allow our homebuyers
customize their home by selecting from a wide vgri design options that are available atawst or for purchase as part of the oric
construction of their home. The coordinated effoftsur sales representatives and KB Home Studisutants are intended to generate hi
customer satisfaction and lead to enhanced custatesition and referrals.

Sustainability. We have made a dedicated effort to further difidiate ourselves from other homebuilders and egsaines through o
ongoing commitment to become a leading nationalpaong in environmental sustainability. Under thisnecoitment, we:

» refine our products and construction process td line materials needed to build our homes, andimoously look at ways to redu
construction and office waste;

e build all of our new homes to the U.S. Enviromtat Protection Agency’s (‘EPA”) ENERGY STARW®ersion 3 standarc
* build an increasing percentage of our homesdetrthe U.S. EPA’s Watersensefecifications for water use efficien

*  build our homes with Watersense labeled fixtt

» seek out and utilize innovative technologies arstesyis to further improve the energy and water iefiicy of our home

* engage in campaigns and other educational effecisietimes together with other organizations andigspto increase consur
awareness of the importance and impact of sustditydb selecting a home and the products withincane;

» developed an Energy Performance Guide®, or EPB&, informs our homebuyers of the relative enesfficiency and the relat
estimated monthly energy costs and potential eneogy savings of each of our homes as designedpa@u to typical new al
existing homes; and

» created and are adding more pete energy design options, under a program caEdHouse 2.0™, that are available in s¢
markets.

This commitment and the related initiatives we hamplemented stem, in part, from growing sensiggtand regulatory attention to
potential impact that the construction and use arhéss can have on the environment, including onctressumption of energy and we
resources. They also reflect our efforts to balahese concerns with our homebuyénserest in affordable homes and in lowering theility
bills and total cost of homeownership on a Idegn basis. More information about our sustaingb@ommitment can be found in our anr
sustainability reports, which we have published cam website since 2008. To date, we are the ontioma homebuilder to publish
comprehensive annual sustainability report. As ae environmental issues related to housing becomirgasingly important to consum
and government authorities at all levels, we intemdontinue to research, evaluate and utilize oewnproved products and construction
business practices consistent with our commitmeraddition to making good business sense, we\aeleir sustainability initiatives can h
put us in a better position, compared to resaledsoamd homebuilders with ledeveloped programs, to comply with evolving locthte an
federal rules and regulations intended to protatinal resources and to address climate changsimuildr environmental concerns.

Customer Service and Quality Control

Our goal is for our customers to be 100% satisfieti their new homes. Our on-site construction suvigers perform regular prelosing
quality checks and our sales representatives miairggular contact with our homebuyers during tbenk construction process in an effol
ensure our homes meet our standards and our hoersbexpectations. We believe our prompt and cougaesponses to homebuyarsed
throughout the homebuying process help reduce @osing repair costs, enhance our reputation faigjuand service, and help encour
repeat and referral business from homebuyers andetl estate community. We also have employeesamhoesponsible for responding
homebuyers’ post-closing needs, including warrafdims.
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We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&hke specific terms and conditions vary dependin¢ghermarkets where we do busin
We generally provide a structural warranty of 1@nge a warranty on electrical, heating, coolinginbing and certain other building syste
each varying from two to five years based on ggalgjramarket and state law, and a warranty of o f@ other components of a home.

Local Expertise

To maximize KBnxts effectiveness and help ensure its consistentuéigac our employees are continuously trained omidBorinciple:
and are evaluated, in part, based on their achienewf relevant operational objectives. We alsadelvel that our business requiresdeptt
knowledge of local markets in order to acquire langreferred locations consistent with our investitnreturn and marketing standards an
favorable terms, to engage subcontractors, to dpvatw home communities and offer products that heeal demand, to anticipate consu
tastes in specific markets, and to assess localatyy environments. Accordingly, we operate ousibess through divisions with experien
management teams and trained personnel who hae¢ noarket expertise. Though we centralize certaincfions (such as promotio
marketing, legal, purchasing administration, pradievelopment, architecture and accounting) to fiefrem economies of scale, our lo
management exercises considerable autonomy iniflagtland acquisition opportunities, developingdaimplementing product and se
strategies, and controlling costs.

Community Development and Land Inventory Management

Our community development process generally cansisfour phases: land acquisition, land develognteamme construction and delivi
of completed homes. Historically, our community elepment process has ranged from six to 24 momthsur West Coast homebuildi
reporting segment, with a somewhat shorter duratiaur other homebuilding reporting segments. timmunity development process va
based on, among other things, the extent of govenh@approvals required, the overall size of a paldr community, necessary site prepar:
activities, the type of product(s) that will be eféd, weather conditions, promotional marketingiltesconsumer demand and local and ge
economic and housing market conditions.

Although they vary significantly in size and comyitg, our new home communities typically consist3®fto 250 lots ranging in size fr«
1,900 to 20,000 square feet. In our communitiestypeeally offer from three to 15 home design clasicWe also generally build one to tf
model homes at each community so that prospectiyerb can preview various products available. Déjpgnon the community, we may of
premium lots containing more square footage, beitaws and/or location benefits. A few of our commities consist of a single multipkory
structure that encompasses several attached conidomstyle units.

The following table summarizes our average commywotint by homebuilding reporting segment:

For the Years Ended November 30, West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
2013 41 18 82 41 182
2012 53 14 81 32 18C

Land Acquisition and Land Developmehi¥e continuously evaluate land acquisition oppotiasiagainst our investment return
marketing standards, balancing competing needfrfancial strength, liquidity and land inventory foiture growth. In many cases, we are
to leverage our longtanding business relationships and reputation ieithl land sellers, our financial resources and sigady operatir
history to secure opportunities ahead of other Huitgers, developers or investors. When we acdaird, we generally focus on land par
containing fewer than 250 lots that are fully datltfor residential construction and are eithergitally developed to start home construc
(referred to as “finished lots®r partially finished. Acquiring finished or pattiafinished lots enables us to construct and dglitomes wit
minimal additional development work or expenditurége believe this is a more efficient way to use waorking capital and reduces
operating risks associated with having to develub/@r entitle land, such as unforeseen improveroests and/or changes in market conditi
However, depending on market conditions and avigilapportunities, including opportunities to secoegtain finished lots or property in le
constrained or very active submarkets, we may aequideveloped and/or unentitled land. We may ialgest in projects that require us to re
purpose and re-entitle property for residential, sseh as irfill developments. We expect that the overall baéanf undeveloped, unentitl
entitled, partially finished and finished lots inranventory will vary over time, and in implememgi our strategic growth initiatives, we n
acquire a greater proportion of undeveloped or tithesh land in the future.

Consistent with KBnxt, we target geographic aremspiotential land acquisitions and community depelent based on the results
periodic surveys of both new and resale homebuypepsirticular markets, prevailing local economiaditions, the supply and type of hor
available for sale, and other research activitiesal, in‘house land acquisition specialists analyze spegéagraphic areas to identify desir:
land acquisition targets or to evaluate whethalispose of an existing land interest.
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We also use studies performed by thatty specialists. Using this internal and exted®th, some of the factors we consider in evalgdsinc
acquisition targets are consumer preferences; geeeonomic conditions; prevailing and expected @éi@ales activity and the selling pri
and pricing trends of comparable new and resaleelsoim the subject submarket; proximity to metrdpoliareas and employment ceni
population, household formation, demographic, amgpleyment and commercial growth patterns; houselmtdme levels; availability
developable land parcels at reasonable cost, imguestimated costs of completing land developnagct selling homes; our operational s
and experience in the subject submarket; and regyland environmental compliance matters.

We generally structure our land acquisition andlaevelopment activities to minimize, or to defee timing of, expenditures, whi
improves our returns associated with laethted investments. While we use a variety of téplnes to accomplish this, we typically
contracts that give us an option or similar rightitquire land at a future date, usually at adetermined price and for a small initial optior
earnest money deposit payment. These contractsafsaypermit us to partially develop the underlylagd prior to our acquisition and
condition our acquisition obligation on our satetfan with the feasibility of developing the sulfjéand and selling homes on the land |
certain future date. We refer to land subject tohsaption or similar rights as being “controlledur decision to exercise a particular |
option or similar right is based on the resultdogé diligence and continued market viability anslyge conduct after entering into suc
contract. In some cases, our decision to exercitna@ option or similar right may be conditioned tire land seller obtaining neces:
entitlements, such as zoning rights and environatemid development approvals, and/or physicallyettging the underlying land by a pre-
determined date.

Our land option contracts and other similar congracay also allow us to phase our land acquisiteordor land development over a pe
of time and/or upon the satisfaction of certaindibons. We may also acquire land with seller ficiag that is norrecourse to us, or |
working in conjunction with thirgsarty land developers or other parties. The usthe$e land option contracts and other similar et
generally allows us to reduce the market risks @aged with direct land ownership and developmant] to reduce our capital and finan
commitments, including interest and other carryingts.

Our land option contracts and other similar cortragenerally do not contain provisions requiring epecific performance. Howev
depending on the circumstances, our initial optioearnest money deposit may or may not be refladahus if we abandon the related |
option contract or other similar contract and do camplete the acquisition of the underlying lahdaddition, if we abandon a land opt
contract or other similar contract, we usually a@nmecover the precquisition costs we incurred after we entered theocontract, includir
those related to our due diligence and other etialuactivities and/or partial development of tlubject land, if any.

Before we commit to any land acquisition, our secimrporate and regional management evaluate tet hased on the results of our i
specialists’ due diligence, thiqgarty data and a set of defined financial measunefyding, but not limited to, housing gross ptafiargir
analyses and specific discounted, after-cash flow internal rate of return requiremeriibe criteria guiding our land acquisition
disposition decisions have resulted in our maimtgirinventory in areas that we believe generalfgmobetter returns for lower risk and lo
our upfront investment in inventory.

Our inventories include land we are holding forufet development, which is comprised of land wheeehave suspended developn
activity or development has not yet begun but {geexed to occur in the future. These assets helflifore development are located in vari
submarkets where conditions do not presently supgpather investment or development, or are subjeca building permit moratorium
regulatory restrictions, or are portions of lar¢gerd parcels that we plan to build out over sevgealrs and/or that have not yet been en
and, therefore, have an extended development timelWe may also suspend development activity ibeleve it will result in greater retur
and/or maximize the economic performance of a conityiby delaying improvements for a period of tineeallow earlier phases of a long-
term, multiphase community or a neighboring community to gateesales momentum or for market conditions to awer We resun
development activity when we believe our investmarthis inventory will be optimized or, in somestances, to accelerate sales pace a
our return on investment, and we have activatedtaggeviously held for future development in dertaarkets as part of our strategic gro
initiatives.

The following table presents the number of inveptiots we owned, in various stages of developmengontrolled under land opti
contracts or other similar contracts by homebugddieporting segment as of November 30, 2013 an® 20The table does not inclu
approximately 10 acres we owned as of Novembef8@3 and approximately 326 acres we owned as oeiber 30, 2012hat were nc
expected to be approved for subdivision into |otthie respective period.
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Homes Under Total Land
Construction and Land Land Held for Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

West Coast 4,41¢ 2,89¢ 3,34¢ 3,93¢ 4,85( 3,61: 12,61: 10,44¢
Southwest 2,31¢ 1,27¢ 7,55z 7,74 2,34 534 12,217 9,55%
Central 10,87: 7,85¢ 1,451 2,05¢ 10,48: 4,612 22,80¢ 14,52¢
Southeast 3,73¢ 1,922 4,66 4,93¢ 5,061 3,37( 13,46( 10,22¢
S| 21,33¢ 13,95¢ 17,01¢ 18,66¢ 22,74( 12,12¢ 61,09: 44,75

Reflecting our geographic diversity and relativbBlanced operational footprint, as of NovemberZ,3 , 21%of the inventory lots w
owned or controlled were located in our West Cdashebuilding reporting segment, 208ere in our Southwest homebuilding repor
segment, 37% were in our Central homebuilding rppisegment and 22% were in our Southeast hondébgiteporting segment.

The following table presents the carrying valuensfentory we owned, in various stages of develogmancontrolled under land opti
contracts or other similar contracts by homebuddieporting segment as of November 30, 2013 an@ g@thousands):

Homes Under Total Land
Construction and Land Land Held for Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

West Coast $ 79754 $ 47165( $ 297,42( $ 337,22¢ $ 49,22¢: $ 33,71¢ $ 1,144,218 $ 842,59
Southwest 141,15: 63,45¢ 157,92: 156,15¢ 5,162 1,83( 304,23¢ 221,44!
Central 383,21( 292,47" 15,19 21,80¢ 12,67: 5,44: 411,07¢ 319,72
Southeast 265,70t 154,99: 158,99:. 153,66: 14,37¢ 14,15: 439,07¢ 322,80!
Total $ 158761 $ 98257 $ 629,52¢ $ 668,85 $ 81,437 $ 55,14: $ 2,298,57 $ 1,706,57

Home Construction and DeliverieBollowing the acquisition of land and, if necessdhe development of the land into finished lotg
typically begin constructing model homes and manketomes for sale. The time required for constoucbf our homes depends on
weather, time of year, availability of local skdl¢rade labor and building materials and otherdiactTo minimize the costs and risks of un
homes in production, we generally begin constructtb a home only when we have a signed purchasgamrwith a homebuyer and h:
obtained preliminary credit approval or other evicke of a homebuyes’financial ability to purchase the home. Howeeancellations of hon
purchase contracts prior to the delivery of theautyihg homes, the construction of attached praalwagth some unsold units, or spec
strategic considerations will result in our havingsold homes in production.

We act as the general contractor for the majoritguy communities and hire experienced subcontradt supply the skilled trade lal
and to procure some of the building materials meglifor all production activities. Our contractstiwbur subcontractors require that t
comply with all laws applicable to their work, inding labor laws, meet performance standards, alaiif local building codes and perm
We have established national and regional purchagingrams for certain building materials, appl@sicfixtures and other items to t
advantage of economies of scale and garner betténgpand more reliable supply and, where ava@aphrticipate in manufacturer or supg
rebate programs. At all stages of production, almiaistrative and oiite supervisory personnel oversee and coordirfeeattivities c
subcontractors to meet our production schedulesjaality standards.

Backlog

We sell our homes under standard purchase contrahtsh generally require a homebuyer to pay a diéf the time of signing. T
amount of the deposit required varies among makkedscommunities. Homebuyers also may be requirgéy additional deposits when tl
select design options for their homes. Most of foeme purchase contracts stipulate that if a homebegncels a contract with us, we have
right to retain the homebuysrtdeposits. However, we generally permit our horgelmito cancel their obligations and obtain refuofdsll or ¢
portion of their deposits in the event mortgagafiting cannot be obtained within a certain peribtinoe, as specified in their contract. '
define our cancellation rate for a given periodhastotal number of contracts for new homes caxcgiéided by the total new (gross) orders
homes during the same period. Our cancellation faatehe year was 32% in 2013 , compared to a dkatiom rate of 31% in 2012 Oul
cancellation rate was
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36% in the fourth quarter of 2013 , compared to 3B8%he fourth quarter of 2012 Our cancellation rates and the factors affectiog
cancellation rates are further discussed below utitlan 1A. Risk Factors” and “Part Il — Item 7. Magemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Our “backlog”consists of homes that are under a home purchasecbbut have not yet been delivered to a homedbunding backic
represents the number of homes in backlog fromptegious period plus the number of net orders (neders for homes less cancellatic
generated during the current period minus the nurobéomes delivered during the current period. ®acklog at any given time will
affected by cancellations and by our community ¢olihe number of homes we deliver has historicaibreased from the first to the fou
quarter in any year.

Our backlog at November 30, 2013 consisted of 2/&f5¥ies, essentially flat with the 2,577 homes icklzay at November 30, 20120ul
backlog at November 30, 2013 represented potéefutiate housing revenues of approximately $682.8ionil, a 10%increase from potenti
future housing revenues of approximately $618.6ionilat November 30, 2012primarily due to a higher overall average sellprice. Ou
backlog conversion ratio, defined as homes deld/énea quarter as a percentage of backlog at thmibieg of that quarter, will vary fro
quarter to quarter, depending on the number of sdmeur backlog that are under construction, heorestruction pace, cancellations anc
number of homes we sell and deliver within a quarte

Our net orders for the year ended November 30, 20d@ased to 7,125 from 6,703 for the year endedelber 30, 2012 marking th
third consecutive year that fujear net orders have increased from the previoas. yidhe value of the net orders we generated ®ryta
ended November 30, 2013 increased 24% to $2.1i6rbiflom $1.73 billionfor the prior year. Our net order value for a giyemiod represer
the potential future housing revenues associatéiul mét orders and homebuyed#sign option choices for homes in backlog durhmgy gam
period. Our net order value may be further impattedhanges related to cancellations and changaohétween periods.

The following tables present homes delivered, mé¢is (number of net orders and value) and caricgllaates by homebuilding reporti
segment for each quarter during the years ende@mber 30, 2013 and 2012nd our ending backlog (number of homes and yaluthe en
of each quarter within those years:

West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
Homes delivered
2013
First 50¢ 14C 571 26& 1,48¢
Second 594 211 637 35¢ 1,79i
Third 55¢ 194 757 31¢ 1,82¢
Fourth 521 19z 87¢ 44¢ 2,03¢
Total 2,17¢ 73¢ 2,841 1,38 7,14°f
2012
First 30¢ 17C 487 184 1,15(C
Second 33C 157 53¢ 267 1,29(
Third 541 18¢€ 70C 29¢ 1,72(
Fourth 76% 17C 84: 344 2,12:
Total 1,94t 683 2,56¢ 1,08¢ 6,28
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West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
Net orders
2013
First 53C 19¢ 653 28¢ 1,671
Second 587 18¢ 96¢ 41¢ 2,16:
Third 427 18C 743 38¢ 1,73¢
Fourth 371 18¢ 663 334 1,55¢
Total 1,91¢ 75€ 3,027 1,42 7,12¢
2012
First 28¢ 14C 547 221 1,197
Second 60C 22¢ 90C 32C 2,04¢
Third 65¢ 154 76% 323 1,90(
Fourth 61¢ 14C 48¢ 313 1,557
Total 2,16¢ 663 2,691 1,17 6,70:
Net orders — value, in thousands
2013
First $ 261,34; $ 43,70t $ 133,49. $ 68,26 $ 506,80:
Second 292,76 49,24¢ 198,62: 99,00: 639,63¢
Third 227,11¢ 44,88t 160,56¢ 96,35 528,92.
Fourth 194,88 53,24¢ 144,25! 89,31: 481,70:
Total $ 976,11{ $ 191,08" $ 636,93 $ 352,92({ $ 2,157,06!
2012
First $ 112,23. $ 24900 $ 94,45 $ 4593t $ 277,52¢
Second 235,29¢ 44,57" 155,52: 67,67: 503,07(
Third 252,56t 34,53¢ 135,93« 70,24: 493,27
Fourth 259,15¢ 30,98¢ 98,73¢ 70,381 459,27(
Total $ 859,25( $ 135,00t $ 484,64! $ 254,23¢ $ 1,733,14
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West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
Cancellation rates
2013
First 23% 22% 39% 34% 32%
Second 20 23 32 22 27
Third 25 24 41 27 33
Fourth 29 25 44 31 36
Total 24% 24% 39% 28% 32%
2012
First 34% 24% 39% 37% 36%
Second 24 17 28 28 26
Third 23 16 35 27 29
Fourth 25 21 47 31 35
Total 26% 19% 37% 30% 31%
Ending backlog — homes
2013
First 70& 24z 1,231 58t 2,76:
Second 69¢ 22C 1,562 64¢ 3,12¢
Third 57C 20€ 1,54¢ 71t 3,03¢
Fourth 42( 201 1,33¢ 601 2,557
2012
First 44z 17z 1,07¢ 50¢ 2,20:
Second 713 24k 1,44z 562 2,96:
Third 83C 218 1,507 592 3,14
Fourth 684 182 1,14¢ 561 2,57
Ending backlog — value, in thousands
2013
First $ 287,97( % 54,60 $ 235,75¢ % 125,56( % 703,89:
Second 337,87¢ 48,52+ 296,94¢ 143,26. 826,61
Third 276,03: 48,64t 315,90( 167,90t 808,48
Fourth 206,30t 50,85¢ 279,42: 145,89¢ 682,48¢
2012
First $ 150,63t % 32,13¢  $ 177,99t % 99,17¢ % 459,95:
Second 301,65: 43,51¢ 237,55¢ 110,68( 693,40t
Third 327,52¢ 40,727 251,90( 124,58¢ 744,74
Fourth 248,79( 40,20¢ 204,47 125,15 618,62¢

Land and Raw Materials

Based on our current strategic plans, we striveato or control land sufficient to meet our foreeaksproduction goals for the next thre
five years. As discussed above under “Strategy,2014 we intend to acquire additional land subjecconditions in housing markets,
overall economy and the capital, credit and finahmarkets. However, we may also decide to sethaetand or land interests as part of
marketing strategy or for other reasons.
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The principal raw materials used in the constructd our homes are concrete and forest productadtfition, we use a variety of ot
construction materials in the homebuilding procé@ssluding drywall and plumbing and electrical itenWe attempt to enhance the efficie
of our operations by using, where practical, stasidad materials that are commercially availablecompetitive terms from a variety
sources. In addition, our national and regionathasing programs for certain building materiall@nces, fixtures and other items allow
to benefit from large quantity purchase discoumd, avhere available, manufacturer or supplier rhatvhen possible, we arrange for |
purchases of these products at favorable pricas fmanufacturers and suppliers. Although our puricigastrategies have helped us
negotiating favorable prices for raw materials2013, we encountered higher prices for lumber, dtyweoncrete and other materials anc
skilled trade labor, and we expect to see additionst increases if and as the present housingreeggrogresses, as discussed further b
under “Competition, Seasonality, Delivery Mix anth€r Factors.”

Customer Financing

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing tahmse our homes from any lender or other providehe&ir choice. We do n
directly offer mortgage banking services or origéngesidential consumer mortgage loans (“mortgaged”)for our customers. Prior to It
June 2011, KBA Mortgage, LLC (“KBA Mortgage"an unconsolidated mortgage banking joint ventura sfibsidiary of ours and a subsid
of Bank of America, N.A., provided mortgage banksegvices to a significant proportion of our homgdng. KBA Mortgage ceased offer
mortgage banking services after June 30, 2011.

Since mid2011, we have had a marketing services agreemehtavpreferred mortgage lender that offers mortgameking service
including mortgage loan originations, to our homgdrs who elect to use the lender. The mortgageibgrdervices are described further ui
“Part Il — Item 7. Management's Discussion and Ams@& of Financial Condition and Results of Operradie— Financial Services Reporti
Segment.”At no time has our preferred mortgage lender oratpective parent company been an affiliate of @urany of our subsidiarit
Except as discussed below, we have not had any rehipe joint venture or other interests in or withr preferred mortgage lender or
respective parent company or with respect to tlremees or income that may be generated from odenpeel mortgage lender providi
mortgage banking services to, or originating mayigboans for, our homebuyers. Until the first gaadf 2012, our preferred mortgage ler
was MetLife Home Loans, a division of MetLife Bari{,A., which announced in January 2012 that it w@asing to offer forward mortge
banking services as part of its business. In M&eh2, Nationstar Mortgage LLC (“Nationstatjecame our preferred mortgage len
Nationstar began accepting new mortgage loan ajits from our homebuyers on May 1, 2C

On January 21, 2013, we entered into an agreemihtNationstar to form Home Community Mortgage, LI(CGHome Communit
Mortgage”),a mortgage banking company that will offer an awéynortgage banking services to our homebuyersioNstar will continue &
our preferred mortgage lender untii Home Communityrtgage begins offering mortgage banking serviedsich is expected in the fil
quarter of 2014. Home Community Mortgage is accedrfior as an unconsolidated joint venture withirr obancial services reportil
segment.

Employees

We employ a trained staff of land acquisition spbsis, architects, planners, engineers, constmicsupervisors, marketing and s
personnel, and finance and accounting personneplemented as necessary by outside consultants, gufde the development of ¢
communities from their conception through the prtiomal marketing and delivery of completed homes.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had approximétel$0 and 1,200 fulitme employees, respectively. None of our employaze
represented by a collective bargaining agreement.

Competition, Seasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Fators

The homebuilding industry and housing market aghllyi competitive with respect to selling homes;irgrskilled trade labor, such
carpenters, roofers, electricians and plumbers;augliring attractive developable land. We competehomebuyers, skilled trade worke
management talent and desirable land against nus&immebuilders, ranging from regional and natidinads to small local enterprises. As
homebuyers, we primarily compete with other homieleus on the basis of selling price, community tama and amenities, availability
financing options, home designs, reputation, hoorestruction quality and cycle time, and the desigtions and features that can be inclt
in a home. In some cases, this competition occittindarger residential development projects cionitey separate sections designed, pla
and developed by other homebuilders. In additiom,cempete for homebuyers against housing alteemither than new homes, incluc
resale homes, apartments, sinfgieiily rentals and other rental housing. In certaiarkets and at times when housing demand is kighalsc
compete with other homebuilders and commercial rentbdeling contractors to hire skilled trade lak@wimarily on the basis of prexisting
relationships, contract price and volume and coesty of available work. During the housing downtunmany skilled workers left construct
for other industries. As a result, in 2013 and 20d2narkets experiencing increased residential
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construction activity due to improved housing ma@nditions, the relatively smaller workforce cdanmdd with higher demand for trade la
created shortages of certain skilled workers, dgwip costs and/or extending land development antehconstruction schedules. This elev
residential construction activity also contributiednotable increases in the cost of certain bujdimaterials, such as lumber, drywall
concrete, reflecting in part a smaller supplierebasd lower production capacity than existed beffoeehousing downturn. In 2013, we also
higher prices for desirable land amid heightenechpmtition with homebuilders and other developerd mvestors, particularly in the la
constrained areas we are strategically targeting. a&pect these upward trends in construction laboitding materials and land costs
continue, and possibly intensify, in 2014 if andtees present housing recovery progresses and ighgreater competition for these resources.

Our performance is affected by seasonal demandidréor housing. Traditionally, there has been mooasumer demand for ho
purchases and we tend to generate more net ord#re mid- to latespring and early summer months (corresponding tst moour second a
part of our third quarters) than at other timeghaf year. With our Built to Order approach and ¢gpbihome construction cycle times, -
“selling season”demand results in our delivering more homes andergging higher revenues from late summer throughfétl month
(corresponding to part of our third and our fougtrarters). On a relative basis, the winter andyesyting months within our first and par
our second quarters usually produce the fewestnders, homes delivered and revenues, and the rsgjudifference from our fourth quartet
our first quarter can be significant.

In addition to the overall volume of homes we seltl deliver, our results in a given period are ificantly affected by the geographic r
of markets and submarkets in which we operatentieber and characteristics of the new home comiesnite have open for sales in th
markets and submarkets; and the products we geil those communities during the period. While thare some similarities, there
differences within and between our served marketerims of the quantity, size and nature of the heme communities we operate and
products we offer to consumers. These differeneieat, among other things, local homebuyer prefees; household demographics.§.,
large families or working professionals; incomediy; geographic contexte(g., urban or suburban; availability of reasonablycedi finishe:
lots; development constraints; residential densapp the shifts that can occur in these factoes time. These structural factors in each o
served markets will affect the costs we incur dreltime it takes to locate, acquire rights to aedetbp land, open new home communitie:
sales, and market and build homes; the size ohoures; our selling prices (including the contribotirom homebuyergdurchases of desi
options); and the pace at which we sell and deln@nes and close out communities. Therefore, aultein any given period will fluctue
compared to other periods based on the proporfidroimes delivered from areas with higher or lownatirsg prices and on the corresponc
land and overhead costs incurred to generate thelgesries, as well as from our overall communityt. In 2013, we targeted opening
of our new home communities for sales in highefgrering, choice locations -predominately in land constrained areas that hagtomer
with higher household incomes who desire largerémand purchase more design options, key driversuiohome selling prices and hous
gross profit margins. Due in part to this focuspgraach, in 2013, we posted favorable year-gesr results in revenues as we delivered
homes from these areas, and generated higher lgogigias profits for the year compared to 2012.h&tsame time, we had modest year-ove
year growth in net orders. In 2014, we plan to it our approach of opening hew home communitiesdles in locations with the abs-
described demand characteristics, and we anticipateve will have more new home communities operséles than we did in 2013.

Financing

We do not generally finance the development of mmmunities with project financing. By “project &ncing,” we mean loans fro
parties other than land sellers that are spedificditained for, or secured by, particular commiesitor other inventory assets. Instead,
operations have historically been funded by respfitsperations, public debt and equity financinge so have the ability to borrow fu
under our unsecured revolving credit facility withrious banks (as amended, the “Credit Facilitip@pending on market conditions in 2C
we may obtain project financing, or secure extefimancing with community or other inventory assttat we own or control. We may a
arrange or engage in capital markets, bank loajegrdebt or other financial transactions andigramd the capacity of the Credit Facility
our cash-collateralized letter of credit facilitieith various financial institutions (the “LOC Féties”) or enter into additional such faciliti
These transactions may include repurchases from tiintime of our outstanding senior notes or otteht through redemptions, tender oft
exchange offers, private exchanges, open markehpses or other means, and may include potentialisguances of equity or senior
convertible senior notes or other debt through ipubiferings, private placements or other arrangesi¢o raise new capital to support
current land and land development investment taygaid for other business purposes and/or to efegmirchases or redemptions of
outstanding senior notes or other debt. Our akititengage in such financial transactions, howeweayy be constrained by economic, car
credit and/or financial market conditions, investierest and/or our current leverage ratios, anccan provide no assurance of the succe
costs of any such transactions.
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Environmental Compliance Matters

As part of our due diligence process for land asitjohs, we often use thirgarty environmental consultants to investigate iibdd
environmental risks, and we require disclosuregstegentations and warranties from land sellersrdigg environmental risks. Despite th
efforts, there can be no assurance that we willdawtaterial liabilities relating to the existence removal of toxic wastes, site restorat
monitoring or other environmental matters affectprgperties currently or previously owned or colda by us. No estimate of any poter
liabilities can be made although we may, from titoetime, acquire property that requires us to ineavironmental cleanp costs afte
conducting appropriate due diligence, includingt bat limited to, using detailed investigations fpemed by environmental consultants
such instances, we take steps prior to our acguisitf the land to gain reasonable assurance Heetprecise scope of work required anc
costs associated with removal, site restoratiodaamdonitoring. To the extent contamination or oteevironmental issues have occurred ir
past, we will attempt to recover restoration cdim third parties, such as the generators of lumesr waste, land sellers or others in the
chain of title and/or their insurers. Based on ¢hpsactices, we anticipate that it is unlikely tleatvironmental cleanp costs will have
material effect on our consolidated financial staats. We have not been notified by any governnhegtency of any claim that any of
properties owned or formerly owned by us are idieatiby the EPA (or similar state or local agenag)being a “Superfundd( similar state ¢
local) cleanup site requiring remediation, which could have atarial effect on our future consolidated finanatdtements. Costs associ:
with the use of environmental consultants are ratenal to our consolidated financial statements.

Access to Our Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, pratatements and other information with the Seiasritnd Exchange Commiss
(“SEC™). We make our public SEC filings available, at notct®ough our investor relations website at wwweistor.kbhome.com, as soor
reasonably practicable after the report is eleatadly filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. We dllso provide these reports in electroni
paper format free of charge upon request made toinmestor relations department at investorrela@ibhome.com or at our princi
executive offices. We intend for our investor rielas website to be the primary location where itwessand the general public can ob
announcements regarding and can learn more abodinancial and operational performance, busindaegpand prospects, and our boar
directors, our senior executive management team, cam corporate governance policies, including atticles of incorporation, biaws
corporate governance principles, board committeetels, and ethics policy. We may from time to tiom®ose to disclose or post impor
information about our business on or through owegtor relations website, and/or through othertede@c channels, including social me
outlets and other evolving communications technelgWWe webcast and archive quarterly earnings ealtl other investor events in which
participate or host, and post related materialuminvestor relations website. Interested persamsregister on our investor relations wel
to receive prompt notifications of new SEC filingsess releases and other information posted thé&yeever, the content available or
through our primary website at www.kbhome.com or iowestor relations website, including our susthitity reports, is not incorporated
reference in this report or in any other filing make with the SEC. Our references in our SEC filing otherwise to materials posted on «
any content available on or through our website¥/@anthrough other electronic channels, includingial media outlets and other evolv
communications technologies, are intended to betivetextual or oral references only. Our SEQ{B are also available to the public ove!
Internet at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Thlelip may also read and copy any document we filth@ SECS public reference roc
located at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 80®ease call the SEC at 1-800-S&&30 for further information on the operation o
public reference room.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following important factors could adversely map our business. These factors could cause oualaetsults to differ materially fro
the forwardlooking and other statements that (a) we make distation statements, periodic reports and ottiegé with the SEC and fro
time to time in our news releases, annual reportsather written reports or communications, (b)past on or make available through
primary website at www.kbhome.com or our investlations website at www.investor.kbhome.com antiosugh other electronic chann
including social media outlets and other evolvieghenunications technologies, and (c) our personmelrapresentatives make orally from t
to time.

The recent improvement in housing market conditiofigllowing a severe and prolonged housing downtunmay not continue, and ar
slowing or reversal of the present housing recovegnerally, or in our served markets, or for the mebuilding industry may materially ar
adversely affect our business and consolidated finil statements.

In 2013, the housing recovery continued to advaaftar several years of weak demand and excessysdpphg the housing downtu
The present recovery, which began to take sha@@12, has been fueled primarily by sustained denfantdomes, low inventories of hon
available for sale, and generally favorable ecowoarid demographic trends. Housing demand has hgmoded by population grow
household formations, favorable housing affordgbiirgely due to relatively low interest
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rates for mortgage loans, and positive consumefidamce. However, the performance of housing markatied throughout the year. Furtl
in mid-2013, a sudden rise in mortgage loan interest,rateabined with steadily increasing home prices)pered a relatively heated s
pace seen earlier in the year, and an extendesldége impasse during federal government budgdtdabt ceiling negotiations in Octo
2013 negatively affected consumer confidence ahdnkers in our fourth quarter.

Despite the changing environment during the yeéh the present housing recovery, we and other lhoitgers for the most part repor
higher orders and homes delivered and better finanesults in 2013 than in 2012. However, the ioaved conditions did not extend ti
number of housing markets we serve, and some nsagket submarkets have been stronger than othergxpéet that such unevenness
continue in 2014 and beyond whether or not thegmtesousing recovery progresses, and that pregaslimditions in various housing mark
and submarkets will fluctuate. These fluctuatiorsyrbe significant and unfavorable in future periodsaddition, while some of the me
negative factors that contributed to the housingritarn may have moderated, several remain, anddbeld return and/or intensify to inhi
any future improvement in housing market conditiam2014. These negative factors include (a) weaegal economic and employm
growth that, among other things, restrains consumesmes, consumer confidence and demand for ho(bggielinquencies, defaults ¢
foreclosures on mortgage loans that could add‘shadow inventory” of lendeowned homes that may be sold in competition witly hemes
including our homes, and resale homes at low “elésted’prices or that generate short sales activity ah quice levels; (c) a significa
number of homeowners whose outstanding principianoa on their mortgage loan exceeds the markeewal their home, which undermit
their ability to purchase another home that thdyeotise might desire and be able to afford, and atuse lenders to curb mortgage
origination activity; (d) volatility and uncertaintn domestic and international financial, credittaconsumer lending markets amid slow grc
or recessionary conditions in various regions adotine@ world; and (e) tight lending standards aratiices for mortgage loans, which may
driven by regulatory requirements, that limit coms&us’ ability to qualify for mortgage financing to purcd®@a home, including increa:
minimum credit score requirements, credit risk/rgage loan insurance premiums and/or other feeseandred down payment amounts, n
conservative appraisals of home values, lower toaralue ratios and extensive buyer income and assetindentation requiremer
Additional headwinds may come from the efforts @angposals of lawmakers to reduce the debt of tberfd government through tax incre¢
and/or spending cuts, or the failure of lawmakersihely agree on a budget or appropriation legjiato fund the operations of the fed:
government, and financial markets’ and businesszgitions to those efforts, proposals or failurbiclv could impair economic growth. Sit
these factors may persist or recur, we can proumessurance that the present housing recoverycuiitinue or gain further momentt
whether overall or in our served markets.

If, on an overall basis or in our served markdts,gresent housing recovery stalls or does notraomat the same pace, or any or all o
negative factors described above persist or worgerticularly if there is limited economic growth a decline, low growth or decrease
employment and consumer incomes, and/or continigédl mortgage lending standards and practicesetivauld likely be a correspondi
adverse effect on our business and our consolidatadcial statements, including, but not limitexd the number of homes we deliver,
average selling prices, the amount of revenues enermgte and our ability to operate profitably, &nel effect may be material. Even if
present housing recovery continues for an extermlribd, our and the homebuilding indussryorders, homes delivered, revenues
profitability remain well below, and may not retum the peak levels reached shortly before thesimgudownturn began.

Continued or additional tightening of mortgage leimy standards and practices or mortgage financingquirements or volatility i
financial, credit and consumer lending markets calbdversely affect the availability of mortgage ftafor potential purchasers of ol
homes and thereby reduce our net orders.

Since 2008, the mortgage lending and mortgage dmandustries have experienced significant insitgbilue to, among other thin
relatively high rates of delinquencies, defaultsl &mreclosures on mortgage loans and a corresporaiuoline in their market value and
market value of securities backed by such loaispagh there has been some improvement in theas areid a general lift in housing pri
over the past two years. With the instability, aniner of providers, purchasers and insurers of ragegoans and mortgage lobaekel
securities have exited the market, and most moetd@ans are currently being originated under pnograffered or supported by governn
agencies or government-sponsored enterprises —eipaity, the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA™he Veterans Administratic
(“VA"), the Federal National Mortgage Associatioslgo known as “Fannie Maeederal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (also knag
“Freddie Mac”)and the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Comparegbrior periods, these developments have led tocedlavailability o
mortgage loan products (particularly subprime aodconforming loans), and tighter lending standanad practices for mortgage loans. /
result, it is generally more difficult for some egbries of borrowers to finance the purchase ofdgmwhich is restraining the housing market’
recovery, causing volatility in and elevating cdtat®n rates for us and other homebuilders, amticeng demand for homes, including
homes. If these factors continue, or if mortgagnelileg standards and practices further tighten, xpeet that there would be a material adv
effect on our business and our consolidated firrdratatements, particularly since we depend oml{barty lenders (including our prefer
mortgage lender Nationstar) to provide mortgagaesda our homebuyers.
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Further tightening of mortgage lending standard$ practices and/or reduced credit availability meortgages may also result from
implementation of regulations under the 2010 Dodalhk Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection (& “Dodd-Frank Act”)Among
other things, the DodBrank Act established several requirements (inalydisk retention obligations) relating to the amition, securitizin
and servicing of, and consumer disclosures fortgage loans. In addition, U.S. and internationailkirag regulators have proposed or ena
higher capital standards and requirements for irnnstitutions. These standards and requiremerstsand when implemented, may fur
reduce the availability of and/or increase the ststhorrowers to obtain mortgage loans, includipgeducing allowable debt-tacome ratios
imposing restrictions on mortgage origination fesl lowering maximum conforming mortgage loan anteuifrederal regulators &
lawmakers are also considering steps that mayfiigntly reduce the ability or authority of the FIHHRannie Mae and Freddie Mac to purcl
or insure mortgage loans under their respectivgnaros, including proposals to gradually wind dovantie Mae and Freddie Mac. Furtl
since 2010, lenders and other mortgage bankingcssrproviders, brokers and other institutions, Hrar agents, have been under int
regulatory scrutiny and the targets of several @gtions by investors and government agenciesdegamortgage loan underwriting practi
and/or representations made in connection witlingethortgage loans into private or Fannie Mae- dBie Macbacked securitized pools
such scrutiny and civil actions result in lendensl @ther mortgage banking services providers ao#drs having to adjust their operati
and/or pay significant amounts in damages or fittesy may further curtail or cease their mortgamgnl origination activities due to redu
liquidity or to mitigate perceived risks.

Since 2012, the Federal Reserve has been purchaiflings of dollars of longer-term U.S. Treasumlcarities and mortgage lodmacke:
securities of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and the Gowent National Mortgage Association (or “Ginnie Mawhich guarantees securit
composed of FHA- and VA-qualified mortgage loarisexpects this asset purchase program to maimkavnward pressure on longerr
interest rates, support mortgage markets and hakerbroader financial conditions more accommodatii@vever, in mid2013, when th
Federal Reserve Chairman announced that the progoamd be scaled back, or “taperethiere was a measurable spike in mortgage
interest rates and they have remained elevated a@u o the first half of the year. If the FeddRalserve does taper or end its asset pur
program, and it announced in December 2013 a riextuict its monthly purchases from $85 billion to5Haillion, it is likely that mortgage lo:
interest rates will rise, subject to prevailing momic and financial market conditions. Even if thederal Reserve’asset purchase progi
does keep mortgage loan interest rates at relgtiogl levels, many potential homebuyers may stil imable to obtain mortgage loan:
purchase homes, including our homes, if mortgagdithgy standards and practices remain tight or eighitirther, or if lenders curtail or ce
mortgage loan origination activity due to regulgtoequirements and/or liquidity or risk concerns.

Interest rate increases or changes in federal lemgliprograms or regulations could lower demand fanrchomes.

Nearly all of our customers finance the purchastheir homes. Before the housing downturn begastptically low interest rates and
increased availability of specialized mortgage Igaoducts, including products requiring no or loewsh payments, and interestdy anc
adjustablerate mortgage loans, made purchasing a home mimrelable for a number of customers and more availabcustomers with low
credit scores. Increases in interest rates andéoredses in the availability of mortgage financorgof certain mortgage loan products
programs may lead to fewer mortgage loans beingiged, higher credit risk/mortgage loan insuranoempums and/or other fees, incree
down payment and extensive buyer income and aseeintentation requirements, or a combination offtliegoing, and, as a result, red
demand for our homes and increase our cancelleies.

Due to the volatility and uncertainty in the crediarkets and in the mortgage lending and mortgagedée industries since 2008,
federal government has taken on a significant iroupporting mortgage lending through its consenship of Fannie Mae and Freddie M
and its insurance of mortgage loans through the R4 the VA. FHA backing of mortgage loans has bgericularly important to tt
mortgage finance industry and to our business.aMadlability and affordability of mortgage loanagciuding interest rates for such loans, ¢
be adversely affected by a scaling back or ternunadf the federal government’'s mortgage loalated programs or policies. The FHA,
instance, increased its annual mortgage insurarem@ipms in 2013 and, among other actions, externledberiod that such premiums
charged to borrowers, increased down payment reapaints and raised its standards on the loanslitnsiire in order to address a sighnific
cash reserve deficit (relative to its projectedséss from delinquent loans). In addition, federajutators significantly lowered the FH&'’
maximum single-family forward mortgage loan limis650 “high-cost’counties effective January 1, 2014, including cmsnin California an
in other of our served markets. These steps, whatbe/idually or collectively, could prevent sorhemebuyers from qualifying for mortge
loans to purchase homes, including our homes. diitiad, given growing federal budget deficits, tHeS. Treasury may not be able to contil
or may be required by future legislation or regolato cease, supporting the mortgage loglated activities of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac
FHA and the VA at present levels.

Because Fannie Mae-, Freddie Mac-, FHA- and b&tked mortgage loans have been an important factoarketing and selling many
our homes, any limitations or restrictions in thaibility of, or higher consumer costs for, sugdvernmentacked financing could redt
our net orders, particularly in our coastal subratgkn California, and adversely affect our cordatled financial statements, and the e
could be material.
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Third-party lenders may not complete mortgage loan orafions for our homebuyers in a timely manner or atl, which can lead t
cancellations and a lower backlog of orders, ordignificant delays in our delivering homes and regrizing revenues from those homes.

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing feirthome purchases from any lender or other prowfi¢heir choice. If, due to cre:
or consumer lending market conditions, reducedidityy increased risk retention or minimum capitevel obligations and/or regulatc
restrictions related to the Dodetank Act or other laws, or other factors or bustédecisions, these lenders refuse or are unalpeotide
mortgage loans to our homebuyers, the number ofkonre deliver and our consolidated financial statgs1may be materially and adver:
affected. For instance, tight mortgage lending diatis and practices for mortgage loans have imtquariods led to significant delays in
delivering homes and/or have caused some potdmtiaebuyers to cancel their home purchase contnatiiaus. We can provide no assura
that these tight mortgage lending conditions velax or reverse in the foreseeable future.

In addition, as we were transitioning to Nationsiarour preferred mortgage lender in the first b&l2012, we experienced signific
disruptions to our business due to the inabilityowillingness of several independent thixakty lenders to complete in a timely fashion «
all the mortgage loan originations they had staftedour homebuyers. Nationstar began accepting mentgage loan applications from
homebuyers on May 1, 2012, and compared to otmelehs has been providing more consistent execatimehcompletion of mortgage Ic
originations for our homebuyers who choose to uaddistar. Based on the number of homes deliveré2DiL3, approximately 59% of ¢
homebuyers used Nationstar to finance the purabiatbeir home. In January 2013, we entered intagreement with Nationstar to form Ho
Community Mortgage, a mortgage banking company wiktoffer an array of mortgage banking servicesour homebuyers. Nationstar \
provide management oversight of Home Community Nlges operations, which are expected to begin in tts¢ duarter of 2014. Althout
we expect an increasing percentage of our homebuwyilrchoose to use Nationstar/Home Community dage, many of our homebuyers
continue to seek mortgage loans from other lenders potentially be subject to the performance ahsienders, as well as the gen
mortgage financing industry issues described ablwaddition, we can provide no assurance as téoNstars ability or willingness, as o
preferred mortgage provider or as the manager ofi¢tiGommunity Mortgage, to provide mortgage loars @her mortgage banking servi
to our homebuyers in future periods (whether dutaédfactors discussed above or otherwise), oo &@s performance in doing so. Furtherm
the mortgage banking operations of Home Communitytlyage will be heavily regulated and subject ® ithles and regulations promulge
by a number of governmental and quasi-governmeagahcies. If Nationstas’performance declines or Nationstar decides to @nale decid
to terminate, our relationship, or there is a firgdthat Home Community Mortgage materially violatey applicable rules or regulations an
a result is restricted from or unable to originatertgage loans, we may experience mortgage loadirfgnissues similar to those
encountered in 2012, which would likely have a mat@dverse impact on our business and our cateseld financial statements.

Our current strategies may not generate improvedaiincial and operational performance, and the contied implementation of these a
other strategies may not be successful.

We believe our strategic actions during the houdiognturn strengthened our overall business artdtivacurrent strategies and initiati
will enable us to profitably grow our business il2. However, our strategies, including, but notitied to, our strategic growth initiativ
intended to improve our profitability and increase revenues, such as our significant investmentarid and land development, our plar
open more new home communities, our ongoing repasgig of our homebuilding activities and investrteemoward higheperforming
desirable locations in land constrained growth reemkand our efforts to optimize our sales pacriahew home communities, may prove ti
unsuitable for some or all of our served market® Wén provide no guarantee that these strategikbsevisuccessfully or productive
implemented or, even if they are implemented asgded, that they will generate growth and earniragsthat we will achieve in 2014
beyond positive operational or financial resultgesults in any particular metric or measure eqoiar better than our 2013 performance
perform in any period as well as other homebuildirgarticular, our strategic effort to activatertain inventory that was previously held
future development may not generate positive readtmany of these assets are generally locatmebimarkets that have only recently be
to stabilize. In addition, although we believe oawv home communities and products will appeal toppimary customer base, we can pro
no assurance that our new home community locatodsproduct designs (or any refining of those desigvill successfully attract consum
or generate orders and revenues at the levels we éxperienced in the past or anticipate in fujpeeods, or at levels higher than of
homebuilders. We also cannot provide any assurdmateve will be able to maintain these strategie20d14 and, due to unexpectedly favor
or unfavorable market conditions or other factars,may determine that we need to adjust, refingbandon all or portions of these strate
although we cannot guarantee that any such chamijjese successful. For instance, with the heigbtefand acquisition and developmr
activities of homebuilders and other developereesif012, there are significantly fewer wieltated developable land parcels availab
reasonable prices in several of our submarkets,ingaur land acquisition and development strategiese challenging to impleme
successfully, and we may not be able to achievdamgtrelated investment and community count growth gogthe failure of any one or mc
of our present strategies, or the failure of anustchents or alternative strategies that we magymior implement, to be successful
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will likely have an adverse effect on our abilitydrow and increase the value and profitabilitypof business and on our consolidated fina
statements, as well as on our overall liquidityd #me effect in each case could be material.

The success of our present strategies, growth atities and our longerm performance depends on the availability ofished and partiall:
finished lots and undeveloped land that meet ouvéstment return and marketing standarc

The availability of finished and partially finishddts and undeveloped land that meet our investmetotn and marketing standa
depends on a number of factors outside of our obritrcluding land availability in general, geoghagal/topographical constraints, land sellers
business relationships with other homebuilders ettgers or investors, climate conditions, compmtitivith other homebuilders and e
buyers for desirable property, financial and credérket conditions, legal or government agency @sees, inflation in land prices, zoni
allowable housing density, our ability and the sdstobtain building permits, the amount of envinemtal impact fees, real estate tax rate:
other regulatory requirements. Should suitable ¢ottand become less available, which is incredgititge case, the number of homes tha
may be able to build and sell could be reduced, thedcost of attractive land could increase, pesteybstantially, which could advers
impact our consolidated financial statements inclgd but not limited to, our housing gross profiamins, and our ability to maint:
ownership or control of a sufficient supply of deped or developable land inventory. The availabitif suitable land could also affect
success of our current strategies and growth fiviéis, and if we decide to reduce our land acdaisiactivity in 2014 due to a lack of availa
assets that meet our standards, our ability toe@s® our community count, to grow our revenueshanusing gross profit margins, anc
maintain or increase our profitability, would likebe constrained and could have a material adveffeet on our consolidated financ
statements.

The value of the land and housing inventory we owncontrol may fall significantly.

The value of the inventory we currently own or cohtlepends on market conditions, including estéwaif future demand for, and
revenues that can be generated from, this inventdrg market value of our inventory can vary coesithly because there is often a signifi
amount of time between our acquiring control oiiriglownership of land and the delivery of homeghat land. The negative conditions of
housing downturn, which generally depressed hores send selling prices, caused the fair value digeof our owned or controlled invent
to fall, in some cases well below the estimatedvalue at the time we acquired ownership or cdnEeen with the improved housing mar
conditions we saw in 2013, local submarkpecific or other factors could lead to a decréaske fair value of certain of our inventory in12
whether or not the present housing recovery pregesBased on our periodic assessments of invefdongcoverability, during the housi
downturn, we wrote down the carrying value of derta our inventory to its estimated fair valuecliding inventory that we had previou
written down, and recorded corresponding chargesnagour earnings to reflect the impaired value &60 recorded charges in connec
with abandoning our interests in certain land aadied under land option contracts and other sinutartracts that no longer met our investr
return or marketing standards. In 2013, we recor@ddmillion of inventory impairment charges andZanillion of land option contra
abandonment charges. However, if in 2014 the ptdsausing recovery slows or reverses, or if paléicmarkets or submarkets experie
challenging or unfavorable changes in prevailingidiions, we may need to take additional chargesingg our earnings for inventc
impairments or land option contract abandonmentboth, to reflect changes in fair value of landad interests in our inventory, includ
assets we have previously written down. Any suchr@is could have a material adverse effect on onsdlidated financial statemet
including our ability to maintain or increase ouofitability.

Our business is cyclical and is significantly affestl by changes in general and local economic coiuahis.

Our operations and consolidated financial stateseah be substantially affected by adverse chaimggeneral economic or busin
conditions that are outside of our control, inchglthanges in, among other factors:

» short- and longerm interest rate

« employment levels and job and personal income dm

» housing demand from population growth, househotchftion and other demographic chan
« availability and pricing of mortgage financing foomebuyer:

» consumer confidence generally and the confidengmtantial homebuyers in particul

* U.S. and global financial system and credit maskability;

e private party and government mortgage loan @mgr(including changes in FHA, Fannie Mae- and dieelflacconforming mortgac
loan limits, credit risk/mortgage loan insurancemiums and/or other fees, down payment
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requirements and underwriting standards), and &dard state regulation, oversight and legal actegrarding lending, home va
appraisal, foreclosure and short sale practices;

» federal and state personal income tax rates andspos, including provisions for the deductionrmbrtgage loan interest payme
real estate taxes and other expenses;

e supply of and prices for available new or redatenes (including lendeswned homes) and other housing alternatives, sg
apartments, single-family rentals and other rembaising;

» homebuyer interest in our current or new produdctigies and new home community locations, and germmasumer interest
purchasing a home compared to choosing other hpadiernatives; and

* real estate taxe

Adverse changes in these conditions may affectasmess nationally or may be more prevalent ocentrated in particular markets
submarkets in which we operate.

Inclement weather, natural disasters (such as aqales, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, droughtsfiaes), and other environmen
conditions can delay the delivery of our homes anilicrease our costs. Civil unrest or acts ofotésm can also have a negative effect or
business.

The potential difficulties described above can eadsmand and prices for our homes to fall or cagse take longer and incur more ¢
to develop land and build our homes. We may noalide to recover these increased costs by raisicgpbecause of market conditions
because the price of each home we sell is usuetlgesseral months before the home is delivereduasustomers typically sign their ho
purchase contracts before home construction begiespotential difficulties could also lead somertebuyers to cancel or refuse to honor -
home purchase contracts altogether. Reflectinglifffieult conditions in our served markets duririge thousing downturn, we have experiet
volatility in our net orders and cancellation ratesecent years, and if the present housing ragos®ws or reverses, we may experie
similar or increased volatility in 2014. If we dbgre could be a material adverse effect on ousaatated financial statements.

Home prices and sales activity in the particular rkats and regions in which we do business matesiadiffect our consolidated financi
statements because our business is concentratatiése markets

Home selling prices and sales activity in some waf key served markets have declined from time neetfor marketspecific reason
including adverse weather, high levels of forectesu short sales and sales of lendened homes, and lack of affordability or econc
contraction due to, among other things, the departr decline of key industries and employers tbatld effectively price potenti
homebuyers out of purchasing homes, including amés. If home selling prices or sales activity iecin one or more of our key sen
markets, including California, Florida, Nevada ax@s, our costs may not decline at all or at tmeeseate and, as a result, our consolic
financial statements may be materially and adverafiécted. Adverse conditions in California wolldve a particularly material effect on
consolidated financial statements as our averaljagserice in the state is higher than in our athemebuilding reporting segments; a I
percentage of our housing revenues is generated @alifornia; and a significant proportion of oavéestments in land and land developr
since late 2009 was made, and in 2014 is expeotdxt tmade, in that state. In recent years, Caldtsrstate government and many o
regional and local governments have struggled tange their budgets due to a number of factorbpatih the state’budget outlook for i
current fiscal year has improved slightly. Theselude lower tax revenues; higher debt service)ip@mployee pension and social well
obligations; lower federal government support; afad, regional and local governments and redevelopinagencies, various reductic
eliminations or reversals of state government sttppds a result, there have been, and lawmakers peoposed making additional, signific
cuts to government departments, subsidies, progeamdgublic employee staffing levels, and taxes faed have been raised, and lawme
have proposed additional tax and fee increases ieffort to balance governmental budgets. A fewwicipalities have declared bankrup
and others are reportedly considering such a §afifornia lawmakerskfforts at all governmental levels to address omg@ind/or projecte
budget deficits through spending cuts and/or effdat increase governmental revenues, could, amadmgr ohings, cause businesses
residents to leave the state, or discourage bus#sesr households from coming to the state, whiokldvlimit economic growth; cau
significant delays in obtaining required inspectippermits or approvals with respect to residemtislelopment at our new home commun
located in the state, which we encountered in 264.8¢sult in higher costs for such permits or appls; and could delay or prevent the rel
or repayment by applicable municipalities and otfmrernment agencies of performance bonds, letfersedit and/or similar deposits we h
made in connection with our residential developnativities. These negative impacts could advgraffect our ability to generate net orc
and revenues and/or to maintain or increase ousihgigross profit margins from our California opemas, and the impact could be mate
and adverse to our consolidated financial statesnent
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Supply shortages and other risks related to demémdbuilding materials and/or skilled trade laborauld increase costs and delay deliveri

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business — Cadtigpet Seasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbrghere is a high level
competition in the homebuilding industry and thausing market for skilled trade labor and buildingterials that can, among other thi
cause increases in land development and home uotistr costs, and development and constructionydelalso, in 2013, a smaller pool
skilled trade labor due to the housing downturnttedhortages in some markets that experiencedased residential construction activity,
such shortages could recur in 2014 if and as thsgmt housing recovery progresses. Shortages ardgwice fluctuations in lumber, drywi
concrete and other building materials, and labdretier due to a small supplier base or supplieaagp constraints, increased residel
construction activity, international demand, thewcence of or rebuilding after natural disasterother reasons, can also have an ad
effect on our business. We generally are unabf@ass on increases in land development and homérgctisn costs to homebuyers who h
already entered into home purchase contracts ggsuifthase contracts generally fix the price oftibme at the time the contract is signed,
may be signed well in advance of when home consbrucommences. We also may not be able to raiseselling prices to cover su
increases in land development and home constructiets because of market conditions, including cstitipn for homebuyers with ot
homebuilders and resale homes. Sustained incregatasd development and home construction coststalingher skilled trade labor rates
elevated lumber, drywall, concrete and other bangdinaterials prices and/or our limited ability tacsessfully contain these costs may, an
other things, decrease our housing gross profigmsr while shortages of skilled trade labor ording materials due to competition or ot
factors may delay deliveries of homes and our reitimy of revenues. As a result, these negativesteindividually or together, can hav
material and adverse impact on our consolidateahfifal statements.

Inflation may adversely affect us by increasing ¢®shat we may not be able to recover, particulaflyyome selling prices decrease, and
impact on our performance and our consolidated fimgial statements could be material.

Inflation can have an adverse impact on our codatdd financial statements because increasing émstsand, skilled trade labor
building materials could require us to increasettame selling prices in an effort to maintain datifory housing gross profit margins. In 2!
and 2011, worldwide demand for certain commoditied monetary policy actions led to price increames price volatility for raw materie
that are used in land development and home cotistnyéncluding lumber and metals. Additionallycieased residential construction acti
in 2012 and 2013 in combination with a relativetyadl supplier base further boosted prices and pyiciolatility for lumber, drywall, concre
and other raw materials, and these trends are &gdc continue, and possibly intensify, in 2014aifd as the present housing reco
progresses. These pricing trends, taken togethér WiS. and international central bank and govemtaiepolicies and programs designe
boost economic growth, may lead to a general iseréa inflation. However, we may not be able taréase our home selling prices to cc
cost inflation due to market conditions, and magcéo hold or reduce our selling prices in ordecompete for home sales. If determi
necessary, our lowering of home selling pricegddition to impacting our housing gross profit miasg may also reduce the value of our
inventory, including the assets we have purchaseddent years, and make it more difficult for aduily recover the costs of our land and
related land development through our home sellimgep or, if we choose, through land sales. In témidi depressed land values may cau:
to abandon and forfeit deposits on land option remt$ and other similar contracts if we cannotséatiorily renegotiate the purchase pric
the subject land. We may incur charges againseaurings for inventory impairments if the valueoaf owned inventory is reduced or for |i
option contract abandonments if we choose not éwagse land option contracts or other similar cactis, and these charges may be subst:
as we experienced in certain periods during thesingudownturn. Inflation may also increase intemagés for mortgage loans and thel
reduce demand for our homes and lead to lower tm&nas well as increase the interest rates wermaay to accept to obtain extel
financing.

Reduced home sales may impair our ability to recaigyvelopment costs or force us to absorb additiorsts.

We incur many costs before we begin to build homea community. Depending on the stage of develapiraeland parcel is in wh
acquired, such costs may include costs of prepdand, finishing and entitling lots, and installimgads, sewers, water systems and 1
utilities; taxes and other costs related to owriprsii the land on which we plan to build homes; stomcting model homes; and promotic
marketing and overhead expenses to prepare faygeering of a new home community for sales. In amiitocal municipalities may impao
requirements resulting in additional costs. If thte at which we sell and deliver homes slows bs,far if we delay the opening of new ha
communities for sales due to adjustments in ourketarg strategy or other reasons, each of which dwsirred throughout the hous
downturn and in 2012 and 2013, we may incur additi@¢osts and it will take a longer period of tifoe us to recover our costs, including
costs we incurred in acquiring and developing lemcecent years. Furthermore, if the present hausicovery slows or reverses in 2014,
may decide to abandon certain land option contraatsother similar contracts, and sell certain land loss, and the costs of doing so me
adverse and material to our consolidated finarste&tements.
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Some homebuyers may cancel their home purchasesiise the required deposits are small and sometineésndable.

Our backlog at a given point in time reflects thenter of homes under a home purchase contrach#vat not yet been delivered t
homebuyer. Our home purchase contracts typicatjyire only a small deposit, some or all of whicmafundable prior to closing. If the pric
for new homes decline, competitors increase thadr af sales incentives, lenders and others incribaseefforts to sell resale homes, ski
trade labor or building materials shortages delay llome construction cycle times, mortgage loaar@dt rates increase, the availabilit
mortgage financing further diminishes or theredstmued weakness or a downturn in local or rediesanomies or the national economy
in consumer confidence, customers may cancel thésting home purchase contracts with us becawsehhve been unable to finalize tl
mortgage financing for the purchase, they desiradwge into a home earlier than we can deliverritnarder to attempt to negotiate for a lo
price or explore other options or for other reasihiey are unable or unwilling to complete the paseh In recent years, we have experie
volatile cancellation rates, in part due to thesesons and in part due to the mortgage loan furidéugs arising from the 2012 transition of
preferred mortgage lending relationship. To theeeithey continue, volatile cancellation rates itesy from these conditions, or otherwi
could have a material adverse effect on our busiaad our consolidated financial statements.

Tax law changes could make home ownership more exgdee or less attractive.

Under current tax law and policy, significant expes of owning a home, including mortgage loan @gtecosts and real estate ta
generally are deductible expenses for the purpbsaloulating an individual's or househaoddfederal, and in some cases state, taxable ir
subject to various limitations. For instance, unttex American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 signetbitaw in January 2013, the fede
government enacted higher income tax rates andslion the value of tax deductions for certain higdeme individuals and households. If
federal government or a state government changésrtber changes its income tax laws, as some ldw®msahave proposed, by eliminati
limiting or substantially reducing these income tsenefits, the aftetax cost of owning a home could increase substgntidny additiona
increases in personal income tax rates and/oriaddittax deduction limits or restrictions enactgdhe federal or state levels could advel
impact demand for and/or selling prices of new henirecluding our homes, and the effect on our clidated financial statements could
material.

We are subject to substantial legal and regulatoeguirements regarding the development of land, themebuilding process and protecti
of the environment, which can cause us to sufferlales and incur costs associated with compliance amtdich can prohibit or restric
homebuilding activity in some regions or areas. Thmpact of such requirements, individually or cottévely, could be adverse and mate
to the implementation of our strategic growth irdtiives and our consolidated financial statements.

Our homebuilding business is heavily regulated sutgject to a significant amount of local, state gedkral regulation concerning zoni
allowable housing density, natural and other resmprotection, building designs, land developmert laome construction methods, work
safety and similar matters, as well as governmeasas, fees and levies on the acquisition andldpieent of land parcels. These regulat
often provide broad discretion to government autiesrthat oversee these matters, which can ra@suibanticipated delays or increases ir
cost of a specified development project or a nundbgarojects in particular markets. We may alsoezignce delays due to a building pe!
moratorium or regulatory restrictions in any of tleeations in which we operate, which can affea thalance of land held for futt
development in our inventory.

In addition, we are subject to a variety of locdhte and federal statutes, ordinances, rules egaations concerning the environm
including requirements to manage and/or mitigatenstwater runoff, dust particles and other envirental impacts of our land developm
and home construction activities at our new honmaroanities. As discussed below with respect to g@kalimate change impacts, these |
and regulations, and/or evolving interpretationsrélof, may cause delays in our land developmentimrmalir construction and delivery
homes, may cause us to incur substantial compliandeother costs, and can prohibit or restrict Hmunilding activity in certain regions
areas.

As discussed above under “ltem 1. Business — Enwiental Compliance Matters¢hvironmental laws may also impose liability foe
costs of removal or remediation of hazardous oictexbstances whether or not the developer or owhéhe property knew of, or w
responsible for, the presence of those substambespresence of those substances on our propetdgprevent us from selling our homes
we may also be liable, under applicable laws aggilegions or lawsuits brought by private parties, iazardous or toxic substances on
that we have sold in the past.

Further, a significant portion of our businessasducted in California, one of the most highly reded and litigious states in the coun
Therefore, our potential exposure to losses andresgs due to new laws, regulations or litigatioy magreater than other homebuilders w
less significant California presence.
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The homebuilding industry and housing market areryecompetitive, and competitive conditions couldvadsely affect our business or c
consolidated financial statements.

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business — CatiggtSeasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbrsge face significant competiti
in several areas of our business from other hontdgrsiand participants in the overall housing indusThese competitive conditions can re
in:

» our delivering fewer home
» our selling homes at lower pric
« our offering or increasing sales incentives, distewr price concessions for our hon

* our experiencing lower housing gross profit margiparticularly if we cannot raise our selling pscé cover increased la
acquisition and development, home constructionverizead costs;

« our selling fewer homes or experiencing a highenioer of cancellations by homebuy:
* impairments in the value of our inventory and otagset:

« difficulty in acquiring desirable land that meets investment return or marketing standards, argklling our interests in land that
longer meet such standards on favorable terms;

« difficulty in our acquiring raw materials and skidl management and trade labor at acceptable |
» delays in the development of land and/or the canstin of our homes; and.
« difficulty in securing external financing, performae bonds or letter of credit facilities on favdeaterms

These competitive conditions may have a materiagbes® effect on our business and consolidated dinhstatements by decreasing
revenues, impairing our ability to successfully lerpent our current strategies, increasing our castgor diminishing growth in our local
regional homebuilding businesses. During the hauslownturn in particular, actions taken by our nbame and housing alternat
competitors reduced the effectiveness of our efftotachieve stability or increases in home selpnges, to generate higher deliverie:
homes, revenues and housing gross profit margntst@amaintain or increase our profitability.

Homebuilding is subject to warranty and liabilityy@ms in the ordinary course of business that caa bignificant.

In the ordinary course of our homebuilding business are subject to home warranty and construat&fect claims. We record warra
and other liabilities for the homes we deliver lshgeimarily on historical experience in our servedrkets and our judgment of the ri
associated with the types of homes we build. Ath&rrdescribed in Note 15. Commitments and Contiogs in the Notes to Consolida
Financial Statements in this report, @vmaintain, and require the majority of our subcartbrs to maintain, general liability insura
(including construction defect and bodily injuryvepage) and worker€ompensation insurance. These insurance policeegirus against
portion of our risk of loss from claims relateddar homebuilding activities, subject to certainf-gesured retentions, deductibles and ¢
coverage limits. We selfisure a portion of our overall risk through the ug a captive insurance subsidiary. We also mairtartain othe
insurance policies. In Arizona, California, Colosadnd Nevada, our subcontractoggneral liability insurance primarily takes therfoof ¢
wrap-up policy, where eligible subcontractors are eewbls insureds on each project. Enrolled subcdotsacontribute toward the cost of
insurance and agree to pay a contractual amouheifuture in the event of a claim related to theirk. For those enrolled subcontractors,
absorb their general liability associated with therk performed on our homes within the applicablejgcts as part of our overall gent
liability insurance and our self-insurance througr captive insurance subsidiaBecause of the uncertainties inherent to theseensative
cannot provide any assurance that our various amear arrangements and our liabilities will be adgéguo address all our warranty
construction defect claims in the future, or thay gotential inadequacies will not have an advexfect on our consolidated financ
statements. Additionally, the coverage offered bg the availability of general liability insuranta construction defects are currently limi
and costly. There can be no assurance that coveritigeot be further restricted, increasing ourkesand financial exposure to claims, an
become more costly and to a material degree.

We engage subcontractors to perform the actualtemti®n of our homes, and in many cases, to olitennecessary building materi
Our contracts with our subcontractors require thay comply with all laws applicable to their woikgcluding labor laws, meet performal
standards, and follow local building codes and pistniHowever, we may encounter improper construction practmeshe installation ¢
defective materials in our homes, among other thindhen we discover these issues, we will evalaatkif necessary, repair the home
accordance with our new home limited warranty andeguired by law. For instance,

22




Table of Contents

in late 2012 and during 2013, we undertook a sicgiit effort to repair homes certain of our communities in central and sowhtv=loridi
affected by various problems that resulted in watérusion-related issue§.he adverse costs of satisfying our warranty arerotega
obligations in these instances may be significadt\eae may need to record charges to reflect arasad overall warranty liability, as has t
the case with our repair efforts in central andtisaest FloridaAlthough we will pursue recoveries from potentialysponsible parties, we
be unable to recover the costs of warranetgted repairs from subcontractors, suppliersisuiiers, which could have a material impact or
consolidated financial statements. We can provim@ssurance that in 2014 we will not face more argyrelated claims and/or incur higl
costs to satisfy repair or other obligations ralgteour new home limited warranty and customeviseractivities, or not need to record cha
to adjust our overall warranty liability, or be sessful in obtaining any recoveries for warrantated costs we incur from responsible parties

Because of the seasonal nature of our business, quarterly operating results fluctuate

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business — CadtiggetSeasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbrae have experienced seast
fluctuations in our quarterly operating resultsttibkan have a material impact on our results and amnsolidated financial stateme
Historically, a significant percentage of our homechase contracts are entered into in the spridgearly summer months, and we deliv
corresponding significant percentage of our homethé late summer and fall months. As a result,hiséorically have experienced une'
quarterly results, with lower revenues and opegaiticome generally during the first and second wgusiof our fiscal year. We currently exy
to experience the traditional seasonality cycle asmdmpact on our results as the present houskiegvery progresses, but we can mak
assurances as to the degree to which our hist@éeaonal patterns will occur in 2014 and beydrat, all.

We may be restricted in accessing external capitaid to the extent we can access external capitatay increase our costs of capital
result in stockholder dilution.

We have historically funded our homebuilding anhficial services activities with internally genethtash flows and external source
debt and equity financing. However, during the lmegisdownturn, we relied primarily on the positivperating cash flow we generat
principally through the receipt of federal inconag tefunds, and from home and land sales and font®fo reduce our overhead costs, to |
our working capital needs and to repay outstandimtgbtedness. In recent years, the impact of thesihg downturn in reducing c
stockholders’ equity and increasing our debtagpital ratio and volatility in the financial andedit markets made external sources of liqu
less available and more costly to us. In 2013 tikelly favorable housing and credit market condiicenabled us to refinance and extent
maturity of our outstanding senior notes due inf8fad certain of our outstanding senior notes du0iL5 through the issuance of new se
notes, albeit at somewhat higher interest rates tha refinanced debt, and to raise unrestrictath ¢ar general business purposes. We
entered into the Credit Facility. We can provideassurances, however, that we will be able to aceeternal credit or equity markets in 2
at favorable terms or at all.

Market conditions in 2014 and beyond may signiftbahmit our ability to replace or refinance indelness, particularly given the rati
of our senior notes by the three principal natitynadcognized registered credit rating agenciesdiasussed further below. The term:
potential future issuances of indebtedness by us lmamore restrictive than the terms governing @urent indebtedness, and the issue
interest and debt service expenses are likely thigjeer, as was the case with the new senior ne¢essued in 2013. In addition, our lo\
stock price and unrestricted cash balance compartite level reached before the housing downtugabend volatility in the stock mark
could also impede our access to the equity marketscrease the amount of dilution our stockholdeosild experience should we seek to t
capital through the issuance of new equity or cditve securities.

While we believe we can meet our forecasted capialirements from our cash resources, expectedefutash flow, capital mark
access and the external financing sources thanti@gate will be available to us, we can provideassurance that we will be able to do s
do so without incurring substantially higher costssignificantly diluting existing stockholdersquity interests. The adverse effects of t
conditions on our business, liquidity and consdéddinancial statements could be material to us.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness iratiein to our tangible net worth and unrestricted sl balance, which may restrict o
ability to meet our operational and strategic goals

As of November 30, 2013, we had total outstandielgt @f $2.15 billion , total stockholders’ equity%536.1 million, and an unrestrict:
cash balance of $530.1 million . The amount ofdelst overall and relative to our total stockholdexuity and unrestricted cash balance ¢
have important consequences. For example, it could:

» limit our ability to obtain future financing for wking capital, capital expenditures, acquisitiodspt service requirements or ol
business needs, including, but not limited to, sutipg our strategic growth initiatives;
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« limit our ability to maintain compliance with thén#&ncial covenants of the Credit Facility or to eenor, if necessary or desiral
expand the capacity of the Credit Facility;

» limit our ability to renew or, if necessary or desile, expand the capacity of any letter of créattlities, and to obtain performar
bonds in the ordinary course of our business;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash flow from operations to the collateralizatmmpayment of our debt and red
our ability to use our cash flow for other purpgses

» impact our flexibility in planning for, or reactirtg, changes in our busine

» limit our ability to implement our present strategji particularly our land acquisition and developmglans and asset activat
initiatives, in part due to competition from otheemebuilders, developers and investors with greavailable liquidity or balan
sheet strength;

» place us at a competitive disadvantage becaadsawe more debt or delwtated restrictions than some of our competitans
* make us more vulnerable in the event of weakneasdomwnturn in our business or in general econamlwusing market conditior

Our ability to meet our debt service and othergations will depend on our future performance. Business is substantially affectec
changes in economic cycles. Our revenues, earrndscash flows vary with the level of general ecoimactivity and competition in tl
markets in which we operate. They could also becad by financial, political, regulatory, enviroental and other factors, many of which
beyond our control. A higher interest rate on aelstccould materially and adversely affect our cdidated financial statements.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash ftom operations and external financing at a redsieneost may not be available to u
an amount sufficient to meet our debt service albians, fulfill the financial or operational obligans we may have under cert
unconsolidated joint venture transactions, suppaortletter of credit facilities (including the LOEacilities), or to fund our other liquidity
operational needs. Further, if a change of comterke to occur as defined in the instrument goveyoar senior notes, we would be require
offer to purchase all of our outstanding senioesdiwvith the exception of the amounts outstandatated to our 6 1/4% senior notes due :
(the “6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015") and our 7 1&8%ior notes due 2018 (the “7 1/4% Senior Notes20118"))at 101% of their princip
amount, together with all accrued and unpaid isterié any. If a fundamental change under the teofnsur 1.375% convertible senior nc
due 2019 (the “1.375% Convertible Senior Notes 20#9"), which includes a change of control, occurs priothieir stated maturity date, 1
holders may require us to purchase for cash adinyr portion of their notes at 100% of the principatount of the notes, plus accrued
unpaid interest to, but not including, the fundatakchange purchase date. In such circumstancas afpplicable change of control an
fundamental change, if we are unable to generdfieisat cash flow from operations, we may, giveur ainrestricted cash balance, nee
refinance and/or restructure with our lenders tieptcreditors all or a portion of our outstandirebdobligations on or before their matui
which we may not be able to do on favorable termatall, or raise capital through equity or cori@e security issuances that would dil
existing stockholders’ interests, and the impactonconsolidated financial statements would beenigltand adverse.

Failure to comply with the restrictions and covenanimposed by the Credit Facility could restricttfuwe borrowing or cause any outstandil
indebtedness to become immediately due and payable.

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we are iegply among other things, to maintain compliancéhwiarious covenants, includi
financial covenants relating to our tangible netrtwoleverage, and interest coverage or liquiditie Credit Facility is also governed b
borrowing base test and includes a limitation aregiments in joint ventures and ngumarantor subsidiaries. In addition, the existerfcenes:
restrictions and covenants may influence our opegatecisions to enter into or structure certaamsactions in order to maintain complianc
we fail to comply, the participating financial iitations could terminate the Credit Facility, calerowings under the Credit Facility, if any
become immediately due and payable and/or couldaddrthat we compensate them for waiving instantesmcompliance. In addition, unc
certain circumstances, a default under the Creatitliey could cause a default with respect to amisr or convertible senior notes and rest
the acceleration of the maturity of our senior omwertible senior notes and our inability to borromder the Credit Facility, which would he
a material adverse impact on our liquidity and am consolidated financial statements. Moreover,may need to curtail our investm
activities and other uses of cash to maintain c@npé with the restrictions and covenants undeCtfealit Facility.
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Our ability to obtain external financing could bedwversely affected by a negative change in our ctediing by a third-party rating agency.

Our ability to access the capital markets and aegdefinancing sources on favorable terms is a kagtor in our ability to fund o
operations and to grow our business. As of the ofatieis report, our credit rating by Fitch RatingB+, with a stable outlook, our credit rai
by Moody’s Investor Services is B2, with a stablglaok, and our credit rating by Standard and Po&ihancial Services is B, with a ste
outlook. Downgrades of our credit rating by anytludse principal nationally recognized registeregllitrrating agencies may make it
difficult and costly for us to access the capitadrkets and external financing sources, and coule tea material adverse effect on
consolidated financial statements.

We may have difficulty in continuing to obtain thadditional financing required to operate and devplour business.

Our homebuilding operations and our present stiegegquire significant amounts of cash and/oratveslability of external financing. W
have entered into the Credit Facility and the LO#ilties in order to support certain aspects af gperations in the ordinary course of
business, including our acquisition of land and development of new home communities and otheruofstrategic growth initiatives. V
anticipate that we will need to maintain the Créditility and the LOC Facilities in 2014, and, dessary or desirable, we may seek to ex
their capacities or enter into additional suchlfies, or other similar facility arrangements witie same or other financial institutions. It ig
possible to predict the future terms or availapitf additional external capital or for maintaining if necessary or desirable, expanding
capacity of the Credit Facility or the LOC Facési or entering into additional such facilities. Mover, our outstanding senior notes
convertible senior notes contain provisions thay mestrict the amount and nature of debt we mauriint the future. As the financial and cre
markets worldwide have been experiencing and matirage to experience volatility, there can be nsuasnce that we can at reasonable
actually borrow additional funds, raise additionapital through other means, or successfully mairag if necessary or desirable, expanc
capacity of the Credit Facility or the LOC Facé#i or enter into additional such facilities, eaétwbich depends, among other factors
conditions in the capital markets and our perceigegtlit worthiness, as discussed above. If condtim the financial and credit mark
continue to be volatile or worsen, whether gengralt for homebuilders or us in particular, it cdueduce our ability to generate home <
and may hinder our future growth and materially &ttpour consolidated financial statements. Potefeiiferal and state regulations limiting
investment activities of financial institutionsclading regulations that have been or may be issueér the Dodd~rank Act, could also impe
our ability to access the capital markets, to ebtadditional external financing and to maintainibnecessary or desirable, expand the C
Facility or the LOC Facilities or enter into addital such facilities, in each case on acceptablester at all.

Failure to comply with the covenants and conditiomaposed by the agreements governing our indebtedneould restrict future borrowin
or cause our debt to become immediately due andapis;.

The indenture governing our outstanding senior 1@ted convertible senior notes imposes restrictmm®ur business operations
activities. Though it does not contain any finahoiaintenance covenants, the indenture contairiaingestrictive covenants that, among ¢
things, limit our ability to incur secured indebteds, to engage in sdiaseback transactions involving property or asabts/e a specifi
value, and, as in the case of four of our outstagndenior notes and our convertible senior notesngage in mergers, consolidations, and
of assets. Due to financial and credit market ciora8, we may also need to include additional cams obligations or restrictions in
indenture or with respect to a specific issuancseaiurities or to our currently outstanding semsitlf we fail to comply with these covena
obligations or restrictions, the holders of ourisemotes or convertible senior notes could caugsedebt to become due and payable prir
maturity or could demand that we compensate themwv&iving instances of noncompliance, and, if they successful in doing so, the imj
on our consolidated financial statements would lagenial and adverse. In addition, a default unagrseries of our senior notes or conver
senior notes could cause a default with respecutoother senior notes and result in the accetaradf the maturity of all such defaul
indebtedness and other debt obligations, as welkaalties or additional fees, which would haveaamal adverse impact on our consolid
financial statements.

We may not realize our deferred income tax assétsaddition, our net operating loss carryforwardsoald be substantially limited if w
experience an ownership change as defined in théeimal Revenue Code.

Since the end of our 2007 fiscal year, we have gdeeé a significant deferred tax asset as a reuwur net operating losses (“NOL”
Under federal tax laws, we can use our NOL (anthagerelated tax credits) to reduce our future bdexancome for up to 20 years, after wt
they expire for such purposes. In 2013, we were @blse a portion of our deferred tax assetsftebthe taxable income we generated fo
year. Until they expire, we can carry forward ou®IN(and certain related tax credits) that we dous® in any particular year to reduce
taxable income in future years, and we have recbadealuation allowance against our net deferrecassets that include the NOL (and cel
related tax credits) that we have generated bu¢ Im¢ yet realized. At November 30, 2013, we haférded tax assets, net of deferred
liabilities, totaling $859.4 million
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against which we have provided a full valuatiomwathnce. Our ability to realize our net deferred dasets is based on the extent to whic
generate sustained profits and we cannot provigeaasurances as to when and to what extent weyavikkrate sufficient future taxable incc
to realize our net deferred tax assets, whethahisle or in part.

The majority of our net deferred tax asset is fateglated and is valued at a 35% corporate inctameate. If, as some lawmakers h
proposed, the U.S. corporate income tax rate igfed; we would be required to write down a rougittyportionate amount of the value of
federal net deferred tax asset to account for lthiger rate. We would also need to record a cormedipg write down of our valuatic
allowance. The lower tax rate would reduce ourriutiederal taxes, which mgut a portion of our tax credits at risk of expgribefore w
could use them.

In addition, the benefits of our NOL, buili-losses and tax credits would be reduced or piatgneliminated if we experienced
“ownership change,” as determined under InternaleRee Code Section 382 (“Section 3828).Section 382 ownership change occurs
stockholder or a group of stockholders who are askbto own at least 5% of our common stock increhs@ ownership by more th
50 percentage points over their lowest ownershicgrgage within a rolling thregear period. If an ownership change were to o
Section 382 would impose an annual limit on the amiaf NOL we could use to reduce our taxable ineaqual to the product of the tc
value of our outstanding equity immediately priortihe ownership change (reduced by certain iterasifipd in Section 382) and the fedt
long-term taxexempt interest rate in effect for the month of tkenership change. A number of complex rules applgalculating this annu
limit.

While the complexity of Section 382’'s provisiongdate limited knowledge any public company has altoe ownership of its publicly-
traded stock make it difficult to determine whetla@r ownership change has occurred, we currentigusethat an ownership change has
occurred. However, if an ownership change werecttun the annual limit Section 382 may impose caekllt in a material amount of «
NOL expiring unused. This would significantly impahe value of our NOL and, as a result, have aernatnegative impact on ¢
consolidated financial statements.

In 2009, our stockholders approved an amendmeputorestated certificate of incorporation that esidned to block transfers of
common stock that could result in an ownership geaand a rights agreement pursuant to which we rswed certain stock purchase ri
with terms designed to deter transfers of our comstock that could result in an ownership changevéler, these measures cannot guar.
complete protection against an ownership changetaathains possible that one may occur.

Our consolidated financial statements could be mély and adversely affected if we are unable tbtain performance bonds and/or lette
of credit.

In the course of developing our communities, ave often required to provide to various municifedi and other government agen
performance bonds and/or letters of credit to sedhe completion of our projects and/or in supprtobligations to build communi
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systachother utilities, and to support similar develamn activities by certain of o
unconsolidated joint venture¥/e may also be required to provide performance bamdi/or letters of credit to secure our perforreamede
various escrow agreements, financial guaranteested arrangements. Our ability to obtain suchdsoor letters of credit and the cost to d
depend on our credit rating, overall market cajzitilon, available capital, past operational amaiicial performance, management expe
and other factors, including prevailing surety nergonditions, and the underwriting practices asburces of performance bond and/or |
of credit issuers. If we are unable to obtain penfance bonds and/or letters of credit when requirethe cost or operational restriction:
conditions imposed by issuers to obtain them irsgeaignificantly in 2014 or later, we may not b&do develop or we may be significal
delayed in developing a community or communitied/anwe may incur significant additional expensasd, as a result, our consolide
financial statements, cash flows and/or liquidibpldl be materially and adversely affected.

Our ability to attract and retain talent is critidato the success of our business and a failure tmsb may materially and adversely affect
performance.

Our officers and employees are an important resguand we see attracting and retaining a dedicateldtalented team to execute
KBnxt operational business model as crucial to ahifity to achieve and maintain an advantage ovkerohomebuilders. We face inte
competition for qualified personnel, particularllysenior management levels, from other homebuijdeosn other companies in the hous
and real estate industries, particularly with theréased residential construction activity in 2@h# 2013, and from companies in various ¢
industries with respect to certain roles or funwsioMoreover, the prolonged housing downturn arddécline in the market value of
common stock during the housing downturn have niadficult for us to attract and retain talenyye; as we are making a targeted effo
strengthen and expand certain of our local fielhaggment teams and talent as part of our stratgggieth initiatives. If we are unable
continue to retain and attract qualified employemsif we need to significantly increase compemsatnd benefits to do so (including ¢
result of complying with pending health care cogeraequirements of the federal Patient Protectiuh A&ffordable Care Act and the He:
Care
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Education Reconciliation Act of 2010), or, alteimaly, if we are required or believe it is appr@te to reduce our overhead expenses thi
significant personnel reductions or adjustmentsotmpensation and benefits, our performance, olityatm achieve and maintain a competit
advantage and our consolidated financial statenoentisl be materially and adversely affected.

Changes in global or regional environmental conditis and governmental actions in response to suclaroes may adversely affect us
increasing the costs of or restricting our planned future growth activities.

There is growing concern from members of the sifie@ommunity and the general public that an ims® in global average temperati
due to emissions of greenhouse gases and othemhactigities have caused or will cause significelminges in weather patterns and inct
the frequency and severity of natural disasters.ireneased frequency or duration of extreme weatbaditions and environmental eve
could limit, delay and/or increase the costs toettgy land and build new homes and reduce the vafllair land and housing inventory
locations that become less desirable to consunmdsoked to development. Projected climate chaifgeoccurs, may exacerbate the scai
of water and other natural resources in affectgibre, which could limit, prevent or increase tlusts of residential development in cer
areas. In addition, government mandates, standargsyulations intended to mitigate or reduce gneese gas emissions or projected clir
change impacts could result in prohibitions or sevestrictions on land development in certain r@rease energy, transportation and
material costs that make building materials lessilable or more expensive, or cause us to incurpliamce expenses and other finar
obligations to meet permitting or land developmeamthome constructiorelated requirements that we will be unable toyfudlcover (due 1
market conditions or other factors), and reduce lmusing gross profit margins and adversely aféeat consolidated financial stateme
potentially to a material degree. As a result, alimchange impacts, and laws and land developmerft@me construction standards, and/o
manner in which they are interpreted or implemente@ddress potential climate change impacts dcimairease our costs and have a |eegr
adverse impact on our business and our consolidatadcial statements. This is a particular conoeith respect to our key West Cc
homebuilding reporting segment, as California hagtituted some of the most extensive and stringewironmental laws and residen
building construction standards in the country.

Information technology failures and data securitydéaches could harm our busines

We use information technology, digital telecommatiens and other computer resources to carry oygortant operational al
promotional marketing activities and to maintairr business records. Many of these resources argdebto us and/or maintained on
behalf by thirdparty service providers pursuant to agreements ghatify to varying degrees certain security amyise level standard
Although we and our service providers employ whathelieve are adequate security, disaster recamayother preventative and correc
measures, our ability to conduct our business neaintpaired if these resources, including our primaebsite, are compromised, degra
damaged or fail, whether due to a virus or othemifial circumstance, intentional penetration or dlgion of our information technolo
resources by a third party, natural disaster, hardwor software corruption or failure or error (uding a failure of security contrc
incorporated into or applied to such hardware dtwsoe), telecommunications system failure, senpoavider error or failure, intentional
unintentional personnel actions (including theual to follow our security protocols), or lost ceetivity to our networked resources
significant and extended disruption in the fundiignof these resources, including our primary wighsiould damage our reputation and ¢
us to lose customers, orders, deliveries of honmmeb r@venues, result in the unintended and/or uoaigd public disclosure or t
misappropriation of proprietary, personal identifyiand confidential information (including inform@t about our homebuyers and busil
partners), and require us to incur significant eggeto address and remediate or otherwise resbbsetkinds of issues. The releas
confidential information may also lead to litigatior other proceedings against us by affected iddals and/or business partners and/c
regulators, and the outcome of such proceedingshwdould include penalties or fines and causetagfmnal harm, could have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial states In addition, the costs of maintaining adegyeibtection against such threats, deper
on their evolution, pervasiveness and frequencyangbvernmenthandated standards or obligations regarding pigteefforts, could b
material to our consolidated financial statememts particular period or over various periods.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

tem 2. PROPERTIES

We lease our corporate headquarters in Los Ang€@akfornia. Our homebuilding division offices (et for our San Antonio, Tex
office) and our KB Home Studios are located in éshspace in the markets where we conduct busiliéssown the premises for our ¢
Antonio office.
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We believe that such properties, including the popgint located therein, are suitable and adequateé&t the needs of our businesses.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Nevada Development Contract Litigati

KB HOME Nevada Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of® (‘KB Nevada”),is a defendant in a case in the Eighth JudicialridisCourt ir
Clark County, Nevada entitldcas Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex ReskeHPartners, LLC, et al. v. KB HOME Nevada Inin
2007, Las Vegas Development Associates, LLC (“LVIDAgreed to purchase from KB Nevada approximatglgdes of land located near |
Vegas, Nevada. LVDA subsequently assigned itstsigh Essex Real Estate Partners, LLC (“EsseKB Nevada and Essex entered in
development agreement relating to certain majoagtfucture improvements. LVDA'’s and Essegbmplaint, initially filed in 2008, alleg
that KB Nevada breached the development agreemedtalso alleged that KB Nevada fraudulently induttem to enter into the purchase
development agreements. LVDA’s and Essdghders subsequently filed related actions tleaewonsolidated into the LVDA/Essex mat
The consolidated plaintiffs sought rescission & #greements or, in the alternative, compensatanyades of $55 millioplus unspecifie
punitive damages and other damages, and interesgeh in excess of $41 million (the “Claimed DansdgeKB Nevada has denied 1
allegations, and believes it has meritorious dedernes the consolidated plaintiffsfaims. At a November 19, 2012 hearing, the cdartied a
of the consolidated plaintiffshotions for summary judgment on their claims. ladi&idn, the court granted several of KB Nevada'sioms fol
summary judgment, eliminating, among other of tlsolidated plaintiffs’claims, all claims for fraud, negligent misreprdsgion, an
punitive damages. With the cowttlecisions, the only remaining claims against K&&a are for contract damages and rescissionugug
2013, the court granted motions that further naemwhe scope of the Claimed Damages. While thmatgé outcome is uncertain we believ
it is reasonably possible that the loss in thistenatould range from zero to approximately $55 iomllplus prejudgment interest, which cot
be material to our consolidated financial statementKB Nevada believes it will be successful inatefing against the consolidated plaintiffs
remaining claims and that the consolidated pldmtifill not be awarded rescission or damages. ridrgjury trial, originally set for Septemk
2012, was recently continued again until May 20,420

Other Matters

In addition to the specific proceeding describedvahwe are involved in other litigation and regulatgmoceedings incidental to ¢
business that are in various procedural stagesbéheve that the accruals we have recorded forghigband reasonably estimable losses
respect to these proceedings are adequate anéshatt,November 30, 2018,was not reasonably possible that an additioretenial loss he
been incurred in an amount in excess of the estdnaimounts already recognized on our consolidateshdial statements. We evaluate
accruals for litigation and regulatory proceedirgdeast quarterly and, as appropriate, adjust tteeneflect (a) the facts and circumstar
known to us at the time, including information redjag negotiations, settlements, rulings and otke&vant events and developments; (b
advice and analyses of counsel; and (c) the assomspaind judgment of management. Similar factord eonsiderations are used
establishing new accruals for proceedings as talwlusses have become probable and reasonablyab#timt the time an evaluation is m
Based on our experience, we believe that the aradiiat may be claimed or alleged against us inetlpeeceedings are not a meanin
indicator of our potential liability. The outcomé&any of these proceedings, including the defemseadher litigationrelated costs and expen
we may incur, however, is inherently uncertain aadld differ significantly from the estimate refted in a related accrual, if made. Therel
it is possible that the ultimate outcome of anycpexing, if in excess of a related accrual or ifagorual had been made, could be mater
our consolidated financial statements.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table presents certain informatiogaeding our executive officers as of December 31,32

Year Years
Assumed at Other Positions and Other
Present KB Business Experience within the From —
Name Age Present Position Position Home Last Five Years (a) To
Jeffrey T. Mezger 58  President and Chief Executive Officer (b) 2006 20
Jeff J. Kaminski 52 Executive Vice President and Chief 2010 3 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer @&tcategy ~ 2008-
Financial Officer Board member, Federal-Mogul Corporation (a global 2010
supplier of component parts and systems to the
automotive, heavy-duty, industrial and transportkets)
Albert Z. Praw 65 Executive Vice President, Real Estate and 2011 17 (c) Chief Executive Officer, Landstone Communities, L{zC 2006-
Business Development real estate development company) 2011
Brian J. Woram 53  Executive Vice President and General 2010 3 Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer, HBRck,  2009-
Counsel Inc. (a provider of tax, banking and business and 2010
consulting services)
Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Chie 2005-
Compliance Officer, Centex Corporation (a homelarild 2009
and provider of mortgage banking services)
William R. Hollinger 55  Senior Vice President and Chief Account 2007 26
Officer
Thomas F. Norton 43  Senior Vice President, Human Resources 2009 5 Chief Human Resources Officer, BJ's Restaurants,(Bn 2006-
owner and operator of national full service resiats) 2009
Tom Silk 45  Senior Vice President, 2011 2 Vice President of Marketing for Hydration and Juice 2009-
Marketing and Communications Brands, PepsiCo Beverages Americas (a beverage 2011
marketing and distribution company)
Senior Director, Global Brand Management, Actiuisio 2006-
Blizzard, Inc. (a game publisher of interactive 2009

(&) All positions described were with us, unless othisevindicatec
(b) Mr. Mezger has served as a director since :

entertainment software)

(c) Mr. Praw was employed by us from 1989-1992 fapich 19942006. He was elected to his present position irkaat2011

There is no family relationship between any of executive officers or between any of our executifficers and any of our directors.
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PART Il

tem5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT * S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2013, there were 704 holdereadrd of our common stock. Our common stock idadaon the New York Sto
Exchange under the ticker symbol “KBHThe following table presents, for the periods ilatia, the price ranges of our common stock
cash dividends declared and paid per share:

Year Ended November 30, 2013 Year Ended November 30, 2012
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
High Low Declared Paid High Low Declared Paid
First Quarter $ 20.0¢ $ 13.8¢ $ .025C $ .025C $ 1291 % 6.17 $ 062t $ .062¢
Second Quarter 25.1¢ 18.21 .025( .025( 13.12 6.7 .025( .025(
Third Quarter 22.4¢ 15.57 .025( .025( 11.2¢ 6.4¢€ .025( .025(C
Fourth Quarter 18.9¢ 15.4¢ .025( .025( 17.3(C 10.8¢ .025( .025(

The declaration and payment of cash dividends aneshof our common stock, whether at current lewelt all, are at the discretion of
board of directors, and depend upon, among otlirggh our expected future earnings, cash flowsjt@lappquirements, debt structure .
adjustments thereto, operational and financialstment strategy and general financial conditionyel as general business conditions.

The description of our equity compensation plarguired by Item 201(d) of Regulation kKs4s incorporated herein by reference
“Part Il — Item 12. Security Ownership of Certdeneficial Owners and Management and Related StddkhMatters” of this report.

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdiging the fourth quarter of 2013.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the fiyear cumulative total return of KB Home common kiadbe S&P 500 Index, the S&P Homebuild
Index and the Dow Jones Home Construction Indextfeperiods ended November 30.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Among KB Home, S&P 500 Index, S&P Homebuilding
Index and Dow Jones Home Construction Index
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KB Home —— 5 & P 300 Index
#— 5 & P Homebuilding Index Dow Jones Home Construction Index
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
KB Home 10C 11¢€ 101 67 13¢ 168
S & P 500 Index 10C 12¢ 13¢€ 14¢ 17¢ 228
S & P Homebuilding Index 10C 12t 114 13C 27C 27¢
Dow Jones Home Construction Index 10C 12C 10¢ 11€ 207 21¢

The above graph is based on the KB Home commork stod index prices calculated as of the last tiudiay before December 1 of
yearend periods presented. The closing price of KB Hamommon stock on the New York Stock Exchange was.SRlper share ¢
November 30, 201and $14.36 per share on November 30, 2012. Thenpaahce of our common stock depicted in the graplose represer
past performance only and is not indicative of fatperformance. Total return assumes $100 investathrket close on November 30, 200
KB Home common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the S&Pmidbuilding Index and the Dow Jones Home Constractizdex includin
reinvestment of dividends.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data in this table should be read in conjunctigth “Item 7. Managemerg’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord
Results of Operations” and our Consolidated Fir@rgtatements and the Notes thereto, which areided in item 8. Financial Stateme!
and Supplementary Data.” Both are included in tbport.

KB HOME
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Homebuilding $ 208497 $ 154843 $ 1,30556. $ 1,581,76. $  1,816,41!
Financial services 12,15: 11,68: 10,30« 8,23 8,43t
Total $ 2,097,13 $ 1,560,117 $ 1,31586¢ $ 1,589,991 $  1,824,85l
Operating income (loss):
Homebuilding $ 92,08 $ (20,25¢) $ (103,07) $ (16,045 $ (236,52()
Financial services 9,11( 8,69:- 6,792 5,11« 5,18¢
Total $ 101,19: $ (11,569 $ (96,287 $ (10,93) $ (231,33
Pretax income (loss) $ 38,36: $ (79,059 $ (181,16 $ (76,369 $ (311,189
Net income (loss) $ 39,96: $ (58,959 $ (178,769 $ (69,36¢) $ (101,789
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ 48 8 (.7¢) $ (2.32) $ (.90) $ (2.39)
Diluted $ A€ $ (.7¢) $ (2.32) $ (90 $ (1.39)
Cash dividends declared per common share $ .100C $ A378 8 2500 $ 2500 % .250(
Balance Sheet Data:
Assets:
Homebuilding $ 3,18359 $ 2,557,24 $ 2,480,360 $ 3,080,30r $  3,402,56!
Financial services 10,04( 4,45¢ 32,17: 29,44 33,42«
Total $ 3,193,663 $ 2,561,69 $ 251254 $ 3,109,74 $  3,435,98
Mortgages and notes payable $ 2,150,49 $ 1,722,81 $ 1,583,557 $ 1,77552° $  1,820,37!
Stockholders’ equity $ 536,08t $ 376,80t $ 442,65 $ 631,87¢ $ 707,22:
Homebuilding Data:
Net orders 7,12t 6,70: 6,63: 6,55¢ 8,341
Unit backlog 2,557 2,57 2,15¢ 1,33¢ 2,12¢
Homes delivered 7,14¢ 6,28: 5,812 7,34¢ 8,48¢
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ltem7. MANAGEMENT ’* S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview.Revenues are generated from our homebuilding awaahdial services operations. The following tablkespnts a summary of «
consolidated results of operations for the yeadedrNovember 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (in thous@&xdgpt per share amounts):

Years Ended November 30, Variance
2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Revenues:
Homebuilding $ 2,084,97 % 1,548,43. $ 1,305,56: 3E% 19%
Financial services 12,15: 11,68: 10,30¢ 4 13
Total $ 2,097,131 $ 1,560,11! $ 1,315,86 34% 19%
Pretax income (loss):
Homebuilding $ 28,17¢ $ (89,93¢) $ (207,241 (a) 57 %
Financial services 10,18« 10,88: 26,07¢ (6) (59)
Total pretax income (loss) 38,36: (79,057 (181,16 @ 56
Income tax benefit 1,60( 20,10( 2,40( (92 73€
Net income (loss) $ 39,96 $ (58,959 $ (178,76 (a) 67 %
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ A48 $ (.7¢) $ (2.32) (a) 67 %
Diluted $ 4E % (.76) $ (2.39) (@) 67 %

(a) Percentage not meaningful.

The U.S. housing market continued to improve in&lpported by steady demand, low inventoriesoaids available for sale, relativ
high housing affordability, and a generally favdeabconomic environment. However, the performarfcmdividual housing markets vari
over the course of 2013, and rising mortgage lagrést rates and home price levels, and a deiclioensumer confidence in the fall, tempe
home sales activity in the second half of the y@ée.believe this recent moderation in activity, @hhas slowed the rate of increases in t
selling prices, may provide a healthier foundafimna strong, sustainable housing recovery, antlatiditional progress will be made in m.
housing markets and by the overall homebuildingigtiy in 2014.

We achieved measurably improved financial perforteaon key metrics in our business in each quaft@0d3, including year-oveyeal
growth in revenues, expansion of our housing gmsdit margin and improvement in our bottom linesults, and generated fulka
profitability for the first time in several yeafd/e believe these improvements largely resulted ftloenvarious ongoing strategic initiatives
have implemented over the past few years to raposiiur homebuilding activities and investments aodv higherperforming, desirab
locations in land constrained growth markets, eefour products to meet consumer preferences, aagbesh our focus on reaching
profitability and growth goals. We also benefitedm the overall improvement in housing markets. Guccess in implementing th
initiatives was particularly evident in our West a3t homebuilding reporting segment, which generat=tly half of our revenues in 20
This segment’s average selling price rose 20% tnldausing gross profit margin improved 8#isis points in 2013 compared to results i
prior year.

We took a number of steps in 2013 to further stitegiy our business and to support our strategic thravitiatives. We raised capital
both public equity and debt markets, generatingl toét proceeds of $775.5 millidhrough the concurrent underwritten public issuaoifcéne
1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 and tldemwritten public offering of 6,325,000 shares af common stock, par value $1.00
share, at a price of $18.25 per share (the “Com8tonk Offering”),and the underwritten public issuance of our 7.0@¥#ix notes due 20.
(the “7.00% Senior Notes due 2021"); entered i@ €redit Facility; retired $215.1 milliom aggregate principal amount of certain of
senior notes due 2014 and 2015 through a combimafipurchases made pursuant to the terms of thkcaple tender offers that were initie
made on October 15, 2013 (the “October 2013 Tefférs”) and redemptions; used the net proceeds from thiéyeguod senior note
issuances and positive cash flows from operations
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to invest $1.14 billiorin land and land development; and formed a mortdegking company in partnership with Nationstaoffer mortgag
banking services to our homebuyers.

We believe these actions enabled us to generativpogear-over-year results in 2013 in several kestrics:

Revenue. Total revenues of $2.10 billion for the year eshédovember 30, 2013 rose 34% from $1.56 billion2012. This increa:
was primarily due to a 35% rise in housing reveniee$2.08 billion from $1.55 billiorfor 2012, reflecting increases in both
number of homes delivered and the overall averafjing price of those homes. For 2013, our totalermies included land s
revenues of $.9 million compared to no land sale revenues for 2012. Alstluded in our total revenues were financial sm3y
revenues of $12.2 million for 2013 and $11.7 millfor 2012.

o

Homes Delivere«. We delivered 7,145 homes in 2013, up 14% fron8Bbmes delivered in 2012, partly due to our reldyi
higher backlog at the beginning of the year, whighs up 20% on a year-ovgear basis, and the strategic positioning of
communities in locations with relatively strong csmd.

Average Selling Price. The overall average selling price of our homebveeed increased 18% in 2013 (and 10862012
compared to 2011). This year-owaar increase reflected our efforts over the pastyfears to strategically position our new hi
communities in submarkets where buyers have higlogisehold income levels and stronger credit pfiere choosing
purchase larger homes at higher price points aegending more on design options and featurearakB® Home Studios. Tt
increase also reflected our emphasis on pricingiglise to balance sales pace and the selling prifeour homes in o
communities open for sales; our leveraging of oBnkt operational business model to generate incnégsheevenues from |
location, floor plan, home exterior elevation, stural and other premiums; and general market as@e in home prices as
housing recovery has progressed.

Operating Income (LossPur homebuilding operating income improved by $41@illion to $92.1 millionin 2013, compared to
operating loss of $20.3 millionn 2012, reflecting higher housing gross profitartly offset by higher selling, general :
administrative expenses largely incurred to suppart strategic growth initiatives. As a percentajehomebuilding revenues, ¢
operating income was 4.4% in 2013, compared topanating loss of 1.3% in 2012.

o

Housing Gross Profit. Housing gross profits of $347.8 million in 20I®ieased by $131.4 million , or 61% , fr&216.4 millior
in 2012, primarily due to the higher volume of hanelivered and a higher housing gross profit nmar@ur housing gross prc
margin improved by 270 basis points to 16.7% in2@&dm 14.0%in 2012. Our housing gross profits for 2013 inclddene
charge of $32.0 million for water intrusion-relatesgpairs at certain of our communities in central aouthwest Florida, argB.€
million of inventory impairment and land option contracamttonment charges. In 2012, our housing grosstgrofclude:
insurance recoveries of $26.5 millioelated to repair costs and costs to handle claiithsrespect to previously delivered hon
including homes affected by allegedly defectivewdal) manufactured in China, and favorable net wagradjustments 0$8.€
million that reflected trends in our overall warranty clairexperience. The insurance recoveries and fawralarrant
adjustments were mostly offset by inventory impantiand land option contract abandonment charge2®5 million. Oui
adjusted housing gross profit margin improved b9 #2sis points to 18.4% in 2013 from 13.5%02012. The calculation
adjusted housing gross profit margin, which weexaiprovides a clearer measure of the performaheerdusiness, is descrik
below under “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.” The yeaeryear improvement in our adjusted housing grossitproérgir
primarily reflected our sharpened focus on reachimggrowth and profitability goals and our actiasaggenerate greater opera
efficiencies, partly offset by the impact of hightrect construction labor and material costs ih20

Selling, General and Administrative Expensaslling, general and administrative expenses isegdy $19.2 million , or 8%ta
$255.8 million in 2013 from $236.6 millioim 2012, reflecting, among other things, the inseghvolume of homes delivered .
higher housing revenues generated in 2013. Seliegeral and administrative expenses for 2013 dsduthe reversal of
previously established accrual of $8.2 millidoe to a favorable court decision. In 2012, selliggneral and administrati
expenses included an $8.8 millicharge related to an unfavorable court decisiothénsame matter. As a percentage of hoi
revenues, to which these expenses are most clogglgiated, selling, general and administrativeemsgs improved to 12.3%
2013, compared to 15.3% in 2012, mainly due to3b% year-overear increase in housing revenues and our ongoicasfol
containing our overhead costs to the extent passibl

Interest Expenselnterest expense of $62.7 million for 2013 decrddsem $69.8 millionfor 2012, reflecting an increase in
amount of our inventory qualifying for interest @apization in 2013. Interest expense in 2013 ideldi a $10.4 milliotoss on th
early extinguishment of debt associated with thieenment of certain of our senior notes due in 28fd 2015, as discussed ab
In 2012, interest expense included a $10.3 millass on the early extinguishment of debt associatéit the purchase of cert:
of our senior notes due 2014 and 2015 pursuahieto t
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applicable tender offers that were initially madeJanuary 19, 2012 (the “January 2012 Tender Offarsd on July 11, 2012 (t
“July 2012 Tender Offers”).

Net Income (Loss. We generated net income of $40.0 million , or6$pér diluted share, in 2013, compared to a net t6$59.(
million , or $.76 per diluted share, in 2012. Oet mcome for 2013 included net water intrusiefated charges, a loss on the €
extinguishment of debt, inventory impairment anddlaoption contract abandonment charges, and thersalv of a previous
established accrual, all as described above. OL8 2@t income also included an income tax benéf#106 million, reflecting th:
resolution of a state tax audit. Our net loss fot 2 included inventory impairment and land opti@mtcact abandonment charge:
$28.5 million , a loss on the early extinguishmehtiebt of $10.3 million , and an unfavorable caletision charge of $8.8 million
which were partly offset by insurance recoveries$@6.5 million and favorable net warranty adjustiseof $8.6 million, all as
described above. The net loss in 2012 also inclageidcome tax benefit of $20.1 milligmeflecting the resolution of federal and s
tax audits.

Balance Sheet

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Ca€hur cash, cash equivalents and restricted cdaledo$572.0 milliorat November 3f
2013, compared to $567.1 milliat November 30, 2012. Of our total cash, cash edgmis and restricted cash at November 30,
and 2012, $530.1 million and $524.8 million , restpeely, were unrestricted. In 2013, our operatamgivities used net cash $443.t
million , compared to $ 34.6 millioaf net cash provided in 2012, largely due to inwestt in land and land development that d
our inventories higher at November 30, 2013 congbéoehe level at November 30, 2012.

Inventories.Reflecting our investment in land and land develeptrof $1.14 billionin 2013, our inventory balance at Novembel
2013 grew to $2.30 billion compared to the $1.7Hidoi balance at November 30, 2012. We made investmenkand and lan
development in each of our homebuilding reportiegrsents in 2013, with the majority made in our WE€stast homebuildir
reporting segment. We ended 2013 with a land irorgnportfolio comprised of 61,09®ts owned or controlled, representing
increase of 37% from the 44,752 lots owned or adletl at November 30, 2012.

Mortgages and Notes Payat. Our debt balance was $2.15 billion at November2803, up from $1.72 billioat November 30, 201
This increase reflected the underwritten publicdsges of the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes @4 and the 7.00% Senior Nc
due 2021, partly offset by the retirement of $21f%illion in aggregate principal amount of certain of ouri@enotes due in 2014 a
2015. Our ratio of debt to total capital was 80.888November 30, 2013, compared to 82.49MNovember 30, 2012. Our ratio of
debt to total capital (a calculation that is ddsed below under “Non-GAAP Financial Measures”) wWds6%at November 30, 20:
and 75.4% at November 30, 2012.

Stockholders’ Equity.Our stockholders’ equity increased to $ 536.1 womlliat November 30, 2013 from $376.8 millien
November 30, 2012, primarily due to the Common Ktoéfering and net income we generated in 2013thpaifset by the cas
dividends we paid on our common stock.

Net Orders and Backlog

Net Orders. Net orders from our homebuilding operations iasetl 6% to 7,125 in 2013 from 6,7082012. This growth in ol
overall net orders reflected increases of 14% , 8A%21%n our Southwest, Central and Southeast homebgildiporting segmen
respectively, partly offset by a 12% decrease inWast Coast homebuilding reporting segment.

o The year-over-year decline in net orders from\Mast Coast homebuilding reporting segment waslgrdue to a 23%lecreas
in the average community count in this segmentyasold through older communities and shifted auestment strategy to fa
coastal California submarkets. We also experiendeldys in opening new communities, which in somsesawere due
extended municipal processing times from increasedtruction activity and reduced local governniamtget and staffing leve
In addition, we deliberately managed our sales ra@913 in certain higher-margin, high@emand communities in California
drive profitability.

o Rising mortgage loan interest rates and home (eiggls, and a drop in consumer confidence leadmtpand during the fede
government shutdown in the fall of 2013, slowedareler activity somewhat in all of our homebuildiregporting segments in t
second half of the year as compared to the fidét ha

o The overall value of the net orders we generate2013 increased 24% to $2.16 billion from $1.718dm in 2012, largely due
higher average selling prices in each of our horiteing reporting segments. Each of our homebuildiegorting segmer
generated year-over-year increases in net ordelevial 2013, with our West Coast homebuilding rapgrsegment up 14%o
$976.1 million , our Southwest homebuilding repugtsegment up 42% to $191.1
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million , our Central homebuilding reporting segmemp 31% to $636.9 million and our Southeast homebuilding repoi
segment up 39% to $352.9 million .

o Our cancellation rate was 32% in 2013, compavedil #6in 2012

» Backlog. Our backlog was comprised of 2,557 homes, reptiggpotential future housing revenues of $682illion , at Novembe
30, 2013, and 2,577 homes, representing potentiatd housing revenues of $618.6 millipat November 30, 2012. The numbe
homes in our ending backlog was essentially flary@ver year, reflecting a 39¢ecrease in our West Coast homebuilding repc
segment that was offset by increases of 10% , 18846 ,7%in our Southwest, Central and Southeast homebgildiporting segmen
respectively. In our West Coast homebuilding rapgrsegment, the number of homes in backlog at hdex 30, 2013 decreas
from the previous year due to a year-oyear decline in net orders, as described above.pdhential future housing revenues in
backlog at November 30, 2013 increased X8 the prior year, primarily reflecting the higheverall average selling price of
homes in backlog. Backlog value increased in edduohomebuilding reporting segments, except lier West Coast homebuildi
reporting segment, where the backlog value dectelgel 7%year over year reflecting the lower number of homnesacklog, partl
offset by a higher average selling price. Subsa#iptiall of the homes in our backlog at November 3013 are expected to
delivered during the year ended November 30, 2014.

The following table presents information concerntg net orders, cancellation rate, ending backdmg, community count for the ye
ended November 30, 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thulsa

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012
Net orders 7,12¢ 6,70:%
Net order value $ 2,157,060 $ 1,733,141
Cancellation rate 32% 31%
Ending backlog — homes 2,557 2,571
Ending backlog — value $ 682,48¢ $ 618,62¢
Ending community count 191 17z
Average community count 182 18C

Effective December 1, 2012, we revised the methaofor determining our community count. Based am current methodology,
approach used by many other public homebuildenscommunity count represents the number of new hoamemunities with at least fi
homesllots left to sell at the end of a reportiegqd. Previously, our community count represenbednumber of new home communities \
at least one home/lot left to sell at the end mforting period. Community count information fdir@eriods presented in this report reflects
current methodology.

Our higher average community count in 2013 compace@®012 reflected the impact of our increased stwent in land and lai
development during 2013. Our average community towameased on a year-ovgear basis in each of our homebuilding reportingrsents
except for our West Coast homebuilding reportingnsent, where there was a 23%crease in the average community count for thgore
discussed above. However, the ending community tdousur West Coast homebuilding reporting segnasnof November 30, 2013 increa
5% from the prior year. Overall, our ending comntyirtiount as of November 30, 2013 increased 119®foffom 172as of November 3
2012. With the substantial inventorglated investments we made in 2013, and the imaygs we are planning to make in 2014, we exped
our overall community count will increase in 2014.
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HOMEBUILDING

We have grouped our homebuilding activities intarfoeportable segments, which we refer to as Westst; Southwest, Central ¢
Southeast. As of November 30, 2013, our homebujldéporting segments consisted of ongoing operafmrated in the following states: W
Coast — California; Southwest — Arizona, Nevada & Mexico; Central — Colorado and Texas; and Beast —Florida, Marylanc
North Carolina and Virginie

The following table presents a summary of certamarfcial and operational data for our homebuildipgrations (dollars in thousan
except average selling price):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Housing $ 2,084,100 $ 1,548,43 $ 1,305,29
Land 87t — 263
Total 2,084,97 1,548,43: 1,305,56:
Costs and expenses:
Construction and land costs
Housing (1,736,32) (1,332,04) (1,157,08)
Land (76€) — (200
Total (1,737,08i) (1,332,04) (1,157,28))
Selling, general and administrative expenses (255,809 (236,64 (220,59)
Loss on loan guaranty — — (30,769
Total (1,992,89) (1,568,68) (1,408,63i)
Operating income (loss) $ 92,08 % (20,250 $ (103,079)
Homes delivered 7,14 6,28 5,81%
Average selling price $ 291,70 $ 246,50( $ 224,60(
Housing gross profit margin as a percentage ofihgugvenues 16.7% 14.C% 11.4%
Adjusted housing gross profit margin as a percentddiousing revenues 18.4% 13.£% 12.¢€%
Selling, general and administrative expenses as@ptage of housing revenues 12.2% 15.2% 16.€ %
Operating income (loss) as a percentage of hondhgifevenues 4.4% (1.3% (7.9%

Revenueddomebuilding revenues totaled $2.08 billion in 20it@reasing 35% from $1.55 billion in 2012, whichad increased 19%60m
$1.31 billionin 2011. In 2013 and 2011, nearly all of our homigling revenues were generated from housing opmratiwith a nomin
amount of revenues produced from land sales in gaah Our homebuilding revenues in 2012 were gaadrentirely from housing operatic

The year-over-year increase in housing revenu@813 reflected a 14% increase in the number of satedivered and an 18%crease i
the overall average selling price of those home2012, housing revenues increased from 2011 dae 8%increase in homes delivered ar
10% increase in the overall average selling price.

We delivered a total of 7,145 homes in 2013, upnfi®282homes delivered in the previous year. The incré@dbe number of hom
delivered was largely due to our higher backloghat beginning of the year, which was up 20% on ar‘g&eryear basis. Within ol
homebuilding reporting segments, the number of tsodetivered in 2013 increased by 12% , 8% , 11%2a18din our West Coast, Southwe
Central and Southeast homebuilding reporting setgnesspectively, in each case as compared toghesarlier period.

In 2012, we delivered 6,282 homes, up from 5,Bahes delivered in 2011. The increase in the nurabkomes delivered was partly ¢
to our relatively higher backlog at the beginnid@012, which was up 61% on a year-over-year Hasjely as
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a result of a 39% increase in net orders in ther&ialf of 2011. Within our homebuilding reportinggments, the number of homes deliver
2012 increased by 11% , 19% and Bteour West Coast, Central and Southeast homehgildiporting segments, respectively, and decr
by 19% in our Southwest homebuilding reporting seginin each case as compared to the gadrer period. The decrease in homes deli\
in our Southwest homebuilding reporting segmeriectéd a reduction in our investments in certaidarperforming locations in the segmr
and the significant downsizing of our business ifzéna during 2011 and into 2012, each part of @rall strategic repositioning of ¢
operations to focus on better-performing markets.

The overall average selling price of homes deliddrereased to $291,700 in 2013, up $45,200 , 66 18rom $246,500n 2012. Th
higher average selling price in 2013 reflected efiorts over the past few years to strategicallgifion our new home communities
submarkets where buyers have higher household iadewels and stronger credit profiles, are chootingurchase larger homes at higher ¢
points and are spending more on design optionsfeaidres at our KB Home Studios. The increase mflected our emphasis on pric
discipline to balance sales pace and the sellimgeprof our homes in our communities open for salas leveraging of our KBnxt operatiol
business model to generate incremental revenues livg floor plan, home exterior elevation, strueluand other premiums; and gen
market increases in home prices as the housingyeegdas progressed. Compared to the previous gaah of our homebuilding report
segments posted a double-digit increase in avesatlii|ag price for 2013, with increases ranging fra8% in our Southeast homebuildi
reporting segment to 22% our Southwest homebuilding reporting segmentoun West Coast homebuilding reporting segment atherag
selling price increased 20%ear over year largely due to a shift in our gepgia mix toward communities located in coastal sabkats i
California, which feature generally higher sellimgces and demand for homes as compared to inlamdarkets in the state.

In 2012, our overall average selling price of hordebvered increased to $246,500 from $224,800011, primarily due to changes
community and product mix, as we delivered more &ifinom markets with economic and consumer demgnédrdics that supported lar
homes and higher average selling prices. Our higlterage selling prices of homes delivered reftbgear-over-year increases of 16%7%
and 5%in our West Coast, Southwest and Southeast honaitgiteporting segments, respectively. In our Garttomebuilding reportir
segment, the average selling price of homes delilver 2012 remained essentially even with 2011.

Land sale revenues totaled $.9 million in 2013 &I million in 2011. We had no land sales in 2012. Generadlyd Isale revenu
fluctuate with our decisions to maintain or decesasr land ownership position in certain marketseldaupon the volume of our holdings,
marketing strategy, the strength and number of e&timg developers entering particular markets atmipoints in time, the availability of la
at reasonable prices and prevailing market conttio

Operating Income (LossPur homebuilding business generated operating iecoin$92.1 million in 2013, an improvemdnm operatin
losses of $20.3 million in 2012 and $103.1 milliar2011. Our homebuilding operating income as @qr@ageof homebuilding revenues w
4.4% in 2013. Our homebuilding operating loss per@entage of homebuilding revenues was 1.3% i2 208 7.9% in 2011.

The following table presents a summary of chargeksaher items included in our operating incomeg)din thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Inventory impairment and land option contract atmamdent charges $ (3,58)) $ (28,53) $ (25,79))
Water intrusion-related charges (31,959 (2,576 —
Warranty adjustments — 11,16: 7,44¢
Court decision reversal (charge) 8,16¢ (8,769 —
Insurance and legal expense recoveries — 26,53 8,301
Gain on sale of operating property — — 8,82t

Total $ (27,370 $ 2,177 $ (1,219

In 2013, our operating income reflected higher hugigross profits, partly offset by higher selliggneral and administrative expen
Our housing gross profits for 2013 of $347.8 milliocreased by $131.4 million , or 61% , from $21&iillion for the previous year, primar
due to the higher volume of homes delivered andyaen housing gross profit margin. Housing grossits for 2013 included a net charge
$32.0 million for water intrusiomelated repairs of homes at certain of our comnesin central and southwest Florida, as discugsédbte
15. Commitments and Contingencies in the NotesaiesGlidated Financial Statements in this repord, 8.6 millionof inventory impairmet
and land option contract abandonment charges. QL8 Bousing gross profit margin improved by 270cpatage points to 16.7% frobdl.0%
in 2012. Our adjusted housing gross profit margas W8.4% in 2013, up 490 basis points from 13.5202.
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In 2012, the year-oveyear improvement in our operating results was priignaue to higher housing gross profits, partlyset by highe
selling, general and administrative expenses. Tda-gver-year improvement in 2012 also reflectedd $880.8 millionloss on loan guarar
recorded in 2011 related to our investment in adesdial development joint venture located near Magas, Nevada that underwer
bankruptcy reorganization in that year as discussedote 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint fezs in the Notes to Consolida
Financial Statements in this report. Our housirasgprofits for 2012 increased by $68.2 milliomfr148.2 millionfor 2011, primarily due 1
the higher volume of homes delivered. Housing gpsdits for 2012 included $26.5 millioof insurance recoveries related to repair cost:
costs to handle claims with respect to previousiivdred homes, including homes affected by allggeéfective drywall manufactured
China, and favorable net warranty adjustments o6 $&illion that reflected trends in our overall warranty claigxperience. The impact
these items was mostly offset by inventory impamtrend land option contract abandonment charg&2&56 million. Our housing gross prc
margin was 14.0% in 2012, compared to 11.4% in 2Q@iir adjusted housing gross profit margin was %63is 2012 and 12.8% 2011. Ir
2011, our housing gross profits included $25.7 ianillof inventory impairment and land option contracamatonment charges, which w
partly offset by $7.4 million of favorable warrardagdjustments.

Our land sales generated income of $.1 millmboth 2013 and in 2011. We had no land sale ircon2012. The land sale results in 2
included impairment charges of $.1 million relateglanned future land sales.

As discussed in Note 7. Inventory Impairments aadd_Option Contract Abandonments in the Notes tasGlidated Financial Stateme
in this report, each community or land parcel im owned inventory is assessed to determine if atdis of potential impairment exist. Ba
on our evaluations, we recognized charges for itorgrimpairments of $.4 million in 2013, $28.1 riwh in 2012 and $22.7 milliom 2011
The higher level of inventory impairment charge2012 and 2011, compared to 2013, reflected chgittgneconomic and housing mar
conditions in certain of our served markets in eatthose years. In addition, the inventory impamnncharges we recognized in 2012 v
partly due to changes to our operational or selfitrgtegy for certain communities in an effort txelerate sales pace and/or our retur
investment. In 2011, the inventory impairment clearincluded an $18.1 million adjustment to the ¥aiue of real estate collateral that we 1
back on a note receivable.

Also as discussed in Note 7. Inventory Impairmeanid Land Option Contract Abandonments in the Ntte€onsolidated Financ
Statements in this report, when we decide not eya@se certain land option contracts or other simgbntracts due to market conditions ar
changes in our marketing strategy, we write offridated inventory costs, including non-refundate@osits and unrecoverable @equisitior
costs. Based on the results of our assessmentseaggnized abandonment charges associated withdption contracts and other sim
contracts of $3.2 million in 2013, $.4 million iM22 and $3.1 milliorin 2011. Inventory impairment and land option caotrabandonme
charges are included in construction and land dosisir consolidated statements of operations.

Deterioration in the supply and demand factorshi @verall housing market or in an individual mayla changes to our operationa
selling strategy at certain communities may leaddditional inventory impairment charges, futurarges associated with land sales o
abandonment of land option contracts or other aintbntracts related to certain assets. Due tmdhégre or location of the projects, land |
for future development that we activate as paduwfstrategic growth initiatives or to acceleradées pace and/or our return on investment
have a somewhat greater likelihood of being impbil&n other of our active inventory.

Selling, general and administrative expenses wt855.8 million in 2013, up from $236.6 million 2012, which had increased fr
$220.6 million in 2011. The year-ovgear increase in selling, general and administeatixpenses in 2013 was due to costs associatedhs
increased volume of homes delivered and higher ihguevenues generated during 2013, partly offsetthe reversal of a previou:
established accrual of $8.2 million due to a fabteaourt decision. In 2012, the year-oyear increase was largely due to an unfavorablet
decision charge of $8.8 million in the same matter] costs associated with the year-oxesr increase in the volume of homes delive
partly offset by cossaving initiatives. The unfavorable court decisimarge in 2012 and the reversal of the relateduatdn 2013 ar
discussed in Note 16. Legal Matters in the Notetmsolidated Financial Statements in this rep®diling, general and administrat
expenses for 2011 included a gain on the sale efabipg property of $8.8 million and the favoralgact of legal expense recoveriesh8f:
million . As a percentage of housing revenues, to whicketlegpenses are most closely correlated, sellemgrgl and administrative exper
were 12.3% in 2013, 15.3% in 2012 and 16.9% in 20he percentage improved in 2013 compared to 2@&hly due to the 35% year-over-
year increase in our housing revenues, and ourimgdocus on containing our overhead costs to ttierg possible. In 2012, the percent
improved from 2011, primarily due to the 19% in@@#& our housing revenues.

Loss on Loan Guarantyf.he loss on loan guaranty of $30.8 millitognized in 2011 related to the Nevada jointwenhoted above a
reflected the consummation of the consensual plasavganization of the venture, known as Southeidigat was confirmed by a bankruy
court in November 2011 and included, among othergt) the elimination of a contingent payment gograhat we had provided to 1
administrative agent for the lenders to South Edge.
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Interest Incomelnterest income, which is generated from short-temestments, totaled $.8 million in 2013, $.5 roitl in 2012 andb.¢
million in 2011. Generally, increases and decreasdsterest income are attributable to changeth@interestearing average balances
short-term investments and fluctuations in interats.

Interest Expensénterest expense results principally from borrowing finance land purchases, housing inventoryathdr operating at
capital needs. Our interest expense, net of amaapitalized, totaled $62.7 million in 2013, $6@adlion in 2012 and $49.2 milliom 2011
Interest expense for 2013 included a $10.4 millmss on the early extinguishment of debt as a reduhe retirement of $215.1 millioim
aggregate principal amount of certain of our senaes due 2014 and 2015 through a combinationahases made pursuant to the applic
October 2013 Tender Offers and redemptions. Intengsense for 2012 included a $10.3 millioss on the early extinguishment of debt
result of completing the applicable January 201@ &uly 2012 Tender Offers, while interest expemmse2011 included a $3.6 milliogain or
the early extinguishment of secured debt.

Gross interest incurred during 2013 increased 8/4bfnillion to $149.1 million from $132.7 millioim 2012, primarily due to an incre:
in our average debt level and the inclusion of 8.8Imillion loss on the early extinguishment of debt in 2018e Ppercentage of inter
capitalized was 62% in 2013, 51#2012 and 54% in 2011. The percentage of interagitalized generally fluctuates based on the arhol
our inventory qualifying for interest capitalizatioGross interest incurred during 2012 increasefiafy 7 million to $132.7 million fror$112.(
million in 2011 as a result of the $10.3 millitoss on the early extinguishment of debt in 20Linpared to the $3.6 million gain on the e
extinguishment of secured debt in 2011, a higherage debt level in 2012 and the higher interdstran the senior notes we issued in .
compared to the interest rates on the senior netqsurchased under the applicable January 2012w@n®012 Tender Offers.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Joint Ventur@r unconsolidated joint ventures operate in variowarkets, typically where ¢
homebuilding operations are located. These uncutaet! joint ventures posted combined revenuesl@f4smillion in 2013, $31.8 millioim
2012 and $.2 millioiin 2011. All of the revenues in 2013 and 2012 wgeerated from land sales completed by an uncatadet joint ventul
in Maryland. Activities performed by our unconsalidd joint ventures generally include acquiringyedeping and selling land, and, in sc
cases, constructing and delivering homes. Our wamated joint ventures delivered no homes in 2602012, and one home in 2011.
unconsolidated joint ventures generated combinednie of $2.7 million in 2013 and $8.3 million 2012, compared to combined losse
$4.3 million in 2011. Our equity in loss of uncofidated joint ventures totaled $2.0 million in 20834 million in 2012 and $55.8 milliom
2011. In 2011, our equity in loss of unconsolidgtedt ventures was significantly higher compare®013 and 2012, mainly due to a charg
$53.7 millionincurred in 2011 to write off our remaining investm in South Edge, as discussed in Note 9. Invegsrie Unconsolidated Jo
Ventures in the Notes to Consolidated Financialegtents in this report. There were no such charg2el13 or 2012.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains information about our adjudtedsing gross profit margin and our ratio of nebtdto total capital, both of which
not calculated in accordance with generally acakptecounting principles (“GAAP”). We believe thesen-GAAP financial measures ¢
relevant and useful to investors in understandimgaperations and the leverage employed in ouratipers, and may be helpful in compal
us with other companies in the homebuilding industrthe extent they provide similar informationowever, because the adjusted hou
gross profit margin and the ratio of net debt t@ltcapital are not calculated in accordance wihAB, these financial measures may nc
completely comparable to other companies in thedimntding industry and thus, should not be congden isolation or as an alternative
operating performance and/or financial measurescpieed by GAAP. Rather, these nGAAP financial measures should be use
supplement their respective most directly compar&AP financial measures in order to provide atgeunderstanding of the factors
trends affecting our operations.

Adjusted Housing Gross Profit Margifhe following table reconciles our housing grossfipmargin calculated in accordance with GA
to the non-GAAP financial measure of our adjustedding gross profit margin (dollars in thousands):
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Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Housing revenues $ 2,084,10. $ 1,548,433, % 1,305,29
Housing construction and land costs (1,736,32) (1,332,04) (1,157,08i)
Housing gross profits 347,78: 216,38 148,21
Add: Inventory impairment and land option contralsandonment charges 3,581 28,53 25,74(
Water intrusion-related charges 31,95¢ 2,57¢ —
Less: Warranty adjustments — (11,169 (7,44¢)
Insurance recoveries — (26,539 —
Adjusted housing gross profits $ 383,320 $ 209,80( $ 166,51
Housing gross profit margin as a percentage ofingugvenues 16.71% 14.(% 11.2%
Adjusted housing gross profit margin as a percentddiousing revenues 18.2% 13.5% 12.8%

Adjusted housing gross profit margin is a MBAAP financial measure, which we calculate by dividhousing revenues less hous
construction and land costs excluding inventory dimpent and land option contract abandonment clangater intrusionelated charge
warranty adjustments and insurance recoveriespkcable) associated with housing operations @drduring a given period, by hous
revenues. The most directly comparable GAAP finainmeasure is housing gross profit margin. We beliadjusted housing gross pr
margin is a relevant and useful financial measorénvestors in evaluating our performance as it susss the gross profit we gener:
specifically on the homes delivered during a gipeniod and enhances the comparability of housinggprofit margin between periods. 1
financial measure assists us in making strategasibas regarding product mix, product pricing aswhstruction pace. We also beli
investors will find adjusted housing gross profengin relevant and useful because it representsfagbility measure that may be compare
a prior period without regard to variability of iemtory impairments and land option contract abanmdont charges, water intrusioalatec
charges, warranty adjustments and insurance reesver

Ratio of Net Debt to Total Capitarhe following table reconciles our ratio of debttédal capital calculated in accordance with GAA
the non-GAAP financial measure of our ratio of debt to total capital (dollars in thousands):

November 30,

2013 2012
Mortgages and notes payable $ 2,150,49: $ 1,722,81!
Stockholders’ equity 536,08t 376,80t
Total capital $ 2,686,58 ¢  2,099,62
Ratio of debt to total capital 80.(% 82.1%
Mortgages and notes payable $ 2,150,490 % 1,722,811
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (572,00) (567,12)
Net debt 1,578,49 1,155,68!
Stockholders’ equity 536,08t 376,80t
Total capital $ 2,114,558 $ 1,532,49.
Ratio of net debt to total capital 74.€% 75.4%

The ratio of net debt to total capital is a TBAAP financial measure, which we calculate by dividmortgages and notes payable, n
homebuilding cash and cash equivalents and resiricash, by total capital (mortgages and noteshbpeynet of homebuilding cash and c
equivalents and restricted cash, plus stockholdsgslty). The most directly comparable GAAP finahergeasure is the ratio of debt to t
capital. We believe the ratio of net debt to tatapital is a relevant and useful financial meagsar@vestors in understanding the level
employed in our operations.
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HOMEBUILDING REPORTING SEGMENTS

The following table presents financial informatioelated to our homebuilding reporting segmentstfa years indicated (dollars
thousands):

Years Ended November 30, Variance
2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
West Coast:
Revenues $ 1,020,211 $ 755,25¢ $ 589,38 3E% 28 %
Construction and land costs (811,92) (664,32) (498,844 (22 (33
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (62,357 (68,657) (46,659 9 47
Operating income 145,94( 22,28 43,88¢ 55k (49
Other, net (27,67¢) (32,759 (24,249 1€ (35)
Pretax income (loss) $ 118,26 $ (10,467 $ 19,63¢ (a) @
Southwest:
Revenues $ 175,25. $ 132,43( $ 139,87: 32% (5)%
Construction and land costs (135,029 (107,207 (132,509 (26) 19
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (17,439 (17,169 (26,36¢€) 2 35
Loss on loan guaranty — — (30,765 — 10C
Operating income (loss) 22,78¢ 8,061 (49,767 182 (a)
Other, net (19,88¢) (18,26) (58,507 9) 69
Pretax income (loss) $ 290: % (10,199 $ (108,269 €) 91%
Central:
Revenues $ 565,12( $ 436,400 $ 369,70! 28 % 18 %
Construction and land costs (474,22() (376,029 (325,479 (26) (16)
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (62,92¢) (52,430() (50,647 (20) 4
Operating income (loss) 27,97 7,95: (6,417 252 @
Other, net (5,699 (6,509 (6,517) 12 —
Pretax income (loss) $ 2227 $ 1,44¢ 3 (12,929 (@ (a)
Southeast:
Revenues $ 324,38{ $ 224,32¢ $ 206,59¢ 45 % 9%
Construction and land costs (312,73) (181,319 (194,449 (72 7
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (44,699 (30,887 (34,119 (45) 9
Operating income (loss) (33,049 12,13 (21,970 €)) 15¢E
Other, net (12,949 (13,319 (16,019 3 17
Pretax loss $ (45,997 $ (1,187 $ (37,989 (a) 97 %

(a) Percentage not meaning
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The following table presents information concerntg housing revenues, homes delivered and aveselijieg price by homebuildir
reporting segment:

Percentage of Percentage of
Housing Total Total
Revenues (in Housing Homes Homes Average
Years Ended November 30, thousands) Revenues Delivered Delivered Selling Price
2013
West Coast $ 1,019,34. 49% 2,17¢ 31% $ 467,80(
Southwest 175,25: 8 73¢ 10 237,50(
Central 565,12( 27 2,841 40 198,90(
Southeast 324,38t 16 1,38i 19 233,90(
Total $ 2,084,10: 10C% 7,14¢ 10C% $ 291,70(
2012
West Coast $ 755,25! 49% 1,94¢ 31% $ 388,30(
Southwest 132,43t 9 68< 11 193,90(
Central 436,40 28 2,56¢ 41 170,10(
Southeast 224,32¢ 14 1,08¢ 17 206,20(
Total $ 1,548,43. 10C% 6,282 10(% $ 246,50(
2011
West Coast $ 589,38 45% 1,75 30% $ 335,50(
Southwest 139,76: 11 84: 15 165,80(
Central 369,55: 28 2,15¢ 37 171,50(
Southeast 206,59¢ 16 1,057 18 195,50(
Total $ 1,305,29 100% 5,81: 10(% $ 224,60(

West Coast Our West Coast homebuilding reporting segneetatal revenues for 2013 were mostly compriseceeénues from housil
operations, with $.9 million of revenues generdted land sales. In 2012 and 2011, this segnsetotal revenues were entirely from hou:
operations. Housing revenues for 2013 increased f8&%h 2012 due to a 12% increase in the numbeoofds delivered and a 20#crease i
the average selling price of those homes. The &serén homes delivered reflected a 48%her backlog at the beginning of 2013 as comy
to the previous year, partly offset by the impacad 2% decrease in net orders in 2013 that waelladue to a 23%lecrease in the aver:
community count in this segment. The lower avera@@munity count in 2013 resulted primarily from tt@mbination of our selling throu
older communities and shifting our investment siggtto favor coastal submarkets in California, dethys in opening new communities. -
average selling price for 2013 rose from 2012 dwmethe combination of a greater proportion of hondetivered from highepricec
communities located in coastal submarkets, a Bhiftoduct mix of homes delivered to larger homasincrease in design option revenue:
home and generally rising home prices. In 2012,28% increase in housing revenues reflected an iht¥%ase in the number of hor
delivered and a 16%crease in the average selling price of those Isotdemes delivered increased in 2012 from 201lelgrdue to a high
backlog level at the beginning of 2012 comparethéoprior year. The average selling price rosedih2Zprimarily due to a greater proportiot
homes delivered from high@riced communities, reflecting our strategic reposing initiatives and a change in product mix kaime:
delivered to larger homes.

In 2013, pretax income from this segment improveéb28.7 million from the pretax loss posted foe trearearlier period, mainly due
higher housing gross profits and lower selling,egahand administrative expenses. The housing gnagg margin increased to 20.4¥ 2013
from 12.0% in 2012, primarily due to an increasedpprtion of deliveries from highanargin communities, generally rising home pri
increased leverage from the higher volume of hooali/ered in 2013, and a decrease in inventetgted charges. In 2013, land op
contract abandonment charges totaled $3.2 miléiod represented .3% of segment housing revenuegpaced to inventory impairme
charges of $19.2 millionhat represented 3% of segment housing revenu@91@. The inventory impairment charges in 2012emé(
challenging economic and housing market conditionsertain of our served markets and changes tooparational or selling strategy
certain communities in an effort to accelerate
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sales pace and/or our return on investment. Seltjageral and administrative expenses for 2013edsed by $6.3 milliofrom 2012 largel
due to the reversal of a previously establisheduatoof $8.2 milliondue to a favorable court decision, partly offsetibgreased cos
associated with the higher volume of homes deliyeard the increased number of new community opening2013. In addition, sellin
general and administrative expenses in 2012 indlace$8.8 millionunfavorable court decision charge. The unfavorablat decision chary
in 2012 and the reversal of the related accruabit3 are discussed in Note 16. Legal Matters irNtbies to Consolidated Financial Statem
in this report. Other, net, for 2013 declined frtim previous year due to a decrease in interestresepthat resulted from an increase ir
amount of this segment’s inventory qualifying fotarest capitalization.

The year-overear decline in pretax results for this segmer20h2 primarily reflected higher selling, generati @dministrative expens
and an increase in other, net. The housing grost pnargin decreased to 12.0% in 2012 from 15492011, primarily due to high
inventory-related charges, a shift in product mixhomes delivered and a lower proportion of dele®rfrom highemargin communitie
partially offset by favorable warranty adjustmenitsventory impairment charges totaled $19.2 million 2012, compared to inventc
impairment and land option contract abandonmentgasaof $3.3 milliorin 2011. These charges represented 3% of segntahtéwenues i
2012 and less than 1% in 2011. The year-gear increase in selling, general and administeaéxpenses in 2012 primarily reflected
unfavorable court decision charge, an increaseémumber of homes delivered in 2012, and the itngiathe gain recognized in 2011 on
sale of a multi-level residential building that Wad operated as a rental property.

Southwest In 2013 and 2012, our Southwest homebuilding ntagpmp segmens total revenues were generated solely from ho
operations. In 2011, this segment’s total reveralss included land sale revenues of $.1 millionuglog revenues for 2013 increasazi
from the previous year, reflecting increases ofii%he number of homes delivered and 2@%the average selling price of those homes.
yeal-over-year increase in the number of homes delier2013 was mostly due to the 1486rease in net orders in 2013. Most of the in@
in homes delivered occurred in our Arizona operatjaas a result of activating certain inventory2@12 that was previously held for fut
development. The average selling price for 2018cased from the yea&arlier period due to a shift in community and pdmix of home
delivered to higher-priced communities and largemhbs, and generally rising home prices. In 2012simy revenues declined 5§¢ar ove
year due to 19% decrease in the number of homes deliveredlypaffset by a 17%ncrease in the average selling price of those Is
Homes delivered decreased in 2012 due to the gigntfdownsizing of our business in Arizona durtii1 and into 2012. The average se
price increased in 2012 largely due to a chang®immunity and product mix of homes delivered.

Pretax income from this segment for 2013 improve&13.1 millionfrom the pretax loss posted in 2012, primarilyeefing an increase
housing gross profits. The housing gross profitgimaincreased to 23.0% in 2013 from 19.1%®2012, primarily due to the increase in ho
delivered from highemargin communities. In 2012, the housing grossiproérgin included favorable warranty adjustmerft$4.3 million
that were partly offset by inventory impairment s of $2.1 million. Despite the higher volume of homes delivered laigtier revenue
generated from this segment in 2013, selling, gdreard administrative expenses increased only thliffom the previous year, primarily d
to our cost containment efforts.

This segment’s pretax results improved significaml 2012 compared to 2011 mostly due to the impédhe South Edgeelated join
venture impairment charge of $53.7 million and lossloan guaranty of $30.8 milliorecorded in 2011. The housing gross profit me
increased to 19.1% in 2012 from 5.3% in 2011, prilpadue to a decrease in inventamtated charges, as well as favorable wari
adjustments. Inventory impairment charges total@dl $million in 2012, compared to inventory impairment and lapmtion contrac
abandonment charges of $19.0 milliar2011, which included an $18.1 million adjustmenthe fair value of real estate collateral thattaol
back on a note receivable. These inventefated charges represented 2% of segment tot@hues in 2012 and 14% in 2011. Selling, ge!
and administrative expenses decreased in 2012 gerhpa 2011, mainly due to overhead cost reductams the lower volume of hon
delivered. Other, net, in 2011 included the Soutbe=related joint venture impairment charge. Theae no such charge in 2012.

Central. Our Central homebuilding reporting segmertttal revenues for 2013 and 2012 were generatetly Srom housing operatior
total revenues for 2011 also included land salemaes of $.2 million. Housing revenues for 2013 r@8%compared to the previous year i
result of an 11% increase in the number of homdisedted and a 17%ncrease in the average selling price of those Isomike increase
homes delivered principally reflected a 13% higbacklog level at the beginning of 2013 comparethéoprevious year and a 12#erease i
net orders. The year-ovgear increase in homes delivered in this segmen@i3 was largely attributable to our Texas openat The
average selling price for 2013 rose from the pyieeair primarily due to a greater proportion of hordebvered from highepriced communitie
and generally rising home prices. In 2012, housagnues increased 18% compared to 2011 as a oésall9%increase in the number
homes delivered, partly offset by a X¥écrease in the average selling price of those boh@mes delivered increased in 2012 largely d
the higher number of homes in backlog at the sfaR012, while the average selling price declineadjély due to a change in community
product mix.
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In 2013, the pretax income from this segment impdoby $20.8 milliorfrom the previous year, reflecting higher housimgsg profits
partly offset by higher selling, general and adsti@itive expenses. The housing gross profit mangireased to 16.1% in 2013 from 13.8%
2012, due to an increased proportion of homes @l from highemargin communities in 2013. In 2012, favorable aaty adjustments
$1.9 million were mostly offset by inventory impaient and land option contract abandonment charfy84.4 million . The year-oveyeal
increase in selling, general and administrativeeesgs in 2013 was primarily due to an increasbemumber of homes delivered and hig
housing revenues. Other, net, for 2013 declineah fitee previous year due to a decrease in intexpense that resulted from an increase il
amount of this segment’s inventory qualifying fotarest capitalization.

In 2012, the pretax results for this segment impdofrom 2011 mainly due to higher housing grosgifsraeflecting the increase in hon
delivered and a higher housing gross profit marnganrtially offset by increased selling, general addhinistrative expenses. The housing ¢
profit margin increased to 13.8% in 2012 from 12.i@%he previous year, primarily due to favorablernaaty adjustments, which were larg
offset by inventory impairment and land option cant abandonment charges. Inventory impairmentland option contract abandonm
charges in this segment totaled $1.4 million inhea£2012 and 2011 and were less than 1% of segtotaitrevenues in each ye&elling
general and administrative expenses increasedls 20mpared to 2011, mainly due to the higher velwhhomes delivered and revenue
2012.

SoutheastOur Southeast homebuilding reporting segneetdtal revenues for 2013, 2012 and 2011 were gatbisolely from housit
operations. In 2013, housing revenues increased eti¥pared to the prior year, reflecting a 2if¥drease in the number of homes delivi
and a 13% increase in the average selling prickasfe homes. The increase in homes delivered teflec19%higher backlog at the beginni
of 2013 compared to the previous year, a 2@étease in net orders during the year as a re$ulh increase in the community count, al
higher backlog conversion ratio for the first twoagters of 2013. Most of the year-owazar increase in homes delivered in this segme
2013 was generated from our Florida operations.yEag-overyear increase in the average selling price for 2048 primarily due to a grea
proportion of homes delivered from highmiced communities, a change in product mix of herdelivered to larger homes, and gene
rising home prices. In 2012, housing revenues asgd 9% from the previous year due to a 5% incrieaiee average selling price an®%
increase in the number of homes delivered. We dediv more homes in 2012 compared to 2011, largedytal this segment having 57%
homes in backlog at the beginning of 2012 comptr&011.

The pretax loss from this segment for 2013 increédse$44.8 millionfrom 2012, reflecting a decrease in housing greefitp and highe
selling, general and administrative expenses. Busihg gross profit margin declined to 3.6% in 2&b3n 19.2%in 2012, largely due to a r
charge of $32.0 million for water intrusiogelated repairs at certain of our communities intic@ and southwest Florida in 2013 as discuss
Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies in the Niat&3onsolidated Financial Statements in this reporaddition, the housing gross pra
for 2012 included insurance recoveries of $26.9ionilthat were partly offset by inventory impairment dadd option contract abandonm
charges of $5.8 million . The year-owgar increase in selling, general and administeatixpenses in 2013 was primarily due to adminisa
costs associated with water intrusi@fated repairs, an increase in the number of hatebgered and higher housing revenues. Other,fok
2013 decreased from 2012 due to a decrease irestitekpense that resulted from an increase in i@uat of this segmerdt’inventon
qualifying for interest capitalization.

The significant improvement in pretax results fhistsegment in 2012 reflected an increase in hgugmoss profits and a decreas
selling, general and administrative expenses. Thesing gross profit margin improved to 19.2% in 2@dom 5.9%in 2011, mainly due -
$26.5 million of insurance recoveries recorded @12 partly offset by unfavorable warranty adjusttse In 2012, this segment h&8.¢
million of inventory impairment and land option ¢mtt abandonment charges, compared to $2.1 milliothe yearearlier period. As
percentage of segment total revenues, these charyes3% in 2012 and 1% in 2011.

FINANCIAL SERVICES REPORTING SEGMENT

Our financial services reporting segment offerspprty and casualty insurance and, in certain icstsnearthquake, flood and pers:
property insurance to our homebuyers in the samketsmas our homebuilding reporting segmeamtd provides title services in the majorit
our markets located within our Central and Southlkasebuilding reporting segmenbs.addition, since the third quarter of 2011, tegmer
has earned revenues pursuant to the terms of aetmaykservices agreement with a preferred mortdegéer that offers mortgage bank
services, including mortgage loan originationsptw homebuyersvho elect to use the lender. Our homebuyers arerumal obligation to ut
our preferred mortgage lender and may select amyeleof their choice to obtain mortgage financing the purchase of a hom@éle maki
available to our homebuyers marketing materials atrebr information regarding our preferred mortgdgeders financing options ai
mortgage loan products, and are compensated dolelye fair market value of these services. Exaptiscussed below, we have ha
affiliation, ownership, joint venture or other intsts in or with our preferred mortgage lendent®aiffiliates, or with respect to the revenue
income that may have been generated from theirigioov of mortgage banking services to, or origioatiof mortgage loans for, ¢
homebuyers.
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From 2005 until June 30, 2011, we offered mortghgeking services to our homebuyers indirectly thtolKBA Mortgage, a
unconsolidated joint venture of a subsidiary ofsoand a subsidiary of Bank of America, N.A., witick partner having a 50%terest in th
venture. KBA Mortgage ceased offering mortgage bankervices after June 30, 2011. The Bank of AcaeiN.A. subsidiary partner opers
KBA Mortgage. KBA Mortgage was accounted for asuenconsolidated joint venture within the financiahsces reporting segment of «
consolidated financial statements.

Effective June 27, 2011 and into the second quafte012, we had a preferred mortgage lender oglakiip with MetLife Home Loans
division of MetLife Bank, N.A. Under this relatiomg, MetLife Home Loans’personnel, located on site at several of our newme
communities, could offer financing options and rgage loan products to our homebuyers, to prequladifjebuyers for mortgage loans, an
commence the mortgage loan origination procesedohomebuyers electing to use MetLife Home Loans.

Following MetLife Bank, N.A.5 announcement in January 2012 that it would ceieeng forward mortgage banking services as pé
its business, we evaluated various options ani¥arch 2012, entered into an agreement with Nat@nst subsidiary of Nationstar Mortg:
Holdings Inc., under which Nationstar became owv peeferred mortgage lender, offering mortgage bapkervices to our homebuyers at
new home communities. The terms of our relationshiih Nationstar are substantially similar to tleents of our prior relationship wi
MetLife Home Loans, as are the mortgage bankingices offered by Nationstar. Nationstar began atiicgmew mortgage loan applicatic
from our homebuyers on May 1, 2012.

On January 21, 2013, we entered into an agreem#miNationstar to form Home Community Mortgage, artgage banking company t
will offer an array of mortgage banking serviceotos homebuyers. We have a 49.9% ownership intarebfNationstar has a 50.18&nershi|
interest in Home Community Mortgage, with Natiomsgaoviding management oversight of Home Communtgrtgages operation:
Nationstar will continue as our preferred mortgigeler until Home Community Mortgage begins offgrmortgage banking services, whic
expected to occur in the first quarter of 2014. vade capital contributions of $5.0 millida Home Community Mortgage during the y
ended November 30, 2013. Home Community Mortgagacounted for as an unconsolidated joint ventuitbinvour financial service
reporting segment of our consolidated financialestents.

Nationstars performance since May 1, 2012 as our preferredgage lender has provided more consistent exetatiml completion
mortgage loan originations as compared to othesideitlenders, contributing more stability in theneersion of our backlog into hot
deliveries and revenues. Based on the number ofebodelivered in 2013 and 2012, approximately 59% 3a0%, respectively, of o
homebuyers used Nationstar to finance the purcbégsbeir home. We expect to see improvement inr&utperiods if and as a gre
percentage of our homebuyers obtain mortgage fingnfrom Nationstar, as our preferred mortgage éenédnd/or Home Commun
Mortgage.

The following table presents a summary of selefitehcial and operational data for our financialvimes segment (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues $ 12,15 $ 11,68: $ 10,30«
Expenses (3,042 (2,997 (3,519
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 1,074 2,191 19,28¢

Pretax income $ 10,18¢ $ 10,88: $ 26,07¢
Total originations (a):

Loans — — 1,63

Principal $ — 8 — $ 315,89¢

Percentage of homebuyers using KBA Mortgage — — 67%
Mortgage loans sold to third parties (a):

Loans — — 1,86:

Principal $ — $ — $ 370,59¢

(a) Loan originations and sales in 2011 occurred wiklBA Mortgage, which ceased offering mortgage baglgervices after June 30, 2(
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RevenuesOur financial services reporting segment generedgenues primarily from insurance commissionse t#térvices, marketil
services fees and interest income. Financial sesvievenues totaled $12.2 million in 2013, $11.lfioniin 2012 and $10.3 million 2011
The year-ovefear increase in our financial services revenue20it3 was primarily due to an increase in titlevies revenues, which w
partly offset by a decrease in marketing serviassfIn 2012, the year-ovgear increase in financial services revenues reftebighe
marketing services fees resulting from having aketémg services agreement in place for all of 2@tnpared to only a portion of 2011, .
higher title services revenues.

Financial services revenues included revenues insorance commissions and title services totalib@.4 million in 2013, $9.5 milliorn
2012 and $9.2 millioin 2011, and a nominal amount of interest incomeach year, which was earned primarily from moneyk®t deposit
In 2013, 2012 and 2011, financial services revemlss included $1.8 million , $2.2 million and $irillion , respectively, of revenues fr
marketing services fees. These fees are assoeigtethe marketing services agreements in effedindueach year and represent the fair v
of the services we provided in connection with dalgeeements.

ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses totaled $3l@min both 2013 and 2012, and $3.5 million inl20

Equity in Income/Gain on Wind Down of Unconsolidiaf®int VentureThe equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsaied join
venture of $1.1 million in 2013, $2.2 million in 28 and $19.3 milliorin 2011 related to our 50% interest in KBA Mortgaghe amounts f
2013, 2012 and 2011 included gains of $1.1 milli®2.1 million and $19.8 millionrespectively, recognized in connection with thedwdowr
of KBA Mortgage. Excluding these gains, our equiityncome of KBA Mortgage totaled $.1 million in 28 compared to our equity in loss
$.5 million in 2011. KBA Mortgage originated 1,6R#&ns in 2011.

INCOME TAXES

We recognized an income tax benefit of $1.6 millior2013, $20.1 million in 2012 and $2.4 milliam 2011. The income tax benefit
2013 was due to the resolution of a state tax awdiich resulted in a refund receivable of $1.4lioil , as well as the recognition
unrecognized tax benefits of $1.0 million , padi§set by the state tax liability of $.8 millioriThe income tax benefit of $20.1 million 2012
primarily reflected the resolution of federal artdte tax audits, which also resulted in the retibnaof $1.2 million of deferred tax assets.
income tax benefit in 2011 reflected the reversa $2.6 millionliability for unrecognized tax benefits due to #tatus of federal and state
audits. Due to the effects of our deferred tax tagakiation allowances, carrybacks of our NOL, ahdnges in our unrecognized tax bene
our effective tax rates in 2013, 2012 and 2011natemeaningful items as our income tax amountsnateadirectly correlated to the amoun
our pretax income (loss) for those periods.

Due to the impact of the housing downturn on owsifeess, the asset impairment and land option atraimandonment charges we incu
and the NOL we posted in the years prior to 2018,generated substantial deferred tax assets aadlissed a corresponding valuat
allowance against those deferred tax assets. lar@@ace with Accounting Standards Codification Fopio. 740, “Income Taxes” ASC
7407"), we evaluate our deferred tax assets quarterly termiéne if adjustments to the valuation allowanoe required. ASC 740 requires t
companies assess whether a valuation allowancédshetestablished based on the consideration @ivallable positive and negative evide
using a “more likely than not” standard with regpecwhether deferred tax assets will be realiZdek ultimate realization of deferred tax as
depends primarily on the generation of future téxaficome. During 2013, we reduced the valuatidomance by $20.7 milliomo account fc
adjustments to our deferred tax assets primarp@ated with the pretax income generated durieg/éar. During 2012 and 2011, we reco
valuation allowances of $32.3 million and $76.7limil , respectively, against net deferred tax assetergted primarily from the pretax los
for those years. One of the primary pieces of negavidence that we consider in evaluating thedrfee a valuation allowance is our three
year cumulative loss position, which is largely theult of our pretax losses in 2012 and 2011, agewnerated pretax income in 2013. In 2
we had two consecutive quarters of pretax inconmkle@ve experienced year-owgrar increases in our homes delivered, revenuasirm
gross profit margin and net orders. In additior, loacklog value at November 30, 2013 was highen #taNovember 30, 2012. If such posi
trends in our business continue, together with @wpments in housing markets and the homebuildidgstry, and we are profitable ol
sustained basis, we believe that there could Hecwuit positive evidence to support reducing @daportion of our valuation allowance dur
2014,

We had no net deferred tax assets at November03@3, @ 2012 as we maintained a full valuation alloee against our deferred tax as
The deferred tax asset valuation allowance decdets&859.4 million at November 30, 2013 from $88illion at November 30, 201
reflecting a reduction of $20.7 milliom the valuation allowance due to the use of defkmax assets to offset the pretax income gene
during 2013, and the loss of certain state NOLSs tduthe expiration of the applicable statute ofitations. The deferred tax asset value
allowance at November 30, 2012 increased from $#llion at November 30, 2011, reflecting the mepact of the $32.3 milliowaluatior
allowance recorded in 2012.

The benefits of our NOL, built-in losses and tardits would be reduced or potentially eliminatedvié experienced anofvnershij
change” under Section 382. Based on our analysisrpeed as of November 30, 2013, we do not beltbe¢ we
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have experienced an ownership change as definegkbtjon 382, and, therefore, the NOL, binlttosses and tax credits we have gene
should not be subject to a Section 382 limitatisrofthis reporting date.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview.We historically have funded our homebuilding anthficial services activities with internally genethtash flows and exter|
sources of debt and equity financing. We also hhgeability to borrow funds under the Credit Fagili

We manage our use of cash in the operation of osinbss to support the execution of our primamtstiic goals. Accordingly, we use
unrestricted cash balance primarily to acquire Jangest in land development and construct homas. i@vestments in land and le
development totaled approximately $1.14 billior2Dil3, approximately $565 millioim 2012 and approximately $478 million in 2011.
we made strategic investments in land and landldpreent in each of our homebuilding reporting segimén each of these years, most v
made in our West Coast homebuilding reporting segn@ur investments in land and land developmenhénfuture will depend significan
on market conditions and available opportunitieg theet our investment return and marketing statsdar

The following table presents the number of lotsammed or controlled under land option contract®tiier similar contracts (dollars
thousands):

November 30, Variance
2013 2012 Lots/$ %
Number of lots owned or controlled under land apontracts
or other similar contracts 61,09t 44,75 16,34 3%
Carrying value of inventory owned or controlled anthnd
option contracts or other similar contracts $ 2,298,557 $ 1,706,57 $ 592,00t 35%

The year-overear increases in the number of lots owned or oliatt under land option contracts or other simiantracts and tt
corresponding carrying value of such lots at Noven®0, 2013 reflected the significant investmenésmade in land and land developn
during 2013. Overall, the percentage of our totas$ fthat we controlled under land option contramtother similar contracts was 3786
November 30, 2013 compared to 27% at November GIR..

We ended our 2013 fiscal year with $572.0 millidhcash and cash equivalents and restricted cashpamd to $567.1 millioral
November 30, 2012. Our balance of unrestricted eashcash equivalents w$530.1 million at November 30, 2013 and $524.8 ianillal
November 30, 2012. The increase in our unrestrictesth balance primarily reflected the total netpeals 0$332.2 millionreceived from th
concurrent underwritten public issuances of th&398 Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 and the Cam8&tock Offering in the first quar
of 2013, and net proceeds of $443.3 millfoom the underwritten public issuance of the 7.08&fior Notes due 2021 in the fourth quarte
2013, partly offset by the retirement of $215.1liwnl of certain of our senior notes due 2014 and 20i&utth a combination of purcha
made pursuant to the October 2013 Tender Offerged®mptions, and our investments in inventorieindu2013.

Capital Resource®ur mortgages and notes payable consisted of tleaving (in thousands):

November 30, Variance
2013 2012 $

Mortgages and land contracts due to land sellado#rer loans (at interest rates

7% at November 30, 2013 and 6% to 7% at Novembge2@IR) $ 13,61¢ $ 52,31 $ (38,69¢)
5 3/4% Senior notes due February 1, 2014 — 75,91: (75,91)
5 7/8% Senior notes due January 15, 2015 — 101,99¢ (101,999
6 1/4% Senior notes due June 15, 2015 199,86« 236,82¢ (36,967)
9.10% Senior notes due September 15, 2017 262,04¢ 261,43( 61¢
7 1/4% Senior notes due June 15, 2018 299,26 299,12¢ 13z
8.00% Senior notes due March 15, 2020 345,71( 345,20¢ 501
7.00% Senior notes due December 15, 2021 450,00( — 450,00(
7.50% Senior notes due September 15, 2022 350,00( 350,00t —
1.375% Convertible senior notes due February 19201 230,00( — 230,00(

Total $ 2,150,49: $ 1,722,81! $ 427,68:
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Our debt balance at November 30, 2013 reflectedsthence of the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes2019 in the first quarter of 20.
The net proceeds from this debt issuance were fasegbneral corporate purposes. Our debt balandéaember 30, 2013 also reflected
issuance of the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2021 ifcineh quarter of 2013. We used $225.4 milliainthe net proceeds from this issuanc
purchase $19.7 million in aggregate principal antafrour 5 3/4% senior notes due 2014 (the “5 38éfior Notes due 2014")9%.1 millior
in aggregate principal amount of our 5 7/8% semiotes due 2015 (the “5 7/8% Senior Notes due 20aB8 $37.0 millionin aggregat
principal amount of the 6 1/4% Senior Notes due52@ursuant to the applicable October 2013 Tendéars) and to redeem the remair
$56.3 million in aggregate principal amount of 818/4% Senior Notes due 2014 and $11.0 millloaggregate principal amount of the 5 7
Senior Notes due 2015 that were not purchasederafiplicable October 2013 Tender Offers. The Oct@043 Tender Offers expired
November 12, 2013. We plan to use the remainingragteeds from this issuance for general corpgratposes. We incurred$10.4 millior
loss on the early extinguishment of debt in 2018 thua premium paid under the applicable Octob&32ZDender Offers, premiums paic
redeem the applicable remaining senior notes, lmdinamortized original issue discount associaiéutivese senior notes.

The terms of the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes 21019 and the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2021 areildeddén Note 13. Mortgages &
Notes Payable in the Notes to Consolidated Finkistatements in this report. The ab-described transactions extended our rieam dek
maturities, and as a result, our next scheduleti™akurity is in 2015, when the remaining $199.8iom in aggregate principal amount of th
1/4% Senior Notes due 2015 becomes due.

Our financial leverage, as measured by the ratiaedft to total capital, was 80.0% at November 30 3 compared to 82.1%i
November 30, 2012. The improvement in our finantdakrage reflected the increase in our stockhe’ equity as a result of the Comn
Stock Offering and the net income we generatednduttie year ended November 30, 2013, partly ofigehe net increase in our mortga
and notes payable balance. Our ratio of net defatéb capital at November 30, 2013 was 74.6% ,pamed to 75.4% at November 30, 2012.

LOC Facilities. We maintain the LOC Facilities with various finagcinstitutions to obtain letters of credit in tbhedinary course ¢
operating our business. As of November 30, 2013 202, we had $41.5 million and $41.9 milliorrespectively, of letters of cre
outstanding under the LOC FacilitieBhe LOC Facilities require us to deposit and mantash with the issuing financial institutions
collateral for our letters of credit outstandingneTamount of cash maintained for our LOC Facilit@aled $41.9 milliorat November 30, 20:
and $42.4 milliorat November 30, 2012, and these amounts were iedlidrestricted cash in our consolidated balaheets as of those da
We may maintain, revise or, if necessary or delrabnter into additional or expanded letter ofddréacilities, or other similar facilit
arrangements, with the same or other financiaitin&ins.

Unsecured Revolving Credit FacilityOn March 12, 2013, we entered into the Crediillaavith a syndicate of financial institutions h&
Credit Facility is further described in Note 13. Myages and Notes Payable in the Notes to Consetidéinancial Statements in this ref.
The amount of the Credit Facility available for led®rrowings or the issuance of letters of credpehds on the total cash borrowings
letters of credit outstanding under the Credit lgcind the maximum available amount under thengeof the Credit Facility. The maximt
available amount is the lesser of (a) $200.0 mmlizmd (b) the difference of (i) 15% of our consatitl net tangible assets (as defined ii
Credit Facility) and (ii) our secured debt. As af\wmber 30, 2013, we had no cash borrowings arketif credit outstanding under the Cr
Facility and we had $200.0 million available unttez Credit Facility for cash borrowings, with up%©00.0 million available for the issual
of letters of credit.

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we are iegply among other things, to maintain compliancéhwiarious covenants, includi
financial covenants regarding our consolidateditdeget worth, consolidated leverage ratio (“Leag® Ratio”)and either an interest cover:
ratio or minimum liquidity. Our compliance with the financial covenants is measured by calculatmusmetrics that are specifically defil
or described by the terms of the Credit Facilitgd @an differ in certain respects from comparableABAor other commonly used terms. -
financial covenant requirements are set forth below

» Consolidated Tangible Net WorttWe must maintain a minimum consolidated tangiblewmth equal to the sum of (a) $282.6 million;
50% of cumulative positive consolidated net incaafter November 30, 2012, excluding consolidatedimeaime realized from a rever
of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance aftevember 30, 2012; (c) 75% of any consolidatedimebme realized as a result ¢
reversal of our deferred tax asset valuation altmeaafter November 30, 2012; and (d) 50% of theuwtative net proceeds received fr
our issuance of capital stock after November 3022@s of November 30, 2013, our applicable minimeonsolidated tangible net wo
requirement was $365.1 million .

» Leverage RatioWe must also maintain a Leverage Ratio of .850ess,lwhich adjusts to .825 or less for the firgt aecond quarters
2015; and to .800 or less for the third quarte2@f5 and each quarter thereafter during the tertheo€Credit Facility. As defined under
Credit Facility, the Leverage Ratio is calculatesithe ratio of our consolidated total indebtednsshe sum of consolidated tc
indebtedness and consolidated tangible net wodlofANovember 30, 2013, our Leverage Ratio was .800
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» Interest Coverage Ratio or LiquiditWe are also required to maintain either (a) a mimmtonsolidated interest coverage ratioqVerag
Ratio”) of 1.10, which adjusts to 1.20 for the second quant 2014; to 1.40 for the third quarter of 201@}1.60 for the fourth quarter
2014; to 1.75 for the first and second quarterGif32 and to 2.00 for the third quarter of 2015 aadh quarter thereafter during the ten
the Credit Facility; or (b) a minimum level of limlity, but not both. As defined under the Creditifity, the Coverage Ratio is the ratic
our consolidated adjusted EBITDA to consolidatenast incurred, in each case for the previous dBths. Our minimum liquidity
required to be the greater of (a) $50.0 million(lmr the sum of (i) consolidated interest incurredthe four most recently ended quar
and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of indebess$ coming due in the next 12 months, providetl ttiea highest minimum liquidi
applicable under (b) is $200.0 million. As of Novaen 30, 2013, our minimum liquidity requirement v#d<3.0 million .

In addition, under the Credit Facility, our investnts in joint ventures and nguarantor subsidiaries (which are shown, respdytive
Note 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Vergusad in Note 22. Supplemental Guarantor Informmatio the Notes to Consolidal
Financial Statements in this report) cannot exabedsum of (a) $135.1 million and (b) 20% of cordated tangible net worth; and «
borrowing base indebtedness, which is the aggrggateipal amount of our outstanding indebtednesbs r@neollateralized financial letters
credit, cannot be greater than our borrowing basedasure of our inventory and unrestricted caséts)s

The financial covenants under our Credit Faciligpresent the most restrictive covenants that wesabgect to with respect to ¢
mortgages and notes payable. The following tabhensarizes the aboveescribed financial covenants and other requiresnendler the Crec
Facility and our actual levels or ratios (as amilie) with respect to those covenants and othesinEgents, in each case as of Novembe
2013:

Financial Covenants and Other Requirements Covenant Requirement Actual
Consolidated tangible net worth >$ 365.1million $ 536.1 million
Leverage Ratio < .850 .800
Coverage Ratio (a) > 1.10 1.43
Minimum Liquidity (a) >$ 143.Cmillion $ 530.1million
Investments in joint ventures and non-guarantosislidxies <$ 2425 million $ 170.1million
Borrowing base in excess of borrowing base indetessl (as defined) n/a $ 235.€ million

(8) Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we are iggpito meet either the Coverage Ratio or the diqyithresholds, but not both. As
November 30, 2013, we met both the Coverage Ratidlze minimum liquidity requirement

The Credit Facility also prohibits us from repursing and exchanging equity securities from or ethployees in excess of $10.0 mill
in cash consideration in any fiscal year.

The indenture governing the senior notes and tB&5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 does notagomany financial covenan
Subject to specified exceptions, the indenture aiogtcertain restrictive covenants that, amongratiags, limit our ability to incur secur
indebtedness, or engage in sale-leaseback tramssdtivolving property or assets above a certagtifipd value.In addition, the 1.375'
Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 and all of thréasenotes (with the exception of the 6 1/4% SeiNotes due 2015 and the 7 1/4% Se
Notes due 201¢&contain certain limitations related to mergers,saidations, and sales of assets.

Our obligations to pay principal, premium, if arand interest under our senior notes and the 1.3ZB#vertible Senior Notes due 2(
and borrowings, if any, under the Credit Facilitg guaranteed on a joint and several basis byigesfaour subsidiaries (theGuaranta
Subsidiaries”) that meet the definition of a “siggant subsidiary” as defined by Rule 1-02 of Regioin S-X using a 5%ather than a 10
threshold, provided that the assets of our nonajar subsidiaries do not in the aggregate excé&8d df an adjusted measure of
consolidated total assets. The guarantees ararfdllunconditional and the Guarantor Subsidiariesl@0%owned by us. We may also ca
other subsidiaries of ours to become Guarantor i8iabies if we believe it to be in our or the redet subsidians best interests. Conden
consolidating financial information for our subsides considered to be Guarantor Subsidiariesoigighed in Note 22. Supplemental Guara
Information in the Notes to Consolidated Finan8tdtements in this report.

As of November 30, 2013ve were in compliance with the applicable termalbbur covenants under the Credit Facility, theisenotes
the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019, denture, and the mortgages and land contractsadlaad sellers and other loans.
ability to access the Credit Facility for cash loavrings and letters of credit and our ability towgecfuture debt financing depend, in part, or
ability to remain in such complianc€here are no agreements that restrict our paynfafividlends other than to maintain compliance vtité
financial covenant requirements under the Crediilig which would restrict
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our payment of dividends if there is a default urtthe Credit Facility existing at the time of anych payment, or if any such payment wc
result in such a default.

Depending on available terms, we finance certaid acquisitions with purchaseeney financing from land sellers or with othemfiaro
financing from third parties. At November 30, 2018 had outstanding mortgages and land contraastaldand sellers and other lo
payable in connection with such financing of $18\@lion , secured primarily by the underlying profye which had a carrying value §87.¢
million .

Consolidated Cash Flow3he following table presents a summary of net gashided by (used in) our operating, investing &indncing
activities (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ (443,48 $ 34,617 $ (347,54
Investing activities (16,750 (760) 13,09¢
Financing activities 467,07: 73,75% (155,909
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent $ 6,83t § 107,61 $ (490,35()

Operating ActivitiesOperating activities used net cash of $443.5 mmiliio 2013 and provided net cash of $34.6 millior2012. In 201:
operating activities used net cash of $347.5 nmilli@he change in net operating cash flows in 20 fthe prior year was largely due to
increase in cash used for investments in land and ¢levelopment during 2013 in support of our sgiatgrowth initiatives. In 2012, the year-
overyear change in net operating cash flows was prlyndtie to the lower net loss incurred in 2012 amel gubstantial payments we mad
2011 in connection with the consummation of thesemsual plan of reorganization for South Edge am@solving other matters surrounc
the underlying joint venture.

Our uses of operating cash in 2013 included anweease in inventories of $563.2 million (exclud®®y’.6 millionof inventories acquire
through seller financing, an increase of $4.8 wnilin consolidated inventories not owned, and inventiarpairment land option contr:
abandonment charges of $3.6 milliprin conjunction with our investments in land dadd development, and a net increase in receivati
$11.2 million . Partially offsetting the cash useds a net increase in accounts payable, accruezhsap and other liabilities 869.8 millior
(excluding $8.3 million related to the issuancestofck under stock-based compensation plans), netria of $40.0 milliorand other operatit
sources of $1.3 million .

In 2012, cash was provided by a net decrease entovies of $30.3 million (excluding $53.6 milliaf inventories acquired through se
financing, inventory impairment and land option tant abandonment charges of $28.5 million andcedse of $19.8 milliom consolidate
inventories not owned), and a decrease in recadgatil $25.0 million . Partially offsetting the cgstovided was a net loss of $59.0 millipa
net decrease in accounts payable, accrued expandexther liabilities of $2.1 million , and othgyeyating uses of $12.5 million .

Our uses of operating cash in 2011 included aosst 0f $178.8 million a net decrease in accounts payable, accrued sepand oth
liabilities of $253.5 million , a net increase mventories of $12.3 milliofexcluding the real estate collateral in our Soesmhomebuildin
reporting segment that we took back on a $40.0anithote receivable, inventory impairment and landaptiontract abandonment charge
$25.8 million , and an increase of $8.4 milliondonsolidated inventories not owned), a net incréageceivables of $2.2 millioand othe
operating uses of $2.3 millionThe net decrease in accounts payable, accruezshsgp and other liabilities was largely due to peyts wi
made in connection with the consensual plan ofgauzation for South Edge and in resolving othettena surrounding the underlying jc
venture.

Investing Activitieslnvesting activities used net cash of $16.8 million2013 and $.8 million in 2012, and provided nash of$13.1
million in 2011. The change in net investing cash flow20&3 compared to 2012 primarily reflected our dbmtions to unconsolidated jo
ventures in 2013, compared to a return of investrimrennconsolidated joint ventures in 2012. Thery@zeryear change in net investing ¢
flows in 2012 was mainly due to proceeds of $80ibian we received in 2011 from the sale of a midtiel residential building we h
operated as a rental property in our West Coastebaoifding reporting segment, partly offset by inwesnts in unconsolidated joint ventt
that year.

In 2013, cash of $14.4 milliowas mainly used for contributions to Home Communitgrtgage and two unconsolidated joint vent
within our homebuilding reporting segment, and $2ilion was used for net purchases of property eqdipment. In 2012, $1.7 milliorwas
used for net purchases of property and equipmdrg.cish used was largely offset by $1.0 milbbieash provided by a return of investmer
unconsolidated joint ventures. In 2011, the $80l6an we received from the sale of the
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multi-level residential building was partly offset by $million used for investments in unconsolidateihj ventures and $.3 million used
net purchases of property and equipment.

Financing Activities Financing activities provided net cash of $467.1iom in 2013 and $73.8 millioin 2012, and used net cast
$155.9 millionin 2011. The increase in cash provided by finan@ntivities in 2013 primarily reflected the conant underwritten publ
issuances of the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes2019 and the Common Stock Offering, which togetfemerated total net proceed:
$332.2 million, and the underwritten public issuance of the 7.@¥nior Notes due 2021, partly offset by the reteat of certain of our sen
notes due in 2014 and 2015 through a combinatiqquofhases made pursuant to the applicable Oc33 Tender Offers and redemptic
and payments on mortgages and land contracts daadcellers and other loans. In 2012, we gengredsh from financing activities mainly
a result of the issuances of the 8.00% senior mies2020 (the “8.00% Senior Notes due 20201) the 7.50% senior notes due 2022
“7.50% Senior Notes due 2022)artly offset by the purchase of certain of ourisenotes due in 2014 and 2015 pursuant to theicgipé
January 2012 Tender Offers and July 2012 Tendexr&ff

In 2013, sources of financing cash included to&lproceeds of $680.0 millidnom the issuances of the 1.375% Convertible SeXaie:
due 2019 and the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2021, mee@ds of $109.5 milliofrom the issuance of common stock in the Commortk
Offering, $2.2 million of cash provided from thesimnce of common stock under employee stock pladsaadecrease of $.5 millian our
restricted cash balance. The cash provided wamlbadffset by $225.4 million used for the retiremt of $215.1 milliorin aggregate princip
amount of certain of our senior notes due 2014 201tb through a combination of purchases made porsoahe applicable October 2(
Tender Offers and redemptions; payments on mortgaged land contracts due to land sellers and dthes of $66.3 million the payment
debt issuance costs of $16.5 milliassociated with our issuances of the 1.375% Cable@enior Notes due 2019 and the 7.00% Senioes
due 2021 and costs associated with our entry lreddredit Facility, repurchases of our common swmfcg8.5 millionas discussed in Note !
Stockholders’ Equity in the Notes to ConsolidatedaRcial Statements in this report, and dividengnpents on our common stock $8.4
million .

In 2012, cash was provided by net proceeds of 86@4llion from the issuances of the 8.00% Senior Notes d@é 20d the 7.50% Sen
Notes due 2022, a decrease$22.1 million in our restricted cash balance ar&lrillion of cash provided from the issuance of common
under employee stock plans. The cash provided adsally offset by $592.6 milliorused to purchase $340.0 million in aggregate pad
amount of certain of our senior notes due 2014281 pursuant to the applicable January 2012 Te@tfers and $244.9 million in aggreg
principal amount of certain of our senior notes @44 and 2015 pursuant to the applicable July ZDarader Offers, including expen:
associated with the applicable tender offers arttl thie issuances of the 8.00% Senior Notes due a08Ghe 7.50% Senior Notes due 2
Uses of cash in 2012 also included payments ongageis and land contracts due to land sellers draat f[tans of $26.3 millionthe paymei
of senior note issuance costs of $12.4 milliorviddind payments on our common stock of $10.6 mmilliand stock repurchases®if.8 millior
in connection with the satisfaction of employeehiviilding taxes on vested restricted stock.

In 2011, cash was used for the repayment of thairéng $100.0 millionin aggregate principal amount of our 6 3/8% seniaties du
2011 (the “6 3/8% Senior Notes due 2014ttheir August 15, 2011 maturity, and for net payts on mortgages and land contracts due tc
sellers and other loans of $89.5 million , primarilated to the repayment of debt secured by thiéi-hevel residential building we sold duri
the year. Uses of cash in 2011 also included diddeayments on our common stock of $19.2 millidihe cash used was partially offset |
$51.0 milliondecrease in our restricted cash balance, of wh2én8smillion related to cash collateral no longeguired on a surety bond, ¢
$1.8 million of cash provided from the issuancea@hmon stock under employee stock plans.

Our board of directors declared four quarterly cdslidends of $.025@er share of common stock in 2013. During 2012, lmard o
directors declared a cash dividend of $.0625 pareslof common stock in the first quarter and quisrtdividends of $.025(er share «
common stock in each of the second, third and lfoqrartersin the second quarter of 2012, our board of dimscttecided to reduce 1
quarterly cash dividend from $.0625 per share tbenthe redeployment of our unrestricted cashuppert of our strategic growth initiativ:
O ur board of directors declared four quarterlyhcdiwidends of $.0625 per share of common sthating 2011. The declaration and payn
of future cash dividends on our common stock atbetiscretion of our board of directors, and daepepon, among other things, our expe
future earnings, cash flows, capital requiremetéht structure and any adjustments thereto, opeadtand financial investment strategy
general financial condition, as well as generaifmss conditions.

Shelf Registration Statemekfe have an automatically effective universal shegdfistration statement on file with the SEC, whieds filec
on September 20, 2011 (the “2011 Shelf Registrgtiorhe 2011 Shelf Registration registers the offenfgebt and equity securities that
may issue from time to time in amounts to be deil@ech In 2013, we conducted the concurrent undé&ewripublic issuances of the 1.37
Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 and the CommookSDffering, and the underwritten public issuantéhe 7.00% Senior Notes due 2!
under the 2011 Shelf Registration. In 2012, weddsbioth the 8.00% Senior Notes due 2020 and tt®4 Senior Notes due 2022 under
2011 Shelf Registration.
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Share Repurchase Programs of November 30, 2013, we were authorized to metpase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock ur
board-approved share repurchase progha.did not repurchase any of our common stock uttderprogram in 2013, 2012 or 2011. /
resumption of such stock repurchases under thigrano or any other program will be at the discretiérour board of directordJnrelated t
the common stock repurchase plan, in connectioh ait amendment of the Amended and Restated KB HeoreEmployee Directol
Compensation Plan (the “Director Plan”) as discdsseéNote 17. Stockholder&quity in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stegats in thi
report, our board of directors authorized the repase of no more than 482,000 shares of our constomk solely as necessary for dire
elections in respect of outstanding stock unitseuritle Director Plan. During the third quarter 6fL3, we repurchased through open m:
transactions 478,294 shares of our common stockupat to this board of directors authorizationratiggregate price of $7.9 milliorWe dc
not anticipate any additional repurchases of oumrnon stock pursuant to this board of directors aightion.

In the present environment, we are managing ourofigesh for investments to maintain and grow ausitiess. Based on our curl
capital position, we believe that we will have ad®® resources and sufficient access to the capaakets and external financing source
satisfy our current and reasonably anticipated-t@nm requirements for funds to acquire capital land, to develop acquired land, to const
homes, to finance our financial services operatiansl to meet other needs in the ordinary courssipbusiness. Although our land and |
development activities for 2014 will be subjecintarket conditions and available opportunities, vi# likely use a portion of our unrestrict
cash resources to acquire and/or develop landnkats our investment return and marketing standénd014, we may also use or rede|
our unrestricted cash resourdessupport other business purposes that are aligiddour primary strategic goals, including ouowth
initiatives. In addition, we may also arrange oga&ge in capital markets, bank loan, project deldtber financial transactions, and/or exg
the capacity of the Credit Facility or the LOC Hitieis or enter into additional such facilities. &8® transactions may include repurchases
time to time of our outstanding senior notes oreottiebt through redemptions, tender offers, exchanffers, private exchanges, open me
purchases or other means, and may include potergialissuances of equity or senior or convertibleicr notes or other debt through pu
offerings, private placements or other arrangemientaise new capital to support our current land land development investment targets,
for other business purposes and/or to effect rémmses or redemptions of our outstanding seniorsnatether debt. Our ability to engags
such financial transactions, however, may be caimsd by economic, capital, credit and/or finanaiarket conditions, investor interest an
our current leverage ratios, and we can providassurance of the success or costs of any suclattaorss.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As discussed in Note 9. Investments in Unconsdadidoint Ventures in the Notes to Consolidated riéiiz Statements in this report,
have investments in unconsolidated joint ventuhed tonduct land acquisition, land development @ndther homebuilding activities
various markets where our homebuilding operatiosadacated.

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnerkemaitial and/or ongoing capital contributionsttese unconsolidated joint ventu
typically on a pro rata basis, equal to our respecéquity interests. The obligations to make dpiontributions are governed by e
unconsolidated joint venture’s respective operatiggeement and related governing documents. Weshks@ in the profits and losses of tt
unconsolidated joint ventures generally in accocdanith our respective equity interesBur unconsolidated joint ventures had total asst
$406.0 million at November 30, 2013 and $389.8 iamllat November 30, 2012. Our investments in unconatddl joint ventures total
$130.2 million at November 30, 2013 and $123.7iarllat November 30, 2012.

Our unconsolidated joint ventures finance land iandntory investments for a project through a wgrf arrangements, and certain of
unconsolidated joint ventures have obtained loams thirdparty lenders that are secured by the underlyinggnty and related project ass
However, none of our unconsolidated joint venturad outstanding debt at November 30, 2013 or 2012.

As further discussed in Note 9. Investments in Uisatidated Joint Ventures in the Notes to Const#idainancial Statements in t
report, our investments in unconsolidated jointtuezs as of November 30, 2013 and 2012 includedmastment of $75.9 million an®i71.(
million , respectively, in Inspirada Builders, LLC, an unsolidated joint venture that was formed in 201Tamnection with the consens
plan of reorganization for the South Edge jointtuea, and in which a subsidiary that is 100% owbgdis is a member. As part of the term
the reorganization plan for South Edge, land pnaslip owned by the joint venture, including our gh#éinat consists of approximately ¢
developable acres, was acquired by Inspirada Bwsildd.C in November 2011. We anticipate that wel wdquire our share of the land fr
Inspirada Builders, LLC through a future distritmuti

Our investments in joint ventures may create aalbdeiinterest in a variable interest entity (“VIEepending on the contractual term
the arrangement. We analyze our joint venturec@o@ance with Accounting Standards CodificatiopitdNo. 810, “Consolidation” ASC
810"), to determine whether they are VIEs andopjfwhether we are the primary beneficiary. None of
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our joint ventures at November 30, 2013 and 20&2 determined under the provisions of ASC 816&d/IEs. All of our joint ventures we
unconsolidated and accounted for under the equethoa because we did not have a controlling firenoterest.

As discussed in Note 8. Variable Interest Entitiethe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsis report, in the ordinary course
our business, we enter into land option contraetsather similar contracts to acquire rights tadldor the construction of homed/e analyz
each of our land option contracts and other sintitartracts under the provisions of ASC 810 to aeitee whether the land seller is a VIE ¢
if so, whether we are the primary beneficiary. Aligh we do not have legal title to the underlyiagd, ASC 810 requires us to consolide
VIE if we are determined to be the primary benefigi In determining whether we are the primary fiersey, we consider, among ot!
things, whether we have the power to direct thévities of the VIE that most significantly impadtg VIE's economic performance. Si
activities would include, among other things, deti@ing or limiting the scope or purpose of the VHg|ling or transferring property ownec
controlled by the VIE, or arranging financing foetVIE. As a result of our analyses, we determihetl as of November 30, 2013 and 201.
were not the primary beneficiary of any VIEs frorhieh we have acquired rights to land under laniboptontracts and other similar contra

The following table presents a summary of our dés in land option contracts and other similarti@ats (in thousands):

November 30, 2013 November 30, 2012
Cash Aggregate Cash Aggregate
Deposits Purchase Price Deposits Purchase Price
Unconsolidated VIEs $ 11,060 $ 616,000 $ 8,46: $ 327,19t
Other land option contracts and other similar cacts 30,50z 535,49¢ 17,21¢ 298,13¢
$ 4156 $ 1,151,491 $ 25,68: $ 625,33!

In addition to the cash deposits presented in db&etabove, our exposure to loss related to out &gtion contracts and other sim
contracts with third parties and unconsolidatedtiestconsisted of pre-acquisition costs of $31ilion at November 30, 2013 ar5.¢
million at November 30, 2012. These @eqguisition costs and cash deposits were includédvientories on our consolidated balance st
We also had outstanding letters of credit of $.1lioni at November 30, 2013 and $.5 milliam November 30, 2012 in lieu of cash depi
under certain land option contracts and other sintibntracts.

We also evaluate our land option contracts andratingilar contracts for financing arrangementsdnadance wittAccounting Standar:
Coadification Topic No. 470, “Debt” (“ASC 470"and, as a result of our evaluations, increasedniovies, with a corresponding increas
accrued expenses and other liabilities, in our clivsted balance sheets by $8.9 million at Noven®ler2013 and $4.1 millioral
November 30, 201.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
The following table presents our future cash rezgragnts under contractual obligations as of Nover8BeR013 (in millions):

Payments due by Period

Total 2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 Thereafter
Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt $ 2,150 % 88 $ 2047 % 561.: $ 1,375
Interest 885.¢ 147.c 276.3 230.2 231.¢
Inventory-related obligations (a) 29.€ 9.5 3.€ 3.2 13.2
Operating lease obligations 18.¢ 7.2 8.t 2.7 4
Total (b) $ 3,084.¢ % 172.¢ % 493.1 $ 797.¢ % 1,621.

(a) Represents liabilities for fixed or determiltabmounts associated with tax increment finaneintities (“TIFE”) and liabilities related -
inventory not owned. As homes are delivered, tHeyation to pay the remaining TIFE assessmentscéastsal with each lot is transfer
to the homebuyer. As such, these obligations velphid by us only to the extent we do not deliter applicable homes before the «
matures.

(b) Total contractual obligations exclude our accrwaldncertain tax positions recorded for financegbarting purposes as of November
2013 because we are unable to make a reasonabietesf cash settlements with the respective tpdnthorities for all perio
presented. We anticipate these potential caskeswtit requirements for 2014 to range from $.1 amiltio $.3 million.
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We are often required to provide to various municifedi and other government agencies performancesband/or letters of credit
secure the completion of our projects and/or inpsupof obligations to build community improvemestsch as roads, sewers, water sys
and other utilities, and to support similar devet@nt activities by certain of our unconsolidateidtj@enturesAt November 30, 2013, we h
$410.8 million of performance bonds and $41.5 wnilliof letters of credit outstanding. At November, 2012, we had $286.1 millioof
performance bonds and $41.9 million of lettersredd outstandinglf any such performance bonds or letters of cradbtcalled, we would |
obligated to reimburse the issuer of the perforraabond or letter of credit. We do not believe thamaterial amount of any currer
outstanding performance bonds or letters of ceilitbe called. Performance bonds do not have dtatgiration dates. Rather, we are rele
from the performance bonds as the underlying perdoice is completed. The expiration dates of sotter$eof credit issued in connection v
community improvements coincide with the expecteahgletion dates of the related projects or oblayai Most letters of credit, however,
issued with an initial term of one year and aradglly extended on a year-to-year basis until #lated performance obligations are completec

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Discussed below are accounting policies that wéebelare critical because of the significance & #ttivity to which they relate
because they require the use of significant juddrimetheir application.

Homebuilding Revenue Recognitigks discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Agting Policies in the Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements in this report, revenues fhmusing and other real estate sales are recogimzactordance with Accounting Stand:
Cadification Topic No. 360, “Property, Plant anduzment” (“ASC 360”),when sales are closed and title passes to the hBgkas are clos
when all of the following conditions are met: aese consummated, a sufficient down payment isivedethe earnings process is complete
the collection of any remaining receivables is osably assuredConcurrent with the recognition of revenues in camsolidated statements
operations, sales incentives in the form of prizecessions on the selling price of a home are decbas a reduction of revenues, while the
of incentives in the form of a free product or $eevto homebuyers, including option upgrades angict cost allowances used to cov
portion of the fees and costs charged to a homepagereflected as construction and land costs.

Inventories and Cost of Saless discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Aoging Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Fital
Statements in this report,dusing and land inventories are stated at cosgssrthe carrying value is determined not to beveedle, in whic
case the affected inventories are written dowratovialue in accordance with ASC 3@®air value is determined based on estimated futer
cash flows discounted for inherent risks associatéti the real estate assets, or other valuatichrigues. Due to uncertainties in
estimation process and other factors beyond outraorit is possible that actual results could @iffrom those estimated. Our invento
typically do not consist of completed unsold hontéswever, cancellations or strategic consideratioay result in our having some invent
of unsold completed or partially completed homes.

Our inventories include land we are holding forufiet development, which is comprised of lanbdere development activity has b
suspended or has not yet begun, but is expectaztdor in the future. These assets held for futureelbpment are located in varit
submarkets where conditions do not presently supgpather investment or development, or are subjeca building permit moratorium
regulatory restrictions, or are portions of lartgerd parcels that we plan to build out over sevgears and/or that have not yet been ent
We may also suspend development activity if wedveliit will result in greater returns and/or maxmithe economic performance ¢
community by delaying improvements for a periodtiofe to allow earlier phases of a long-term, mphase community or a neighbor
community to generate sales momentum or for mariadlitions to improveWe resume development activity when we believeimwestmer
in this inventory will be optimized or, in some tasces, to accelerate sales pace and/or our retuimvestment, and we have activated a
previously held for future development in certaimrkets as part of our strategic growth initiativegerest and real estate taxes are
capitalized on land held for future developmeXd. discussed in Note 6. Inventories in the Note€dmsolidated Financial Statements in
report, for those communities for which developmadtivity has been suspended, applicable interedtraal estate taxes are expense
incurred.

We rely on certain estimates to determine our cansbn and land costs and resulting housing gpséit margins associated w
revenues recognized. Construction and land costes@anprised of direct and allocated costs, inclydistimated future costs for warranties
amenities. Land acquisition, land development ahérocommon costs are generally allocated on diveléair value basis to homes withil
community or land parcel. Land acquisition and ldesielopment costs include related interest anidestate taxes.

In determining a portion of the construction anda&osts recognized for each period, we rely ofeptdudgets that are based on a va
of assumptions, including future construction schesl and costs to be incurred. It is possible #uatial results could differ from budge
amounts for various reasons, including construatielays, labor or materials shortages, increases in
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costs that have not yet been committed, changegoirernmental requirements, unforeseen environmdmahrd discoveries or otl
unanticipated issues encountered during construetim other factors beyond our control. While tbtial results for a particular construct
project are accurately reported over time, variartoetween the budgeted and actual costs of a progedd result in the understatemen
overstatement of construction and land costs amdebailding gross profits in a particular reportipgriod. To reduce the potential for s
distortion, we have set forth procedures that ctilely comprise a “critical accounting policyThese procedures, which we have applied
consistent basis, include assessing, updating erising project budgets on a monthly basis, obtgiriommitments from subcontractors
vendors for future costs to be incurred, reviewtimgy adequacy of warranty accruals and historicatamdly claims experience, and utilizing
most current information available to estimate ¢amdion and land costs to be charged to expenagaites to the budgeted costs afte
estimate has been charged to expense that aredrétaproject costs are generally allocated onadive fair value basis to the remaining ho
to be delivered within the community or land payedghile such variances related to direct constauctiosts are generally expensed as inct
The variances between budgeted and actual cosesHtistorically not been material to our consolidafi@ancial statements. We believe
our policies provide for reasonably dependablevestés to be used in the calculation and reportirapostruction and land costs.

Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Ad@mmentsAs discussed in Note 7. Inventory Impairments aadd_Option Contra
Abandonments in the Notes to Consolidated Finar8iatements in this report,a&h community or land parcel in our owned inventis
assessed to determine if indicators of potentigdaimment exist. Impairment indicators are assessg@rately for each community or |i
parcel on a quarterly basis and include, but atdimited to the following: significant decreasasriet orders, average selling prices, volun
homes delivered, gross profit margins on homeweladd or projected gross profit margins on homdsaitklog or future deliveries; significi
increases in budgeted land development and horstroction costs or cancellation rates; or projedtades on expected future land sale
indicators of potential impairment exist for a commity or land parcel, the identified asset is eatdd for recoverability in accordance v
ASC 360.

The following table presents information regardingentory impairment and land option contract almmment charges included
construction and land costs in our consolidatetkstants of operations (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Inventory impairments:

Number of communities or land parcels evaluateddooverability (a) 67 13t 13¢

Number of communities or land parcels impaired (b) 1 14 12

Pre-impairment carrying value of communities odaarcels impaired $ 153¢ % 67,95¢ $ 56,75:

Inventory impairment charges (b) (397 (28,107 (22,730)

Post-impairment fair value $ 1,147 % 39,85. $ 34,02:
Land option contract abandonment charges:

Number of lots abandoned 29t 44¢€ 83C

Land option contract abandonment charges $ 3,19C $ 42¢ $ 3,061

(a) As impairment indicators are assessed on a quathasis, some of the communities or land parceddueted during the years en
November 30, 201, 2012 and 2011 were evaluated in more than ondeglyaperiod.

(b) The higher level of inventory impairment chesgve recorded during 2012 and 205k compared to 2013, reflected challenging ecie
and housing market conditions in certain of ouvedmarkets in those years. In addition, the inmgnimpairment charges in 2012 w
partly due to changes to our operational or selfimgtegy for certain communities in an effort twelerate sales pace and/or our retul
investment. The inventory impairment charges in128tko included an $18.1 million adjustment toftie value of real estate collatera
our Southwest homebuilding reporting segment thatteok back on a note receivable. In some casediave recognized impairme
charges for particular communities or land pargelsultiple years.

When an indicator of potential impairment is idéat for a community or land parcel, we test theea$or recoverability by comparing -
carrying value of the asset to the undiscountedréunet cash flows expected to be generated bygsbket. The undiscounted future net
flows are impacted by therurrent conditions and trends in the market in Whie asset is located as well as factors knowus tat the time tt
cash flows are calculated. With the undiscountedréunet cash flows, we also consider recent tramasir orders, backlog, cancellation r:
and volume of homes delivered, as well as our extieas related
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to the following: product offerings; market sup@pd demand, including estimated average sellingeprand related price appreciation;
land development, home construction and overheat$ ¢o be incurred and related cost inflatidfith respect to the year ended Novembe
2013, these expectations reflected our experienge hotwithstanding fluctuations in our compamigle net orders, backlog levels, hoi
delivered and housing gross profit margin, on aye@ryear basis, market conditions for each of our asigeinventory where impairme
indicators were identified have been generallylstab improved, with no significant deterioratiatentified as to revenue and cost drivers
would prevent or otherwise impact recoverabilitasBd on this experience, and taking into accownsitins of stability and improvemen
many markets for new home sales, our inventorysassents as of November 30, 2013 considered an texpeteady overall sales pace
average selling price performance for 2014 relaiviéhe pace and performance in recent quanrféhile in the fourth quarter of 2013, our W
Coast homebuilding reporting segment reported pearyear decreases in homes delivered, net orders radidgebacklog, these decree
were largely due to our selling through older comities and shifting our investment strategy to fagoastal California submarkets, i
delays in opening new communities, and were nd¢ct¥e of a decline in market conditions, partanly as the average selling price of ho
delivered in the segment increased by 29% in tH&8 26urth quarter and the housing gross profit nmaigproved to 22.2% from 14.3%.

Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintidsri@casting future results, our inventory assesssnanthe time they are made take
consideration whether a community or land parcatis/e, meaning whether it is open for sales anaiidergoing development, or whether
being held for future development. Due to the skemh nature of active communities and land paresl€ompared to land held for fut
development, our inventory assessments generallynees the continuation of thexxrent market conditions, subject to identifyimgormatior
suggesting significant sustained changes in sunbittons. These assessments, at the time maderaljgramticipate net orders, average se
prices, volume of homes delivered and costs fall d&velopment and home construction to continua aear thereurrent levels through t
particular asset’'s estimated remaining life. Ineeptassessments for our land held for future deareknt consider theodrrent marke
conditions as well as subjective forecasts regagrttie timing and costs of land development and hoomstruction and related cost inflati
the product(s) to be offered; and the net ordestyme of homes delivered, and selling prices anated price appreciation of the offe
product(s) when an associated community is antietbéo open for sales. We evaluate various fattodevelop these forecasts, including
availability of and demand for homes and finishets lwithin the relevant marketplace; historicalfrent and expected future sales trend
the marketplace; and thigghrty data, if available. These various estimatesds, expectations and assumptions used in damlr agnventon
assessments are specific to each community orpantel based on what we believe are reasonableafstis for performance and may \
among communities or land parcels and may vary tiwer.

We record an inventory impairment charge when #ireying value of a real estate asset is greater tia undiscounted future net c
flows the asset is expected to generate. Thesestgte assets are written down to fair value, wiggrimarily based on the estimated fu
net cash flows discounted for inherent risk assediavith each such ass#iputs used in our calculation of estimated distedriuture net ca:
flows are specific to each affected community ardlgparcel and are based on our expectations fdr sach asset as of the applici
measurement date, including, among others, expecsatelated to average selling prices and voluikeomes deliveredThe discount ratt
used in our estimated discounted cash flows rafrgea 17% to 20% during 2013, 2012 and 20The discount rates we used were impe
by the following at the time the calculation wasd®aathe riskfree rate of return; expected risk premium basedsiimated land developme
home construction and delivery timelines; marksk firom potential future price erosion; cost unaiaty due to land development or hc
construction cost increases; and other risks spdoithe asset or conditions in the market in Whlwe asset is located.

As of November 30, 2013the aggregate carrying value of our inventoryt theed been impacted by inventory impairment chakgas
$293.1 million , representing 42 communities andoss other land parcels. As of November 30, 2012 aggregate carrying value of
inventory that had been impacted by inventory impaint charges was $307.2 million , representingd®munities and various other
parcels.

Our inventory controlled under land option contsaahd other similar contracts is assessed to deterwhether it continues to meet
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned lawélpean a quarterly basis and are affe
by the following factors relative to the marketvitich the asset is located, among others: curmeaoa anticipated net orders, average se
prices and volume of homes delivered; estimated thevelopment and home construction costs; aneqtesj profitability on expected futt
housing or land sales. When a decision is madéonatercise certain land option contracts and aghmilar contracts due to market conditi
and/or changes in our marketing strategy, we vaifehe related inventory costs, including non-refable deposits and unrecoverable pri
acquisition costs.

The estimated remaining life of each communityaord parcel in our inventory depends on variousofactsuch as the total number of
remaining; the expected timeline to acquire andtlerand and develop lots to build homes; the cipéted future net order and cancella
rates; and the expected timeline to build and deltvomes sold. While it is difficult to determinepaecise timeframe for any partict
inventory asset, we estimate our inventory asgetsiaining operating lives under current and exmgeétéure market conditions to rar
generally from one year to in excess of 10 yeaasel on current market conditions
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and expected delivery timelines, we expect to zealon an overall basis, the majority of our curiementory balance withifive years. Th
following table presents our inventory balance a@vember 30, 2013, based on our current estimateeframe of delivery for the last ho
within an applicable community or land parcel (ifllions):

Greater than
0-2 years 3-5years 6-10 years 10 years Total

Inventories as of November 30, 2013 $ 1,109.. $ 621.1 $ 409.7 $ 158.¢ $ 2,298.¢

The inventory balance in the 6 to 10 years categsrpf November 30, 2013 was located throughoutfatlur homebuilding reportit
segments, though mostly in our West Coast and $asthomebuilding reporting segments. The inverbatgnce in the greater than 10 y
category as of November 30, 2013 was located inVdeist Coast, Southwest, and Southeast homebuitdipgrting segments. The invent
balances in the 6 to 10 years and greater thareafsycategories, which collectively represented 25%ur total inventory at November !
2013, were primarily comprised of land held foruigt development.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied ineténation process with respect to inventory impaints, land option contré
abandonments, the remaining operating lives ofimuentory assets and the realization of our inventmlances, particularly as to invent
held for future development, it is possible thatatresults could differ substantially from theestimated.

We believe that the carrying value of our inventbajance as of November 30, 2013 is recoverable.cOnsiderations in making tl
determination include the factors and trends ine@fed into our impairment analyses, and as aggpécshe prevailing regulatory environme
competition from other homebuilders, inventory llevend sales activity of resale homes, and thd le@anomic conditions where an assi
located. In addition, we consider the financial amperational status and expectations of our invergcas well as unique attributes of €
community or land parcel that could be viewed akicators for potential future impairments. Howeviérgonditions in the overall housi
market or in specific markets worsen in the futheyond our current expectations, if future changesur marketing strategy significan
affect any key assumptions used in our projectafrfsiture cash flows, or if there are material agsin any of the other items we considt
assessing recoverability, we may recognize charg@sure periods for inventory impairments or lamgtion contract abandonments, or b
related to our current inventory assets. Any surges could be material to our consolidated firrstatements.

Fair Value Measurementés discussed in Note 14. Fair Value DisclosurethéNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementsigrepori
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 820aifFValue Measurements and Disclosures” (“ASC 82@fpvides a framework fi
measuring the fair value of assets and liabilitieder GAAP, and establishes a fair value hieratbhhyrequires an entity to maximize the us
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobséevimputs when measuring fair valuehe fair value hierarchy can be summarize
follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeastarkets for identical assets or liabilit

Level 2 Fair value determined using significant observambeits, such as quoted prices for similar asseligoifities or quoted price
for identical or similar assets or liabilities irankets that are not active, inputs other than guptees that are observable
the asset or liability, or inputs that are deriyethcipally from or corroborated by observable nedrlata, by correlation
other means.

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsemaiblputs, such as pricing models, discounted céshsf or simila
techniques.

Fair value measurements are used for inventories monrecurring basis when events and circumstandasate the carrying value is |
recoverable. The fair values for lofiged assets held and used that were determineg Lsvel 3 inputs were primarily based on the eatat
future net cash flows discounted for inherent askociated with each asset described in Note 7. Inventory Impairments aadd_Optiol
Contract Abandonments in the Notes to Consolid&iedncial Statements in this repofthe discount rates we used were impacted b
following at the time the calculation was made: tis&-free rate of return; expected risk premium baseésimmated land development, hc
construction and delivery timelines; market risknfr potential future price erosion; cost uncertaidtye to land development or ha
construction cost increases; and other risks dpetcifthe asset or conditions in the market in Whice asset is located@hese factors we
specific to each affected community or land pamell may have varied among communities or land [gr&e to uncertainties in t
estimation process, it is possible that actualltesould differ from those estimated.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eghivalents, restricted cash, senior notes, the5¥3Convertible Senior Notes due 2(
and mortgages and land contracts due to land seliet other loans. Fair value measurements ofdiabimstruments are determined by var|
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, we use quoted market piiicesctive markets to determine 1
value.
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Warranty CostsAs discussed in Note 15. Commitments and Contirigerioc the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statasignthis repor
we provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&hke specific terms and conditions of our limitedrraaty program vary depending upon
markets in which we do busine®¥e estimate the costs that may be incurred undgr lgaited warranty and record a liability in thenaunt o
such costs at the time the revenue associatedthdtlsale of each home is recogniz€uir expense associated with the issuance of
warranties totaled $14.3 million in 2013, $8.4 ioitl in 2012 and $4.9 million in 2011. The year-oyear increase in the expense assoc
with warranties issued in 2013 and 2012 reflectegghdr housing revenues in each of those years. tidddily, in 2013, we increased -
warranty accrual rate per home based on histazlaahs experience.

Our primary assumption in estimating the amountsaa@ue for warranty costs is that historical ckeiexperience is a strong indicato
future claims experience. Factors that affect oarranty liability include the number of homes defied, historical and anticipated rate
warranty claims, and cost per claim. We periodjcalssess the adequacy of our accrued warrantylitfabiwhich is included in accru
expenses and other liabilities in our consoliddiathnce sheets, and adjust the amount as necdssag on our assessmedur assessme
includes the review of our actual warranty costauined to identify trends and changes in our wayrafaims experience, and considers
home construction quality and customer servicégitives and outside events.

In assessing our overall warranty liability at paging date, we evaluate the costs for warraetgted items on a combined basis for &
our previously delivered homes that are under iitdd warranty program. This includes any such ésim central and southwest Florida
have been identified as having water intrusielated issues and similarly affected homes inreéaind southwest Florida that we believe
likely to be identified in the future as discussedNote 15. Commitments and Contingencies in thé&eBlto Consolidated Financial Statem
in this report. In 2013, based on our assessmeatiobverall warranty liability, we recorded adjmsints to increase our warranty liability
$32.0million with a corresponding charge to constructaom land costs in our consolidated statementpefations. The adjustments reflec
the remaining estimated repair costs associatddhaimes in central and southwest Florida that heees identified as having water intrusion
related issues and the estimated repair costsiag=aevith similarly affected homes in central amithwest Florida that we believe are lil
to be identified in the future, net of estimatedhable recoveries of such repair costs and otljasidents.

Depending on the number of additional affected lomecentral and southwest Florida that are idextibs having water intrusicelatec
issues, and the actual costs we incur in futuregstto repair identified affected homes, our eataof costs to repair similarly affected ho
in central and southwest Florida that we beliewelikely be identified in the future, and/or actoalestimated costs to repair homes affecte
other issues, including costs to provide affectechéowners with temporary housing, we may reviseattm@unt of our estimated liabili
which could result in an increase or decrease fowarall warranty liability. Based on our investigpn of these water intrusicelated issue
we believe that our warranty liability is adequttdecover the estimated probable total repair costshese affected homes, similarly affe:
homes that we believe are likely to be identifiadthie future and on homes affected by other issalflspugh we believe it is reasone
possible that our loss in this matter could exabedamount accrued as of November 30, 2013 by &g toillion.

In 2012 and 2011, notwithstanding our actual oinegted remaining repair cost related to the allggeéfective drywall material ai
water intrusionrelated issues, as discussed in Note 15. Commitneerd Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidatedrfgial Statements
this report, we had experienced favorable trendsuinactual warranty costs incurred for the presiseveral years with respect to cle
relating to other warrantyelated items, reflecting, among other things, augoing focus on construction quality and custoseswice. Base
on our assessments of these and other relevantdam a combined basis, we determined that ouraiwearranty liability at the end of ea
year was sufficient to cover our overall warranbligations on previously delivered homes that ardew our limited warranty program. \
recorded favorable warranty adjustments of $11IBamiduring 2012 and $7.4 millioduring 2011 as reductions to construction and zost:
in our consolidated statements of operations irsehperiods. Additionally, based on our assessmintooverall warranty liability as
November 30, 2012 on a combined basis for all afpyaviously delivered homes that were under auitéid warranty, including the hon
identified as affected or potentially affected Begedly defective drywall material and the incre@dsiumber of homes potentially affectec
water intrusion-related issues, we recorded ansaujgnt to increase our overall warranty liabiligy $2.6 millionin the fourth quarter of 20:
with a corresponding charge to construction and @osts in our consolidated statements of opergtion

While we believe the warranty liability currentlgflected in our consolidated balance sheets todeguate, unanticipated change
developments in the legal environment, local waatled or environmental conditions, quality of evédls or methods used in the construc
of homes or customer service practices and thdtsestiour investigation of and the repair effortdated to homes in central and south
Florida affected by water intrusiaedated issues could have a significant impact wnaztual warranty costs in the future and suchuants
could differ from our current estimateés.10% change in the historical warranty rates usegstimate our warranty accrual would not resul
material change in our accrual.

Self-InsuranceAs discussed in Note 15. Commitments and Contirigerin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateésenthis repor
w e maintain, and require the majority of our sulicactors to maintain, general liability insurarfsesluding
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construction defect and bodily injury coverage) amatkers’ compensation insurance. These insurance policmegirus against a portion
our risk of loss from claims related to our homdding activities, subject to certain séffsured retentions, deductibles and other cowt
limits. We selfinsure a portion of our overall risk through the w§ a captive insurance subsidiary. We also mairtertain other insuran
policies. In Arizona, California, Colorado and Ndeaa our subcontractors’ general liability insurampeanarily takes the form of a wrags
policy, where eligible subcontractors are enrolednsureds on each project. Enrolled subcontmactmtribute toward the cost of the insur:
and agree to pay a contractual amount in the fututlee event of a claim related to their work.

We record expenses and liabilities based on thmatgd costs required to cover our dalured retention and deductible amounts u
our insurance policies, and the estimated cospotential claims and claim adjustment expensesatefbove our coverage limits or that
not covered by our insurance policies. These estidheosts are based on an analysis of our histai@ians and industry data, and include
estimate of construction defect claims incurredrimityet reported. Our estimated liabilities foclsutems were $92.2 million &tovember 3(
2013 and $93.3 million at November 30, 20Ithese amounts are included in accrued expensksther liabilities in our consolidated bala
sheets. Our expenses associated with self-insutataded $8.2 million in 2013, $8.7 million in 2DAnd $7.2 million in 2011 These expens
were largely offset by contributions from subcooteas participating in the wrap-up policy.

We engage a thirgarty actuary that uses our historical claim angease data, as well as industry data, to estimatéabilities related t
unpaid claims, claim adjustment expenses, thady recoveries and incurred but not yet repodiaims for the risks that we are assun
under our self-insuranc&hese estimates are subject to uncertainty duevéiety of factors, the most significant being tbeg period of tim
between the delivery of a home to a homebuyer amehva structural warranty or construction defeainelis made, and the ultimate resolu
of the construction defect claim. Though state k&tipns vary, construction defect claims are regmbi@nd resolved over a prolonged peric
time, which can extend for 10 years or longer. Assult, the majority of the estimated liabilityates to incurred but not yet reported cla
Because the majority of our estimated liabilitielate to incurred but not yet reported claims, stiifients related to individual existing cla
generally do not significantly impact the overaltimated liability. Adjustments to our liabilitigglated to homes delivered in prior years
recorded in the period in which a change in ounesgte occurs.

The projection of losses related to these liabgitiequires actuarial assumptions that are sutgjeetriability due to uncertainties regard
construction defect claims relative to our markatsl the types of product we build, insurance inguptactices and legal or regulat
interpretations, among other factors. Key assumptiosed in these estimates include claim frequsnesieverities and settlement patte
which can occur over an extended period of timeddition, changes in the frequency and sevefitgported claims and the estimates to ¢
claims can impact the trends and assumptions us#tkiactuarial analysis, which could be matepabir consolidated financial stateme
Due to the degree of judgment required and thenpiatefor variability in these underlying assumptsp our actual future costs could differ fi
those estimated Based on the actuarial analysis performed, weeelit is reasonably possible that our lossegeadlto construction defe
claims as of November 30, 2013 could range from $#0on to $105 million. While this range represgrour best estimate of our ultim
liability, there can be no assurance that the dctugts will fall within this range and they coldd higher.

Stock-Based Compensatioks discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Agding Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Firial
Statements in this report, w e measure and recegumpensation expense associated with our graguify-based awards in accordance \
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 718,of@pensation—Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718Which requires that compan
measure and recognize compensation expense at amnamqual to the fair value of sharased payments granted under compens
arrangements over the vesting peridd. discussed in Note 19. Employee Benefit and S®lelns in the Notes to Consolidated Final
Statements in this report, we have provided conmgters benefits to certain of our employees in therf of stock options, restricted stc
performance-based restricted stock units (eachS"R phantom shares and stock appreciation rigf#8Rs"). Determining the fair value
sharebased awards requires judgment to identify the gppate valuation model and develop the assumptiockiding the expected term
the stock options or SARs, expected stpdke volatility and dividend yield, to be used time calculation. Judgment is also require
estimating the percentage of share-based awartarth@xpected to ved/e estimate the fair value of stock options and SAranted usir
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with assuonmg based primarily on historical dafBhe expected volatility factor was based ¢
combination of the historical volatility of our canon stock and the implied volatility of publiclyatted options on our common stock. If ac
results differ significantly from these estimatatpckbased compensation expense could be higher and dawaterial impact on o
consolidated financial statements.

Income TaxesAs discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Asttong Policies in the Notes to Consolidated FinanStatements
this report, we account for income taxes in acaocdawith ASC 740The provision for, or benefit from, income taxesaculated using tl
asset and liability method, under which deferredasasets and liabilities are recorded based onlifference between the financial staten
and tax basis of assets and liabilities using echtzx rates in effect for the year in which thiéedlences are expected to reverse. Deferre
assets are evaluated on a quarterly basis to deterhadjustments
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to the valuation allowance are required. In accordamitle ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation alawahould be established base
the consideration of all available evidence usirignare likely than not’standard with respect to whether deferred tax asgiitbe realizec
The ultimate realization of deferred tax assetseddp primarily on the generation of future taxabt®mme. The value of our deferred tax as
will depend on applicable income tax ratésdgment is required in determining the futuredamsequences of events that have been recos
in our consolidated financial statements and/or teturns. Differences between anticipated and &obugécomes of these future -
consequences could have a material impact on ewwotidated financial statements.

As discussed in Note 12. Income Taxes in the Nimé&3onsolidated Financial Statements in this repog recognize accrued interest
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsuinomnsolidated financial statements as a compouoietite provision for income taxe®ut
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, combinedhnvaccrued interest and penalties, is reflected asmponent of accrued expenses and
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheetsgduent is required in evaluating uncertain tax pas#t. We evaluate our uncertain tax posit
quarterly based on various factors, including cleanig facts or circumstances, tax laws or the statwaudits by tax authorities. Changes ir
recognition or measurement of uncertain tax passtioould have a material impact on our consolidéitezhcial statements in the perioc
which we make the change.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardar8d“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@11-05, Presentation
Comprehensive Income” (“ASU 2011-05"). The amendtaém ASU 2011-05 allovan entity the option to present the total of corhpresive
income, the components of net income, and the coeme of other comprehensive income either in glsitontinuous statement
comprehensive income or in two separate but cotisecstatements. In both instances, an entity gsiired to present each component of
income along with total net income, each compoémther comprehensive income along with a totaldiner comprehensive income, ar
total amount for comprehensive income. ASU 205leliminates the option to present the componehtgéher comprehensive income as
of the statement of changes in stockholders’ eqlibhe amendments in ASU 2005 do not change the items that must be reportedhia
comprehensive income or when an item of other celmarsive income must be reclassified to net incdtosvever, in December 2011,
FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No.2011‘T®ferral of the Effective Date for Amendments toe tfPresentation
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated OtBemprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Uphat 2011-05" (“ASU 2011-127
which deferred the guidance on whether to requirities to present reclassification adjustments afuaccumulated other comprehen:
income by component in both the statement wher@oemme is presented and the statement where otingprehensive income is presentec
both interim and annual financial statements. ABW1212 reinstated the requirements for the presentatioaclassifications that were in pl:
prior to the issuance of ASU 2011-05 and did natngfe the effective date for ASU 2011-05. For publitities, the amendments in ASU 2011
05 and ASU 20112 are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those years, beginning after December2041, and should
applied retrospectively. Our adoption of this guida, which is related to disclosure only, as ofrigaly 28, 2013 did not have a mate
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Stedsl&/pdate No. 2013-02Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumud
Other Comprehensive Income” (“ASU 2013-02iyhich requires an entity to provide information abadhe amounts reclassified out
accumulated other comprehensive income by compomeraddition, ASU 20132 requires an entity to present, either on the faicthe
income statement or in the notes to financial stat@s, significant amounts reclassified out of anglated other comprehensive income by
respective line items of net income but only if Hraount reclassified is required under GAAP to ddassified to net income in its entiret
the same reporting period. For other amounts, dityaa required to crosseference to other disclosures required under GA#ER provid
additional detail about those amounts. The amenthmianrASU 201332 do not change the current requirements for tgmpnet income ¢
other comprehensive income in the financial statémd-or public entities, the amendments in ASU302 are effective prospectively
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@# adoption of this guidance, which is relatedlisclosure only, as of May 31, 2013
not have a material impact on our consolidatedniire statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standafddate No. 2013-11,Ificome Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Urgrize(
Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforwardsimilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforwaridts (a consensus of the FA
Emerging Issues Task Force)” (*ASU 2013-1Mhich states that an unrecognized tax benefit, porgion of an unrecognized tax ben
should be presented in the financial statemengsraguction to a deferred tax asset for a net tipgréoss carryforward, a similar tax loss,
tax credit carryforward, except as follows. To theent a net operating loss carryforward, a simdarloss, or a tax credit carryforward is
available at the reporting date under the tax l&awhe applicable jurisdiction to settle any additb income taxes that would result from
disallowance of a tax position or that the tax tafvihe applicable jurisdiction does not require éiméity to use, and the entity does not inter
use, the deferred tax asset for such purpose niteezagnized tax benefit should be presented irfitlamcial statements as a liability and she
not be combined with deferred tax assets. ASU 2l 8pplies to all entities that have unrecognizeddenefits when a net operating loss
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carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward exists at the reporting date. The amemts in ASU 2013-1 are effective for fisc
years, and interim periods within those years, tidgg after December 15, 2013. Early adoption isnitted. The amendments should
applied prospectively to all unrecognized tax b#sdhat exist at the effective date. Retrospectipplication is permitted. We believe
adoption of this guidance will not have a materigbact on our consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

As we enter 2014, we expect most housing marketemtinue to advance from the generally improvedda@ons of 2013, although it
likely to be at a more measured pace than in tisé fiialf of 2013. Inventories of both new and angthomes available for sale are low
there is steady demand for housing. We also expeqgpositive trends underpinning the present hagustcovery, including population grow
job growth, rising home equity levels, and housdtormation growth above the rate of new home gosbn, to remain intact for 2014.
addition, despite the increase in mortgage loaerést rates and home selling prices that slowesk sattivity in the second half of 20
housing affordability remains favorable by histatistandards, and we believe demand for homesrevitiain healthy in 2014 as consun
accept higher home price levels. In our view, tbeding recovery that began taking shape in 20K2illsat an early stage of a longemrm
sustainable upward cycle, with its progress largllpendent on economic growth. As a result, andrgrecent government reports of str
improvement in employment and GDP growth, we belithere is significant opportunity for us to budd the momentum and fujlear ne
income we generated in 2013 to profitably expandbusiness in 2014.

Over the past few years, we have worked diligettlystrategically position our homebuilding actiggti and inventory investments
higherperforming, desirable locations in land constraigealwth markets, to refine our products to meetscomer preferences and to exe
on related profitability and growth strategies. Steoordinated actions are reshaping our geograptimarket and product mix and h
resulted in an expansion of our customer base ehnig\ae a better balance of first-time and mopebuyers within that base. Moreover, we
attracting buyers with higher household income lea®d stronger credit profiles to our Built to @rdhomes, and they are choosing to purc
larger homes at higher price points and to spendran design options and features at our KB Honueli8$. These trends are clearest ir
West Coast homebuilding reporting segment, wherara@stment focus toward coastal California sulkets, which feature generally hig
selling prices and demand for homes as comparétktstate’s inland submarkets, drove significanteéases in the segmentiverage sellir
price and housing gross profit margin in each quasf 2013, both sequentially and on a year-gaear basis. With the performance
experienced in 2013 and the pipeline of new comtgupenings we currently have in place for 2014,expect our business in this segm
as well as in our other three homebuilding repgrtsegments, to continue to grow. Further, our @edite strategic shift within our c«
homebuyer profile across our operations producdtl bup- and bottonline improvements throughout 2013, and generatediregs in th
second half of the year.

We believe our results for 2013 demonstrate thgness we have made on our profitability and revegnasvth priorities. We achiew:
measurable improvement in our financial and opegaperformance on a year-owsgar basis, with expansion in revenues, homesetelily ne
order value and housing gross profit margin, arrédaction in our selling, general and administ@texpenses as a percentage of hoi
revenues. Most significantly, we reported fydlar net income in 2013 for the first time sinc®@0With the backlog we have in place a
November 30, 2013, we believe the continued impteaten of our strategic growth initiatives willide yea-overyear improvements
revenues, homes delivered, average selling priogising gross profit margin and homebuilding opegatincome as a percentage
homebuilding revenues in 2014.

For 2014, as in 2013, we intend to prioritize iragiag profitability per home delivered and exeauiton operational measures to g
revenues. Along with investing in land and land elepment and advancing the shift of our communityx towards higheperforming
submarkets, we are focused on balancing threecoreected initiatives —eptimizing sales pace, expanding margins, and grgvaiu
community count —with the goals of sustaining our present upwareénere and profit trajectory and maximizing returnsoor land assets.
addition, we will continue to leverage the stremsgtf our KBnxt operational business model to captadditional premiums from higher-
demand floor plans, community lot locations, homigor elevations and certain structural optiarapng other revenugenerating strategie
Through these actions, we anticipate that our dvavarage selling price will continue to trend héy in 2014, though the percentage gre
rate is expected to moderate to the mid- to Hsigigle digit range for the year as we are startingh a higher base. We are also workin
further value engineer our products, achieve grempterating efficiencies, and contain direct camgion costs.

Strategic investment in land and land developmélhtramain an important component of our effortsetxpand our community count ¢
grow our revenues. In 2013, we invested $1.14dwilln land and land development and ended the fiseal with 61,095 lots owned
controlled, up 37%rom November 30, 2012. We also added to our liggidy raising total net proceeds of more than $880ion from the
successful concurrent underwritten public issuasfcthe 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 thedCommon Stock Offering, a
further enhanced our financial flexibility by eriteg into the Credit Facility. In the fourth quarter 2013, we generated net proceed$443.:
million from the underwritten public issuance o€th.00% Senior
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Notes due 2021 and retir$215.1 millionin aggregate principal amount of our senior notes 2014 and 2015. These steps have positiont
balance sheet to support our future growth throadytional investments in land and land developn2014 in line with market conditio
and available opportunities that meet our investmetirn and marketing standards.

We believe increasing our community count will beranary driver of our topine growth in 2014, in combination with other $&gic
efforts to expand our average selling price andssphce per community where possible in our semvadkets. We expect to open more
home communities for sales in 2014 than we did0ib3? and that our community count will increaséhia range of 10% to 20% year over \
by the end of 2014, with most of the growth ocagrin the second half of the year. At the same tiooasistent with our goal to prioriti
profitability, we will continue to calibrate salpsice with local market conditions at our commusitipen for sales to improve our margins
return on investment.

With the strategic actions we have taken and thgrored results we achieved in 2013, we believe #matare favorably situated
accomplish our top profitability and growth priges in 2014, particularly in view of the positivenigerterm demographic and populat
growth trends that we expect will continue to drivure demand for homeownership in our served starkn particular, we believe we ha\
competitive advantage with our business in Califoravhich accounted for nearly half of both our 2Gnd 2012 revenues, and where
projected housing gross profit margins in backlogréased 34% in 2013 on a year-oyear basis. Based on these trends and ger
favorable housing market conditions in our servextkets in the state, we expect that California wdlhtinue to be a significant contributo
our performance in 2014. We also anticipate thafoal of our homebuilding reporting segments wiinerate year-overear growth in home
delivered, average selling prices and revenue§14 2

While the strength and durability of the presentiging recovery, our future performance and thetegiias we implement (and adjus
refine as necessary or appropriate) will dependifsdgntly on prevailing economic and capital, dtexhd financial market conditions and c
fairly stable and constructive political and redaks environment (particularly in regards to hogsend mortgage loan financing polici
among other factors, and we caution that our futirarterly results could fluctuate, we expect topbefitable for 2014, and to achieve s
growth in the years ahead if and as housing madatsnue to improve.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Investors are cautioned that certain statementtaicad in this report, as well as some statementsskin periodic press releases and ¢
public disclosures and some oral statements by iseturities analysts, stockholders and othersguiresentations, are “forwatdeking
statements” within the meaning of the Private SiéiesrLitigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”Btatements that are predictive in nature,
depend upon or refer to future events or conditimmsthat include words such as “expects,” “anttgs,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “hopes,” and similar expressions cibutst forwardlooking statements. In addition, any statements weamay make or provi
concerning future financial or operating performarfmcluding, without limitation, future revenuesmmunity count, homes delivered,
orders, selling prices, sales pace per new homemntonity, expenses, expense ratios, housing grod& prargins, earnings or earnings
share, or growth or growth rates), future marketditions, future interest rates, and other econauiwditions, ongoing business strategie
prospects, future dividends and changes in dividewnels, the value of our backlog (including amautitat we expect to realize upon deliy
of homes included in our backlog and the timinghafse deliveries), the value of our net ordersepiidl future asset acquisitions and
impact of completed acquisitions, future shareadsses or repurchases, future debt issuances, tepes or redemptions and possible f
actions are also forward-looking statements asnddfiby the Act. Forwartboking statements are based on our current exji@tsaan:
projections about future events and are subjedsks, uncertainties, and assumptions about ouratipas, economic and market factors,
the homebuilding industry, among other things. Ehstmtements are not guarantees of future perfaenamd we have no specific policy
intention to update these statements.

Actual events and results may differ materiallynirthose expressed or forecasted in forwaaking statements due to a number of fac
The most important risk factors that could causeamtual performance and future events and actiomsffer materially from such forward-
looking statements include, but are not limitedhte following:

e general economic, employment and business cond
* population growth, household formations and demulgatrends

» adverse market conditions, including an increasggly of unsold homes, declining home prices amétgr foreclosure and short ¢
activity, among other things, that could negativaffect our consolidated financial statements,udirlg due to additional impairme
or land option contract abandonment charges, loax@nues and operating and other losses;

« conditions in the capital, credit and financial kes (including mortgage lending standards, thélaiity of mortgage financing at
mortgage foreclosure rates);

* material prices and availabili
» labor costs and availabilit

» changes in interest rat

+ inflation;

e our debt level, including our ratio of debt to fatapital, and our ability to adjust our debt levekturity schedule and structure an
access the equity, credit, capital or other finahoiarkets or other external financing sourceslugting raising capital through t
public or private issuance of common stock, delitber securities, and/or project financing, orofable terms;

» our compliance with the terms and covenants ofateslit Facility
« weak or declining consumer confidence, either gahyeor specifically with respect to purchasing hes

» competition for home sales from other sellers off m&d resale homes, including lenders and oth&rsedf homes obtained throt
foreclosures or short sales;

» weather conditions, significant natural disasters ether environmental facto

e government actions, policies, programs and aguis directed at or affecting the housing matketluding the Dodd~rank Act, ta
credits, tax incentives and/or subsidies for homeclpases, tax deductions for mortgage interest pajgnand real estate taxes,
exemptions for profits on home sales, programsied to modify existing mortgage loans and to pnewveortgage foreclosures ¢
the standards, fees and size limits applicablaagtirchase or insuring of mortgage
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loans by government-sponsored enterprises and igmegt agencies), the homebuilding industry, or tanson activities;

» decisions regarding federal fiscal and monetarycjgd, including those relating to taxation, goveamt spending, interest rates
economic stimulus measures;

» the availability and cost of land in desirable a

* our warranty claims experience with respect to hopreviously delivered and actual warranty costsiiired, including our warrar
claims and costs experience at certain of our comitieg in Florida;

» legal or regulatory proceedings or clai
e our ability to use/realize the net deferred taxetssaie have generat

» our ability to successfully implement our currentigplanned strategies and initiatives with respeqiroduct, geographic and mai
positioning (including our efforts to expand ouvémtory base/pipeline with desirable land positioninterests at reasonable cost
to expand our community count, open additional fewne communities for sales and sell highgced homes and more des
options, and our operational and investment comagoh in markets in California), revenue growttsset optimization, as:
activation, local field management and talent itwesnt, and overhead reduction and cost management;

e consumer traffic to our new home communities eosumer interest in our product designs and iaffer particularly highemncome
consumers;

» cancellations and our ability to realize our bagkhy converting net orders to home delivel
e our home sales and delivery performance, partigulakey markets in Californi

« the manner in which our homebuyers are offered,veimether they are able, to obtain mortgage loaxsnaortgage banking servic
including from our preferred mortgage lender, Nasiar;

» the performance of Nationstar as our preferred gage lende

« the ability of Home Community Mortgage to becoaperational in all of our served markets as anthleytime currently anticipsed
and its performance upon becoming operational ;

» information technology failures and data securityathes; ar

» other events outside of our cont
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We enter into debt obligations primarily to suppgeneral corporate purposes, including the operatid our subsidiaries. We are suk
to interest rate risk on our senior notes and tB&3% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019. For fisetd debt, changes in interest rates gene
affect the fair value of the debt instrument, bat aur earnings or cash flows. Under our curreticigs, we do not use interest rate derive
instruments to manage our exposure to changesedrest rates.

The following tables present principal cash flowssoheduled maturity, weighted average interestsrahd the estimated fair value of
long-term fixed rate debt obligations as of Novent@ 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Long-term debt

Fixed Rate

Weighted
Average Interest
Rate

Long-term debt

Fixed Rate

Weighted
Average Interest
Rate

As of November 30, 2013 for the Years Ended Novembg0, Fair Value at
November 30,
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total 2013
$ —_ 199,86+ $ — $ 262,04¢ $ 299,26 $ 1,375,711 $ 2,136,88: $ 2,294,151
—% 6.2% —% 9.1% 7.2% 6.4% 6.€%
As of November 30, 2012 for the Years Ended Novemb@o, Fair Value at
November 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total 2012
$ —_ 75,91 $ 338,82! $ — $ 261,43( $ 994,33 $ 1,670,50: $ 1,831,59
—% 5.8% 6.1% —% 9.1% 7.€% 7.5%
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

KB HOME
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

Number
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 68
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssflfor the Years Ended November 30, 2013, 20128ad 69
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 20d 2012 70
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytlierYears Ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 71
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 72
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 73
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm 117

Separate combined financial statements of our walmated joint venture activities have been orditteecause, if considered in
aggregate, they would not constitute a significarfisidiary as defined by Rule 3-09 of RegulatioX. S-
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KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Total revenues
Homebuilding:

Revenues

Construction and land costs

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Loss on loan guaranty
Operating income (loss)

Interest income

Interest expense

Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures

Homebuilding pretax income (loss)
Financial services:
Revenues
Expenses

Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture

Financial services pretax income
Total pretax income (loss)
Income tax benefit
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes.

68

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
$ 209713 $  1560,11' $ 1,315,386
$ 208497 $ 154843 $  1,30556
(1,737,08) (1,332,04) (1,157,28)
(255,80%) (236,64 (220,59:)
— — (30,76%)
92,08« (20,25¢) (103,07
792 51¢ 871
(62,690 (69,80 (49,20
(2,007) (394) (55,839
28,17¢ (89,93¢) (207,241
12,15: 11,68: 10,30+
(3,042) (2,99)) (3,512
1,074 2,191 19,28¢
10,18+ 10,88: 26,07¢
38,36: (79,059 (181,16¢)
1,60( 20,10( 2,40(
$ 39,96 $ (58,95) $ (178,76%)
$ 48 $ (76) $ (2.32)
$ 46 $ (76) $ (2.32)
82,63 77,10¢ 77,04
91,55¢ 77,10¢ 77,04
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Net income (loss) $ 39,96: $ (58,959 $ (178,76%)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments:

Net actuarial gain (loss) arising during the period 7,08: (4,76%) (5,646

Amortization of net actuarial loss 1,80¢ 1,40: 59¢

Amortization of prior service cost 1,55¢ 1,55¢ 1,55¢
Other comprehensive income (loss) 10,44: (1,80€) (3,495
Comprehensive income (I0ss) $ 50,40t § (60,759 $ (182,26

See accompanying notes.
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Shares)

November 30,

2013 2012
Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 530,09 $ 524,76!
Restricted cash 41,90¢ 42,36:
Receivables 75,74¢ 64,82:
Inventories 2,298,57 1,706,57
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures 130,19: 123,67-
Other assets 107,07¢ 95,05(
3,183,59! 2,557,24.
Financial services 10,04( 4,45¢
Total assets $ 3,193,633 $ 2,561,69
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable $ 148,28: $ 118,54
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 356,17¢ 340,34!
Mortgages and notes payable 2,150,49: 1,722,81!
2,654,95I 2,181,70.
Financial services 2,59: 3,18¢
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — $1.00 par value; 10,000,000 shewéhorized; none issued — —
Common stock — $1.00 par value; 290,000,000 ster#®rized at November 30, 2013 and 2012;

115,296,395 and 115,178,187 shares issued at Nare30hb2013 and 2012, respectively 115,29¢ 115,17¢
Paid-in capital 788,89: 888,57
Retained earnings 481,88 450,29:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (17,516 (27,959
Grantor stock ownership trust, at cost: 10,501 @4d 10,615,934 shares at November 30, 2013 and

2012, respectively (113,91) (115,149
Treasury stock, at cost: 21,050,023 and 27,340st#h&8s at November 30, 2013 and 2012,

respectively (718,56 (934,131

Total stockholders’ equity 536,08t 376,80¢

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 319363 § 2,561,69

See accompanying notes.
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KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Number of Shares

Balance at November 30, 201
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss

Dividends on common stock

Employee stock options and
other

Forfeited restricted stock
Stock-based compensation

Grantor stock ownership trust

Balance at November 30, 201
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss

Dividends on common stock

Employee stock options and
other

Restricted stock awards
Stock-based compensation
Grantor stock ownership trust

Stock repurchases

Balance at November 30, 2012 115,17¢

Net income
Other comprehensive income

Dividends on common stock

Employee stock options and
other

Issuance of stock under stock
based compensation plans

Restricted stock awards
Stock-based compensation
Issuance of common stock
Grantor stock ownership trust

Stock repurchases

Balance at November 30, 201

Grantor Accumulated Grantor
Stock Other Stock Total
Common Ownership Treasury Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Ownership Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Trust Stock Stock Capital Earnings Loss Trust Stock Equity
115,14¢ (11,087) (27,09 $ 115,14¢ $87351¢ $ 717,85 $ (22,65) $ (120,44) $ (931,54) $ 631,87t
— — — — — (178,76 — — — (178,76
— — — — — — (3,495 — — (3,495
— — — — — (19,240 — — — (19,24
22 — — 22 2,41( — — — — 2,43:
— — (119 — 794 — — — (799 —
— — — — 8,05¢ — — — — 8,05¢
— 19¢ — — (587) — — 2,38: — 1,79¢
115,17: (10,889 (27,219 115,17 884,19 519,84 (26,157 (118,05 (932,33) 442,65
— — — — — (58,959 — — — (58,957
— — — = = — (1,80€) = = (1,806)
— — — — — (10,599 — — — (10,599
7 — — 7 97 — — — — 104
— 20¢ — — (2,259 — — 2,25: — —
— — — — 6,71% — — — — 6,71%
— 60 — — (16¢) — — 657 — 48¢
— — (12€) — — — — — (1,799 (1,799
(10,616) (27,340 115,17¢ 888,57 450,29; (27,959 (115,149 (934,13 376,80
— — — — — 39,96! — — — 39,96!
— — — — — — 10,44: — — 10,44
— — = — — (8,366 = = — (8,369
11€ — — 11¢ 1,47¢ — — — — 1,59:
— — 47¢ — 41z — — — 7,93¢ 8,34¢
— 88 — — (954 — — 954 — —
— — — — 5,69¢ — — — — 5,69¢
— — 6,32t — (106,627 — — — 216,12! 109,50:
— 26 — — 30& — — 284 — 58¢
— — (519 — — — — — (8,48¢) (8,48¢)
115,29t (10,502 (21,050 $ 11529¢ $788,89: $ 481,88 $ (17,516 $ (11391) $ (71856) $ 536,08t

See accompanying notes.
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 39,96: $ (58,959 $ (178,769

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by (used in)
operating activities:

Equity in (income) loss/(gain) on wind down of unsolidated joint ventures 93¢ (1,797 36,55:
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joiahtures 1,94¢ 3,31¢ 8,70:
Loss on loan guaranty — — 30,76¢
Gain on sale of operating property — — (8,825
Amortization of discounts and issuance costs 5,341 3,01¢ 2,15(
Depreciation and amortization 1,857 1,622 2,031
Provision for deferred income taxes — 1,152 —
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt 10,44¢ 10,27¢ (3,617
Stock-based compensation 5,69¢ 6,71: 8,054
Inventory impairments and land option contract almenments 3,581 28,53: 25,79:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (11,159 24,99 (2,220
Inventories (563,189 30,34% (12,345
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil 59,76 (2,149 (253,54))
Other, net 1,31¢ (12,467 (2,275
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (443,481) 34,617 (347,549
Cash flows from investing activities:
Return of investments in (contributions to) uncdiated joint ventures (14,359 98¢ (67,260)
Proceeds from sale of operating property — — 80,60(
Purchases of property and equipment, net (2,39)) (1,749 (242
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (16,75() (760 13,09¢
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash 45¢ 22,11¢ 50,99¢
Proceeds from issuance of debt 680,00( 694,83 —
Payment of debt issuance costs (16,52Y (12,445 —
Repayment of senior notes (225,39, (592,64 (200,000
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedaskliers and other loans (66,29¢) (26,299 (89,46))
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 109,50: — —
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans 2,181 59: 1,79¢
Payments of cash dividends (8,36€) (20,599 (19,240
Stock repurchases (8,48%) (1,799 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 467,07: 73,751 (155,909
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent 6,83t 107,61« (490,35¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 525,68t 418,07- 908,43(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 532,520 $ 525,68¢ $ 418,07«

See accompanying notes.
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KB HOME
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Operations.KB Home is a builder of attached and detached sifahily residential homes, townhomes asmhdominiums. As ¢
November 30, 2013, we conducted ongoing operationArizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Marylanblevada, New Mexico, Nor
Carolina, Texas and Virginia. Through our financsalrvices subsidiary, KB Home Mortgage Company (HBC"), we offer insuranc
services to our homebuyers in the same marketsemverbuild homes and we provide title serviceshim najority of our markets locat
within our Central and Southeast homebuilding répgrsegments. From 2005 until June 30, 2011, we affered mortgage banking servi
to our homebuyers indirectly through KBA Mortgag® unconsolidated joint venture of a subsidiaryoofs and a subsidiary of Bank
America, N.A., with each partner having a 50%erest in the venture. KBA Mortgage ceased dffgmnortgage banking services after Juni
2011. KBA Mortgage is accounted for as an uncodatdid joint venture within our financial serviceporting segment.

Basis of Presentatiorhe consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with GAAP and include our antoan:
those of the consolidated subsidiaries in whichhaee a controlling financial interest. All intercpamy balances and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation. Investments in uncdidsted joint ventures in which we have less tharoatrolling interest are accounted
using the equity method.

Use of Estimatesthe preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires management to make informstiheates an
assumptions that affect the amounts reported ircdimsolidated financial statements and accompanyings. Actual results could differ frc
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cé&h consider all highly liquid shoterm investments purchased with an original mat
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. d@ah equivalents totaled $436.2 million at Novengte 2013 and $396.3 millioai
November 30, 201. The majority of our cash and cash equivalentsewevested in money market funds and intebestring bank depo
accounts.

Restricted cash of $41.9 million at November 3012@nd $42.4 million at November 30, 20déhsisted of cash deposited with var|
financial institutions that was required as collatéor the LOC Facilities.

Property and Equipment and DepreciatidProperty and equipment are recorded at cost andepeeciated over their estimated us
lives, which generally range from two to 10 yearsing the straighline method. Repair and maintenance costs are etisig earnings .
incurred. Property and equipment are included reioaissets on the consolidated balance sheeterBrgmd equipment totaled $8.5 million
net of accumulated depreciation of $14.4 millia November 30, 2013, and $7.9 million , net ofuecalated depreciation of $18.5 milligri
November 30, 201. Depreciation expense totaled $1.9 million in 20$3.6 million in 2012 and $2.0 million in 2011 .

Homebuilding OperationsRevenues from housing and other real estate seeeognized in accordance with ASC 36fen sales a
closed and title passes to the buyer. Sales asedlarhen all of the following conditions are metsade is consummated, a sufficient di
payment is received, the earnings process is caengtel the collection of any remaining receivalidagasonably assure@oncurrent with th
recognition of revenues in our consolidated statgmef operations, sales incentives in the fornpride concessions on the selling price
home are recorded as a reduction of revenues, wigleost of incentives in the form of a free prtdor service to homebuyers, includ
option upgrades and closing cost allowances usedwver a portion of the fees and costs chargedhonaebuyer, are reflected as construc
and land costs.

Construction and land costs are comprised of dmect allocated costs, including estimated futurgtscéor the limited warranty on ¢
homes and amenities within a community. Land adtipis land development and other common costgarerally allocated on a relative
value basis to the homes or lots within a commuaiitiand parcel. Land acquisition and land develephtosts include related interest and
estate taxes.

H ousing and land inventories are stated at cosgssrihe carrying value is determined not to beveadle, in which case the affec
inventories are written down to fair value in acace with ASC 360ASC 360 requires that real estate assets, suchrasoasing and lar
inventories, be tested for recoverability whenesgnts or changes in circumstances indicate tleat ¢arrying value may not be recovera
Recoverability is measured by comparing the cagyialue of an asset to the undiscounted futureast flows expected to be generated b
asset. These impairment evaluations are significamipacted by estimates for the amounts and tinehfuture revenues, costs and expet
and other factors. If the carrying value of reahts assets is not recoverable, the impairmenetoebognized is measured by the amoul
which the carrying value of the affected asset edséts estimated fair value.
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Capitalized Interestlnterest is capitalized to inventories while thiated communities are being actively developed amiil homes ar
completed. Capitalized interest is amortized tostamttion and land costs as the related invent@iesdelivered to homebuyers. For tt
communities where development activity has beepesuted, applicable interest is expensed as incurred

Fair Value Measurement&SC 820 provides a framework for measuring thevalue of assets and liabilities under GAAP andlaighe
a fair value hierarchy that requires an entity taximize the use of observable inputs and minimiee use of unobservable inputs w
measuring fair value.

Fair value measurements are used for inventories monrecurring basis when events and circumstandasate the carrying value is |
recoverable. Fair value is determined based omastid future net cash flows discounted for inhenskt associated with the real estate as
or other valuation techniques.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and @ghivalents, restricted cash, senior notes, the5¥3Convertible Senior Notes due 2(
and mortgages and land contracts due to land seliet other loans. Fair value measurements ofdiabimstruments are determined by var|
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, we use quoted market piiicesctive markets to determine 1
value.

Financial Services Operation©ur financial services reporting segment genersggsenues primarily from insurance commissionse
services, marketing services fees and intereshiecthsurance commissions are recognized when polaiesssued. Title services reven
are recorded when closing services are rendereditenohsurance policies are issued, both of wigehnerally occur at the time each applic
home is closed. Marketing services fees are reeednvhen earned, and interest income is accruedrasd.

Warranty CostsWe provide a limited warranty on all of our hom##e estimate the costs that may be incurred undgr lgaited warrant
and record a liability in the amount of such castghe time the revenue associated with the sakaoh home is recognize@ur priman
assumption in estimating the amounts we accruevaranty costs is that historical claims experieisca strong indicator of future clai
experience. Factors that affect our warranty ligbihclude the number of homes delivered, histriEnd anticipated rates of warranty cla
and cost per claim. We periodically assess the watggof our accrued warranty liabilignd adjust the amount as necessary based «
assessment.

Self-InsuranceWe selfinsure a portion of our overall risk through the wé a captive insurance subsidiary. We also miairt@rtain othe
insurance policies. We record expenses and lisgsilibased on the estimated costs required to aaweselfinsured retention and deducti
amounts under our insurance policies, and the astiincosts of potential claims and claim adjustnexpenses that are above our cove
limits or that are not covered by our insuranceqgies. These estimated costs are based on an snaflyaur historical claims and industry d
and include an estimate of construction defechdancurred but not yet reported.

We engage a thirgarty actuary that uses our historical claim angease data, as well as industry data, to estimatéabilities related t
unpaid claims, claim adjustment expenses, thady recoveries and incurred but not yet repodiaéms for the risks that we are assun
under our self-insuranc&@he projection of losses related to these liabsitrequires actuarial assumptions that are sutgjedriability due t
uncertainties regarding construction defect claielative to our markets and the types of productbwitd, insurance industry practices
legal or regulatory interpretations, among othertdes. Key assumptions used in these estimatesdeactlaim frequencies, severities
settlement patterns, which can occur over an erperiod of timeDue to the degree of judgment required and thenpiatefor variability ir
these underlying assumptions, our actual futurésaomuld differ from those estimated .

Advertising CostsWe expense advertising costs as incurred. We iedudvertising costs of $25.3 million in 2013, $rhillion in 2012
and $32.4 million in 2011.

Legal FeesLegal fees associated with litigation and similangeedings that are not expected to provide a henefuture periods al
generally expensed as incurred. Legal fees assdcigith land acquisition and development and o#etivities that are expected to provic
benefit in future periods are capitalized as inedrin our consolidated balance sheets. We expdagatifees of $10.1 million in 2013512.¢
million in 2012 and $16.9 million in 2011 .

Stock-Based Compensatiowith the approval of the management development @mdpensation committee, consisting entirel
independent members of our board of directors, exeprovided compensation benefits to certain of euaployees in the form of stc
options, restricted stock, PSUs, phantom share SARE.

W e measure and recognize compensation expenseiaesdowith our grant of equity-based awards inoedance with ASC 718yhich
requires that companies measure and recognize cmafen expense at an amount equal to the fairevafuishardsased payments gran
under compensation arrangements over the vestimgdp&Ve estimate the fair value of stock options
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and SARs granted using the Black-Scholes optiotirmrimodel with assumptions based primarily ondnisal dataASC 718 also requires t
tax benefit resulting from tax deductions in excekthe compensation expense recognized for thpsers to be reported in the statemer
cash flows as an operating cash outflow and a €imgncash inflow.

Income Taxedncome taxes are accounted for in accordance w&8& A40.The provision for, or benefit from, income taxesadculate
using the asset and liability method, under whiefedred tax assets and liabilities are recorde@das the difference between the finar
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilitdsguenacted tax rates in effect for the year inctvithe differences are expected to rev
Deferred tax assets are evaluated on a quartesig ba determine if adjustments to the valuatidovednce are required. In accordance
ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation allowanceldibe established based on the considerationl efvailable evidence using arbre
likely than not”standard with respect to whether deferred tax sssilt be realized. The ultimate realization of eleéd tax assets depe
primarily on the generation of future taxable in@rfthe value of our deferred tax assets will depEmdpplicable income tax ratesidgmer
is required in determining the future tax consegesrof events that have been recognized in ourotidated financial statements and/or
returns. Differences between anticipated and actuimliomes of these future tax consequences coulkl danaterial impact on our consolide
financial statements.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive LoBEse accumulated balances of other comprehensigeiothe consolidated balance sheets
November 30, 201and 2012were comprised solely of adjustments recorded thiréc accumulated other comprehensive loss in ot
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic No.571Compensation — Retirement Benefits” (“ASC 715%uch adjustments are mi
annually as of November 30, when our benefit plaligations are remeasured. ASC 715 requires anamapto recognize the funded statu
defined postretirement benefit plans as an asskdhility on the balance sheet and requires amgewgnized prior service costs and actu
gains/losses to be recognized in accumulated otiraprehensive income (loss).

Earnings (Loss) Per Shar®/e compute earnings (loss) per share using thectass method in accordance with Accounting Stars
Cadification Topic No. 260, “Earnings Per SharelieTtwo<¢lass method is an allocation of earnings betwherhblders of common stock ¢
a company’s participating security holders. Ourstariding non-vested shares of restricted stoclkagonbnforfeitable rights to dividends ar
therefore, are considered participating securfis@spurposes of computing earnings per share puatsieathe twoelass method. We had
other participating securities at November 30, 2@03.2 or 2011.

Recent Accounting PronouncememisJune 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, whitdwal an entity the option to present the tote
comprehensive income, the components of net incand, the components of other comprehensive incatheren a single continuo
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdpat consecutive statements. In both instancegnéity is required to present e
component of net income along with total net incoreach component of other comprehensive incomegalisith a total for othe
comprehensive income, and a total amount for congmgive income. ASU 20105 eliminates the option to present the componehtihe
comprehensive income as part of the statementarigds in stockholders’ equity. The amendments it 281105 do not change the ite
that must be reported in other comprehensive incomehen an item of other comprehensive income rbasteclassified to net incor
However, in December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2 lwhich deferred the guidance on whether to requinéties to presel
reclassification adjustments out of accumulate@motomprehensive income by component in both testent where net income is prese
and the statement where other comprehensive intopresented for both interim and annual finansiatements. ASU 20112 reinstated tt
requirements for the presentation of reclassificetithat were in place prior to the issuance of ABW105 and did not change the effec
date for ASU 2011-05. For public entities, the adreants in ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2012-are effective for fiscal years, and interim pe
within those years, beginning after December 1812@nd should be applied retrospectively. Our &dopf this guidance, which is relatec
disclosure only, as of February 28, 2013 did neelemmaterial impact on our consolidated finansiatements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013+9Bich requires an entity to provide information abthe amounts reclassified out
accumulated other comprehensive income by compoheraddition, ASU 20132 requires an entity to present, either on the faicthe
income statement or in the notes to financial stat@s, significant amounts reclassified out of anglated other comprehensive income by
respective line items of net income but only if #raount reclassified is required under GAAP to d@assified to net income in its entiret
the same reporting period. For other amounts, dityaa required to crosseference to other disclosures required under GA#ER provid
additional detail about those amounts. The amenthmianrASU 201332 do not change the current requirements for tgmpnet income ¢
other comprehensive income in the financial statémd-or public entities, the amendments in ASU302 are effective prospectively
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@# adoption of this guidance, which is relatedlisclosure only, as of May 31, 2013
not have a material impact on our consolidatedniire statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Which states that an unrecognized tax benefit, pordion of an unrecognized tax ben:
should be presented in the financial statemengsraduction to a deferred tax asset for a net ¢tipgrioss carryforward,
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a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforwargcept as follows. To the extent a net operating loarryforward, a similar tax loss, or a
credit carryforward is not available at the repagtdate under the tax law of the applicable juddn to settle any additional income taxes
would result from the disallowance of a tax positar that the tax law of the applicable jurisdiatidoes not require the entity to use, anc
entity does not intend to use, the deferred tagtdes such purpose, the unrecognized tax berfeditlsl be presented in the financial staterr
as a liability and should not be combined with defé tax assets. ASU 20113- applies to all entities that have unrecognizedbenefits when
net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax Jassa tax credit carryforward exists at the repgrdate. The amendments in ASU 2QBare
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods hiit those years, beginning after December 15, 2&E3ly adoption is permitted. T
amendments should be applied prospectively to mleaognized tax benefits that exist at the effectilate. Retrospective applicatior
permitted. We believe the adoption of this guidawdenot have a material impact on our consolidafi@eancial statements.

Homebuyer Closing Cost Allowances Reclassificatitifective December 1, 2012, we elected to reclgsddsing cost allowances giv
to certain homebuyers from selling, general and iadinative expenses to construction and land costsur consolidated statements
operations. These allowances, which totaled $10l&mand represented .5% of housing revenuediti32 are used to cover a portion of nor
recurring thirdparty fees, such as escrow fees, title costs, d@wpifees, finance processing fees, and prepaidestate taxes and insura
costs that are charged to a homebuyer in conneetitinthe closing of the sale of a home. The amsuntthe consolidated statement:
operations of prior years have been reclassifiezbtdorm to the 2013 presentation. The reclasgi@ina reduced both our housing gross pr
and selling, general and administrative expense2d2 and 2011 by $14.5 million and $27.1 millimespectively, which represented . 8%«
2.1% of housing revenues, respectively. The reclassifinahad no impact on the homebuilding operatingpme (loss) or consolidated
income (loss) amounts previously reported.

Other Reclassificationgertain amounts in the consolidated financial stetets of prior years have been reclassified toaromfto the
2013 presentation.

Note 2. Segment Information

As of November 30, 2013, we had identified fivpaging segments, comprised of four homebuildirgpréng segments and ofinancia
services reporting segment, within our consolidateerations in accordance with Accounting Stand&uwidification Topic No. 280,Segmer
Reporting.” As of November 30, 2013 , our homehnijdreporting segments conducted ongoing operatiotige following states:

West Coast: California

Southwest: Arizona, Nevada and New Mexico
Central: Colorado and Texas

Southeast: Florida, Maryland, North Carolina ancgViia

Our homebuilding operations represented most obosimess for the years ended November 30, 2@032 and 2011. Our homebuild
reporting segments are engaged in the acquisitidndavelopment of land primarily for residentiakposes and offer a wide variety of hot
that are designed to appeal to first-time, mapeand active adult homebuyers. Our homebuildingrations generate the majority of tl
revenues from the delivery of completed homes todtmuyers, and to a lesser extent from the salgnoff |

Our homebuilding reporting segments were identifiaded primarily on similarities in economic an@dgmphic characteristics, prod
types, regulatory environments, methods used t@sdlconstruct homes and land acquisition chariatites. We evaluate segment performz
primarily based on segment pretax results.

Our financial services reporting segment offerspprty and casualty insurance and, in certain icgtgnearthquake, flood and pers:
property insurance to our homebuyers in the sanrketeas our homebuilding reporting segmemd provides title services in the majorit
our markets located within our Central and Southkamsiebuilding reporting segmenis.addition, since the third quarter of 2011, thégmer
has earned revenues pursuant to the terms of aetimaykservices agreement with a preferred mortdegéer that offers mortgage bank
services, including mortgage loan originationsptm homebuyersvho elect to use the lender. Our homebuyers arerumal obligation to ut
our preferred mortgage lender and may select amyeleof their choice to obtain mortgage financing the purchase of a homeéxcept a
discussed below, we have had no affiliation, owm@rgoint venture or other interests in or withr queferred mortgage lender or its affilia
or with respect to the revenues or income that hese been generated from their provision of morgaanking services to, or originatior
mortgage loans for, our homebuyePsior to late June 2011, this reporting segmentideml mortgage banking services to our homebi
indirectly through KBA Mortgage.
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On January 21, 2013, we entered into an agreem#miNationstar to form Home Community Mortgage, artgage banking company t
will offer an array of mortgage banking serviceotos homebuyers. We have a 49.9% ownership intarebfNationstar has a 50.18&nershi|
interest in Home Community Mortgage, with Natiomsgaoviding management oversight of Home Communtgrtgages operation:
Nationstar will continue as our preferred mortgigeler until Home Community Mortgage begins offgrmortgage banking services, whic
expected to occur in the first quarter of 2014. Wvade capital contributions of $5.0 millida Home Community Mortgage during the y
ended November 30, 2013. Home Community Mortgagactounted for as an unconsolidated joint ventuitbinvour financial service

reporting segment of our consolidated financialestents.

Our reporting segments follow the same accountaigipes used for our consolidated financial statete@s described in Note 1. Sumn
of Significant Accounting Policies. Operationalults of each segment are not necessarily indicativhe results that would have occurred
the segment been an independent, siode entity during the periods presented, norttzeg indicative of the results to be expected ik

periods.

The following tables present financial informatietating to our reporting segments (in thousands):

Revenues:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast
Total homebuilding revenues
Financial services

Total

Pretax income (loss):
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast
Corporate and other (a)
Total homebuilding pretax income (loss)
Financial services

Total

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint aes:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

(a) Corporate and other includes corporate gema@mcldministrative expenses.
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Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
1,020,21  $ 755,25¢  $ 589,38
175,25: 132,43¢ 139,87:
565,12( 436,40 369,70
324,38t 224,32 206,59
2,084,97; 1,548,43; 1,305,56:
12,15: 11,68: 10,30:
2,097,13 $ 156011 $  1,315,86
118,26 $ (10,467 $ 19,63¢
2,90: (10,199 (108,261
22,27 1,44¢ (12,929
(45,997 (1,189 (37,989
(69,27 (69,542) (67,719
28,17¢ (89,93¢) (207,241
10,18¢ 10,88: 26,07¢
38,36 $ (79,05) $ (181,16¢)
(148 $ 174 $ 68
(2,355) (811) (55,90%)
49€ 591 (5)
(2,000 $ (394 $ (55,839
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Inventory impairment charges:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

Land option contract abandonment charges:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

Joint venture impairment charges:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

Assets:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast
Corporate and other
Total homebuilding assets
Financial services
Total

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total
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Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
—  $ 19,23t $ 2,59¢
— 2,13t 18,71¢
— 1,267 51
391 5,47( 1,36¢€
391 % 28,107 $ 22,73(
3,19C $ — % 704
— — 29¢
— 13: 1,31(
— 298 751
3,19C $ 42€ % 3,061
—  $ — 3 _
— — 53,721
— 3 — % 53,72

November 30,

2013 2012
$ 1,230,76. $ 930,45(
402,44 319,86
465,54° 369,29
456,96 341,46(
627,87¢ 596,17t
3,183,59! 2,557,24.
10,04( 4,45¢
$ 3,193,633 $ 2,561,69
$ 40,24¢  $ 38,37
80,87 75,92(
9,06¢ 9,38:
$ 130,19 $ 123,67
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Note 3.  Financial Service!
The following tables present financial informatimtating to our financial services reporting segt@nthousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues
Insurance commissions $ 7170 % 7,14C % 7,18¢
Title services 3,172 2,36: 1,98:
Marketing services fees 1,80( 2,17¢ 1,12t
Interest income 3 6 8
Total 12,15: 11,68 10,30¢
Expenses
General and administrative (3,04) (2,99) (3,519
Operating income 9,11( 8,692 6,792
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint ventures 1,074 2,191 19,28¢
Pretax income $ 10,18 $ 10,88 $ 26,07¢
November 30,
2013 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,42¢ % 92t
Receivables 2,08¢ 1,85¢
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures 5,49( 1,63(C
Other assets 38 43
Total assets $ 10,04C % 4,45¢
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,59 % 3,18¢
Total liabilities $ 259 $ 3,18¢

The equity in income/gain on wind down of uncongated joint ventures amounts for 2013, 2012 and 20dluded gains of $1.1 million
$2.1 million and $19.8 million , respectively, regized in connection with the wind down of KBA Mgaiges business operations. In addit
our investments in unconsolidated joint venturesNatvember 30, 2013 included a $5.0 millicapital contribution we made to Ho
Community Mortgage during the year.

Although KBHMC ceased originating and selling madg loans on September 1, 2005, it may be require@purchase, or provi
indemnification with respect to, an individual lotmat it funded on or before August 31, 2005 and o an investor if the representation:
warranties that it made in connection with the gdilthe loan are breached, in the event of an gayynent default, if the loan does not con
with the underwriting standards or other requiretsari the ultimate investor or an applicable insuoe due to a delinquency or other mai
arising in connection with the loan.
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Note 4. Earnings (Loss) Per Shar
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share wdoailedied as follows (in thousands, except per shareunts):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income (loss) $ 39,96: $ (58,95 $ (178,76Y)
Less: Distributed earnings allocated to nonveststticted stock (24) — —
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to nonvesgstticted stock (90 — —
Numerator for basic earnings (loss) per share 39,84¢ (58,957 (178,769
Effect of dilutive securities:
Interest expense and amortization of debt issueosts associated with
convertible senior notes, net of taxes 2,23( — —
Add: Undistributed earnings allocated to nonveséstricted stock 90 — —
Less: Undistributed earnings reallocated to nomekesgstricted stock (81) — —
Numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 42,08¢ $ (58,959 $ (178,769
Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 82,63( 77,10¢ 77,04
Effect of dilutive securities:
Share-based payments 1,88t — —
Convertible senior notes 7,044 — —
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 91,55¢ 77,10¢ 77,04
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ A48 9 (.7¢) $ (2.32)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ A€ $ (7€) $ (2.39)

As discussed in Note 13. Mortgages and Notes Payabl2013, we issued the 1.373%6nvertible Senior Notes due 2019 which
initially convertible into shares of our common atcat a conversion rate of 36.528fares for each $1,000 principal amount of thes:
Outstanding stock options to purchase 5.2 milbbares of common stock were excluded from theatlwarnings per share calculation
2013 and all outstanding stock options were exaudem the diluted loss per share calculationstifier years ended November 30, 2@t
2011 because the effect of their inclusion would be dihtiive. Contingently issuable shares associatéthi wutstanding PSUs were |
included in the earnings (loss) per share cal@anatfor the periods presented as the vesting dondihave not been satisfied.

Note 5. Receivable

Receivables of $75.7 million at November 30, 2048 $64.8 million at November 30, 20&zluded amounts due from utility compar
and municipalities, state income taxes receivabteescrow deposits. Receivables from utility conigsuand municipalities generally relatt
infrastructure improvements we make with respectots communities. We are generally reimbursed fugsé receivables when
improvements are accepted by the utility companynanicipality, or after certain events occur, defieg on the terms of the applica
agreements. These events may include, but arénmited to, the connection of utilities or the iseaa of bonds by the respective municipalit

Each receivable is evaluated for collectibility laast quarterly and allowances for potential losaes established or maintained
applicable receivables when collection becomes tiollliaking into account historical experienceggent economic conditions and o
relevant factors. Receivables were net of allowarieedoubtful accounts of $20.3 million in 20131&B21.3 million in 2012 .
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Note 6. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

November 30,

2013 2012
Homes under construction $ 586,43¢ $ 454,10t
Land under development 1,066,91 567,47(
Land held for future development 645,22! 684,99:
Total $ 2,298,57 $ 1,706,57.

Homes under construction is comprised of costscéessal with homes in various stages of construatiodh includes direct construction i
related land acquisition and land development castisd under development primarily consists of landuisition and land development cc
which include capitalized interest and real estaxes associated with land undergoing improvemetitity. When home construction begi
the associated land acquisition and land developroests are included in homes under constructiamdLheld for future developmi
principally reflects land acquisition and land depenent costs related to landhere development activity has been suspendedsondiaye
begun, but is expected to occur in the future. lassets held for future development are locatedrinus submarkets where conditions dc
presently support further investment or developmenare subject to a building permit moratoriunregulatory restrictions, or are portion:
larger land parcels that we plan to build out ae@reral years and/or that have not yet been ehtlllee may also suspend development ac
if we believe it will result in greater returns dodmaximize the economic performance of a comnyumjt delaying improvements for a per
of time to allow earlier phases of a long-term, tinphase community or a neighboring community to gateesales momentum or for mai
conditions to improveWe resume development activity when we believe iauestment in this inventory will be optimized dn, som
instances, to accelerate sales pace and/or ounretuinvestment, and we have activated assetdopsy held for future development
certain markets as part of our strategic growttiatives. Interest and real estate taxes are rpitadized on land held for future development.

Our interest costs are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Capitalized interest at beginning of year $ 217,68 $ 233,46 $ 249,96¢
Interest incurred (a) 149,10: 132,65 112,03
Interest expensed (a) (62,690 (69,809 (49,209
Interest amortized to construction and land costs (87,419 (78,630) (79,339
Capitalized interest at end of year (b) $ 216,68. $ 217,68« $ 233,46:

(&) Amounts for the years ended November 30, 201882012 included losses on the early extinguishmiedebt of $10.4 million an810.:
million , respectively. Amounts for the year endéovember 30, 2011 included a gain on the earlyngyishment of secured debt$8.€
million .

(b) Inventory impairment charges are recognized agailhstventory costs of a community, such as laoglussition, land development, cos
home construction and capitalized interest. Capéédlinterest amounts presented in the table tefiecgross amount of capitalized inte
as impairment charges recognized are not genealidigated to specific components of inventory.

Note 7. Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonments

E ach community or land parcel in our owned inventisnassessed to determine if indicators of potentipairment exist. Impairme
indicators are assessed separately for each corymamland parcel on a quarterly basis and inclualg, are not limited to the followin
significant decreases in net orders, average gglliites, volume of homes delivered, gross proitgins on homes delivered or projected ¢
profit margins on homes in backlog or future deiies; significant increases in budgeted land deymlent and home construction cost
cancellation rates; or projected losses on expdatede land sales. If indicators of potential inrpeent exist for a community or land par
the identified asset is evaluated for recoverahifitaccordance with ASC 360. We evaluated 67 ,dr3b 138communities or land parcels
recoverability during the years ended November 30,
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2013, 2012 and 2011respectively. As impairment indicators are ass@sm a quarterly basis, some of the communitiekmd parcel
evaluated during these years were evaluated in thareone quarterly period.

When an indicator of potential impairment is idéat for a community or land parcel, we test theetigor recoverability by comparing
carrying value of the asset to the undiscountedréuhet cash flows expected to be generated bygdket. The undiscounted future net
flows are impacted by therurrent conditions and trends in the market in Whie asset is located as well as factors knowus tat the time tt
cash flows are calculated. With the undiscountédréunet cash flows, we also consider recent trémasir orders, backlog, cancellation r:
and volume of homes delivered, as well as our grgiens related to the following: product offeringsarket supply and demand, incluc
estimated average selling prices and related pppeeciation; and land development, home constmi@tind overhead costs to be incurred
related cost inflation. With respect to the yearsleel November 30, 2013 and 20XBese expectations reflected our experience
notwithstanding fluctuations in our company-wide aelers, backlog levels, homes delivered and Ingugross profit margin, on a year-over
year basis, market conditions for each of our asseinventory where impairment indicators werentifeed have been generally stable
improved, with no significant deterioration idergd as to revenue and cost drivers that would prieeeotherwise impact recoverability. Ba
on this experience, and taking into account thessigf stability and improvement in many markets few home sales, our invent
assessments as of November 30, 2013 considerexpanted steady overall sales pace and averagegspliice performance for 2014 relat
to the pace and performance in recent quarttsle in the fourth quarter of 2013, our West Cdasinebuilding reporting segment repo
yearoveryear decreases in homes delivered, net orders raidge backlog, these decreases were largely dumitcselling through old
communities and shifting our investment strategfatmr coastal California submarkets, and delayspening new communities, and were
reflective of a decline in market conditions, pautarly as the average selling price of homes dedigt in the segment increasedthe 201
fourth quarter and the housing gross profit mangiproved .

Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintidsri@casting future results, our inventory assesssnanthe time they are made take
consideration whether a community or land parcatis/e, meaning whether it is open for sales anaiAdergoing development, or whether
being held for future development. Due to the skemh nature of active communities and land paresl€ompared to land held for fut
development, our inventory assessments generalynes the continuation of thenwrent market conditions, subject to identifyimgprmatior
suggesting significant sustained changes in sunbitons. These assessments, at the time madesadjgranticipate net orders, average se
prices, volume of homes delivered and costs fall @&velopment and home construction to continug aear thereurrent levels through t
particular asset’'s estimated remaining life. Ineeptassessments for our land held for future deareknt consider theodrrent marke
conditions as well as subjective forecasts reggrthie timing and costs of land development and hoomstruction and related cost inflati
the product(s) to be offered; and the net ordesiyrme of homes delivered, and selling prices anated price appreciation of the offe
product(s) when an associated community is antiegpéo open for sales. We evaluate various fatctooevelop these forecasts, including
availability of and demand for homes and finishets lwithin the relevant marketplace; historicalirent and expected future sales trend
the marketplace; and thigghrty data, if available. These various estimatesds, expectations and assumptions used in damlr agnventon
assessments are specific to each community orpanckl based on what we believe are reasonableastise for performance and may \
among communities or land parcels and may vary tiwes.

We record an inventory impairment charge when timeying value of a real estate asset is greater the undiscounted future net ¢
flows the asset is expected to generate. Thesestate assets are written down to fair value, wisgorimarily based on the estimated fu
net cash flows discounted for inherent risk assediavith each such assktputs used in our calculation of estimated dis¢edruture net ca:
flows are specific to each affected community ardlgparcel and are based on our expectations fdr sach asset as of the applic:
measurement date, including, among others, expatsatelated to average selling prices and voluffeomes deliveredlhe discount rates \
used were impacted by the following at the timedaleulation was made: the riflee rate of return; expected risk premium basedstimate
land development, home construction and delivemelines; market risk from potential future pricedogon; cost uncertainty due to I
development or home construction cost increasabptrer risks specific to the asset or conditionthe market in which the asset is located.

The following table summarizes ranges for significquantitative unobservable inputs we utilizedoimr fair value measurements v
respect to the impaired communities or land pameiten down to fair value during the years prdsdn

Years Ended November 30,

Unobservable Input (a) 2013 2012 2011
Average selling price $339,700 $115,200 - $556,300  $142,900 - $391,900
Deliveries per month 1 1-6 1-10
Discount rate 17% 17% - 20% 17% - 20%
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(a) The ranges of inputs used in each period primagillect the underlying variability among the hogsmarkets where each of the impa
communities or land parcels are located, rathar th&tuations in prevailing market conditions.

Based on the results of our evaluations, we rezeghinventory impairment charges of $.4 millior2B13 associated with om®@mmunity
with a post-impairment fair value of $1.1 millioin 2012 , we recognized inventory impairment cleargf $28.1 million associated wii
communities, with a post-impairment fair value &9 million . In 2011 , we recognized inventoryparment charges d22.7 millior
associated with 12 communities or land parceldh wipost-impairment fair value of $34.0 millioThe higher level of inventory impairm:
charges in 2012 and 201tompared to 2013, reflected challenging econ@nit housing market conditions in certain of ouvedmmarkets i
each of those years. In addition, the inventorydimpent charges we recognized in 2012 were paudytd changes in our operational or se
strategy for certain communities in an effort toelerate sales pace and/or our return on investrire8011, the inventory impairment char
included an $18.1 milliomdjustment to the fair value of real estate calidten our Southwest homebuilding reporting segnthat we too
back on a note receivable. In some cases, we leggmized inventory impairment charges for paricidommunities or land parcels
multiple years. Inventory impairment charges amfuided in construction and land costs in our cadatgd statements of operations.

As of November 30, 2013the aggregate carrying value of our inventoryt theed been impacted by inventory impairment chakgas
$293.1 million , representing 42 communities andoues other land parcels. As of November 30, 2012 aggregate carrying value of
inventory that had been impacted by inventory impaint charges was $307.2 million , representingd®munities and various other
parcels.

Our inventory controlled under land option contsaahd other similar contracts is assessed to deterwhether it continues to meet
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned lawélpan a quarterly basis and are affe
by the following factors relative to the marketvitiich the asset is located, among others: curmeaoa anticipated net orders, average se
prices and volume of homes delivered; estimated thevelopment and home construction costs; aneqtesj profitability on expected futt
housing or land sales. When a decision is madéonatercise certain land option contracts and ahmeilar contracts due to market conditi
and/or changes in our marketing strategy, we vaitehe related inventory costs, including non-refable deposits and unrecoverable pri
acquisition costs. Based on the results of our sassents, we recognized land option contract abandnh charges of$3.2 millior
corresponding to 295 lots in 2013 , $.4 millionresponding to 446 lots in 2012 , and $3.1 milliamresponding to 830 lots in 201We
sometimes walk away from land option contractstbeosimilar contracts when we have incurred costess than $100,000; such costs art
included in the amounts above. Land option contedi@indonment charges are included in constructmhland costs in our consolida
statements of operations.

The estimated remaining life of each communityaord parcel in our inventory depends on varioufactsuch as the total number of
remaining; the expected timeline to acquire andleriand and develop lots to build homes; the @péited future net order and cancella
rates; and the expected timeline to build and delivomes sold. While it is difficult to determinepaecise timeframe for any partict
inventory asset, we estimate our inventory assetsiaining operating lives under current and expmedéteure market conditions to rar
generally from one year to in excess of 10 yedased on current market conditions and expectadedgltimelines, we expect to realize,
an overall basis, the majority of our current ineep balance within five years.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied ineténation process with respect to inventory impeints, land option contre
abandonments, the remaining operating lives ofimugntory assets and the realization of our inventmlances, particularly as to invent
held for future development, it is possible thatatresults could differ substantially from thasgimated.

Note 8. Variable Interest Entities

We participate in joint ventures from time to tii&t conduct land acquisition, land development@ndther homebuilding activities
various markets where our homebuilding operatiord@cated. Our investments in these joint ventunag create a variable interest iVHe,
depending on the contractual terms of the arrangerifée analyze our joint ventures in accordancé WSC 810to determine whether th
are VIEs and, if so, whether we are the primaryefierary. None of our joint ventures at November 2013 and 201%ere determined unc
the provisions of ASC 810 to be VIEs. All of ouirjbventures were unconsolidated and accountedrfder the equity method because we
not have a controlling financial interest.

In the ordinary course of our business, we entar land option contracts and other similar consact acquire rights to land for 1
construction of homes. The use of such land opt@niracts and other similar contracts generallyvad us to reduce the market risks assoc
with direct land ownership and development, andetluce our capital and financial commitments, idig
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interest and other carrying costs. Under such aotsty we typically pay a specified option or earmesney deposit in consideration for the r
to purchase land in the future, usually at a perdeined price.

We analyze each of our land option contracts ahdragimilar contracts under the provisions of ASKD & determine whether the Iz
seller is a VIE and, if so, whether we are the priynbeneficiary. Although we do not have legaktiib the underlying land, ASC 810 requ
us to consolidate a VIE if we are determined tdHmeprimary beneficiary. In determining whether ave the primary beneficiary, we consi
among other things, whether we have the power tectithe activities of the VIE that most signifitlgnimpact the VIES economi
performance. Such activities would include, amotigpthings, determining or limiting the scope argose of the VIE, selling or transferr
property owned or controlled by the VIE, or arranggfinancing for the VIE. As a result of our an&gswe determined that as of Novembe
2013 and 2012 we were not the primary beneficidrgny VIEs from which we have acquired rights todaunder land option contracts i
other similar contracts.

The following table presents a summary of our dés in land option contracts and other similarti@ats (in thousands):

November 30, 2013 November 30, 2012
Cash Aggregate Cash Aggregate
Deposits Purchase Price Deposits Purchase Price
Unconsolidated VIEs $ 11,060 $ 616,000 $ 8,46: $ 327,19t
Other land option contracts and other similar cacts 30,50z 535,49¢ 17,21¢ 298,13¢
$ 4156 $ 1,151,491 $ 25,68: $ 625,33!

In addition to the cash deposits presented in db&etabove, our exposure to loss related to out &gtion contracts and other sim
contracts with third parties and unconsolidatedtiestconsisted of pre-acquisition costs of $31ilion at November 30, 2013 ar5.«
million at November 30, 2012. These @eguisition costs and cash deposits were includéaventories in our consolidated balance sheet
also had outstanding letters of credit of $.1 wiilat November 30, 2013 and $.5 millianNovember 30, 2012 in lieu of cash deposits L
certain land option contracts and other similartamts.

We also evaluate our land option contracts andratimeilar contracts for financing arrangements é@eadance with ASC 47@&nd, as
result of our evaluations, increased inventorieith & corresponding increase to accrued expensgstiner liabilities, in our consolidat
balance sheets by $8.9 million at November 30, 204B%$4.1 million at November 30, 2012 .

Note 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Venture

We have investments in unconsolidated joint versttinat conduct land acquisition, land developmeni@ other homebuilding activiti
in various markets where our homebuilding operati@me located. Our partners in these unconsolidgged ventures are unrelal
homebuilders, and/or land developers and other es@te entities, or commercial enterprises. Th@gestments are designed primarily
reduce market and development risks and to incriessaumber of lots we own or control. In someanses, participating in unconsolide
joint ventures has enabled us to acquire and dp\ala that we might not otherwise have had aciwedse to a proje’s size, financing neec
duration of development or other circumstances.l®Mie consider our participation in unconsolidgt@dt ventures as potentially beneficia
our homebuilding activities, we do not view suchtjggpation as essential.

We typically have obtained rights to acquire porsi@f the land held by the unconsolidated jointtvess in which we currently participe
When an unconsolidated joint venture sells landuohomebuilding operations, we defer recognitibowr share of such unconsolidated |
ventures earnings until a home sale is closed and tittsgmto a homebuyer, at which time we accountfise earnings as a reduction of
cost of purchasing the land from the unconsolid@ged venture.

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnerkemaitial and/or ongoing capital contributionstt®se unconsolidated joint ventu
typically on a pro rata basis, equal to our respeceéquity interests. The obligations to make @piontributions are governed by e
unconsolidated joint venture’s respective operatiggeement and related governing documents.

Each unconsolidated joint venture is obligated sontain financial statements in accordance with @A eshare in the profits and los:
of these unconsolidated joint ventures generallgdoordance with our respective equity interdstsome instances, we recognize profits
losses related to our investment in an uncons@igdint venture that differ from our equity intstén the unconsolidated joint venture. 1
may arise from impairments that we recognize rdlate our investment that differ from the impairn®ithe unconsolidated joint vent
recognizes with respect to the unconsolidated jegnitures assets; differences between our basis in assethawe transferred to 1
unconsolidated joint venture and the unconsolidpdtied venture’s basis in those assets; our ddfefrthe unconsolidated joint ventuseprofits
from land sales to us; or other items.
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With respect to our investments in unconsolidatgdtjventures, our equity in loss of unconsolidg@dt ventures included impairme
charges of $53.7 million in 2011There were no such impairment charges in 20130&2. In 2011, the impairment charge reflectedvihite
off of our remaining investment in South Edge, sidential development joint venture in our Southwesmebuilding reporting segment. '
wrote off our remaining investment based on oueeination that South Edge was no longer able tibpa its originally intended activitit
following a 2011 court decision to enter an ordamrrelief on a Chapter 11 involuntary bankruptctitpn filed against South Edge.

The following table presents combined condensedrimétion from the statements of operations of cwonsolidated joint ventures
thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues $ 17,44¢ $ 3L,77: $ 23(
Construction and land costs (20,709 (21,467 (59
Other expenses, net (4,047 (2,009 (4,50€)
Income (loss) $ 2,69t % 8,29¢ $ (4,330

For the years ended November 30, 2013 and 2012hineh revenues, construction and land costs, atmhia from our unconsolidat
joint ventures primarily reflected land sales coatgdl by an unconsolidated joint venture in Marylz

The following table presents combined condensegnoal sheet information for our unconsolidated jearitures (in thousands):

November 30,

2013 2012

Assets

Cash $ 18,75. $ 29,72:

Receivables 4,90z 6,10¢

Inventories 381,19! 352,79:

Other assets 1,18: 1,17¢
Total assets $ 406,03. $ 389,79:
Liabilities and equity

Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 85,38t $ 88,02

Equity 320,64t 301,76¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 406,03. $ 389,79

The following table presents information relatiogour investments in unconsolidated joint ventdedlars in thousands):

November 30,

2013 2012
Number of investments in unconsolidated joint vessu 9 8
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 130,19 $ 123,67-
Number of unconsolidated joint venture lots corn¢mlunder land option contracts or other similar

contracts 5,36 4,94(

As of November 30, 2013 and 2012, our total amofiitivestments in unconsolidated joint ventures laagely comprised of investme
in Inspirada Builders, LLC, as described below, arjdint venture in California.

Our unconsolidated joint ventures finance land iandntory investments for a project through a wgr@f arrangements, and certain of
unconsolidated joint ventures have obtained loams thirdparty lenders that are secured by the underlyinggnty and related project ass
However, none of our unconsolidated joint venturad outstanding debt at November 30, 2013 or 2012.

85




Table of Contents

In 2011, we recognized an aggregate loss on loaragty charge of $30.8 millioim our consolidated statements of operations rel&d
our investment in South Edge, which underwent &hagricy reorganization in that year. This chargauted from our recording a proba
obligation related to a contingent payment guardahat we had provided to the administrative agentttie lenders to South Edge and
bankruptcy cours confirmation of the consensual plan of reorgaimmafor South Edge, and took into account accruashad previous
established with respect to our investment in Sdtdge. The loss on loan guaranty charge was intiaddio the joint venture impairme
charge of $53.7 milliotthat we recognized in 2011 to write off our remagninvestment in South Edge. In connection withré@rganizatio
plan for South Edge and the resolution of otherenatsurrounding South Edge, we made payments5f.82nillionin the fourth quarter
2011, including a payment to the administrativeragerhich satisfied the respective liens of the muistrative agent and most of the Sc
Edge lenders on the land South Edge owned. Acagisdiour obligations under the contingent paymardrgnty were eliminated.

Our investments in unconsolidated joint venturesfadovember 30, 2013 and 2012 included our investnof $75.9 million an&71.(
million , respectively, in Inspirada Builders, LLC, an unsolidated joint venture that was formed in 201Tamnection with the consens
plan of reorganization plan for South Edge, andvirich a subsidiary that is 100% owned by us is anber. As part of the terms of 1
reorganization plan for South Edge, land previoustned by the South Edge joint venture, including share that consists of approxima
600 developable acres, was acquired by Inspirada Busildd C in November 2011. We anticipate that wel aidquire our share of the le
from Inspirada Builders, LLC through a future distition.

Note 10. Other Asset:
Other assets consisted of the following (in thodsn

November 30,

2013 2012
Cash surrender value of insurance contracts $ 68,53¢ $ 64,75’
Debt issuance costs (a) 27,36¢ 14,56
Property and equipment, net 8,46( 7,92(
Prepaid expenses 2,71¢ 7,81(
Total $ 107,07¢ $ 95,05(

(&) The increase in debt issuance costs as of Nove&ihet013 compared to November 30, 2012 primariliecéed the costs associated v
our underwritten public issuances of the 1.375%wedible Senior Notes due 2019 and the 7.00% Sevates due 2021, and our er
into the Credit Facility during 2013.

Note 11. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilitie
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consistetti®@following (in thousands):

November 30,

2013 2012

Self-insurance and other litigation liabilities $ 99,61: $ 107,11:
Employee compensation and related benefits 99,33: 97,18¢
Warranty liability 48,70 47,82:
Accrued interest payable 45,56: 47,39.
Inventory-related obligations 29,51° 11,67«
Real estate and business taxes 8,131 8,45:
Other 25,31¢ 20,70

Total $ 356,17¢ $ 340,34!
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Note 12. Income Taxe:

Income Tax Benefit (Expens&he components of income tax benefit (expensehencbnsolidated statements of operations are ksvi
(in thousands):

Federal State Total

2013
Current $ — 3 1,60C $ 1,60(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit $ — % 1,60C $ 1,60(

2012
Current $ 16,50C $ 3,60 $ 20,10(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit $ 16,50 $ 3,60C $ 20,10(

2011
Current $ 2,600 $ (200 $ 2,40(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 2,600 $ (200 $ 2,40¢

We recognized an income tax benefit of $1.6 millior2013 , $20.1 million in 2012 and $2.4 milliam2011. The income tax benefit 1
2013 was due to the resolution of a state tax awdiich resulted in a refund receivable of $1.4lioil , as well as the recognition
unrecognized tax benefits of $1.0 million , padi§set by the state tax liability of $.8 millioriThe income tax benefit of $20.1 million 2012
primarily reflected the resolution of federal artdts tax audits, which also resulted in the retibnaof $1.2 millionof deferred tax assets. 1
income tax benefit in 2011 reflected the reversal $2.6 millionliability for unrecognized tax benefits due to #tatus of federal and state
audits. Due to the effects of our deferred tax tagakiation allowances, carrybacks of our NOL, ahdnges in our unrecognized tax bene
our effective tax rates in 2013, 2012 and 2011natemeaningful items as our income tax amountsnateadirectly correlated to the amoun
our pretax income (loss) for those periods.

Deferred Income Taxe®eferred income taxes result from temporary diffiers in the financial and tax basis of assets mtfilifies.
Significant components of our deferred tax lialdhtand assets are as follows (in thousands):
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November 30,

2013 2012
Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalized expenses $ 87,59¢ $ 76,11:
State taxes 62,88¢ 64,57
Depreciation and amortization 30C —
Other 20¢ 21¢
Total $ 150,99 $ 140,90
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory impairments and land option contract aloements $ 110,74 $ 132,09¢
NOL from 2006 through 2013 459,88! 442 ,62.
Warranty, legal and other accruals 50,11( 54,74«
Employee benefits 73,03¢ 68,64+
Partnerships and joint ventures 122,08: 132,85:
Depreciation and amortization — 7,461
Capitalized expenses 9,35¢ 6,64¢
Tax credits 173,28t 169,17:
Deferred income 65€ 66¢
Other 11,26" 6,107
Total 1,010,43 1,021,02
Valuation allowance (859,44() (880,11
Total 150,99: 140,90
Net deferred tax assets $ — § —

Reconciliation of Expected Income Tax Benefit (BspgThe income tax benefit (expense) computed at detsry U.S. federal incor
tax rate and the income tax benefit provided inciiesolidated statements of operations differ dsvis (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Income tax benefit (expense) computed at statusiey $ (13,427 $ 27,67: $ 63,39’
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit (1,949 9,94¢ 4,691
Reserve and deferred income (1,809 (9,14¢) (1,167
Capitalized expenses — 7,96( (3,507
Basis in joint ventures (9,599 42,50: 4,401
NOL reconciliation (3,806 (5,34 71t
Inventory impairments 2,82 (59,409 (1,857)
Recognition of federal and state tax benefits 1,60(C 17,65( 2,60(
Tax credits 2,67¢ 17,88¢ 5,471
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 20,67: (32,28¢) (76,74%)
Depreciation and amortization 4,52: 2,48: —
Other, net (112 174 4,38(
Income tax benefit $ 1600 $ 20,10C  § 2,40(

Valuation Allowanceln accordance with ASC 74Qye evaluate our deferred tax assets quarterly termiéne if adjustments to t
valuation allowance are required. ASC 740 requiheé companies assess whether a valuation allowsinmeld be established based or
consideration of all available positive and negatvidence using a “more likely than not” standaitth
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respect to whether deferred tax assets will bazexhlThe ultimate realization of deferred tax assetseddp primarily on the generation
future taxable income. The value of our deferredassets will depend on applicable income tax rddesing 2013, we reduced the valua
allowance by $20.7 millioto account for adjustments to our deferred taxtassesociated with the pretax income generateagltine year ar
the loss of state NOLs due to the expiration ofapplicable statute of limitations. During 2012 &t 1, we recorded valuation allowance
$32.3 million and $76.7 million respectively, against net deferred tax assetergid primarily from the pretax losses for thosarg. One «
the primary pieces of negative evidence that wesicen in evaluating the need for a valuation alloeais our thregear cumulative lo:
position, which is largely the result of our preti@msses in 2012 and 2011, as we generated pretanim in 2013. In 2013, we had t
consecutive quarters of pretax income and haveriexqped year-oveyear increases in our homes delivered, revenuassitg gross prol
margin and net orders. In addition, our backlogigat November 30, 2013 was higher than at Novel®®eR012. If such positive trends
our business continue, together with improvementhdusing markets and the homebuilding industryl &e are profitable on a sustai
basis, we believe that there could be sufficiersitp@ evidence to support reducing a large portibaur valuation allowance during 2014.

The majority of the tax benefits associated with BOL can be carried forward for 2@ears and applied to offset future taxable inci
The federal NOL carryforwards of $329.0 milliorf not utilized, will begin to expire in 2030 throu@033. The state NOL carryforwards
$130.9 million will begin to expire between 2014da2033 if not utilized. During 2013, $3.5 milliaf state NOL carryforwards expired.

In addition, $84.4 million of our tax credits, ibnhutilized, will begin to expire in 2015 through33 . Included in the $84.4 million a$&.¢
million of investment tax credits, of which $7.0llain and $.8 million will expire in 2026 and 2027espectively.

We had no net deferred tax assets at November0d3, @ 2012 as we maintained a full valuation alloee against our deferred tax as
The deferred tax asset valuation allowance decdets&859.4 million at November 30, 2013 from $88fillion at November 30, 201
reflecting a reduction of $20.7 millicdue to the use of deferred tax assets to offseindwne taxes associated with the net income g
during 2013, and the loss of certain state NOLstdube expiration of the applicable statute ofiations. To the extent we generate suffic
taxable income in the future to fully utilize thextbenefits of the related deferred tax assetsexpect our effective tax rate to decrease a
valuation allowance is reversed.

Unrecognized Tax BenefitSross unrecognized tax benefits are the differebetseen a tax position taken or expected to benték a ta
return, and the benefit recognized for accountingpses. A reconciliation of the beginning and agdialances of the gross unrecognize:
benefits, excluding interest and penalties, isollews (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year $ 1,671 $ 1,89¢ $ 11,30¢
Additions for tax positions related to prior years — — 5
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years — (16%5) —
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations (1,465 (63 (2,476
Reductions due to resolution of federal and stathts — — (6,93¢)
Balance at end of year $ 20€  § 1671 $ 1,89¢

W e recognize accrued interest and penalties retatadrecognized tax benefits in our consolidatedritial statements as a compone
the provision for income taxes. As of November2®]3 , 2012 and 2011 , there were $.3 million 3$iillion and $1.8 million respectively
of gross unrecognized tax benefits (including ies¢rand penalties), that if recognized would affaat annual effective tax rate. Our t
accrued interest and penalties related to unrezednincome tax benefits was $.3 million at NovenBir 2013 and $.6 millioral
November 30, 201. Our liabilities for unrecognized tax benefitsNavember 30, 2013 and 20&Pe included in accrued expenses and
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets.

Included in the balance of gross unrecognized txebits at November 30, 2013 and 2012 were taxtiposi of $.2 million andbl.(
million , respectively, for which the ultimate deductilyilis highly certain but the timing of such deduiliip is uncertain. Because of t
impact of deferred tax accounting, other than egeland penalties, the disallowance of the shaleductibility period would not affect ¢
annual effective tax rate, but would accelerateptdagment of cash to a tax authority to an earleriqal.

As of November 30, 2013 , our gross unrecognizedonefits (including interest and penalties) ®dab.5 million. We anticipate th
these gross unrecognized tax benefits will decrbgse amount ranging from $.1 million to $.3 nailli during
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the 12 months from this reporting date due to veristate filings associated with the resolutiom ééderal audit. The fiscal years ending 2
and later remain open to federal and state exaioisat

The benefits of our NOL, built-in losses and tardits would be reduced or potentially eliminatedvé experienced anotvnershij
change”under Section 382. Based on our analysis perforasedf November 30, 2013, we do not believe thathaee experienced
ownership change as defined by Section 382, ardefitre, the NOL, builin losses and tax credits we have generated simatlde subject-
a Section 382 limitation as of this reporting date.

Note 13. Mortgages and Notes Payab
Mortgages and notes payable consisted of the follg\{in thousands):

November 30,

2013 2012

Mortgages and land contracts due to land sellaed#rer loans (at interest rates of 7% at Nover3be
2013 and 6% to 7% at November 30, 2012) $ 13,61 $ 52,31:
5 3/4% Senior notes due February 1, 2014 — 75,91
5 7/8% Senior notes due January 15, 2015 — 101,99¢
6 1/4% Senior notes due June 15, 2015 199,86- 236,82t
9.10% Senior notes due September 15, 2017 262,04¢ 261,43(
7 1/4% Senior notes due June 15, 2018 299,26 299,12¢
8.00% Senior notes due March 15, 2020 345,71( 345,20¢
7.00% Senior notes due December 15, 2021 450,00( —
7.50% Senior notes due September 15, 2022 350,00( 350,00(
1.375% Convertible senior notes due February 19201 230,00t —
Total $ 2,150,49: $ 1,722,81!

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilitn March 12, 2013, we entered into the Credit Rgailith a syndicate of financial institutions. 1
Credit Facility will mature on March 12, 2016 . Teedit Facility contains an uncommitted accordion featungler which its aggrege
principal amount can be increased to up to $300GlU&bmunder certain conditions and the availability ofliéidnal bank commitments, as w
as a sublimit of $100.0 milliofor the issuance of letters of credit, which mayubiBzed in combination with, or to replace, th®C Facilities
Interest on amounts borrowed under the Credit Baddl payable quarterly in arrears at a rate baseeither the London Interbank Offe
Rate or a base rate, plus a spread that depenadsraiebt rating and Leverage Ratio, as defined utite Credit Facility. The Credit Facil
also requires the payment of a commitment fee ranfiom .50% to .75%f the unused commitment, based on our debt raimhLeverag
Ratio. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we aequired, among other things, to maintain coamglé with various covenants, includ
financial covenants relating to consolidated talggiiet worth, the Leverage Ratio, and either aer@st coverage ratio or a minimum leve
liquidity, each as defined therein. The amounthef Credit Facility available for cash borrowingstlee issuance of letters of credit depend
the total cash borrowings and letters of credistantding under the Credit Facility and the maximawailable amount under the terms of
Credit Facility. As of November 30, 2013, we hadaash borrowings or letters of credit outstandingarmthe Credit Facility and we F
$200.0 million available for cash borrowings, with to $100.0 million available for the issuancéetfers of credit.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are requirecbe unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severay certain of our subsidiaries (!
“Guarantor Subsidiaries”) that meet the definitafra “significant subsidiary” as defined by Rul®2-of Regulation S-X using a 5éather tha
a 10% threshold, provided that the assets of onrguarantor subsidiaries do not in the aggregateaxk 10%of an adjusted measure of
consolidated total assets. Each of the Guarantbsi8iaries is a 100%wned subsidiary of ours. We may also cause otliasigiaries of oul
to become Guarantor Subsidiaries if we believe g in our or the relevant subsidiary’s best edts.

Letter of Credit FacilitiesWe maintain the LOC Facilities with various finaaldinstitutions to obtain letters of credit in thedinary cours
of operating our business. As of November 30, 2608 2012, $41.5 million and $41.9 millignrespectively, of letters of credit w
outstanding under the LOC FacilitieBhe LOC Facilities require us to deposit and mantash with the issuing financial institutions
collateral for our letters of credit outstandige may maintain, revise or, if necessary or dekradnter into additional or expanded lette
credit facilities, or other similar facility arraements, with the same or other financial institgio
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Mortgages and Land Contracts Due to Land Sellerd @ther LoansAs of November 30, 2013, inventories having a dagwalue o
$37.9 million were pledged to collateralize mortgagnd land contracts due to land sellers and tithes.

Shelf RegistrationWe have an automatically effective universal sthreljistration statement on file with the SEC. Thel2GGhel
Registration registers the offering of debt anditycggecurities that we may issue from time to tim@mounts to be determined.

Senior NotesAll of our senior notes outstanding at November 313 and 2012 represent senior unsecured obligatiank equally |
right of payment with all of our existing and futumdebtedness and are unconditionally guarantgietlyj and severally by the Guarar
Subsidiaries on a senior unsecured basis. At otiorgpthese notes may be redeemed, in whole atiemgyor from time to time in part, a
redemption price equal to the greater of (a) 100%he principal amount of the notes being redeearsdl (b) the sum of the present value
the remaining scheduled payments of principal amerést on the notes being redeemed discountdietoeiemption date at a defined 1
plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interetsteonotes being redeemed to the applicable redemgtte.

On January 28, 2004, we issued the 5 3/4% SenitesNtue 2014 at 99.474% of the $250.0 mililmmaggregate principal amount of th
notes in a private placement. On June 16, 2004exebanged all of the privately placed 5 3/4% Seiotes due 2014 for notes that
substantially identical except that the new 5 38&fior Notes due 2014 are registered under theriBeswAct of 1933.

On December 15, 2004, pursuant to the shelf registr statement filed with the SEC on November 2Q04 (the 2004 Shel
Registration”), we issued the 5 7/8% Senior Notes 2015 at 99.357% of the $300.0 million in aggtegmincipal amount of these notes.

On June 2, 2005, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Ragjitr, we issued $300.0 million of the 6 1/4% SeMotes due 2015 at 99.5338bthe
aggregate principal amount of these notes, andioa 47, 2005, issued $150.0 million additional senbtes in the same series at 100.614%
the aggregate principal amount of these notes.

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to the shelf registrasimtement filed with the SEC on October 17, 20@8jssued the 9.10%enior notes dt
2017 (the “9.10% Senior Notes due 2017") at 98.0b4%he $265.0 milliorin aggregate principal amount of these notes. Ve ssbstantial
all of the net proceeds from the issuance of ti©%. Senior Notes due 2017 to purchase, pursuaatsimnultaneous tender offe$250.(
million in aggregate principal amount of the 6 3/&#nior Notes due 2011. On August 15, 2011, weideipa remaining $100.0 milliom
aggregate principal amount of the 6 3/8% SenioeBldue 2011 at their maturity.

On April 3, 2006, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Regt&in, we issued the 7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2088.486% of the $300.0 millian
aggregate principal amount of these notes.

On February 7, 2012, pursuant to the 2011 ShelfdRagjon, we issued the 8.00% Senior Notes du® 2088.523% of th§350.0 millior
in aggregate principal amount of these notes. Ve gsibstantially all of the net proceeds from tbssiance to purchase, pursuant to the 1
of the applicable January 2012 Tender Offers, $Badllion in aggregate principal amount of portions of eatthe 5 3/4% Senior Notes ¢
2014, the 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015 and thel® Benior Notes due 2015. The total amount paiputghase these senior notes
$340.5 million . We incurred a $2.0 millidoss on the early extinguishment of debt in 201 ua premium paid under the applicable Jar
2012 Tender Offers and the unamortized originalésdiscount.

On July 31, 2012, pursuant to the 2011 Shelf Regdien, we issued the 7.50% Senior Notes due 202D@% of the $350.0 milliom
aggregate principal amount of these notes. We $288.2 millionof the net proceeds from this issuance to purctasspant to the terms
the applicable July 2012 Tender Offers, $244.9iamlln aggregate principal amount of portions of eatthe 5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2C
the 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015 and the 6 1/4%o6Biotes due 2015. We used the remaining net pasérom this issuance for gen
corporate purposes. We incurred an $8.3 millass on the early extinguishment of debt in 2012 thua premium paid under the applici
July 2012 Tender Offers and the unamortized origssae discount.

On October 29, 2013, pursuant to the 2011 Shelfs€Reagjon, we issued the 7.00% Senior Notes dud 20200% of the $450.0 millian
aggregate principal amount of these notes. We $228.4 million of the net proceeds from this isszeato purchase $19.7 million aggregat
principal amount of the 5 3/4% Senior Notes due42@&DB1.1 millionin aggregate principal amount of the 5 7/8% SeNotes due 2015 a
$37.0 millionin aggregate principal amount of the 6 1/4% SeNiotes due 2015, pursuant to the terms of the aggkcOctober 2013 Tenc
Offers, and to redeem the remaining $56.3 millioraggregate principal amount of the 5 3/4% Seniotebl due 2014 and $11.0 milligm
aggregate principal amount of the 5 7/8% SenioreSlatue 2015 that were not purchased in the appicattober 2013 Tender Offers. 7
October 2013 Tender Offers expired on Novembe023. We plan to use the remaining net proceeds this issuance for general corpo
purposes. We incurred
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a $10.4 millionloss on the early extinguishment of debt in 2018 thua premium paid under the applicable Octobdr3Z0ender Offer:
premiums paid to redeem the applicable remainingps@otes, and the unamortized original issuealiat associated with these senior notes.

If a change in control occurs as defined in thérimsents governing our senior notes, we would loiired to offer to purchase all of «
outstanding senior notes (with the exception ofaheunts outstanding related to our 6 1/4% SenmedNdue 2015 and our 7 1/4% Se
Notes due 2018) at 101% of their principal amotogether with all accrued and unpaid interestnif.i

Convertible Senior Note€@n January 29, 2013 and February 4, 2013, purg¢adahe 2011 Shelf Registration, we issued in arenndtter
public offering the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notlese 2019 at 100% of the $230.0 millisnaggregate principal amount of these notes
issuance on February 4, 2013 was made pursuanétexiercise of an option granted to the underriterpurchase such notes to cover ove
allotments. Interest on the 1.375% Convertible &eNtes due 2019, which represent senior unseabkghtions of ours and rank equally
right of payment with all of our other senior ungesdd indebtedness, is payable seamitually in arrears on February 1 and Augu
commencing on August 1, 2013. We will also payrese on November 1, 2018. The 1.375% ConvertiblfeddeNotes due 2019 will mature
February 1, 2019, unless converted earlier by thidens, at their option, or redeemed by us, or Ipaged by us at the option of the holi
following the occurrence of a fundamental changejefined in the instruments governing the 1.37586v€rtible Senior Notes due 2019.

At any time prior to the close of business on thsiess day immediately preceding the maturity ,dadéders may convert all or @
portion of their 1.375% Convertible Senior Noteg @019. The 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes dué® 20& initially convertible into shat
of our common stock at a conversion rate of 36.528ifes for each $1,000 principal amount of thesyathich represents an initial convers
price of approximately $27.37 per share and a cmnwe premium of approximately 47#%ased on the closing price of our common stoc
January 29, 2013, which was $18.62 per share. imhial conversion rate equates to 8,401,8B&res of our common stock. The convel
rate is subject to adjustment upon the occurrehcertain events, including: subdivisions and camatibns of our common stock; the issuz
of stock dividends, or certain rights, options @rrants, capital stock, indebtedness, assets brdigislends to all or substantially all holder:
our common stock; and certain issuer tender oran@h offers. The conversion rate will not, howeber adjusted for other events, such
third party tender or exchange offer or an issuafc@mmmon stock for cash or an acquisition, thayrmdversely affect the trading price of
notes or our common stock. On conversion, holdetsen1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 mall be entitled to receive cash in
of shares of our common stock, except for caskeindf fractional shares.

We may not redeem the 1.375% Convertible Senioe&ldtie 2019 prior to November 6, 2018. On or &ftarember 6, 2018, and prior
the stated maturity date, we may at our option eedall or part of the 1.375% Convertible Senior édotlue 2019 for a cash price equi
100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeenpégs accrued and unpaid interest to, but notmliolg, the redemption date. |
fundamental change, as defined in the instrumemisrging the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes duE92@ccurs prior to the stated matu
date, the holders may require us to purchase fein @l or any portion of their 1.375% Convertiblen®r Notes due 2019 at 1008b the
principal amount of the notes, plus accrued anaighimterest to, but not including, the fundamewtange purchase date.

The 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 atly fand unconditionally guaranteed jointly and seMg by the Guarant
Subsidiaries. We used the $222.7 milliartotal net proceeds from the issuance of the52@Tonvertible Senior Notes due 2019 together
the total net proceeds from a concurrent undemvrigtublic offering of our common stock, which isdébed in Note 17. Stockholde&sguity,
for general corporate purposes, including for itwemts in land and land development.

The indenture governing the senior notes and tB&5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 does notagomany financial covenan
Subject to specified exceptions, the indenture aiogtcertain restrictive covenants that, amongrathiags, limit our ability to incur secur
indebtedness, or engage in sale-leaseback tramssdtivolving property or assets above a certagtifipd value.In addition, the 1.375'
Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 and all of thréasenotes (with the exception of the 6 1/4% SeiNotes due 2015 and the 7 1/4% Se
Notes due 201¢&contain certain limitations related to mergers,saidations, and sales of assets.

As of November 30, 2013ve were in compliance with the applicable termalbbur covenants under the Credit Facility, theisenotes
the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019, denture, and the mortgages and land contractsadland sellers and other loans.
ability to access the Credit Facility for cash loarings and letters of credit and our ability towsecfuture debt financing depend, in part, or
ability to remain in such complianc®ur inability to do so could make it more diffic@hd expensive to maintain our current level oEma
debt financing or to obtain additional financinghere are no agreements that restrict our paymemtividends other than to mainti
compliance with the financial covenant requiremanmtsler the Credit Facility, which would restrictrguayment of dividends if there i
default under the Credit Facility existing at thmd of any such payment, or if any such paymentlevaesult in such a default.
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Principal payments on senior notes, mortgages and tontracts due to land sellers and other loamsdae during each year en
November 30 as follows: 20— $8.8 million ; 2015— $204.7 million ; 2016 — $@017 — $262.0 million ; 2018 — $299.3 milligranc
thereafter — $1.38 billion .

Note 14. Fair Value Disclosure:

ASC 820provides a framework for measuring the fair valfiagsets and liabilities under GAAP, and estabfishéair value hierarchy tf
requires an entity to maximize the use of obsee/@ighuts and minimize the use of unobservable mputen measuring fair valu&he fail
value hierarchy can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeantarkets for identical assets or liabilit

Level 2 Fair value determined using significant observaibpits, such as quoted prices for similar asset&@bilities or quoted price
for identical or similar assets or liabilities inarkets that are not active, inputs other than gluptéces that are observable
the asset or liability, or inputs that are deriyethcipally from or corroborated by observable neritata, by correlation or ott
means.

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsemalniputs, such as pricing models, discounted céshsf or simila
techniques.

Fair value measurements are used for inventories monrecurring basis when events and circumstandasate the carrying value is |
recoverableThe following table presents the fair value hiehgrand our assets measured at fair value on a cumieg basis for the ye:
ended November 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value
November 30, November 30,
Description Hierarchy 2013 (a) 2012 (a)
Long-lived assets held and used Level 3 $ 1,147 % 39,85

(&) Amounts represent the aggregate fair value for conities or land parcels where we recognized inugnitapairment charges during 1
period, as of the date that the fair value measenésnwere made. The carrying value for these contiasiror land parcels may he
subsequently increased or decreased from thedhieveflected due to activity that has occurredesithe measurement date.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 360, Idéngd assets held and used with a carrying valugldd millionwere written down 1
their fair value of $1.1 million during the yeardsd November 30, 2013, resulting in inventory impant charges of $.4 million . Longed
assets held and used with a carrying value of $&8lllon were written down to their fair value 0f3$.9 million during the year end
November 30, 201, resulting in inventory impairment charges of $2hillion .

The fair values for londjved assets held and used that were determinedj lsivel 3 inputs were primarily based on the estad futur
net cash flows discounted for inherent risk asgediavith each assets described in Note 7. Inventory Impairments aadd_Option Contra
Abandonments. The discount rates we used were beghdoy the following at the time the calculationsnaade: the riskree rate of retur
expected risk premium based on estimated land dpweint, home construction and delivery timelinearkat risk from potential future pri
erosion; cost uncertainty due to land developmeititoone construction cost increases; and other spksific to the asset or conditions in
market in which the asset is locatéithese factors were specific to each affected conitsnian land parcel and may have varied arr
communities or land parcels and may have varied tive.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eghivalents, restricted cash, senior notes, the5¥3Convertible Senior Notes due 2(
and mortgages and land contracts due to land seliet other loans. Fair value measurements ofdiabimstruments are determined by var|
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, we use quoted market piiicesctive markets to determine 1
value.

The following table presents the fair value hiengracarrying values and estimated fair values affmancial instruments, except those
which the carrying values approximate fair valuagtiousands):
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November 30,

2013 2012
Fair Value Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Hierarchy Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial Liabilities:
Senior notes Level2 $ 1,906,88 $ 2,069,322 $ 1,670,500 $ 1,831,59
1.375% Convertible senior notes due February 19 Level 2 230,00 224,82! — —

The fair values of our senior notes and the 1.3T6avertible Senior Notes due 2019 are generallynastéd based on quoted mai
prices for these instruments. The carrying valep®rted for cash and cash equivalents, restricsld, @and mortgages and land contracts ¢
land sellers and other loans approximate fair \alue

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencie

Commitments and contingencies include typical aigns of homebuilders for the completion of coctsaand those incurred in -
ordinary course of business.

Warranty. We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom@&ée specific terms and conditions of our limitedrraaty program vai
depending upon the markets in which we do busind'ssgenerally provide a structural warranty of Bang, a warranty on electrical, heati
cooling, plumbing and certain other building systeeach varying from two to five yeabsised on geographic market and state law,
warranty of one yeafor other components of the home. Our limited watyraprogram is ordinarily how we respond to andoacdt fol
homeownerstequests to local division offices seeking repairsluding claims where we could have liability @emdpplicable state statutes
tort law for a defective condition in or damagesitoome.

We estimate the costs that may be incurred undgr kmited warranty and record a liability in thenaunt of such costs at the time
revenue associated with the sale of each homedgnized Our primary assumption in estimating the amountsaaerue for warranty costs
that historical claims experience is a strong iattic of future claims experience. Factors thatcaffeir warranty liability include the number
homes delivered, historical and anticipated rafewarranty claims, and cost per claim. We periolliicassess the adequacy of our acc
warranty liability , which is included in accruedpenses and other liabilities in our consolidatathibce sheetgnd adjust the amount
necessary based on our assessntaunt.assessment includes the review of our actuedawty costs incurred to identify trends and chanig
our warranty claims experience, and considers aumnehconstruction quality and customer servicedtiites and outside eventd/hile we
believe the warranty liability currently reflectedour consolidated balance sheets to be adequideticipated changes or developments il
legal environment, local weather, land or environtak conditions, quality of materials or method®disn the construction of homes
customer service practices and the results ofrogstigation of and the repair efforts related ambs in central and southwest Florida affe
by water intrusionrelated issues could have a significant impact wnagtual warranty costs in the future and suchuatsocould differ fror
our current estimates.

The changes in our warranty liability are as foléofin thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year $ 47,82: $ 67,69: $ 93,98¢
Warranties issued (a) 14,26 8,41¢ 4,85
Payments (45,339 (19,709 (25,029
Adjustments (b) 31,95¢ (8,58¢) (6,129
Balance at end of year $ 48,70 $ 47,82: $ 67,69:

(a) The year-oveyear increase in the expense associated with wasaesued in 2013 and 2012 reflected higher mgustvenues in each
those years. Additionally, in 2013, we increasadwlarranty accrual rate per home based on ourritiat@laims experience.

(b) Adjustments in 2013 were comprised of chamggsociated with water intrusioatated issues in central and southwest Floridalewh
2012, favorable warranty adjustments were partfgetfby such water intrusiamlated charges. In 2011, favorable warranty adjast:
were partly offset by the impact of our consolidatodf a previously unconsolidated joint venture.
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Central and Southwest Florida Claim®uring 2012, we received warranty claims from homeers in certain of our communities
central and southwest Florida that primarily imezlvframing, stucco, roofing and/or sealant materfiomes we delivered between 2003
2009, many of which have resulted in water introsiglated issues. While we initially believed thessues were isolated, after additic
investigation we determined in the fourth quarte2012 that more homes and communities may have bffected. Throughout 2013,
continued our investigation in an effort to ideptthe scope of the issues, to fully understandctgses and to address them as quickly
completely as possible, and we encountered an iegohnd at times unexpected range of varied ancptmatonditions and repairs. As a res
during 2013, the number of identified affected heraad our estimate of the total repair costs aasetiwith those homes were revised upv
In addition, prior to the second quarter of 2013were unable to estimate the number of similarfgc@éd homes likely to be identified in
future and the repair costs associated with thaseels. As our assessment process and our contiffifoets ¢o identify, examine and rep
affected homes progressed during the second, dhilldourth quarters of 2013, we believed we hadimctated adequate experience with tl
water intrusionrelated issues to be able to reasonably estimabé the end of each respective period the numbeiroflarly affected home
that we believed were likely to be identified iretfuture and the probable repair costs associaitbdswch similarly affected homes, in addit
to revising the number of identified affected horaad our estimate of the repair costs associatddsuch identified affected homes. Base
the status of our ongoing investigation and regdfiorts, our overall warranty liability at Novemb8&0, 2013 included $28.9 milliofor
estimated remaining repair costs associated withdsoin central and southwest Florida that have lidentified as having water intrusion-
related issues and estimated repair costs assbeidte similarly affected homes in central and sowgst Florida that we believe are likely tc
identified in the future. As of November 30, 201fhis amount encompasses what we believe is thieapte overall cost of the repair efi
remaining before insurance and other recoveriesvader, our actual costs to fully resolve repairsafiected homes could differ from 1
overall costs we have estimated, and the differencéd be material to our consolidated financiatesnents.

As of November 30, 2013 , we had identified a tofal,464 affected homes requiring more than miepairs and resolved repairs 054
of them. During 2013, we paid $32.7 million to rgmich homes. As of November 30, 2013 , we had $3a6.7 millionof the total estimate
repair costs of $65.6 millioassociated with the affected homes that have lesniified and similarly affected homes that we dogdi are likel
to be identified in the future. Approximately half the total estimated repair costs as of Noverdber2013 related to two attachbdme
communities. We consider warramgtated repairs for homes to be resolved wherephirs are complete and all repair costs are fdigd. We
anticipate resolving repairs on homes affectechieywater intrusion-related issues by the end 01201

As discussed below, largely due to the scope ahdaaf the water intrusiorelated issues that we encountered, we recordadesiane
of estimated probable recoveries, during 2013 ¢eeimse our overall warranty liability for all of opreviously delivered homes that are cov
under our limited warranty program, including anicls homes in central and southwest Florida thatHzeen identified as having we
intrusion+elated issues and similarly affected homes inreéand southwest Florida that we believe are yilkelbe identified in the future.
addition to reflecting the remaining estimated repasts associated with homes in central and seeghFlorida that have been identifiec
having water intrusiomelated issues, the charges recorded in 2013 iedledtimated repair costs associated with simikffigcted homes
central and southwest Florida that we believe iagdyl to be identified in the future. Our investiipen and repair efforts in central and southy
Florida remain ongoing. While we have been ablentke a determination of the probable overall céghe repair effort, depending on
number of additional affected homes that are idiedtiand the actual costs we incur in future pesitalrepair identified affected homes,
may revise the estimated amount of our liabilityhwiespect to this matter, which could result inramrease or decrease in our overall wart
liability.

As of November 30, 2013, based on our investigaitito the central and southwest Florida wateusibntelated issues, we believe i
probable that we will recover a portion of our totéstimated repair costs associated with affecteahds from various sources, includ
subcontractors involved with the original constimetof the homes and their insurers, and our diresurers. Our investigation into the wi
intrusiontelated issues, including the process of determgipotentially responsible parties and our effosteitain recoveries, is ongoing, i
as a result, our estimate of probable recoverigsahange as additional information is obtained.

Allegedly Defective Drywall Material Claims During the years ended November 30, 2013, 20122811 , we paid $.5 million$2.¢
million and $13.7 million, respectively, to repair homes identified as a#dcor potentially affected by allegedly defectideywall
manufactured in China. These homes are locatetbiidg& and were primarily delivered in 2006 and 200he drywall used in the construct
of our homes is purchased and installed by subactairs. Our subcontractors obtained drywall mdtérem multiple domestic and forei
sources through late 2008. In late 2008, we diteota subcontractors to obtain only domesticallyreed drywall. Based on the significar
reduced warranty claim rate on the issue (only minal number of additional homes were identified2®13 and 2012 as containing
potentially containing allegedly defective drywallanufactured in China), previous communitige reviews we have conducted, and
domestic sourcing of drywall material since lat®&0we believe that we have identified substamntiall affected homes and will receive
most only nominal additional claims in future peiso
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As of November 30, 2013, we were a defendant inlamsuits relating to allegedly defective drywaldnufactured in China. Ora the
lawsuits is an “omnibustlass action purportedly filed on behalf of numerdiomeowners asserting claims for damages agaipsal
manufacturers, homebuilders and other partiesénstipply chain of the allegedly defective drywaliterial. This class action is now in
process of being dismissed pursuant to a finalallsbttlement of claims approved in February 20¢3he federal court judge overseeir
multidistrict litigation case —n re: Chinese Manufactured Drywall Products LidtyilLitigation (MDL-2047). We were also a defendan
onelawsuit brought in Florida state court by individlilmmeowners. Except for the Florida state cousecadhe global settlement resolvec
current claims against us, including the remairmgnibus class action (and those that have beenopsdy dismissed) in which we we
named as a defendant, and bars any future claimissagall participating defendants, including usur@otal obligation as a participati
defendant under the global settlement was $.3amilliwhich we paid on March 25, 2013. We also expeceteive certain amounts under
global settlement in 2014 based on repairs we nmt@mes of certain settlement class members. Tietiffs in the Florida state court ci
opted out of the global settlement, and we settiedcase with those plaintiffs in the third quadéf013. The case was submitted to the «
for dismissal in the first quarter of 2014.

Other Claims. With respect to potential recoveries on claingarding other homes previously delivered, we haveléred claims wi
responsible liability insurance carriers, seekiagnbursement of costs we have incurred to makereepad to handle claims. During 2012,
recognized insurance recoveries of $26.5 millikena reduction to construction and land costs mcomsolidated statements of operati
representing amounts we received from one of osuramce carriers for a portion of the claims weehtandered. We intend to continut
undertake efforts, including legal proceedingsobtain reimbursement from various sources, inclgdnbcontractors, suppliers and t
insurers, for the costs we have incurred or expedhcur to investigate and complete repairs andédfend ourselves in litigation. Giv
uncertainties in the potential outcomes of the$ertsf we have not recorded any amounts for pakfiture recoveries as of November
2013.

Overall Warranty Liability Assessmenin assessing our overall warranty liability ateporting date, we evaluate the costs for warrant
related items on a combined basis for all of o@vjmusly delivered homes that are under our limitedranty program, which would inclu
any such homes in central and southwest Floridahi#nee been identified as having water intrugieiated issues and similarly affected ho
in central and southwest Florida that we belieelifely to be identified in the future. In 2013d®d on our assessment of our overall war
liability, we recorded adjustments to increasewarranty liability by $32.0million with a corresponding charge to constructam land cos
in our consolidated statements of operations. Hjeséments reflected the remaining estimated reqmsts associated with homes in central
southwest Florida that have been identified asrmpwater intrusionelated issues and the estimated repair costs iagmavith similarl
affected homes in central and southwest Floridawiabelieve are likely to be identified in theuts, net of estimated probable recoverie
such repair costs and other adjustments.

These adjustments, which were made in each quafite®13 as our assessment process continued arghiwed more experience ¢
knowledge of the scope and nature of the wateusiin-related issues and the associated repaitsefiod costs, were largely relatedotte
attachedhome community in Florida. At this particular conmity, we determined in each of the third and foutinarters of 2013 th
additional significant and previously unanticipateggbair work would need to be undertaken, and thatcosts for certain items, includ
framing material and labor, stucco and windows, ivdoe substantially higher than previously expectétwe adjustments we made in 2013
reflected the identification of 68¥dditional affected homes at other communitieseinti@l and southwest Florida, and our estimatdéetata
number of affected homes that we believe are likelye identified in the future.

Depending on the number of additional affected lromecentral and southwest Florida that are idextibs having water intrusiaelatec
issues, and the actual costs we incur in futuregdero repair identified affected homes, our eatgof costs to repair similarly affected ho
in central and southwest Florida that we beliewelikely be identified in the future, and/or actoealestimated costs to repair homes affecte
other issues, including costs to provide affectechéowners with temporary housing, we may reviseatmeunt of our estimated liabili
which could result in an increase or decrease irogarall warranty liability. Based on our investigppn of these water intrusiaelated issue
we believe that our warranty liability is adequsdecover the estimated probable total repair costshese affected homes, similarly affes
homes that we believe are likely to be identifiedhe future and homes affected by other issuesigth we believe it is reasonably possible
our loss associated with water intrusion-relatedeés could exceed the amount accrued as of Nove3ob&013 by up to $6 million .

In 2012 and 2011, notwithstanding our actual oimested remaining repair costs related to the atlggdefective drywall material al
water intrusiorrelated issues, we had experienced favorable trendsir actual warranty costs incurred for the pyas several years wi
respect to claims relating to other warrargjated items, reflecting, among other things, augoing focus on construction quality and custc
service. Based on our assessments of these andrelfneant factors on a combined basig, determined that our overall warranty liabilitt
the end of each year was sufficient to cover owrall warranty obligations on previously deliveteaimes that are under our limited warr:
program. Additionallybased on our assessment of the trends in our viarckaims experience, and taking into account therelase in tt
overall number of homes we had delivered over the
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past several years before 2012 and the steady tr@dun our estimated remaining repair costs antiacrepair costs incurred for hon
identified as affected or potentially affected hg tallegedly defective drywall, we recorded favéeabarranty adjustments of $11.2 milligm
2012 and $7.4 milliorin 2011 as reductions to construction and landscastour consolidated statements of operationshasé period
However, as of November 30, 2012, based on oussssnt of our overall warranty liability on a comdxdl basis for all of our previou:
delivered homes that were under our limited wagaimcluding the homes identified as affected oteptially affected by the allegec
defective drywall and the increased number of hompatentially affected by water intrusiorlated issues, we recorded an adjustme
increase our overall warranty liability by $2.6 hoih in the fourth quarter of 2012 with a correspondihgrge to construction and land cos
our consolidated statements of operations.

Guaranteesln the normal course of our business, we issuaicerepresentations, warranties and guaranteggedeia our home sales ¢
land sales that may be affected by Accounting StatsdCodification Topic No. 460, “GuaranteeBdsed on historical evidence, we do
believe any potential liability with respect to $ieerepresentations, warranties or guarantees wirllchaterial to our consolidated finan
statements.

Self-InsuranceW e maintain, and require the majority of our subaetbrs to maintain, general liability insuranagc(uding constructic
defect and bodily injury coverage) and workesmpensation insurance. These insurance polic@egirus against a portion of our risk of
from claims related to our homebuilding activitissibject to certain self-insured retentions, datles and other coverage limits. We self
insure a portion of our overall risk through thee usf a captive insurance subsidiary. We also maintartain other insurance policida
Arizona, California, Colorado and Nevada, our sutb@xtors’ general liability insurance primarilykés the form of a wrapp policy, wher
eligible subcontractors are enrolled as insuredsamh project. Enrolled subcontractors contribateard the cost of the insurance and agr
pay a contractual amount in the future in the ewdra claim related to their worleor those enrolled subcontractors, we absorb tesiere
liability associated with the work performed on tnames within the applicable projects as part afauerall general liability insurance and
self-insurance through our captive insurance sidrsidWe record expenses and liabilities based on thimasd costs required to cover
selfinsured retention and deductible amounts underirgurance policies, and the estimated costs ofnfiateclaims and claim adjustme
expenses that are above our coverage limits oratfeahot covered by our insurance policies. Thetiemated costs are based on an analy:
our historical claims and industry data, and inelagh estimate of construction defect claims incllnat not yet reported.

We engage a thirgarty actuary that uses our historical claim angease data, as well as industry data, to estimatéabilities related t
unpaid claims, claim adjustment expenses, thady recoveries and incurred but not yet repodiaéms for the risks that we are assun
under our self-insuranc@hese estimates are subject to uncertainty duevéwiaty of factors, the most significant being tbeg period of tim
between the delivery of a home to a homebuyer amehva structural warranty or construction defeainelis made, and the ultimate resolu
of the construction defect claim. Though state k&ipns vary, construction defect claims are regmbind resolved over a prolonged peric
time, which can extend for 10 years or longer. Assult, the majority of the estimated liabilityates to incurred but not yet reported cla
Because the majority of our estimated liabilitieate to incurred but not yet reported claims, stiipents related to individual existing cla
generally do not significantly impact the overatimated liability. Adjustments to our liabilitigslated to homes delivered in prior years
recorded in the period in which a change in ounete occurs.

The changes in our self-insurance liability aréalews (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year $ 93,34¢ $ 94,82: % 95,66¢
Self-insurance expense (a) 8,23¢ 7,89 7,22(
Payments, net of recoveries (b) (9,379 (10,169 (8,062
Adjustments — 80C —
Balance at end of year $ 92,21« $ 93,34¢ § 94,82t

(a) These expenses are included in selling, generalaamdinistrative expenses and largely offset by rmumtions from subcontractc
participating in the wrap-up policy.

(b) Recoveries are reflected at the time we receivdgdrom subcontractors and/or their insu

The projection of losses related to these liabgitiequires actuarial assumptions that are sutgjeetriability due to uncertainties regard
construction defect claims relative to our markatsl the types of product we build, insurance inguptactices and legal or regulat
interpretations, among other factors. Key assumptitsed in these estimates include claim
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frequencies, severities and settlement patterngghwtan occur over an extended period of titmeaddition, changes in the frequency
severity of reported claims and the estimates titeselaims can impact the trends and assumptised in the actuarial analysis, which couls
material to our consolidated financial statemebise to the degree of judgment required and thenpiatefor variability in these underlyii
assumptions, our actual future costs could diffemfthose estimated .

Performance Bonds and Letters of Credlile are often required to provide to various municijiedi and other government agen
performance bonds and/or letters of credit to sedhe completion of our projects and/or in suppgrtobligations to build communi
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systachother utilities, and to support similar develamn activities by certain of o
unconsolidated joint ventures. At November 30, 2018e had $410.8 million of performance bonds add.% million of letters of cred
outstanding. At November 30, 2012 , we had $286lllom of performance bonds and $41.9 million oftées of credit outstandingf. any sucl
performance bonds or letters of credit are calleglwould be obligated to reimburse the issuer efglrformance bond or letter of credit.
do not believe that a material amount of any culyesutstanding performance bonds or letters otlitrevill be called. Performance bonds
not have stated expiration dates. Rather, we &raged from the performance bonds as the undermgnigrmance is completed. The expira
dates of some letters of credit issued in conneatith community improvements coincide with the egigd completion dates of the relz
projects or obligations. Most letters of creditwsver, are issued with an initial term of one yaad are typically extended on a yearyes
basis until the related performance obligationscarapleted.

Land Option Contractdn the ordinary course of business, we enter iaal loption contracts and other similar contracesctuire rights t
land for the construction of homes. At November3m1.3 , we had total deposits of $41.7 million mguised of $41.6 milliorof cash deposi
and $.1 million of letters of credit, to purchased having an aggregate purchase price of $1.1i6rbil Our land option contracts and ot
similar contracts generally do not contain provisioequiring our specific performance.

LeasesWe lease certain property and equipment under moetzble operating leases. Office and equipmesekare typically for terr
of three to five years and generally provide rerleypdions for terms up to an additional five yeata most cases, we expect that leases
expire will be renewed or replaced by other leasi#h similar terms. The future minimum rental payreeunder operating leases, wt
primarily consist of office leases having initialr@emaining noncancelable lease terms in excega@f/ear , are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending November 30,

2014 $ 7,15¢
2015 5,27¢
2016 3,22¢
2017 1,64¢
2018 1,09¢
Thereafter 387

Total minimum lease payments $ 18,79:

Rental expense on our operating leases was $6ibmmiit 2013 , $5.5 million in 2012 and $6.7 mitidn 2011 .

Note 16. Legal Matters

Nevada Development Contract LitigatidfB Nevada is a defendant in a case in the Eighdlicihl District Court in Clark County, Neva
entitledLas Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex R&ePartners, LLC, et al. v. KB HOME Nevada Ino 2007, LVDA agreed-
purchase from KB Nevada approximately &3es of land located near Las Vegas, Nevada. L¥Di#sequently assigned its rights to Es
KB Nevada and Essex entered into a developmenkeagmet relating to certain major infrastructure ioyj@ments. LVDA's and Essex’
complaint, initially filed in 2008, alleged that KBevada breached the development agreement, amalidged that KB Nevada frauduler
induced them to enter into the purchase and densapagreements. LVDA's and Esseienders subsequently filed related actions theat
consolidated into the LVDA/Essex matter. The cdidated plaintiffs sought rescission of the agreetser, in the alternative, compensa
damages of $55 million plus the Claimed DamagdéB. Nevada has denied the allegations, and beli@vieas meritorious defenses to
consolidated plaintiffs’ claims. At a November 18)12 hearing, the court denied all of the constéid plaintiffs’motions for summa
judgment on their claims. In addition, the courdmjed several of KB Nevada's motions for summadgioent, eliminating, among other of
consolidated plaintiffs’ claims, all claims for €rd, negligent misrepresentation, and punitive dasayVith the court decisions, the or
remaining claims against KB Nevada are for contdaehages and rescission. In August 2013, the goarited motions that further narrov
the scope of the Claimed Damages. While the ulBratcome is uncertain — we believe it is
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reasonably possible that the loss in this mattefdccange from zero to approximately $55 milliomplprejudgment interest, which could
material to our consolidated financial statement&B-Nevada believes it will be successful in deflegdagainst the consolidated plaintiffs’
remaining claims and that the consolidated pldmtifill not be awarded rescission or damages. ridrgjury trial, originally set for Septemk
2012, was recently continued again until May 20,420

Southern California Project Development Ca€m December 27, 2011, the jury in a case entilsthncia Coastal, LLC v. KB HON
Coastal Inc. et alreturned a verdict against KB HOME Coastal Incwteolly owned subsidiary of ours, and us for $9.8lion , excluding
legal fees and interest. The case related to adptidn contract and a construction agreement bEtwd@ HOME Coastal Inc. and the plaint
Based on prérial analysis, the verdict was not expected, anel and KB HOME Coastal Inc. jointly filed a motiomrf judgmer
notwithstanding the verdict and a motion for a rielal, which were heard on May 18, 2012. On May 2812, the trial court denied 1
motions and on June 4, 2012 entered a judgmenavorfof the plaintiff in the amount of $9.2 millioplus prejudgment interest
approximately $.9 million . The judgment enterefieets an earlier payment by us to the plaintiffagportion of the jurys award and does 1
include legal fees and costs and post-judgmentdsteWe had established an accrual for this matdsed on our preidgment estimate of t
probable loss. However, as a result of the trialrte decision and probable legal fees and costr@wwe recorded a charge of $8.8 millian
2012 to increase the accrual for this matter to Bidillion . On September 14, 2012, following a hearing, tte tourt awarded legal fees ¢
costs to the plaintiff of approximately $1.4 miliio In 2013, we recorded charges of $1.2 millionetitect additional pogadgment interest ai
made a partial payment of $3.0 millipwhich reduced our accrual for this matter. Onéeloer 16, 2013, an appeals court reversed, intpe
decision of the trial court. In accordance with @gnting Standards Codification Topic No. 855, “Sedpgent Events,ive reflected thi
decision in our 2013 financial statements by remgr$8.2 millionof the previously established accrual, bringing acerual balance for tt
matter to $1.7 millioras of November 30, 2013. The charges recorded 18 20d 2012 and the reversal recorded in 2013 imeheded ir
selling, general and administrative expenses inconsolidated statements of operations. Our acatudbvember 30, 2013 reflects our viev
the probable outcome based on the current stateegfidgment in the matter.

Other Matters.In addition to the specific proceedings describbdva, we are involved in other litigation and regulatgsoceeding
incidental to our business that are in various @docal stages. We believe that the accruals we hes@ded for probable and reason
estimable losses with respect to these proceedirgsdequate and that, as of November 30, 2018as not reasonably possible tha
additional material loss had been incurred in awwam in excess of the estimated amounts alreadygreézed on our consolidated finan
statements. We evaluate our accruals for litigadiod regulatory proceedings at least quarterly asdppropriate, adjust them to reflect (a
facts and circumstances known to us at the tingddiing information regarding negotiations, settgts, rulings and other relevant events
developments; (b) the advice and analyses of ctiumse (c) the assumptions and judgment of manager8émilar factors and consideratit
are used in establishing new accruals for procgsdas to which losses have become probable andnaaly estimable at the time
evaluation is made. Based on our experience, wevegelhat the amounts that may be claimed or allegminst us in these proceedings ar:
a meaningful indicator of our potential liabilitfhe outcome of any of these proceedings, inclutliegdefense and other litigatioaelated cos
and expenses we may incur, however, is inheremenrain and could differ significantly from thetiesate reflected in a related accrua
made. Therefore, it is possible that the ultimaiecome of any proceeding, if in excess of a relatectual or if no accrual had been m
could be material to our consolidated financialestents.

Note 17. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred StockTo help protect the benefits of our NOL, buiitiosses and tax credits from the impact of an ersiip change unc
Section 382, on January 22, 2009, we adopted atRighpreement between us and Computershare Share@eneces LLC (successor
Mellon Investor Services LLC), as rights agentedaas of that date (the “2009 Rights Agreemeiratiij we declared a dividend distributior
one preferred share purchase right for each oulistgrshare of common stock that was payable tokbtwders of record as of the close
business on March 5, 2009. Subject to the ternt/igions and conditions of the 2009 Rights Agreetniérihese rights become exercisa
each right would initially represent the right torphase from us 1/100th of a share of our Seri€®a®icipating Cumulative Preferred Stock
a purchase price of $85.00 (the “Purchase Pridé”jssued, each fractional share of preferred staculd generally give a stockhol
approximately the same dividend, voting and ligtimfarights as does one share of our common stdolwever, prior to exercise, a right d
not give its holder any rights as a stockholdecjuding without limitation any dividend, voting diquidation rights. The rights will not |
exercisable until the earlier of (a) t@lendar days after a public announcement by usatparson or group has become an Acquiring P
(as defined under the 2009 Rights Agreement) ahdL(bbusiness days after the commencement of a tendexcbiange offer by a persor
group if upon consummation of the offer the persogroup would beneficially own 4.9% or more of @utstanding common stock.

Until these rights become exercisable (the “Distiitn Date”),common stock certificates will evidence the righted may contain
notation to that effect. Any transfer of share®wf common stock prior to the Distribution Datelwinstitute a transfer
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of the associated rights. After the Distributiont®ahe rights may be transferred other than imeotion with the transfer of the underly
shares of our common stock. If there is an Acqgifferson on the Distribution Date or a person ougibecomes an Acquiring Person afte
Distribution Date, each holder of a right, othearttrights that are or were beneficially owned byAaquiring Person, which will be void, w
thereafter have the right to receive upon exerofsa right and payment of the Purchase Price, tliatber of shares of our common sl
having a market value of two times the PurchaseePrfter the later of the Distribution Date ana ttime we publicly announce that
Acquiring Person has become such, our board ottdire may exchange the rights, other than righas dhe or were beneficially owned by
Acquiring Person, which will be void, in whole ar part, at an exchange ratio of one share of constak per right, subject to adjustment.

At any time prior to the later of the Distributi@ate and the time we publicly announce that an AogyuPerson becomes such, our by
of directors may redeem all of the then-outstandiggts in whole, but not in part, at a price 00l per right, subject to adjustment (
“Redemption Price”). The redemption will be effeetimmediately upon the board of directoastion, unless the action provides that :
redemption will be effective at a subsequent timeimon the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one aerspecified events, in which case
redemption will be effective in accordance with threvisions of the action. Immediately upon thesefiveness of the redemption of the rig
the right to exercise the rights will terminate ahed only right of the holders of rights will be teceive the Redemption Price, with inte
thereon. The rights issued pursuant to the 200&tRiggreement will expire on the earliest of (& ttlose of business on March 5, 2(
(b) the time at which the rights are redeemedihg)time at which the rights are exchanged, (d)tiime at which our board of direct
determines that a related provision in our Rest&tedificate of Incorporation is no longer necegsand (e) the close of business on the
day of a taxable year of ours to which our boardicéctors determines that no tax benefits mayarded forward. At our annual meeting
stockholders on April 2, 2009, our stockholdersrappd the 2009 Rights Agreement.

Common StockOn January 29, 2013, pursuant to the 2011 ShelfsRation, we issued 6,325,080ares of our common stock, par vi
$1.00 per share, in an underwritten public offedt@ price of $18.25 per share. We used 6,32508afks of treasury stock for the issuance
received net proceeds of $109.5 million after undiging discounts, commissions and transaction azps.

In connection with the issuance of the 1.375% Cdihle Senior Notes due 2019, which is discusseblate 13. Mortgages and No
Payable, we established a common stock reserveiaicadth our transfer agent to reserve the maxinmumber of shares of our common si
potentially deliverable upon conversion to holdefghe 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 201®dam the terms of the instrume
governing these notes. Accordingly, the common kstaserve account had a balance of 12,602st8fes at November 30, 2013.
maximum number of shares would potentially be dehble to holders only in certain limited circunmstes as set forth in the instrume
governing the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes duE92

Effective July 18, 2013, our board of directors aded the Director Plan to provide directors witbhreetime opportunity to irrevocab
elect to receive an equivalent value of sharesuofcommon stock in lieu of the cash payments thatotherwise due upon the settlemer
their outstanding stock units under the terms eflirector Plan. At that date, there were a totalgi,554outstanding stock units. Concurr
with the amendment of the Director Plan, our bazrdirectors authorized the repurchase of no moae #82,00Ghares of our common stc
solely as necessary for director elections in retsp&outstanding stock units. During the 2013dhjuarter, following the amendment of
Director Plan, directors made irrevocable electitmseceive an aggregate of 478,28ares of our common stock upon the respe
settlement of their outstanding stock units, andemirchased through open market transactions shanfes pursuant to the authorization :
aggregate price of $7.9 millionWe do not anticipate any additional repurchafesuo common stock pursuant to this board of does
authorization. The repurchased shares were appedido directors per their respective elections] #re shares are subject to trar
restrictions to the directors until the respectettlement of their applicable outstanding stocitsumvhich, in most cases, will occur upon t
leaving the board of directors. The director etatdi changed only the method of settlement of thistanding stock units and did not cha
any of the other terms of these awards or impact#iue to the directors. As a result of the doetelections, the relevant outstanding s
units became stock-settled awards, which are ateddar as equity awards, instead of casttled liability awards, thereby reducing the ée
of variability in the expense associated with ssidtk units in future quarters.

As of November 30, 2013, we were authorized to melpase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock undewaedapproved sha
repurchase prograriVe did not repurchase any of our common stock utidemprogram in 2013, 2012 or 2011. Any resumptiésuch stoc
repurchases under this program or any other progrifirhe at the discretion of our board of director

Our board of directors declared four quarterly cedslfidends of $.025@er share of common stock in 2013. During 2012, lmard o
directors declared a cash dividend of $.0625 pareslof common stock in the first quarter and qubrtdividends of $.025@er share ¢
common stock in each of the second, third and foguarters. During 2011, ur board of directors declared four quarterly cditidends o
$.0625 per share of common stock . All dividendslated during 2013, 2012 and 2011 were also paithglthose years.
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Treasury StockWe acquired $8.5 million and $1.8 milliasf our common stock in 2013 and 2012, respectivelye common stoc
acquired in 2013 was primarily related to direatactions in respect of outstanding stock unitseurtde Director Plan, as described abov
addition, a portion of the common stock acquire@®3 and all of the common stock acquired in 26d2sisted of previously issued sh
delivered to us by employees to satisfy their walding tax obligations on the vesting of restricetdck awards or of forfeitures of previ
restricted stock awards. We did not acquire anyeshaf our common stock in 2011. Treasury stockésrded at cost. Differences betweer
cost of treasury stock and the reissuance procaedeecorded to paiid capital. These transactions are not considezpdrchases under 1
share repurchase program.

Note 18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los
The following table presents the changes in tharz#s of each component of accumulated other cérapséeve loss (in thousands):

Total Accumulated

Other
Postretirement Benefit Plan Adjustments Comprehensive Loss
Balance at November 30, 2011 $ (26,157)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (4,76%)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgnslve loss 2,95¢
Net current-period other comprehensive loss (1,80€)
Balance at November 30, 2012 (27,959
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 7,08:
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive loss 3,35¢
Net current-period other comprehensive income 10,44:
Balance at November 30, 2013 $ (17,516

The amounts presented in the table above do notda@n income tax benefit or expense as any saphdts were fully offset by defern
tax asset valuation allowances recorded in 20132844@.

The amounts reclassified from accumulated othemeehensive loss consisted of the following (in themds):

Years Ended November 30,

Details About Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los€omponents 2013 2012 2011
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments
Amortization of net actuarial loss $ 1,80 % 1,40 $ 59t
Amortization of prior service cost 1,55¢ 1,55¢ 1,55¢
Total reclassifications (a) $ 335¢ $ 2,95¢ $ 2,15]

(a) The accumulated other comprehensive loss compoaeaiscluded in the computation of net periodinddi costs as further discusse!
Note 20. Postretirement Benefi

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior serem& expected to be amortized from accumulatedr atbmprehensive loss into |
periodic benefit cost during 2014 are $.4 milliovd&1.6 million , respectively.

Note 19. Employee Benefit and Stock Plar

Most of our employees are eligible to participate¢tie KB Home 401(k) Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plainder which contributions |
employees are partially matched by us. The aggeegast of the 401(k) Plan to us was $3.5 millior2@13 , $2.6 million in 2012 an®P.¢
million in 2011 . The assets of the 401(k) Planlall by a thirdparty trustee. The 401(k) Plan participants magdlithe investment of th
funds among one or more of the several fund optidfesed by the 401(k) Plan. Effective May 9, 2048r common stock has been one o
investment choices available to participants. Ridvlay 9, 2013, a fund composed of units thatetéid the market value of our common s
was one of the investment choices available toigiaints. As of November 30, 2013 , 2012 and 20&approximately 7% , 7% and 4%
respectively, of the 401(k) Plan’s net
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assets were invested in our common stock or ifictmer unitized fund that reflected the market eatti our common stock, as applicable.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Adrjl2010, our stockholders approved the KB Home02Bduity Incentive Plan (tl
“2010 Plan”), authorizing, among other things, igmiance of up to 3,500,000 shares of our comrwak $or grants of stockased awards
our employees, noamployee directors and consultants. This pool efehincludes all of the shares that were availtvlgrant as of April :
2010 under our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, undeclwvhio new awards may be made. As a result, sincg 32010, the 2010 Plan has b
our only active equity compensation plan. Under2B&0 Plan, grants of stock options and other aing@lvards reduce the 2010 Pkushar
capacity on a 1 -for- 1 basis, and grants of retstii stock and other similar “full value” awardguee the 2010 Plan’s share capacity on a 1.7
for- 1 basis. In addition, subject to the 2010 Rlaerms and conditions, a stoblksed award may also be granted under the 201Gd°taplac
an outstanding award granted under another of lBunspsubject to the terms of such other plan) wétims substantially identical to thos¢
the award being replaced.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Aptjl2011, our stockholders approved an amendmethiet@010 Plan to increase
number of shares of our common stock that maysets under the 2010 Plan by an additional 4,000s6@€es.

The 2010 Plan provides that stock options, perfoicaastock, restricted stock and stock units maywarded for periods of up tt0
years. The 2010 Plan also enables us to grant cash bsn8#Rs and other stoblased awards. As of November 30, 2013, 2012 andi, 26
addition to awards outstanding under the 2010 Rianhad awards outstanding under our Amended astafed 1999 Incentive Plan (
“1999 Plan”), which provided for generally the satypes of awards as the 2010 Plan. We also haddaveautstanding under our Performance
Based Incentive Plan for Senior Management, whiolviged for generally the same types of award$a2010 Plan, but stock option aws
granted under this plan had terms of up to 15 ye#arsaddition, as of November 2012 and 2011, we &adrds outstanding under our 1
Employee Stock Plan, which provided for generdily same types of awards as the 2010 Plan, but sfiizkh awards granted under this |
had terms of up to 15 years .

Stock OptionsStock option transactions are summarized as follows

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding at
beginning of year 10,10554 $ 21.2i 10,160,39 $ 21.2i 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢
Granted 550,00( 16.6: 30,00( 9.0¢ 1,716,001 6.3¢€
Exercised (118,209 13.4¢ (7,499 13.9: — —
Cancelled (5,400 24.2¢ (77,35¢) 17.9¢ (354,21) 21.45
Options outstanding at end of
year 10,531,933 $ 21.11 10,10554 $ 21.2i 10,160,39 $ 21.2i
Options exercisable at end of
year 9,414,933 % 22.2¢ 8,533,22. $ 23.7¢ 7,142,560 $ 26.4:
Options available for grant at
end of year 746,04: 1,721,84 2,477,21'

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $1.2 million for the year ended November2i,3 and less than $.1 millidar the
year ended November 30, 2012. There vno stock options exercised during the year ended Nbeerd0, 2011. The aggregate intrinsic v
of stock options outstanding was $32.3 million 8L million and $1.7 million at November 30, 2012012 and 2011 respectively. Ttk
intrinsic value of stock options exercisable wa$.$2million at November 30, 2013 and $7.8 millianNovember 30, 2012 Stock option
exercisable had no intrinsic value at NovemberZBQ,1. The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amioby which the market value of 1
underlying stock exceeds the price of the option.

On October 6, 2011, our president and chief exeeutificer was granted an award of performahaeed stock options to purchast
aggregate of 365,000 shares of our common stottiegturchase price of $6.32 per share. The pedocebased stock options shall vest
become exercisable if there is a determinationhieymhanagement development and compensation coraroitteur board of directors that
applicable performance goal, as set forth in thpliegble performance option agreement, has bedsfiedt and our president and ct
executive officer does not experience a terminatibservice prior to the applicable dates descriimethat agreement. In January 2013,
management development and compensation comméteentined that the performance component was isatjsherefore, the full amount
options will vest and become exercisable
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once the required service component is completedctordance with ASC 718, we used the Black-Sshmb¢ionpricing model to estimate t
grant date fair value per performance-based stptibroof $2.54 .

On October 7, 2010, our president and chief exeeutificer was granted an award of performabased stock options to purchast
aggregate of 260,000 shares of our common stottlegturchase price of $11.06 per share. The pediocebased stock options shall vest
become exercisable if there is a determinationhieynhanagement development and compensation coraroitteur board of directors that
applicable performance goal, as set forth in thpliegble performance option agreement, has bedsfiedt and our president and ct
executive officer does not experience a terminatibservice prior to the applicable dates describetthat agreement. In accordance with /
718, we used the Black-Scholes option-pricing madelstimate the grant date fair value per perfocasbased stock option of $4.59 .

Stock options outstanding and stock options exabtésat November 30, 2013 are as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Average Remaining Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual
Range of Exercise Price Options Price Life Options Price Life
$ 6.32t0 $10.54 1,693,16! $ 6.432 7.8 1,126,16. $ 6.4z
$10.55 to $14.96 1,968,42. 12.0¢ 5.€ 1,968,42. 12.0¢
$14.97 to $20.08 2,717,52. 17.4; 6.2 2,167,52. 17.6¢
$20.09 to $33.92 2,019,72. 27.3¢ 4.1 2,019,72. 27.3¢
$33.93 to $69.63 2,133,10! 39.81 4.4 2,133,10! 39.81
$ 6.32 to $69.63 10,531,93 $ 21.11 5.€ 941493 $ 22.2¢ 5.2

The weighted average grant date fair value of stqtlons granted in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $68%4618 and $2.56respectively. Tt
fair value of each stock option grant is estimatedthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes oppidcing model with the followin
assumptions:

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 1.3% 1% .9%
Expected volatility factor 52.2% 65.€% 65.€%
Expected dividend yield .6% 1.5% 3.£%
Expected term 5 year 5 year 5 year

The riskfree interest rate assumption is determined basembserved interest rates appropriate for the @égdderm of our stock optior
The expected volatility factor is based on a coratim of the historical volatility of our commonosk and the implied volatility of public
traded options on our stock. The expected dividgietd assumption is based on our history of divitlgrayouts. The expected term
employee stock options is estimated using histbdata.

Our stock-based compensation expense related ¢k sftion grants was $2.3 million in 2013 , $5.0lion in 2012 and $5.9 milliorn
2011 . As of November 30, 2013 , there was $3.4ianilof total unrecognized stoddased compensation expense related to unvestek
option awards. This expense is expected to be néoed over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

We record proceeds from the exercise of stock optas additions to common stock and paid-in cagitaé tax shortfalls of $.7 milliom
2013, $.3 million in 2012 and $1.0 million in 20fdsulting from the cancellation of stock awardsevesflected in paidh capital. In 201
2012 and 2011, in accordance with the cash flowstfi@ation requirements of ASC 718, the consotidagtatement of cash flows reflected
excess tax benefit associated with the exercistogk options.

Other Stock-Based Awardsrom time to time, we grant restricted stock toimas employees as a compensation benefit. Durig
restriction periods, these employees are entitette and to receive cash dividends on such shBihesrestrictions imposed with respect tc
shares granted generally lapse over periods oé §ears if certain conditions are met.
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Restricted stock transactions are summarized bs\v®l

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

per Share per Share per Share

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at
beginning of year 229,72  $ 15.81 338,91: $ 15.0¢ 402,47 % 15.0¢
Granted 88,00( 17.5( 207,61 16.2: — —
Vested (91,319 15.1¢ (176,13Y) 14.2¢ (10,930 13.4¢
Cancelled (6,789 17.2¢ (140,67() 15.4¢ (52,63 15.4¢
Outstanding at end of
year 219,62¢ $ 16.2:¢ 229,72: % 15.81 338,91 $ 15.0¢

As of November 30, 2013, we had $3.5 milliohtotal unrecognized compensation cost relatedestricted stock awards that will
recognized over a weighted average period of ajpmiately three years.

On October 10, 2013, we granted PSUs to certainagraps. Each PSU grant corresponds to a target mnodwour common stock (t
“Award Shares”). Each PSU entitles the recipienteceive a grant of between 0% and 200% of thepierti's Award Shares, and will v
based on our achieving, over a thrgear period commencing on December 1, 2013 anchgrati November 30, 2016, specified levels o
average return on equity performance and (b) revegrowth relative to a peer group of higteduction public homebuilding compan
subject to the recipierg’ continued employment with us through and inclgdthe date on which the management developmen
compensation committee of our board of directotemieines performance for each of the measuresgiidm date fair value of each such F
was $16.63 .

On November 8, 2012, we granted PSUs to certairiames. Each PSU grant corresponds to a targetmnodéward Shares. Each P
entitles the recipient to receive a grant of betw@® and 200% of the recipiestAward Shares, and will vest based on our achig\amer i
three year performance period commencing on Decembe®12 2nd ending on November 30, 2015, specifieddenke(a) average return
equity performance and (b) revenue growth relativa peer group of high-production public homeliodgdcompanies, subject to the recipient’
continued employment with us through and includihg date on which the management development amgpemsation committee of ¢
board of directors determines performance for ediche measures. The grant date fair value of sach PSU was $16.23 .

PSU transactions are summarized as follows:

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

per Share per Share

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 227,04¢ % 16.2: — 3 =
Granted 158,00( 16.6: 227,04¢ 16.2:
Vested — — — —
Cancelled — — — —
Outstanding at end of year 385,04( $ 16.3¢ 227,04( $ 16.2%

The number of shares of our common stock actuaifintgd to a recipient, if any, when a PSU vests$ dépend on the degree
achievement of the applicable performance measlunesg the applicable thregear performance period. The PSUs have no dividenabting
rights during the performance period. Compensatmst for PSUs is initially estimated based on tapggformance achievement and adju
as appropriate throughout the performance periatoAdingly, future compensation costs associatatl mitstanding PSUs may increas
decrease based on the probability of our achievemitin respect to the applicable performance messukt November 30, 2013, we h@d.:
million of total unrecognized compensation cosated to unvested PSUs, which is expected to benimed over a weighteaverage period
approximately three years.
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In 2009 and 2008, we granted phantom shares tousaemployees. In 2008, we also granted SARs tousemployees. These cash
settled awards have been accounted for as ligsiliti our consolidated financial statements. Edamnfom share represented the right to re:
a cash payment equal to the closing price of oanraon stock on the applicable vesting date. Each 8Resents a right to receive a ¢
payment equal to the positive difference, if angtween the grant price and the market value ofaaesbf our common stock on the dat
exercise. The phantom shares vested in full agtiteof three years , while the SARs vested in egnabal installments over three yeaihere
were no phantom shares outstanding as of Noventhe2@®3 and 2012, and 5,5pBantom shares outstanding as of November 30, 2&
November 30, 2013 and 2012, we 129,939 SARs outstanding, which are fully vested wailldexpire in July 2017.

We recognized total compensation expense of $3lomin 2013 , $1.7 million in 2012 and $1.2 nolfi in 2011related to restricte
stock, PSUs, phantom shares and SARs.

Grantor Stock Ownership Trusbn August 27, 1999, we established a grantor steakership trust (the “Trustinto which certain shar
repurchased in 2000 and 1999 were transferred.Tfbst, administered by a thighrty trustee, holds and distributes the sharesoofmor
stock acquired to support certain employee compiemsand employee benefit obligations under ousting stock option plan, the 401(k) F
and other employee benefit plans. The existendbeofTrust has no impact on the amount of benefitsompensation that is paid under tt
plans.

For financial reporting purposes, the Trust is afidated with us, and therefore any dividend tratisas between us and the Trust
eliminated. Acquired shares held by the Trust remailued at the market price on the date of puelasl are shown as a reductio
stockholdersequity in the consolidated balance sheets. Thergifice between the Trust share value and the maaket on the date shares
released from the Trust is included in paideapital. Common stock held in the Trust is nohsidered outstanding in the computation
earnings (loss) per share. The Trust held 10,5@1a84 10,615,934 shares of common stock at NoveBhet013 and 2012respectively. Tk
trustee votes shares held by the Trust in accoedaiiih voting directions from eligible employees, specified in a trust agreement with
trustee.

Note 20. Postretirement Benefits

We have a supplemental nqoalified, unfunded retirement plan, the KB HomdiRenent Plan, effective as of July 11, 2002, panguic
which we have offered to pay supplemental pensamefits to certain designated individuals (consgstf current and former employees
connection with their retirement. The plan was etb& new participants in 2004. In connection wfith plan, we have purchased cost recc
life insurance contracts on the lives of the desigd individuals. The insurance contracts assatiatth the plan are held by a trust, establi
as part of the plan to implement and carry outpitowisions of the plan and to finance the benefitsred under the plan. The trust is the ov
and beneficiary of such insurance contracts. Theustnof the insurance coverage under the contraatesigned to provide sufficient fund:
cover all costs of the plan if assumptions mad®amployment term, mortality experience, policyniags and other factors are realized.
cash surrender value of these insurance contreactsp47.4 million at November 30, 2013 and $42.4ionilat November 30, 2012In 2013
2012 and 2011, we paid $1.1 million , $.5 milliardgb.1 million , respectively, in benefits undee fhlan to eligible former employees.

We also have an unfunded death benefit plan, theH¢Bie Death Benefit Only Plan, implemented on Noverdi, 2001, for certa
designated individuals (consisting of current aodrfer employees). The plan was closed to new f@atits in 2004. In connection with -
plan, we have purchased cost recovery life ins@waontracts on the lives of the designated indiisluThe insurance contracts associated
the plan are held by a trust, established as gatieoplan to implement and carry out the provisiafi the plan and to finance the ben
offered under the plan. The trust is the owner bedeficiary of such insurance contracts. The amofithe insurance coverage under
contracts is designed to provide sufficient fur@sdver all costs of the plan if assumptions magismamployment term, mortality experier
policy earnings and other factors are realized. @dsh surrender value of these insurance contrats16.2 million at November 30, 2048¢
$14.8 million at November 30, 2012 . We have nad pait any benefits under the plan.

The net periodic benefit cost of our postretiremgenefit plans for the year ended November 30, 2648 $6.9 million, which include:
service costs of $1.5 million , interest costs &fl$million , amortization of unrecognized loss$df.8 millionand amortization of prior servi
costs of $1.5 million . The net periodic benefistof these plans for the year ended November @D2 2vas $6.6 million which include
service costs of $1.3 million , interest costs 2f3dmillion , amortization of unrecognized loss$df4 million, and amortization of prior servi
costs of $1.6 million . For the year ended Noven8ikr2011 , the net periodic benefit cost of thelsms was $5.5 million which include:
service costs of $1.2 million , interest costs df3¥million , amortization of unrecognized loss$o® million, and amortization of prior servi
costs of $1.5 million , partly offset by other imse of $.1 million . The liabilities related to tleeplans were $56.3 million &tovember 3(
2013 and $60.9 million at November 30, 20Ehd are included in accrued expenses and otiglities in the consolidated balance sheets
the years ended November 30, 2013 and 2012 , sisewlit rates we used for the plans were 4.4% &% 3respectively.
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Benefit payments under our postretirement benéitgpare expected to be paid during each year eNdedmber 30 as follows: 2014
$1.4 million ; 2015 — $1.8 million ; 2016 — $2.4 lfiwn ; 2017 — $2.6 million ; 2018 — $2.9 million and for the five years enc
November 30, 202— $18.9 million in the aggregate.

Note 21. Supplemental Disclosure to Consolidated Statementd Cash Flow:
The following are supplemental disclosures to thesolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Summary of cash and cash equivalents at the ettt gfear:

Homebuilding $ 530,09 $ 524,76! $ 415,05(

Financial services 2,42¢ 922 3,02¢

Total $ 532,520 $ 525,68( $ 418,07-

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 64,52( $ 65,54. $ 48,03¢

Income taxes paid 80C 82¢ 33t

Income taxes refunded 61 22,34 213
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:

Cost of inventories acquired through seller finagci $ 27,60 $ 53,62t $ —

Increase (decrease) in consolidated inventorieswaed 4,79¢ (19,809 8,35¢

Acquired property securing note receivable — — 40,00(

Issuance of stock under stock-based compensatms pl 8,34¢ — —

Note 22. Supplemental Guarantor Information

Our obligations to pay principal, premium, if arand interest under our senior notes and the 1.3ZB#vertible Senior Notes due 2(
and borrowings, if any, under the Credit Facilitg guaranteed on a joint and several basis by treaBtor Subsidiaries. The guarantee:
full and unconditional and the Guarantor Subsidm@are 100%wned by us. Pursuant to the terms of the indergawerning our senior not
and the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2046,the terms of the Credit Facility, a Guarantobsidiary will be automatically ai
unconditionally released and discharged from itarganty of our senior notes, the 1.375% Convertgaaior Notes due 2019 and the Ci
Facility if such Guarantor Subsidiary ceases ta bisignificant subsidiary” as defined by Rule 1#f2Regulation S-X using a 5%ther than
10% threshold, provided that the assets of ourqu@mrantor subsidiaries do not in the aggregateeekd®%of an adjusted measure of
consolidated total assets, so long as all guararttgesuch Guarantor Subsidiary of any other of @uour subsidiariesindebtedness a
terminated at or prior to the time of such reledge.have determined that separate, full finand&ksnents of the Guarantor Subsidiaries w
not be material to investors and, accordingly, mpental financial information for the GuarantotbSidiaries is presented.

The supplemental financial information for all pet$ presented below reflects the relevant subgdisinat were Guarantor Subsidiarie
of November 30, 2013. The format of the condensethalidating financial statements has been revigethe periods previously reportec
our annual reports to retrospectively reflect (ag¢ transfer of certain of our subsidiaries from -Hgolarantor subsidiaries to guaral
subsidiaries as a result of such subsidiaries bewpguarantor subsidiaries during 2013 and (b)ftllewing elective reclassifications whi
relate solely to transactions between KB Home oc@tgoand its subsidiaries: (i) the reclassificattéiKB Home corporate, guarantor and non
guarantor intercompany interest, which had prevobeen included in interest expense, to a sepéiraétem with corresponding offsets in
consolidating adjustments column; (ii) the reclsaiion of guarantor and naguarantor intercompany receivables and payable&hwiac
previously been presented on a net basis, wittespanding offsets in the consolidating adjustmeatsmn; (iii) the reclassification of the 1
intercompany funding activity of KB Home corporatdjich was previously included in cash flows praddy (used in) financing activities,
cash flows from investing activities with corresdorg offsets in the consolidating adjustments calurand (iv) the reclassification
dividends received by KB Home corporate from itbsdiaries to cash provided by (used in) operattyvities. Such dividends we
previously included in net cash provided by (usedfinancing activities. This revised presentat@nthe condensed consolidating finan
statements had no impact or effect on our congeliifinancial statements for any periods presenit@tijding our consolidated statement
operations, consolidated statements of comprehemsbome (loss), consolidated balance sheets amsblidated statements of cash flows.
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2013

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues $ — $ 2,036,341 % 60,79 $ — $ 2,097,113
Homebuilding:
Revenues $ — $ 2,036,34 $ 48,63t $ — $ 2,084,97i
Construction and land costs — (1,692,52) (44,56 — (1,737,08i)
Selling, general and administrative expense (60,545 (180,349 (14,919 — (255,809)
Operating income (loss) (60,54%) 163,47: (10,84 — 92,08«
Interest income 76¢€ 18 6 — 792
Interest expense (143,909 (5,199 — 86,41: (62,690
Intercompany interest 203,09t (117,180 49t (86,417 —
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures — (2,007%) — — (2,00%)
Homebuilding pretax income (loss) (589 39,10: (10,34) — 28,17¢
Financial services pretax income — — 10,18 — 10,18
Total pretax income (loss) (589 39,10: (157) — 38,36
Income tax benefit — 1,50( 10C — 1,60(
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 40,54¢ — — (40,54¢) —
Net income (loss) $ 39,96: % 40,60: % (57 % (40,546 $ 39,96
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2012

KB Home

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues $ — 1,506,33. $ 53,78: $ — $ 1,560,11!
Homebuilding:
Revenues $ — 1,506,33. $ 42,09¢ $ — $ 154843
Construction and land costs — (1,291,87) (40,16¢) — (1,332,04)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (60,10:) (163,26¢) (13,27¢) — (236,64
Operating income (loss) (60,107 51,19( (11,349 — (20,25¢)
Interest income 48C 13 25 — 51¢
Interest expense (127,29) (5,36%) — 62,85: (69,804
Intercompany interest 176,97 (114,28¢) 161 (62,857) —
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures — (399 — — (399
Homebuilding pretax loss (9,939 (68,847) (11,159 — (89,936
Financial services pretax income — — 10,88: — 10,88:
Total pretax loss (9,939 (68,847) (27¢) — (79,057
Income tax benefit 2,50(C 17,50( 10C — 20,10(
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (51,519 — — 51,51¢ —
Net loss $ (58,959 (51,34) $ (17¢) $ 51,51¢ $ (58,957
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2011

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues $ — 1,262,45. $ 53,41 $ — $ 1,315,86!
Homebuilding:
Revenues $ — 1,262,45. $ 43,10¢ $ — $ 1,305,56:
Construction and land costs — (1,108,57) (48,70¢) — (1,157,281
Selling, general and administrative expenses (52,789 (151,916 (15,89) — (220,59)
Loss on loan guaranty — (30,765 — — (30,765
Operating loss (52,789 (28,800 (21,490 — (103,079)
Interest income 71t 48 10¢ — 871
Interest expense (110,069 (3,00%) 1,03¢ 62,83: (49,20¢)
Intercompany interest 162,02 (97,627 (1,569 (62,837) —
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated join
ventures — (55,84() 1 — (55,839
Homebuilding pretax loss (112 (185,22) (21,919 — (207,24¢)
Financial services pretax income — — 26,07¢ — 26,07¢
Total pretax income (loss) (112 (185,22) 4,16¢ — (181,169
Income tax benefit — 2,30 10C — 2,40(
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (178,659) — — 178,65t —
Net income (loss) $ (178,76 (182,92) $ 4,26¢ $ 178,65t $ (178,769
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensiitecome (L0SS)

(in thousands)

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income:
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments

Other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income (loss)

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss:
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive loss

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive loss:
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income (loss)

Year Ended November 30, 2013

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ 39,96: $ 40,60: $ (57 $ (40,549 39,96
10,44 — — — 10,44
10,44: — — — 10,44:
$ 50,40¢ $ 40,60: $ (57 $ (40,546 50,40¢
Year Ended November 30, 2012
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ (58,959 $ (51,34) $ (17¢) $ 51,51¢ (58,959
(1,806) — — — (1,806)
(1,806) — — — (1,80¢6)
$ (60,759 $ (51,34) $ 17e) $ 51,51¢ (60,759
Year Ended November 30, 2011
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ (178,769 $ (182,92) $ 4266 $ 178,65t (178,769
(3,495 — — — (3,495
(3,495 — — — (3,495)
$  (182,26) $  (182,92) $ 4,266 $ 178,65t (182,26))
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

(in thousands)

Assets
Homebuilding:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Receivables
Inventories

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures

Other assets

Financial services
Intercompany receivables
Investments in subsidiaries

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Homebuilding:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities

Mortgages and notes payable

Financial services
Intercompany payables
Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

November 30, 2013

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
476,84 $ 41,31¢ $ 11,93: — % 530,09!
41,90¢ — —_ —_ 41,90¢
1,47z 74,18¢ 91 — 75,74¢
— 2,263,03 35,54 — 2,298,57
— 130,19: — — 130,19:
97,64 9,072 357 — 107,07¢
617,87. 2,517,801 47,92 — 3,183,59!
— — 10,04( — 10,04(
2,129,72 — 117,82¢ (2,247,55) —
39,95¢ — — (39,955 —
2,787,55 $ 2,517,800 $ 175,79: (2,287,51) $ 3,193,63!
117,87 $ 292,22( % 94,36! — % 504,45¢
2,111,77. 38,72¢ — = 2,150,49:
2,229,64: 330,94! 94,36: — 2,654,95i
— — 2,59¢ — 2,59¢
21,82 2,186,85! 38,88: (2,247,55) —
536,08t — 39,95¢ (39,959 536,08t
2,787,55 $ 2,517,800 $ 175,79. (2,287,51) $ 3,193,63!
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
(in thousands)

Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures
Other assets

Financial services

Intercompany receivables
Investments in subsidiaries

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities
Mortgages and notes payable

Financial services
Intercompany payables
Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

November 30, 2012

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ 457,000 $ 54,20t $ 13,55 $ = 524,76!
42,36: — — — 42,36:
121 64,50 19€ — 64,82
— 1,688,30: 18,27( — 1,706,57.
— 116,79: 6,881 — 123,67
85,90! 15,98( (6,837 — 95,05(
585,39 1,939,78; 32,06¢ — 2,557,24.
— — 4,45k — 4,45¢
1,559,71. — 122,58 (1,682,29) —
38,47¢ —_ — (38,479 —
$ 2,183,58 $ 1,939,78 $ 159,10¢ $ (1,720,77) 2,561,69:
$ 134,31: $ 221,61 $ 102,96: $ — 458,88
1,645,39. 77,42 — = 1,722,81!
1,779,70: 299,03: 102,96 — 2,181,70.
— — 3,18¢ — 3,18¢
27,06¢ 1,640,75 14,47: (1,682,29) —
376,80 — 38,47¢ (38,479 376,80
$ 2,183,58 $ 1,939,78 $ 159,10« $ (1,720,77) 2,561,69!
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2013

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activit$ 4,69t $ (441,23) $ (6,945 $ —  $ (443,48)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Contributions to unconsolidated joint venture: — (9,36¢) (4,997 — (24,359

Purchases of property and equipment, net (519 (1,497 (381) — (2,39))

Intercompany (517,709 — — 517,70: —
Net cash used in investing activities (518,229 (10,859 (5,372 517,70: (16,750
Cash flows from financing activities:

Change in restricted cash 45€ — — — 45€

Proceeds from issuance of debt 680,00( — — — 680,00(

Payment of debt issuance costs (16,525 — — — (16,52%)

Repayment of senior notes (225,39 — — — (225,39

Payments on mortgages and land contracts due

to land sellers and other loans — (66,29¢) — — (66,29¢)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, nt 109,50: — — — 109,50:
Issuance of common stock under employee ¢
plans 2,181 — — — 2,181

Payments of cash dividends (8,36¢) — — — (8,366

Stock repurchases (8,489 — — — (8,48¢)

Intercompany — 505,50: 12,20: (517,707 —
Net cash provided by financing activities 533,36 439,20t 12,20: (517,70)) 467,07:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 19,84( (12,889 (11€) — 6,83¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 457,000 54,20¢ 14,47¢ — 525,68t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 476,84° $ 41,31¢  $ 14,36( $ — $ 532,52

113




Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30,

2012

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Return of investments in (contributions to)
unconsolidated joint ventures

Purchases of property and equipment, net
Intercompany

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Payment of debt issuance costs
Repayment of senior notes

Payments on mortgages and land contracts due

to land sellers and other loans

Issuance of common stock under employee ¢
plans

Payments of cash dividends
Stock repurchases
Intercompany

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activit

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yea

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ 11,03 $ 4,94 $ 18,64: $ — 3 34,61
— 1,922 (939 — 98¢
(175) (1,540 (34) — (1,749
5,137 — — (5,137) —
4,96 38z (967) (5,137) (760)
22,11¢ — — — 22,11¢
694,83 — — — 694,83
(12,445 — — — (12,445
(592,641 — — — (592,641
— (26,299 — — (26,299
59¢ — — — 59¢
(10,599 — — — (10,599
(1,799 — — — (1,799
— 22,91 (28,052 5,137 —
100,05! (3,389 (28,057) 5,137 73,75
116,05( 1,942 (10,37%) — 107,61+
340,95° 52,26: 24,85¢ — 418,07
$ 457,000 $ 54,20t $ 14,47¢ % — % 525,68t
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2011

KB Home

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activit$ 9,44: $ (355,16Y) $ (1,829 $ —  $ (347,549
Cash flows from investing activities:
Return of investments in (contributions to)
unconsolidated joint ventures — (78,619 11,35¢ — (67,260)
Proceeds from sale of operating property — 80,60( — — 80,60(
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment (200 (649) 607 — (242)
Intercompany (349,08) — — 349,08: —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activiti (349,28) 1,332 11,96¢ 349,08: 13,09¢
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash 24,23¢ 26,75 — — 50,99¢
Repayment of senior notes (100,001) — — — (100,001)
Payments on mortgages and land contracts ¢
to land sellers and other loans 3,391 (89,467) (3,399) — (89,467
Issuance of common stock under employee ¢
plans 1,79¢ — — — 1,79¢
Payments of cash dividends (19,240 — — — (19,240
Intercompany — 443,69t (94,61) (349,08) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activit (89,809 380,99: (98,019 (349,08) (155,909
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (429,646 27,16: (87,877 — (490,356
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yea 770,60: 25,10 112,72! — 908,43(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 340,95 $ 52,26: $ 24,85: $ — 3 418,07-
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Note 23. Quarterly Results (unaudited

The following tables present our consolidated aqarértresults for the years ended November 30, 201B2012in thousands, except |
share amounts):

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
2013
Revenues $ 405,21¢ $ 524,40t $ 548,97: $ 618,53:
Gross profits 61,11¢ 80,77: 101,82¢ 113,28:
Pretax income (loss) (12,359 (4,179 26,57¢ 28,31¢
Net income (loss) (12,459 (2,979 27,27¢ 28,11¢
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ (.16) $ (.04 % 32 3 .33
Diluted $ (1) $ (.04 $ 3C 9 31
2012
Revenues $ 254,55¢ $ 302,85. $ 42450: $ 578,20:
Gross profits 21,89: 49,11¢ 72,43¢ 81,63
Pretax income (loss) (45,407) (28,63¢) (7,439 2,42¢
Net income (loss) (45,807 (24,136 3,261 7,724
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ (59 $ (3) $ 04 3 AC
Diluted $ (.59 $ (.31) $ 04 3 .AC

Gross profits in the first, second, third and fauwjuarters of 2013 included charges of $1.6 milli&i5.9 million , $5.9 million , an#i8.t
million , respectively, associated with water isian+elated repairs at certain of our communities intizd and southwest Florida. Gr
profits in the second quarter of 2013 also inclutiedl option contract abandonment charges of $lflomi. In addition, gross profits in t
fourth quarter of 2013 included land option contie#zandonment charges of $2.9 million and inventonyairment charges of $.4 million .

Gross profits in the first, second, third and fauguarters of 2012 included inventory impairmerarges of $6.6 million , $9.9 million
$6.4 million and $5.2 million respectively. In addition, gross profits in theesnd quarter of 2012 included favorable warradfystments ¢
$11.2 million and insurance recoveries of $10.0lioml, gross profits in the third quarter of 20X luded insurance recoveries $£6.¢
million , and gross profits in the fourth quartéra®12 included an unfavorable warranty adjustn@r$2.6 millionand land option contre
abandonment charges of $.4 million .

Pretax income in the fourth quarter of 2013 incllitiee reversal of a previously established acarfi&B.2 milliondue to a favorable coi
decision. In the second quarter of 2012, the pritss included an $8.8 milliocharge associated with an unfavorable court detistated t
the same matter as the favorable court decisi@018.

Quarterly and year-tdate computations of per share amounts are maependently. Therefore, the sum of per share amduantthe
guarters may not agree with per share amountfiéoyéar.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balameets of KB Home as of November 30, 2013 ari®,28nd the relat
consolidated statements of operations, compreheristome (loss), stockholderstuity, and cash flows for each of the three yéarthe
period ended November 30, 2013. These financiaérsiants are the responsibility of the Companyianagement. Our responsibility it
express an opinion on these financial statemerstschan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of |
Home at November 30, 2013 and 2012, and the calageti results of its operations and its cash flfawgach of the three years in the pe
ended November 30, 2013, in conformity with U.Shegally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), KB Homg’
internal control over financial reporting as of Movber 30, 2013, based on criteria establishedtardal Control —Integrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairthe Treadway Commission (1992 Framework) andreport dated January 24, 2(

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
ém-tt : 4 MLL?

Los Angeles, California
January 24, 2014
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tem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and praesdio ensure that information we are requiredisglase in the reports we file
submit under the Securities and Exchange Act ofii83ecorded, processed, summarized and repoithihwhe time periods specified in
SEC'’s rules and forms, and accumulated and comrateddo management, including the President andf&xecutive Officer (thePrincipa
Executive Officer”) and Executive Vice Presidenti@hief Financial Officer (the “Principal Financi@fficer”), as appropriate, to allow time
decisions regarding required disclosure. Under ghpervision and with the participation of seniornagement, including our Princi
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officere evaluated our disclosure controls and procedasesuch term is defined under Rule 13:
15(e) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAt934. Based on this evaluation, our Principedtitive Officer and Principal Financ
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls anacedures were effective as of November 30, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(&) Managemen’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinancigReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is define«
Rule 13a15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 193Ader the supervision and with the participatmnsenior manageme
including our Principal Executive Officer and Priippal Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectigea of our internal control over finant
reporting based on the framework limternal Control-Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission in 1992. Based on the evalonatiaer that framework and applicable SEC rules,noanagement concluded that
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of November 30, 2013.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered pubkcounting firm that audited our consolidateaficial statements included in 1
annual report, has issued its report on the effentiss of our internal control over financial repaor as of November 30, 2013.

(b) Report of Independent Registered Public AccountiRigm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited KB Home'internal control over financial reporting as afMémber 30, 2013, based on criteria establishddterna
Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissid@®plFramework) (tt
COSO criteria). KB Homa management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting, amd its assessme
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting included in the accompanying Managets Annual Report on Internal Cont
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isexpress an opinion on the companyiternal control over financial reporting basedau!
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifecfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigase considered necessary in the circumstancesbéhNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aogess designed to provide reasonable assurancelirggahe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princi
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdihose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assetseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opasition of the compang’assets that cot
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, KB Home maintained, in all mateniabpects, effective internal control over finahcégporting as of November 30, 20
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&United States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of KB Home as of Noee®®, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidatattments of operatiol
comprehensive income (loss), stockholdeguity, and cash flows for each of the three y@atbe period ended November 30, 2013 anc

report dated January 24, 2014 expressed an urigdatipinion thereon.
ém-tt 4 MLL?

Los Angeles, California
January 24, 2014

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

There have been no changes in our internal comivel financial reporting during the quarter endedvémber 30, 2013 that he
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

tem 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item for executficers is set forth under “Executive Officerstbe Registrantin Part I. Except as ¢
forth below, the other information called for byisttitem will be included under the captions “Comgter Governance and Board Matteasic
“Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement filne 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2@kdxy Statement”)which will be filec
with the SEC not later than March 30, 2014 (120sd=yer the end of our fiscal year), and is incoaped herein by reference.

Ethics Policy

We have adopted an Ethics Policy for our directofficers (including our principal executive officeprincipal financial officer ar
principal accounting officer) and employees. Thei€ Policy is available on our investor relatiomsbsite at www.investor.kbhome.cc
Stockholders may request a free copy of the Efaliey from:

KB Home

Attention: Investor Relations
10990 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, California 90024
(310) 231-4000
investorrelations@kbhome.com

Within the time period required by the SEC and Mmw York Stock Exchange, we will post on our inegstelations website a
amendment to our Ethics Policy and any waiver applie to our principal executive officer, princigadancial officer or principal accounti
officer, or persons performing similar functionadaour other executive officers or directors.
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Corporate Governance Principles

We have adopted Corporate Governance Principleshvare available on our investor relations websit®ckholders may request a
copy of the Corporate Governance Principles froenatidress, phone number and email address seafmtle under “Ethics Policy.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be indied under the captions “Corporate Governance aratdBblatters” and Executive
Compensation” in the 2014 Proxy Statement andasrpporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item will be indled under the caption “Ownership of KB Home Semsg’itin the 2014 Proxy Statem:
and is incorporated herein by reference, exceph®information required by Iltem 201(d) of RegiaatS-K, which is provided below.

The following table presents information as of Naxer 30, 2013 with respect to shares of our comshock that may be issued under
existing compensation plans:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of common

Number of shares remaining
common shares to available for future
be issued upon issuance under equity
exercise of Weighted-average compensation plans
outstanding options, exercise price of (excluding common
warrants and outstanding options, shares reflected in
rights warrants and rights column(a))
Plan category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders 10,531,993 $ 21.11 746,04,
Equity compensation plans not approved by stoclkdrsid — — — (1
Tl 10,531,93 $ 21.11 746,04

(1) Represents our current compensation plandononemployee directors that provides for grants of deficommon stock units or stc
options. These stock units and options are degtribethe “Director Compensatiorsection of our 2014 Proxy Statement, whic
incorporated herein. As discussed in Note 17. Stolclers’ Equity in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Staets in this report, o
board of directors amended the Director Plan in32fil provide directors with a ontgne opportunity to irrevocably elect to receive
equivalent value of shares of our common stockem 6f the cash payments that are otherwise due thgosettlement of their outstand
stock units under the terms of the Director Plaher&fore, we consider the nemployee directors compensation plans as havir
available capacity to issue shares of our commarkst

ltem 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be indied under the captions “Corporate Governance amddBdatters” and “Other Matters”
in the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihday reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be indied under the caption “Independent Auditor Fees $axvices”in the 2014 Prox
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@ 1.

2.

3.

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Financial Statements

Reference is made to the index set forth on page @¥s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are not applicable or the required inddion is provided in the

consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as ameniiet] as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8ated April 7, 200!
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 20i@d, as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FdréQ for the quarte
ended February 28, 2007 (File No. 001-09195),dstiporated by reference herein.

Rights Agreement between us and Mellon InvestoviSes LLC, as rights agent, dated January 22, 2filed, as an exhib
to our Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated Januay2®09 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated kgmence herein.

Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating t8/8% Senior Notes due 2014 among us, the Guaramtiods Sut
Trust Bank, Atlanta, each dated January 28, 204 &s exhibits to our Registration Statement 388-114761 on Form S-
4, are incorporated by reference herein.

Third Supplemental Indenture relating to our Semotes by and between us, the Guarantors nameeinhéne Subsidiar
Guarantor named therein and SunTrust Bank, dated sy 1, 2006, filed as an exhibit to our Curr&sport on Form &
dated May 3, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incogted by reference herein.

Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeNiotes by and between us, the Guarantors nameeirihend U.S. Ban
National Association, dated as of November 9, 2006d as an exhibit to our Current Report on F@& datec
November 13, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 206iating to our Senior Notes by and betweenhes Guarantors, and t
Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportForm 8-K dated August 22, 2007 (File No. @®1195), is incorporate
by reference herein.

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Janu@y2B312, relating to our Senior Notes by and betwex the Guaranto
and the Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our CuriReport on Form 8-K dated February 2, 2012 (File B@109195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Janulgr213, relating to our Senior Notes by and amasighe Guaranto
and the Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our CuriRaport on Form 8-K dated January 11, 2013 (File 0@109195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2014, filedrasxhibit to our Registration Statement No. 333761 on Form S, is
incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015, filedraexhibit to our Current Report on FornK&8ated December 15, 20
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 5 7/8%6i& Notes due 2015, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K daftember 15, 2004 (File No. 0@B195), is incorporated by referer
herein.



411 Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&8lated June 2, 2005 (F
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

412 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/48ai& Notes due 2015, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datade 2, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordtgdeference herein.
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Exhibit
Number

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

10.1*

Description

Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedrasxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&ated June 27, 2005 (F
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/484i& Notes due 2015, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datede 27, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordigdeference herein.

Specimen of 7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2018, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&8ated April 3, 2006 (Fil
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7 1/486i& Notes due 2018, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datguil 3, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporategreference herein.

Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, filedrasxhibit to our Current Report on FornK8ated July 30, 2009 (Fi
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 9.100%%i& Notes due 2017, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dataly 30, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporabgdeference herein.

Specimen of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2020, filedrasxibit to our Current Report on Fornk8dated February 7, 20:
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 8.00%i@eNotes due 2020, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dakegbruary 7, 2012 (File No. 0019195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

Specimen of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2022, filednasxibit to our Current Report on FornK8dated July 31, 2012 (Fi
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7.50%i@eNotes due 2022, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K daitaly 31, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatgdeference herein.

Form of officers’ certificate and guarantors’ offis’ certificates establishing the form and terms of 2#75% Convertibl
Senior Notes due 2019, filed as an exhibit to ourént Report on Form 8-K dated January 29, 2018 (fo. 00109195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Form of 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 20l€qd fas an exhibit to our Current Report on Forik 8ated January 2
2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

Form of supplemental officers’ certificate and quraors’ officers’certificates establishing the form and terms of Xt875%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2019, filed as anldkkd our Quarterly Report on Form I@for the quarter ended Febru
28, 2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated &fgrence herein.

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March2023, by and among us, the Guarantors party tthetlee Additiona
Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Nationab@aton, as Trustee, filed as an exhibit to oua@erly Report on For
10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2013 (File Nii-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2021, filedraexhibit to our Current Report on FornK8dated October 29, 20:
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7.00%i@eNotes due 2021, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K da@ctober 29, 2013 (File No. 0019195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compiémsdelan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedamsexhibit to our 200
Annual Renort on Form -K (File No. 00--09195). is incorporated bv reference her



10.2* Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Bete Compensation Plan for amounts earned or vestedr afte

January 1, 2005, effective January 1, 2009, fiedraexhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 1(FKe No. 00109195),
is incorporated by reference herein.

10.3* KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended astdteel on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibituo 2008 Annua
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.
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Exhibit
Number

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8

10.9

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

Description
Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Direct@sferred Compensation Plan established effectivaf daly 27, 1989, file
as an exhibit to our 2007 Annual Report on FornKi@ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.

KB Home Performanc&ased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as detkand restated on October 2, 2008, file
an exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10RH{g No. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenes=in.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home PenimnceBased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, filedak
exhibit to our 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended asthted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibduo 2008 Annuz
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamngted by reference herein.

KB Home Directors’Legacy Program, as amended January 1, 1999, fdednaexhibit to our 1998 Annual Report
Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedrbference herein.

Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home &atipn and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trustee, datedof
August 27, 1999, filed as an exhibit to our 1999nAal Report on Form 10-K (File No. 0@B195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Pan@ended and restated on October 2, 2008, filad &xhibit to ou
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0911 9&incorporated by reference herein.

Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement under our Amendad Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as an éxioi
our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. O®IE95), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under our Amdraled Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as afbixio our 2011
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended asthted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibduo 2008 Annuz
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under our 2001 Stackntive Plan, filed as an exhibit to our 2011nAal Report on Forl
10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refeze herein.

Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under our 288dck Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to ou. 2®nnual Report o
Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedrbference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwispect to deferrals prior to January 1, 200fgcéfe March 1
2001, filed as an exhibit to our 2001 Annual Report-orm 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporabsdreference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Planhwigespect to deferrals on and after January 1, ,26@Bctive
January 1, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), filed as ahitdt to our 2008 Annual Report on Form KQ-is incorporated b
reference herein.

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as anteadd restated effective January 1, 2009, filedragxhibit to ou
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0919&incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhibi our 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File N®1-09195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OnlignP? effective as of January 1, 2009, filed as dnilst to our 200¢
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restafectieé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to 2008 Annual Repo



10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatgdreference herein.

Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datebr&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our Curf@aport on Form &
dated March 6, 2007 (File No. 001-09195), is inoogped by reference herein.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffrepMi€zger, dated December 24, 2008, filed as an @xoitour 200¢
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the EmploymAgteement between us and Jeffrey T. Mezger datedf
February 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our CurrBeport on Form 8-K dated July 18, 2007 (File 190109195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

123




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30

10.31

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39

10.40*

10.41*

Description

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amendedl Rastated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock optiomgta Jeffrey T
Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Repomt Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2002 No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certainv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filednasxaibit to ou
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 15, 2008(RNb. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxhibour Quarterly Report on Form 1D-for the quarter end¢
August 31, 2008 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedaby reference herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitad,as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8ated October ¢
2008 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to our Proxy StatemenSohedule 14A fc
the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File N01@9195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB Hame Wachovia Bank, N.A., dated August 24, 200@dfias al
exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foe tjuarter ended August 31, 2009 (File No. 09195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an dxhio our Current Report on Form 8-K dated AptiB10 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an ibithto our Quarterly Report on Form ID-for the quarter ende
February 28, 2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K8n¢ 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibibur Curren
Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2010 (File Nal-08195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Kiee Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an ibithto our
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2010e(RNb. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportFomm 8K datec
October 13, 2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedaby reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JeffreMezger, filec
as an exhibit to our 2010 Annual Report on FornKi@ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.

Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plided as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report onRdl0-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-0R18%ncorporated by reference herein.

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed asezhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form @Ofor the quarter end¢
February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011,d8emh exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FormQ@.@r the quarter ende
August 31, 2011 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedaby reference herein.

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance Castard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to our CutrBeport on Forr
8-K dated October 12, 2011 (File No. 001-09195é®rporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JgffreMezger, filec
as an exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on FornKi@ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.



10.42*

10.43*

10.44*

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Perfont@Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, fikedar
exhibit to our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K €ANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance-BaRestricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for perfarmebasec
restricted stock unit award to Jeffrey T. Mezgédedf as an exhibit to our 2012 Annual Report onnrdi0-K (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Res#itiStock Unit Award Agreement, filed as an exhtbitour 201:
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.
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Exhibit
Number

10.45

10.46

10.47t

12.1t

217

237

31.1%

31.2%

32.1%

32.2%

101%

Description
Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of March 12,320dmong us, the banks party thereto, and Citib&hR., as
Administrative Agent, filed as an exhibit to our &terly Report on Form 1Q-for the quarter ended May 31, 2013 (File
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amended and Restated KB Home NBmployee Directors Compensation Plan, effectivg 18l 2013, filed as an exhibit
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartettesl August 31, 2013 (File No. 008195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

First Amendment to the Revolving Loan Agreementedas of November 19, 2013, among us, the bantkg theereto, an
Citibank, N.A., as Administrative Agent.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President antieg® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to SentB02 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive ViceeBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home §uant to Section 3(
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President ande® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 18LL. Section 1350,
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOxtt of 2002.

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive ViceeBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home &uant to 18 U.S.(
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@iteoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repon Form 10K for the year ended November 30, 2013, formatte
eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL):Gahsolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded Novembe
30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (b) Consolidated StatesrEnComprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years Bridevember 3C
2013, 2012 and 2011, (c) Consolidated Balance Steetf November 30, 2013 and 2012, (d) ConsolidStatements ¢
StockholdersEquity for the years ended November 30, 2013, 2012011, (e) Consolidated Statements of Cash Hiow
the years ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2adl1(fathe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statamsen

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gagarent in which executive officers are eligiblgptaticipate.

T Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

KB Home
By: /s/  JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicif

Date: January 24, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated:

Signature
/s/ JEFFREY T. MEZGER

Jeffrey T. Mezger

/sl JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski

/sl WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER

William R. Hollinger

/s/  STEPHEN F. BOLLENBACH

Title

Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board and Director

Date
January 24, 2014

January 24, 2014

January 24, 2014

January 24, 2014

Stephen F. Bollenbach

/s/ BARBARA T. ALEXANDER Director
Barbara T. Alexander

January 24, 2014

/s/ TIMOTHY W. FINCHEM Director
Timothy W. Finchem

January 24, 2014

/sl THOMAS W. GILLIGAN Director
Thomas W. Gilligan

January 24, 2014

/s/  KENNETH M. JASTROW, II Director
Kenneth M. Jastrow, Il

January 24, 2014

/'s/ ROBERT L. JOHNSON Director
Robert L. Johnson

January 24, 2014

/s/ MELISSA LORA Director
Melissa Lora

January 24, 2014

/'s/ MICHAEL G. MCCAFFERY Director
Michael G. McCaffery

January 24, 2014

/s/ LUIS G. NOGALES Director January 24, 201



Luis G. Nogales
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3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amenditel] as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8
dated April 7, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorgted by reference herein.

3.2 By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fli@d, as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Fdrta
Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2007 (File®0d-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.1 Rights Agreement between us and Mellon Investowi6es LLC, as rights agent, dated January 22, 2
filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on ForsK/8 dated January 28, 2009 (File No. 009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.2 Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating 8486 Senior Notes due 2014 among us, the Guar:
and Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, each dated Januarg@®4, filed as exhibits to our Registration Statat
No. 333-114761 on Form S-4, are incorporated bgregice herein.

4.3 Third Supplemental Indenture relating to our Seiotes by and between us, the Guarantors nameeirif
the Subsidiary Guarantor named therein and SunBask, dated as of May 1, 2006, filed as an exhd
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 200Be(No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

4.4 Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeiNotes by and between us, the Guarantors ni
therein and U.S. Bank National Association, datedfaNovember 9, 2006, filed as an exhibit to ourrént
Report on Form 8-K dated November 13, 2006 (File 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.5 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208lating to our Senior Notes by and between lu=
Guarantors, and the Trustee, filed as an exhibdutoCurrent Report on FormkK-dated August 22, 20(
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

4.6 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Januar2@12, relating to our Senior Notes by and betwes
the Guarantors and the Trustee, filed as an extobitur Current Report on Formk8-dated February .
2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

4.7 Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Jariiiar2013, relating to our Senior Notes by and ay
us, the Guarantors and the Trustee, filed as aibiexh our Current Report on Formk8dated January 1
2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

4.8 Specimen of 5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2014, filedrasxhibit to our Registration Statement No. 333-
114761 on Form S-4, is incorporated by referenceihe

4.9 Specimen of 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on ForniK8datec
December 15, 2004 (File No. 001-09195), is incoapext by reference herein.

4.10 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 5 7/8%i& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportForm 8-K dated December 15, 2004 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

411 Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornK8latec
June 2, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordtgdeference herein.

412 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/48ai& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparfForm 8-K dated June 2, 2005 (File No. @31-95), is
incorporated by reference herein.



4.13

4.14

4.15

Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornK8latec
June 27, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordtgdeference herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/48ai& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReporfForm 8-K dated June 27, 2005 (File No. 09195),
is incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2018, filedra®xhibit to our Current Report on FornkK8latec
April 3, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporategreference herein.
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4.16 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7 1/486i& Note:
due 2018, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparEorm 8-K dated April 3, 2006 (File No. 009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.17 Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornK8datec
July 30, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordtgdeference herein.

4.18 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 9.1008ni& Note:
due 2017, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparfForm 8-K dated July 30, 2009 (File No. QUE195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.19 Specimen of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2020, filedragxibit to our Current Report on FornkK8datec
February 7, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedzby reference herein.

4.20 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantoc®rtificates establishing the terms of the 8.00%i@eNotes
due 2020, filed as an exhibit to our Current RemortForm 8-K dated February 7, 2012 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.21 Specimen of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2022, filedhasxdibit to our Current Report on FornmkK8dated July
31, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated &fgrence herein.

4.22 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantoc®rtificates establishing the terms of the 7.50%i@eNotes
due 2022, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparfForm 8-K dated July 31, 2012 (File No. QiA195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.23 Form of officers’ certificate and guarantors’ offis’ certificates establishing the form and terms of
1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019, filechmsexhibit to our Current Report on FornK8datec
January 29, 2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incorfeatdy reference herein.

4.24 Form of 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018 fas an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8-
dated January 29, 2013 (File No. 001-09195), isriparated by reference herein.

4.25 Form of supplemental officers’ certificate and qudors’ officers’certificates establishing the form &
terms of the 1.375% Convertible Senior Notes du&92(iled as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2(Hi& (No. 00109195), is incorporated by referet
herein.

4.26 Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March2023, by and among us, the Guarantors party tth
the Additional Guarantors named therein and U.$ikBdational Association, as Trustee, filed as alnilgk
to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quakeded May 31, 2013 (File No. 0@B195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.27 Specimen of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2021, filedragxibit to our Current Report on Fornk8datec
October 29, 2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpexieby reference herein.

4.28 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7.00%i@eNotes
due 2021, filed as an exhibit to our Current RemortForm 8-K dated October 29, 2013 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

10.1* Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Comptmsalan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedaax
exhibit to our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

10.2* Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Brefé Compensation Plan for amounts earne
vested on or after January 1, 2005, effective Jgnlia2009, filed as an exhibit to our 2008 AnnRa&lpor
on Form 1+K (File No. 00--09195), is incorporated by reference her



10.3* KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atateel on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibitLic
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0919&incorporated by reference herein.

10.4* Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directdp&ferred Compensation Plan established effectivef
July 27, 1989, filed as an exhibit to our 2007 AanReport on Form 10-K (File No. 0@8195), is
incorporated by reference herein.
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10.5* KB Home Performanc8ased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as deterand restated |
October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibit to our 2008&¥a Report on Form 10-K (File No. 0@P195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

10.6* Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home PenimmceBased Incentive Plan for Sen
Management, filed as an exhibit to our 1995 AnnRaport on Form 10-K (File No. 0019195), i
incorporated by reference herein.

10.7* KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended esidited on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibdiuit
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0919&incorporated by reference herein.

10.8 KB Home Directors’Legacy Program, as amended January 1, 1999, filexhaxhibit to our 1998 Annt
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

10.9 Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home @atipn and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trus
dated as of August 27, 1999, filed as an exhibibuo 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

10.10% Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Pan@ended and restated on October 2, 2008, fil
an exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10H/lg No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

10.11* Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement under our Amended Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, f
as an exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on FornK1(rile No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

10.12* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under our Amdnded Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed a
exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

10.13* KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended esidited on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibitit
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0911 9&incorporated by reference herein.

10.14* Form of Stock Option Agreement under our 2001 Sthudentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to our 2I
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

10.15* Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under our 2@8dck Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to oud2
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

10.16* KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Planhwiéspect to deferrals prior to January 1, 2
effective March 1, 2001, filed as an exhibit to @01 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 009195),
is incorporated by reference herein.

10.17* KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals on and after January 1, :
effective January 1, 2009 (File No. 001-09195dihs an exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on FboK,
is incorporated by reference herein.

10.18* KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andeade restated effective January 1, 2009, filedn
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

10.19* KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhibiour 2001 Annual Report on Form KO¢File No.
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

10.20* Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OnlgnR effective as of January 1, 2009, filed a
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere



10.21* KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restafedtigé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-0919&incorporated by reference herein.

10.22* Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datetiriary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our Cur
Report on Form 8-K dated March 6, 2007 (File Ndl-08@195), is incorporated by reference herein.
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10.23* Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffreyMEBzger, dated December 24, 2008, filed a
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

10.24* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employm&gteement between us and Jeffrey T. Me:
dated as of February 28, 2007, filed as an exhibiiur Current Report on Formk-dated July 18, 20C
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

10.25* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Rastated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock of
grant to Jeffrey T. Mezger, filed as an exhibitotr Quarterly Report on Form 1D-for the quarter ende
August 31, 2007 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedaby reference herein.

10.26* Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certaiv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filech.
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedydiB, 2008 (File No. 0009195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.27* KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxhibour Quarterly Report on Form ID-for the
quarter ended August 31, 2008 (File No. 001-091i85hcorporated by reference herein.

10.28* Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitatt,as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8
dated October 8, 2008 (File No. 001-09195), istipocated by reference herein.

10.29* KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisefiled as Attachment C to our Proxy Statemer
Schedule 14A for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stod#bos (File No. 00139195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.30 Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB Ham& Wachovia Bank, N.A., dated August
2009, filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Reportform 108 for the quarter ended August 31, 2009 (
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

10.31 Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an dathto our Current Report on Formk8dated April 2
2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

10.32* KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibithto our Quarterly Report on Form ID-for the
quarter ended February 28, 2010 (File No. 001-0R18%ncorporated by reference herein.

10.33* Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K&nté 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an ex|
to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 20Q,®2(QFile No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

10.34* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under KlB2eHome 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as

exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedyJ20, 2010 (File No. 0009195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.35* Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to our Current Repor
Form 8-K dated October 13, 2010 (File No. 001-091B5ncorporated by reference herein.

10.36* KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jg
T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our 2010 AnnuatpBrt on Form 10-K (File No. 0009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

10.37* Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Pllied as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2@l (No. 00109195), is incorporated by referet
herein.



10.38*

10.39

10.40*

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed as®mbit to our Quarterly Report on Form @@for the
quarter ended February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-0R18%ncorporated by reference herein.

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011, d8eah exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FormQ.@er
the quarter ended August 31, 2011 (File No. 0019691is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance Casfard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to our Cut
Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2011 (File 001.-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.
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10.41* KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jg
T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our 2011 AnnuatpBrt on Form 10-K (File No. 0009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

10.42* Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan PerfonteBased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem
filed as an exhibit to our 2012 Annual Report orrrdl0-K (File No. 00169195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.43* KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performamased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
performancesased restricted stock unit award to Jeffrey T. diezfiled as an exhibit to our 2012 Ann
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

10.44* Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Res#&icStock Unit Award Agreement, filed as an ext
to our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No1d9195), is incorporated by reference herein.

10.45 Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of March 12,32@mong us, the banks party thereto, and Citit
N.A., as Administrative Agent, filed as an exhibt our Quarterly Report on Form ID-for the quarte
ended May 31, 2013 (File No. 001-09195), is incoaped by reference herein.

10.46 Amended and Restated KB Home Nemployee Directors Compensation Plan, effectivey 1, 2013
filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FathQ for the quarter ended August 31, 2013 (File
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

10.47t First Amendment to the Revolving Loan Agreementedas of November 19, 2013, among us, the
party thereto, and Citibank, N.A., as Administrati&gent.

12.1% Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

21t Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1¢t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President andhie? Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2% Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicereBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Hol
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.

32.1t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President aruef Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 1&LC.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@i6eoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2t Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicereBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Hoi
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as AdopteduBatgo Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @220

101t The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repan Form 10K for the year ended November .

2013, formatted in eXtensible Business Reportingiduege (XBRL): (a) Consolidated Statements
Operations for the years ended November 30, 20032 2and 2011, (b) Consolidated Statement
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years Endedeler 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (c) Consolid
Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2013 and 2012 oftsolidated Statements of Stockhold&wguity for
the years ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2@)Tansolidated Statements of Cash Flows fo
years ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 fatik (Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligibleptuticipate.
T Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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EXHIBIT 10.47
FIRST AMENDMENT TO REVOLVING LOAN AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO REVOLVING LOAN AGREEMENT, ated as of November 19, 2(
(this “ Amendment”), is entered into by KB HOME, a Delaware corparat(the “ Borrower”), the Guarantc
Subsidiaries party hereto, the Banks and the IgsBanks party hereto, and CITIBANK, N.A., as adrsirative agel
(in such capacity, the * Administrative Ageit Capitalized terms used but not defined herein stalk the meanin
assigned to such terms in the Loan Agreement (asedebelow).

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Banks, the Issuing Baankd the Administrative Agent ente
into that certain Revolving Loan Agreement, datsdod March 12, 2013 (as amended, restated, supptecheo
otherwise modified from time to time, the “ Loandgment).

B. WHEREAS, each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries isyp@arthe Subsidiary Guaranty, purst
to which the Guarantor Subsidiaries have guararttee@bligations.

C. WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Banks and the IssuinghkBaparty hereto and t
Administrative Agent desire to amend the Loan Agrert on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

D. WHEREAS, each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries expextsealize substantial direct ¢
indirect benefits as a result of this Amendmentopaog effective and the consummation of the traisas
contemplated hereby and desires to reaffirm itgyabbns under the Subsidiary Guaranty.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agrents herein contained and other gooc
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receiptwhich are hereby acknowledged, the partiestbeagree ¢
follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments to Loan Agreemeiihe Borrower, the Banks and the Iss|
Banks party hereto and the Administrative Agenteagree that on the Amendment Effective Date (&selkbelow):

I. Section 1.1of the Loan Agreement shall be amended by ameralogrestating the followir
defined term:

“* Applicable Rates means, as of any date of determination, the Walg percentages per
annum, based upon the Applicable Pricing Levelhat tate:




Applicable Eurodollar Rate
Applicable Base Rate Applicable Commitment Spread/Applicable Letter of

Applicable Pricing Level Spread Fee Rate Credit Fee
| 1.5(% 0.50(% 2.5(%
I 1.75% 0.625% 2.7%%
1] 2.0(% 0.625% 3.0(%
\Y, 2.25% 0.625% 3.25%
Vv 2.5(% 0.75(% 3.50% "

il. Clause (xii) of Section 2.7(apf the Loan Agreement shall be amended by repl
“$300,000,000” with “$400,000,000".

iii. Clause (b) of Section 8.@f the Loan Agreement shall be amended by ameratidgrestatin
in its entirety the second parenthetical in suelusé to read as follows:eXcept that the financial statements referre
in Section 4.5 of the Loan Agreement shall be deketoerefer to the most recent statements furnigheduant t
clauses (a) and (b) of Section 7.1 and the Borrgvidase Certificate referred to in Section 4.7(kglishe deemed
refer to the most recent Borrowing Base Certificibvered pursuant to Section 2.8)".

SECTION 1. Representations and Warrantie$o induce the other parties hereto to enter inis
Amendment, each Loan Party represents and wartarttee Banks and the Administrative Agent thatpashe dat
hereof:

I. the representations and warranties contained iitcl&rtV of the Loan Agreement (other tt
the representations and warranties contained ihdbsc4.4(a), 4.18 and 4.19 of the Loan Agreemsindll be true ar
correct in all material respects on and as of #ite hereof as though made on and as of the datefl{except that tt
financial statements referred to in Section 4.5h&f Loan Agreement shall be deemed to refer tontbst recer
statements furnished pursuant to clauses (a) andf(Bection 7.1 of the Loan Agreement and the &eimg Bas
Certificate referred to in Section 4.7(b) of theahoAgreement shall be deemed to refer to the nexsint Borrowin
Base Certificate delivered pursuant to Sectiond.&he Loan Agreement); it being understood anceegrthat ar
representation or warranty that is qualified amtderiality or “Material Adverse Effec8hall be true and correct in
respects;

il. () the execution, delivery, and performance byBloerower and by each Guarantor Subsic
of this Amendment have been duly authorized byhedlessary corporate or partnership action, andotiaA) require
any consent or approval not heretofore obtainedngf stockholder, partner, security holder, or d¢oedof such Loa
Party; (B) violate or conflict with any provisiorf such Loan Partyg charter, certificate or articles of incorporat
bylaws, certificate or articles of organization,eoqting agreement, partnership agreement or otlganaational ¢
governing documents of such Loan Party; (C) resulir require the creation or imposition of any .igexcept to th
extent that any Lien is created under the Loan Duwmnis) or Right of Others upon or with respectrtgp Broperty noy
owned or leased or hereafter acquired by such Baaty;




(D) constitute a “transfer of an interest” or arbfigation incurred’that is avoidable by a trustee under Section 5.
the Bankruptcy Code of 1978, as amended, or catesta “fraudulent transfer” or “fraudulent obligati’ within the
meaning of the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act aaaed in any jurisdiction or any analogdwsv; (E) violate an
Requirement of Law applicable to such Loan Panty(F) result in a breach of or constitute a defaultier, or cause
permit the acceleration of any obligation owed unday indenture or loan or credit agreement or@hgr Contractu
Obligation to which such Loan Party or any of itoperty is bound or affected with respect to anjigaltion ol
obligations aggregating $25,000,000 or more; aiych¢ither the Borrower nor any Guarantor Subsidiarin violatior
of, or default under, any Requirement of Law or tactual Obligation, or any indenture, loan or dredjreemer
described in the foregoing clause (i)(F) in anyees that would constitute a Material Adverse Effec

iii. except such as have heretofore been obtained, thoreation, consent, approval, orc
license or permit from, or filing, registration, qualification with, or exemption from any of therégoing from, ar
Governmental Agency is or will be required to auid® or permit the execution, delivery and perfonee by th
Borrower or any Guarantor Subsidiary of this Ameedtnand

Iv. no Default or Event of Default has occurred andontinuing.

SECTION 2. Amendment EffectivenessThe effectiveness of this Amendment shall be suliethe
following conditions precedent (the date on whiakhsconditions have been satisfied (or waivedgfsrred to here
as the “ Amendment Effective Ddte

I. the Administrative Agent shall have received froiy the Borrower and each Guarar
Subsidiary and (ii) each Bank and each Issuing Ban#tuly executed and delivered counterpart of Aneendmer
signed on behalf of each such party;

il. the representations and warranties of the Borr@amerthe Guarantor Subsidiaries set fort
Section 2hereof shall be true and correct on and as of thmeiment Effective Date, and no Default or Evel
Default shall have occurred and be continuing; and

iii. the Administrative Agent shall have received all oamis due and payable to
Administrative Agent on or prior to the AmendmenffeEtive Date pursuant to the Loan Documents, idiclg,
reimbursement of the reasonable actual oytemfket expenses (including the fees and expensestahore than ot
firm of outside legal counsel retained to represeatAdministrative Agent) required to be reimburee paid hereund
or under any other Loan Document.

SECTION 3. Costs and ExpensesThe Borrower shall pay on demand the reasonatileabout-of-
pocket costs and expenses of the AdministrativenA@acluding the fees and expenses of not mora tre firm o
outside legal counsel retained to represent the iAidtrative Agent) incurred in connection with tipeeparatior
execution and delivery of this Amendment.




SECTION 4. Reaffirmation. Each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries acknowledgasits consent to tt
Amendment is not required, but each of the GuaraBtdsidiaries nevertheless does hereby agreearsmt to thi
Amendment. Each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries aggiad acknowledges that (i) notwithstanding theatiffeness «
this Amendment, the guarantee of the Obligationsigh Guarantor Subsidiary shall remain in fullicborand effe
without modification thereto and (ii) nothing hereshall in any way limit any of the terms or proeiss of suc
guarantee or any other Loan Document executed bl €uarantor Subsidiary, all of which are herebified,
confirmed and affirmed in all respects. Each of@warantor Subsidiaries hereby agrees and ackngedettiat no oth
agreement, instrument, consent or document shalétpaired to give effect to this Section Each of the Guarant
Subsidiaries hereby further acknowledges that Begrpthe Administrative Agents and any Bank maynfrome tc
time enter into any further amendments, modificgejoterminations and/or waivers of any provisiofighe Loat
Documents without notice to or consent from suchar@ntor Subsidiary and without affecting the vajidor
enforceability of such Guarantor Subsidiarguarantee of the Obligations or giving rise ty sgduction, limitatior
impairment, discharge or termination of such gut®@n

SECTION 5. Effect of Amendment On and after the Amendment Effective Date, eatrence t
the Loan Agreement in any Loan Document shall okl to be a reference to the Loan Agreement asdeded
this Amendment. Except as expressly provided is &mendment, nothing herein shall be deemed tdleminy Loal
Party to a consent to, or a waiver, amendment, fiication or other change of, any of the terms, ¢, obligations
covenants or agreements contained in the Loan Aggee or any other Loan Document in similar or dife
circumstances. On and after the Amendment Effe@ate, this Amendment shall constitute a “Loan Doeat” for all
purposes of the Loan Agreement and the other Lasuidents. On and after the Amendment Effective Degteised |
the Loan Agreement, the terms “Agreement,” “thigdgment,” “herein,” “hereinafter,” “hereto,” “hergb“hereunder”
and words of similar import shall, unless the cahti#herwise requires, mean the Loan Agreementreended by th
Amendment.

SECTION 6. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any number oftesparts and [
different parties hereto in separate counterpadsh of which when so executed and delivered $ieakleemed ¢
original, but all such counterparts together slkalhstitute but one and the same contract. Delivéran execute
counterpart of a signature page of this Amendmegnfabsimile or other customary means of electraranismissio
(e.g., “pdf’) shall be as effective as deliveryaofnanually executed counterpart hereof.

SECTION 7.  Applicable Law . THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, ANL
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATBF NEW YORK.

SECTION 8. Submission to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Venue; Sesvaf Process Subsections (b), (
and (d) of Section 11.18f the Loan Agreement are hereby incorporated fereace herein, mutatis mutandis, and :
have the same force and effect as if originallyfeeth herein.




SECTION 9. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREB
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTEEBY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT
MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISINC
OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT OR THE TRANSAUONS CONTEMPLATED HEREB!
(WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEQORR EACH PARTY HERETO (A
CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEYOF ANY OTHER PERSON HA
REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH O RHEERSON WOULD NOT, IN THE EVEN
OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVERND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT ANC
THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTHRTO THIS AMENDMENT BY, AMONG
OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONSN THIS SECTION.

SECTION 10. Headings. Article and section headings in this Amendment areluded fo
convenience of reference only and are not pattisfAmendment for any other purpose.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blank; sigmatpages follow




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caukisdAmendment to be duly executed by t
duly authorized officers, all as of the date andryfest above written.

KB HOME ,
as the Borrower

By: /S/JEFF J. KAMINSKI
Name: Jeff J. Kaminsl
Title: Executive Vice President a

Chief Financial Officer

KB HOME COASTAL INC.
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KB HOME GREATER LOS ANGELES INC.
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KB HOME SACRAMENTO INC.
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and Treast

KB HOME SOUTH BAY INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




KB HOME LAS VEGAS INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KB HOME NEVADA INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KB HOME RENO INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and Treast

KB HOME LONE STAR INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KBSA, INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

KB HOME PHOENIX INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title: Vice President and TreastL

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]






KB HOME TUCSON INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title: Vice President and Treasu

KB HOME DELMARVA LLC
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollinge!
Title:  Vice President, Chief Financ
Officer and Assistant Secretary

KB HOME FLORIDA LLC ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollingel
Title:  Vice President and Assistant Secre

KB HOME FORT MYERS LLC
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: KB HOME FLORIDA LLC,
its sole member

By: /S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollinge!
Title:  Vice President and Assistant Secre

KB HOME MARYLAND LLC ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: KB HOME DELMARVA LLC,
its sole member

By: J/S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollinge!

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer aAdsistant
Secretary

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




KB HOME ORLANDO LLC
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: KB HOME FLORIDA LLC,
its sole member

By: /S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollinge!
Title:  Vice President and Assistant Secre

KB HOME TAMPA LLC
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: KB HOME FLORIDA LLC,
its sole member

By: /S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollinge!
Title:  Vice President and Assistant Secre

KB HOME TREASURE COAST LLC
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: KB HOME FLORIDA LLC,
its sole member

By: J/S/WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER
Name: William R. Hollingel
Title:  Vice President and Assistant Secre

KB HOME VIRGINIA INC. ,
as a Guarantor Subsidiary

By: /S/ THAD JOHNSON
Name: Thad Johnsc
Title:  Vice President and TreastL

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




CITIBANK, N.A.,
as the Administrative Agent, a Bank and an Iss@#iagk

By: /S/MARNI MCMANUS
Name: Marni McManus
Title: Vice President & Managing Director

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as a Bank and an Issuing Bank

By: /S/ ANN E. KENZIE
Name: Ann E. Kenzie
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




CREDIT SUISSE AG, CAYMAN ISLANDS BRANCH,
as a Bank and an Issuing Bank

By: /S/BILL ODALY
Name: Bill O’'Daly
Title: Authorized Signatory

By: /S/SALLY REYES
Name: Sally Reyes
Title: Authorized Signatory

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]




DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS,
as a Bank and an Issuing Bank

By: /S/MICHAEL STANCHINA
Name: Michael Stanchina
Title: Director

By: /S/MICHAEL GETZ
Name: Michael Getz
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to First Amendment to RevolvingrLégreement]



EXHIBIT 12.1

KB HOME
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(In Thousands, Except Ratios)

Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Earnings
Income (loss) from operations before income
taxes $ 38,36 % (79,059 $ (181,169 $ (76,369 $ (311,18,
Add:
Interest incurred 149,10: 132,65 112,03 122,23( 119,60:
Amortization of premiums and discounts rele
to debt 5,34 3,01¢ 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢
Portion of rent expense considered to be int¢ 3,20¢ 3,09¢ 3,511 4,65¢ 7,501
Amortization of previously capitalized interes 87,41« 78,63( 79,33¢ 95,23¢ 138,17!
Distribution of earnings from unconsolidated
joint ventures, net of equity in income (loss) 2,88z 1,51¢ 45,25¢ 19,63¢ 43,26:
Deduct:
Interest capitalized (86,41)) (62,857 (62,837 (53,929 (67,839
Income (loss) as adjusted $ 199,90( $ 77,01 $ (1,709 $ 113,62( $ (68,88))
Fixed charges
Interest incurred $ 149,10. % 132,65 % 112,03° $ 122,23( % 119,60:
Amortization of premiums and discounts relate
to debt 5,347 3,01¢ 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢
Portion of rent expense considered to be interest 3,20¢ 3,09¢ 3,51 4,65¢ 7,507
$ 157,65: $ 138,76¢ $ 117,70: $ 129,03 $ 128,69!
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.27x = = = =
Coverage deficiency (a) $ — 9 (61,757 $ (119,40) $ (15,41) $ (197,58)

The ratios of earnings to fixed charges are contpatea consolidated basis.

(a) Earnings for the years ended November 30, 20121,22010 and 2009 were insufficient to cover fixdéwrges for the period by $6.
million, $119.4 million, $15.4 million and $197.6illion, respectively.



EXHIBIT 21
KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The following subsidiaries* of KB Home were inclutlim the November 30, 2013 consolidated finandetiesnents:

Percentage of
Voting Securities
Owned by
the Registrant
ora

Subsidiary of

Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Farmation the Registrant
Arizona
KB HOME Phoenix Inc. 100
KB HOME Sales - Phoenix Inc. 100
KB HOME Sales - Tucson Inc. 100
KB HOME Tucson Inc. 100
California
KB HOME Coastal Inc. 100
KB HOME Greater Los Angeles Inc. 100
KB HOME Insurance Agency Inc. 100
KB HOME Sacramento Inc. 100
KB HOME South Bay Inc. 100
Colorado
KB HOME Colorado Inc. 100
Delaware
KB HOME Charlotte Inc. 100
KB HOME DelMarVa LLC 100
KB HOME Florida LLC 100
KB HOME Fort Myers LLC 100
KB HOME Gold Coast LLC 100
KB HOME Gulf Coast Inc. 100
KB HOME Jacksonville LLC 100
KB HOME Maryland LLC 100
KB HOME North Carolina Inc. 100
KB HOME Orlando LLC 100
KB HOME Raleigh-Durham Inc. 100
KB HOME South Carolina Inc. 100
KB HOME Tampa LLC 100
KB HOME Treasure Coast LLC 100
KB HOME Virginia Inc. 100
KB HOME Wisconsin LLC 100
KB Urban Inc. 100
Florida
KB HOME Title Services Inc. 100
lllinois

KB HOME Mortgage Company 100






Percentage of
Voting Securities

Owned by
the Registrant
ora
Subsidiary of
Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Farmation the Registrant
Nevada
KB HOME Las Vegas Inc. 100
KB HOME Nevada Inc. 100
KB HOME Reno Inc. 100
New Mexico
KB HOME New Mexico Inc. 100
Texas
KB HOME Lone Star Inc. 100
KBSA, Inc. 100

* Certain subsidiaries have been omitted from likis These subsidiaries, when considered in dygegate as a single subsidiary, do not
constitute a significant subsidiary as defined ieRL-02(w) of Regulation S-X.



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-106@3 KB Home,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 328273) pertaining to the KB Home 1988 EmployeecistBlan, the KB Home 19¢
Stock Incentive Plan, the KB Home Performance-Bdsedntive Plan for Senior Management, the KB Hddmn-Employee
Directors Stock Plan, the KB Home 401(k) SavinganPthe KB Home 1999 Incentive Plan, the KB Hom@128tock Incentiv
Plan, certain stock grants and the resale of cestaéres by officers of the Company,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188pértaining to the KB Home 401(k) Savings Plard a
(4) Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-868&ind Form S-8 No. 333-175601) pertaining to tBeHOme 2010 Equity

Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated January 24, 2014 with resjoeitte consolidated financial statements of KB Hparel the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of KB Home, included ingtnnual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended &lober 30, 2013.

é.q,utf MLLF

Los Angeles, California
January 24, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey T. Mezger, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F KB Home

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuncets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @ther financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaoesed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbmg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registramstinterna
control over financial reporting.

Dated January 24, 2014 /s JEFFREY T. MEZGER

Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



1.

2.

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeff J. Kaminski, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F KB Home

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omisteie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaoesed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registramstinterna
control over financial reporting.

Dated January 24, 2014 /s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicff
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB HomegttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Nober 30, 2013 (the “Report”),
Jeffrey T. Mezger, President and Chief Executivd®f of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.Ss€ction 1350, as adopted pursua
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tindihe best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Dated January 24, 2014 /s JEFFREY T. MEZGER
Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB HomegttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Nober 30, 2013 (the “Repoit”
[, Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Vice President ankief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, puant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350
adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydt of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Dated January 24, 2014 /s! JEFF J. KAMINSKI
Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financiali€ff
(Principal Financial Officer)




